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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements contained in thimalhreport constitute forward-looking statementithin the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and Section 21E of tBecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended'lBkehange Act"), and we intend such
statements to be covered by the safe harbor pomésiontained therein. Forward-looking statemesitge to future events or the future
performance or financial condition of Ares Commak&eal Estate Corporation ("ACRE" and, togethehvis consolidated subsidiaries, the
"Company," "we," "us" and "our"). The forward-lookj statements contained in this report involve mlmer of risks and uncertainties,
including statements concerning:

. our business and investment strategy;

. our projected operating results;

. the timing of cash flows, if any, from our inwe®nts;

. the state of the U.S. economy generally or ec#ffr geographic regions;

. defaults by borrowers in paying debt serviceatstanding items;

. actions and initiatives of the U.S. Governmemd ahanges to U.S. Government policies;

. our ability to obtain and maintain financingargements, including securitizations;

. the amount of commercial mortgage loans requirgfmancing;

. our expected investment capacity and availableaapi

. financing and advance rates for our target investse

. our expected leverage;

. general volatility of the securities markets in ethive may invest;

. the impact of a protracted decline in the liquidifycredit markets on our business;

. the uncertainty surrounding the strength of the. @c®nomic recovery;

. the return or impact of current and future inwents;

. allocation of investment opportunities to usAngs Commercial Real Estate Management LLC, or Manager";
. changes in interest rates and the market vdloaronvestments;

. effects of hedging instruments on our targeestments;

. rates of default or decreased recovery ratesuomtarget investments;

. rates of prepayments on our mortgage loans aneftéet on our business of such prepayments;

. the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

. changes in governmental regulations, tax law atekyrand similar matters (including interpretatioareof);

. our ability to maintain our qualification as a restate investment trust for U.S. federal incomeptaposes, or "REIT";
. our ability to maintain our exemption from regisioa under the Investment Company Act of 1940,raeraded;
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. availability of investment opportunities in mortgatelated and real estate-related investmentsenudites;

. the ability of our Manager to locate suitable inwesnts for us, monitor, service and administeriouestments and execute
investment strategy;

. the ability of ACRE Capital LLC to originate aseéll mortgage loans;

. our ability to successfully complete and inteégrany acquisitions;

. the impact of committed loans failing to close;

. availability of qualified personnel;

. estimates relating to our ability to make dittions to our stockholders in the future;

. our understanding of our competition;

. market trends in our industry, interest rates, estdte values, the debt securities markets aggheral economy; and
. the future of U.S. government-sponsored enterprises

We use words such as "anticipates,” "bebgV'expects," "intends," "will," "should," "maghd similar expressions to identify forward-
looking statements. Our actual results could diffiaterially from those expressed in the forwardking statements for any reason, including
the factors set forth under "Risk Factors" andwelfege in this annual report on Form 10-K.

We have based the forward-looking statemgriuded in this annual report on informationikalde to us on the date of this annual
report, and we assume no obligation to update acly ®rward-looking statements.
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PART |
ltem 1. Business

The following description of the business of Aresn@ercial Real Estate Corporation should be readanjunction with the
information included elsewhere in this annual repmr Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 20 refer to Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation ("ACRE") together with our suiaries as "we," "us," "Company," or "our," unlea® specifically state otherwise or t
context indicates otherwise. We refer to our manafyees Commercial Real Estate Management LLC uasManager” or "ACREM" and
the parent company of our Manager, Ares Manageréht together with its consolidated subsidiarias,"Ares Management."

GENERAL

We are a specialty finance company thptimmarily focused on directly originating, managiagd servicing a diversified portfolio of
commercial real estate ("CRE") debt-related investis for our own account. Our target investmerahide senior loans, bridge loans,
subordinated debt, preferred equity and other GREstments. Through our Manager, a subsidiary eEAManagement, L.P. (NYSE:
ARES), a publicly traded, leading global alternatasset manager, we have investment professidnatisgcally located across the United
States and in Europe who directly source new Iggodunities for us with owners, operators and sposof CRE properties. This is our
primary business segment, referred to as the pah&nding business.

We are also engaged in the mortgage barkismess through our wholly owned subsidiary, AGEIpital LLC ("ACRE Capital"),
which we believe is complementary to our princilealding business. In this business segment, wettireriginate long-term senior loans
collateralized by multifamily and senior-living grerties and sell them to third parties pursuaprtgrams overseen by government agencies
and government-sponsored enterprises ("GSEs")of@nmating and financial information about our segtsesee Note 19 to our consolidated
financial statements included in this annual reparEorm 10-K.

We were formed and commenced operatiofetén2011. We are a Maryland corporation and cotegdleur initial public offering (the
"IPO") in May 2012. We have elected and qualifiedé taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tap@ses under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), commencitigour taxable year ended December 31, 2012. Wexernally managed by our
Manager pursuant to the terms of a managementragree

Our Investment Strategy
Principal Lending Business

In our principal lending business, we tatg@rrowers whose capital needs are not beingldyitaet in the conventional bank market by
offering customized financing solutions. We implerna strategy focused on direct origination comtiméth experienced portfolio
management. We believe the availability of the @unéted capital we provide in the CRE middle-maikdimited and we continue to find
increasing demand from borrowers and sponsorsustomized solutions in this segment of the maMég.act as a single "one stop" sourc
financing for our customers through our customifteancing solutions. We generally hold our loansifvestment and earn interest and
interest-related income.

Mortgage Banking Business

On August 30, 2013, we commenced our comeigary mortgage banking business through the sitigni of ACRE Capital. We
operate our mortgage banking business under a oatidmi of programs, including the Federal Natidviattgage Association ("Fannie
Mae"), the Federal Home
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Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac"), the Goweent National Mortgage Association ("Ginnie Maatd the Federal Housing
Administration, a division of the U.S. Departmehtmusing and Urban Development (together with Giriviae, "HUD"). ACRE Capital is
approved as a Fannie Mae Delegated UnderwritingSamdicing ("DUS") lender, a Freddie Mac ProgramsRl Seller/Servicer, a
Multifamily Accelerated Processing ("MAP") and Seat232 LEAN lender for HUD, and a Ginnie Mae issua our mortgage banking
business, we utilize such platforms to originate s@rvice multifamily residential, senior housingldealthcare facilities mortgage loans (
"mortgage banking target investments"). While wenéitle interest income from these activitiesvas generally only hold loans for short
periods, we receive origination fees when we cloaas and sale premiums when we sell loans. Weratam the rights to service the loans,
which are known as mortgage servicing rights ("M3Rsd receive fees for providing such servicesmiuthe life of the loans which
generally last ten years or more.

Direct Origination

We generally source new investments thraughational direct origination platform consistiof over 13 offices across the United
States as of December 31, 2014. We also seek te mastments in Europe through Ares Managemerithatias offices in major cities
across Europe.

Opportunistic Strategy

In pursuing investment opportunities wittractive risk-reward profiles, our Manager incargtes our views of the current and future
economic environment, our outlook for real estatgeneral and particular asset classes and owssassat of the risk-reward profile derived
from our underwriting. Our Manager's underwritingralards center on the creditworthiness of theowar and the underlying sponsor of a
given asset, with particular focus on an asses@as plan, competitive positioning within the kedy existing capital structure and potential
exit opportunities. All investment decisions ared@aao that we maintain our qualification as a R&hd our exemption from registration
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as angratehe "1940 Act".

In addition, as part of our investmenttstgg, we may from time to time engage in discussiwith counterparties with respect to various
potential strategic transactions, including potdritivestments in, and acquisitions of, other esdihte or finance companies or loan portfol
In connection with evaluating potential strategamsactions, we may incur significant expenseshierevaluation and due diligence
investigation and negotiation of any potential s@tion.

Our investment strategy may be amended fiora to time without the approval of our stockhats if recommended by our Manager
and approved by our board of directors. We expedidclose any material changes to our investntestiegy in the periodic quarterly and
annual reports that we file with the SEC.

Our Target Assets

Our target investments in the principaldieig business include transitional senior mortgages, stretch senior mortgage loans, bridge
loans, subordinated debt, preferred equity andr&RE investment opportunities (our "principal lergltarget investments" and, together
with our mortgage banking target investments, ¢anget investments"). In the case of bridge loarih respect to multifamily properties, we
may seek to provide interim-financing to borrowpri®r to or while they are pursuing long-term, pamant financing through our mortgage
banking business under various GSE and HUD programs
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Investment Portfolio

For information about our investment pditfosee "Management's Discussion And Analysis i@&kcial Condition And Results Of
Operations—Investment Portfolio" and Note 3 to comsolidated financial statements included in @misual report on Form 10-K.

Commercial Real Estate Loans

. Senior Commercial Mortgage LoansThese mortgage loans are typically secured by Ifens on commercial properties,
including the following property types: office, aflt multifamily/manufactured housing, industriaiiiehouse and hospitality.
some cases, first lien mortgages may be dividadantA-Note and a B-Note. The A-Note is typicallgravately negotiated
loan that is secured by a first mortgage on a corialeproperty or group of related properties tisagenior to a B-Note
secured by the same first mortgage property orpgrou

. Subordinated Debt: These loans may include structurally subordinéitstimortgage loans and junior participationdiigt
mortgage loans or participations in these typessséts. As noted above, a B-Note is typically egpely negotiated loan that is
secured by a first mortgage on a commercial prgpargroup of related properties and is subordihébean ANote secured k
the same first mortgage property or group. The glibation of a B-Note or junior participation typity is evidenced by
participations or intercreditor agreements witheotholders of interests in the note. B-Notes abgesii to more credit risk with
respect to the underlying mortgage collateral tt@ncorresponding A-Note.

. Mezzanine Loans:Like B-Notes, these loans are also subordinaiRE ©ans, but are usually secured by a pledgeeof th
borrower's equity ownership in the entity that ovlms property or by a second lien mortgage on thpeaty. In a liquidation,
these loans are generally junior to any mortgagyesion the underlying property, but senior to amfgsred equity or common
equity interests in the entity that owns the propdnvestor rights are usually governed by inteditor agreements.

. Preferred Equity: Similar to mezzanine loans, real estate prefezrpdty investments are subordinate to first mayégiwans
and are not collateralized by the property undedythe investment. As a holder of preferred equity,seek to enhance our
position with covenants that limit the activitiestioe entity in which we have an interest and protair equity by obtaining an
exclusive right to control the underlying propeafyer an event of default, should such a defaudtioon our investment.

Other CRE I nvestments

To a lesser extent, we invest in other $ommd securities, subject to maintaining our gigalifon as a REIT, including but not limited to
loans to real estate or hospitality companies,atebtpossession loans and selected other incooduping equity investments, such as triple
net lease equity.
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Ares Commercial Real Estate Management LLC and Are$lanagement L.P.

We are externally managed by our Managesyant to the terms of a management agreement datd®5, 2012, as amended, betw¢
us and our Manager (the "Management Agreement").

Our Manager is a subsidiary of Ares Managietma publicly traded, leading global alternatieset manager with approximately
$86 billion of assets under management ("AU#as of December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 20ids Management had over 750
employees in over 15 principal and originating @#f across the United States, Europe and Asiae 8simnception in 1997, Ares
Management has adhered to a disciplined investpteélitsophy that focuses on delivering strong rigjusted investment returns throughout
market cycles. Ares Management believes each @dutsdistinct but complementary investment groump$radable Credit, Direct Lending,
Private Equity and Real Estate is a market leadseth on AUM and investment performance. Ares Mamagé was built upon the
fundamental principle that each group benefits flming part of the greater whole.

Our Manager is responsible for adminisggionr business activities and day-to-day operatémsproviding us our executive
management team, principal investment team andpppte support personnel. Pursuant to the ManageAgeement, our Manager is
entitled to receive a base management fee, antimedre and expense reimbursements. In additroogitain circumstances, our Manager
will be entitled to receive a termination fee iethlanagement Agreement is terminated. Our Managgratso receive grants of equity-based
awards pursuant to our equity incentive plan thas adopted on April 23, 2012, or the "2012 Equitgehtive Plan". For more information on
the terms of the Management Agreement, see Note @&r consolidated financial statements includethis annual report on Form 10-K.

@ Ares Management is the parent to several registaxes$tment advisers, including Ares CommerciallBestate Management. AUM
refers to the assets of the funds, alternativet @assapanies and other entities and accounts thananaged or co-managed by Ares.
For Ares funds other than collateralized loan dlimns ("CLOs"), AUM represents the sum of theastet value of such funds, the
drawn and undrawn debt (at the fund-level includingpunts subject to restrictions) and uncalled cdtadchcapital (including
commitments to funds that have yet to commence thvegéstment periods). For Ares funds that are GLAMM represents
subordinated notes (equity) plus all drawn and awdrdebt tranches. AUM amounts are as of Decenmbe2®L.4 and pro forma for
Ares' acquisition of Energy Investors Funds ("EJRhich closed on January 1, 2015.
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The following chart shows the structure &adous investment strategies of Ares Managemeof ®ecember 31, 2014:

Tradable Credit Direct Lending

A leading participant in ihe One of ihe largest sell-originating e of the mosi consisient private A leading panticipand in ihe real

tradable, non-investment grade direet lenders to the LS. and equity managers in the 1S, with a estate private cquity markets
corporale credit markets European middle markeis growing infcrnational presence and a growing direct lender
Assets Uncl . - e .
sl $32 billion 529 billion 514 billion™ $11 billion
Management
- = e : LS. / European Flexible Capital -
Strategies Long-Chly Credit LIS, Dircet Lending L i e Rezal Estate Debt

Alternative Credit European Direet Lending China Growth Capital Real Estate Equity

(1) Ares Management is the parent to several registaxedtment advisers, including Ares CommerciallRestate Management. AUM
refers to the assets of the funds, alternativet @ssepanies and other entities and accounts teahanaged or co-managed by Ares.
For Ares funds other than CLOs, AUM representsstiva of the net asset value of such funds, the deawirundrawn debt (at the
fund-level including amounts subject to restricéipand uncalled committed capital (including conmeibts to funds that have yet to
commence their investment periods). For Ares fuhdsare CLOs, AUM represents subordinated nowgsitg plus all drawn and

undrawn debt tranches. AUM amounts are as of Deeeih 2014 and pro forma for Ares' acquisitiofed¥, which closed on
January 1, 2015.

(2) Includes approximately $4 billion of AUM as becember 31, 2014 from the acquisition of EIF anuary 1, 2015.

MARKET OPPORTUNITY

We believe market conditions continue tddarable for disciplined and scaled direct legdivith broad and flexible product offerings.
We have recently witnessed the emergence of netpdebiders and legacy debt providers expanding tiek tolerances for transitional
lending opportunities. This expanded toleranceréaslted in increased competition for our targsetsand, together with the low interest
rate environment, has increased refinancing agtivitich we believe has led to higher prepaymemsran our mortgage loans. Additionally,
we believe increased commercial real estate tréinsagolumes will allow our Manager to remain séiee in its origination of assets for us.
In addition, we estimate that over the next threary a large amount of debt maturing in the rdatesnarket will increase borrower demand.

As one of only 15 lenders approved as bd#annie Mae DUS and Freddie Mac Program Pl8ef&er/Servicer as of December 31, 2(
we believe our mortgage banking segment, ACRE @hpibssesses distinct competitive advantagesowiging governmentally supported
financing products to borrowers. Furthermore, gikleense requirements for the mortgage bankingrassi, we believe that there are high
barriers to entry to this market where governmeeinaies and GSEs represent the largest currerdesotifinancing for multifamily
borrowers. Since we operate both as a principaldeand a mortgage banker, we can offer a wideyanf financing solutions to our
customers. We also have the flexibility to provadeombination of solutions to our customers, iniclgdnstances
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where our principal lending business provides atsieom, bridge loan to an owner of multifamily pegties while our mortgage banking
business seeks long-term permanent financing éoséime customer. This provides us with the oppiyttm offer our customer an efficient
"one stop" financial product and at the same tiar® eevenues at multiple times in the relationstiih the customer. First, we can earn fees,
interest and interest-related income while holdhegyshort term bridge loan. Second, we can eaenest and interest related income,
origination fees and sale premiums when we propiienanent financing and sell the loans under gowent and GSE programs. Third, we
can earn servicing fees from MSRs that we retaitherpermanent loans. We expect these productsisit referral and revenue
opportunities across ACRE and lead to expandedthrde believe that this flexible approach, coupkéth Ares Management's market
visibility and sourcing capabilities, enables usdentify attractive investment opportunities thghout economic cycles and across a
borrower's capital structure.

OUR FINANCING STRATEGY

We intend to use prudent amounts of levetagund the origination or acquisition of ourger investments. Subject to maintaining our
qualification as a REIT and our exemption from 1940 Act, we expect that our primary sources drfiting will be, to the extent available
to us, through (a) credit, secured funding andrdéheding facilities, (b) securitizations, (c) othsmurces of private financing, including
warehouse, repurchase facilities and structuringeofor and mezzanine loans and (d) public or tgie&ferings of our equity or debt
securities. In the future, we may utilize otherrses of financing to the extent available to us.

Given current market conditions and ounfoon first or senior mortgages, we currently expieat such leverage would not exceed, on a
debt-to-equity basis, a 4-to-1 ratio. Our charted Bylaws do not restrict the amount of leverage e may use. The amount of leverage we
will deploy for particular investments in our tatgevestments will depend upon our Manager's assessof a variety of factors, which may
include, among others, the anticipated liquiditg anice volatility of the assets in our investmpattfolio, the potential for losses and
extension risk in our portfolio, the gap betweem duration of our assets and liabilities, includirggiges, the availability and cost of financing
the assets, our opinion of the creditworthinessusffinancing counterparties, the health of the.l@@nomy generally or in specific
geographic regions and commercial mortgage mar&atsputlook for the level and volatility of intexterates, the slope of the yield curve, the
credit quality of our assets, the collateral ungded our assets, and our outlook for asset spresasve to the LIBOR curve.

Financing Facilities

We borrow funds under the ASAP Line of Gramd the BAML Line of Credit (the "Warehouse Lief Credit”), and the Wells Fargo
Facility, the December 2014 Citibank Facility, apital One Facility, the CNB Facilities, the MdtLFacility and the UBS Facilities
(individually defined in Note 6 to the consolidafétancial statements included in this annual reparForm 10-K and collectively, the
"Secured Funding Agreements"). We refer to the Wauee Lines of Credit and the Secured Funding Agess as the "Financing
Facilities." As of December 31, 2014, our outstagdialance under the Financing Facilities was $#diion. While the borrowers under the
Financing Facilities generally are our subsidiaréssuch facilities (excluding the Warehouse Isieé Credit) are guaranteed by ACRE.
Generally, we seek to partially offset interesenask by matching the interest index of loans Hefdnvestment with the Financing Facility
used to fund them.

Additionally, we have $69 million of outstding aggregate principal amount of 2015 Conveztidbtes and approximately $528 million
aggregate principal amount of indebtedness outstgnahder two securitizations as of December 31420
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See Item 7, "Management's Discussion aralysrs of Financial Condition and Results of Opierat” included in this annual report on
Form 10-K for a further discussion of our borrowsraes of December 31, 2014.

TAXATION

We have elected and qualified to be taxed REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes utiteiCode, commencing with our taxable
year ended December 31, 2012. We generally wilbeatubject to U.S. federal income taxes on ouifR&table income, determined witht
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andwiolg net capital gains, to the extent that we atipudistribute all of our REIT taxable
income to stockholders and comply with various ptleguirements as a REIT.

In connection with the acquisition of ACRREpital in August 2013, we contributed the commbitsuof ACRE Capital to ACRE Capital
Holdings LLC ("TRS Holdings"), a wholly owned subgiry of ours. We formed a wholly owned subsidisr{pecember 2013, ACRC Lenc
W TRS LLC ("ACRC W TRS") and in March 2014, ACRCrider U TRS LLC ("ACRC U TRS") in order to issue amald certain loans
intended for sale. Entity classification electidode taxed as a corporation and taxable REIT didyyi ("TRS") elections were made with
respect to TRS Holdings, ACRC W TRS and ACRC U TRSRS is an entity taxed as a corporation othanth REIT in which a REIT
directly or indirectly holds equity, and that haade a joint election with such REIT to be treate@ & RS. Other than some activities relating
to lodging and health care facilities, a TRS gelfyeraay engage in any business, including investmgssets and engaging in activities that
could not be held or conducted directly by us withieopardizing our qualification as a REIT. A TRSsubject to applicable U.S. federal,
state, local and foreign income tax on its taxaiteme. In addition, as a REIT, we also may beexthp a 100% excise tax on certain
transactions between us and our TRS that are molucted on an arm's-length basis.

COMPETITION

Our net income depends, in part, on oditald originate or acquire assets at favorableeagds over our borrowing costs. In our
principal lending business, we compete with othddlig or private REITS, specialty finance compangsings and loan associations, banks,
mortgage bankers, insurance companies, mutual fimstgutional investors, investment banking firrfinancial institutions, governmental
bodies, fund managers and other entities. In amdithere are numerous REITs with similar assefimation and acquisition objectives and
others may be organized in the future. These ®RiE#Ts will increase competition for the availabigply of mortgage assets suitable for
purchase and origination. Many of our competitoessignificantly larger than we are and have carsidly greater financial, technical,
marketing and other resources than we do. Some etitons may have a lower cost of funds and acaefisding sources that are not
available to us, such as the U.S. Government. Méimyr competitors are not subject to the operatimgstraints associated with REIT tax
compliance or maintenance of an exemption froml®w0 Act. In our mortgage banking business, we aimwith commercial banks,
commercial real estate service providers and imog@ompanies. In addition, future changes in laagylations and GSE and HUD program
requirements could lead to the entry of more coitgst In addition, some of our competitors maydigher risk tolerances or different r
assessments, which could allow them to considedarwariety of investments and establish moretigahips than us. Current market
conditions may attract more competitors, which nmeyease the competition for sources of financhgincrease in the competition for
sources of funding could adversely affect the ality and cost of financing, and thereby adversdfect the market price of our common
stock. See "Management's Discussion and Analydtsnaincial Condition and Results of Operations—&i@ctmpacting Our Operating
Results—Market Conditions" included in this anntggdort on Form 10-K.
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In the face of this competition, we haveess to our Manager's and Ares Management's piafiess, the ACRE Capital team and their
collective industry expertise, which may providewith a competitive advantage and help us assesstiment risks and determine
appropriate pricing for certain potential investiigehese relationships enable us to compete nifaretigely for attractive investment
opportunities. However, we may not be able to agh@ur business goals or expectations due to thpettive risks that we face. For
additional information concerning these competitigks, see "Risk Factors—Risks Related to Ourdtments—We operate in a competitive
market for investment opportunities and loan o@gjions and competition may limit our ability to ginate or acquire desirable investments in
our target investments and could also affect ti@nay of these securities" included in this anmeglort on Form 10-K.

STAFFING

We are externally managed by our Managesyant to the Management Agreement. Our execufficers also serve as officers of our
Manager. Although ACRE does not have any employ®€RE Capital employs over 100 employees. For nrdfi@mation on the terms of
the Management Agreement, see Note 15 to our ddased financial statements included in this anmepbrt on Form 10-K.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file with or submit to the SEC annualagerly and current periodic reports, proxy staeta and other information meeting the
informational requirements of the Exchange Act.sTihformation is available free of charge by calirs collect at (312) 252-7500 or on our
website atvww.arescre.conT he information on our website is not deemed inoated by reference in this annual report. You elsy
inspect and copy these reports, proxy statemegtetuer information, as well as the annual repod @elated exhibits and schedules, at the
Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Streef, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain informaton the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0BB8 SEC maintains an Internet site that contapsrts, proxy and information
statements and other information filed electromyclay us with the SEC which are available on th&€SHnternet site atww.sec.gov Copies
of these reports, proxy and information statementsother information may be obtained, after pagmyiplicating fee, by electronic request
at the following e-mail addresgublicinfo@sec.goyor by writing the SEC's Public Reference Roonf) EGtreet, NE, Washington, D.C.
20549.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider these risk factavgether with all of the other information includiedthis annual report, including our
consolidated financial statements and the relate@s thereto, before you decide whether to makevastment in our securities. The risks
set out below are not the only risks we face. Aaltét risks and uncertainties not currently knowrus or that we currently deem to be
immaterial also may materially adversely affect business, financial condition and/or operatinguks. If any of the following events occur,
our business, financial condition and results oéigtions could be materially adversely affectedsuch case, the value of our common stock
and the trading price of our securities could deeliand you may lose all or part of your investment

RISKS RELATED TO OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH OUR MANAGER AND ITS AFFILIATES

Our future success depends on our Manager, its kgyersonnel and their access to the investment prof@snals of Ares Management.
We may not find a suitable replacement for our Manger if our management agreement is terminated, off such key personnel or
investment professionals leave the employment of oManager or Ares Management or otherwise become wavailable to us.

We rely on the resources of our Managenamage our day-to-day operations (other than teeatipns of ACRE Capital, which has
employees that provide certain services in conoedatiith our mortgage banking business). Other tharACRE Capital employees, ACRE
does not employ any personnel. We rely completalgpur Manager to provide us with investment adyisarvices.

Our executive officers also serve as offiaaf our Manager. Our Manager has significantréison as to the implementation of our
investment and operating policies and strategiesofdingly, we believe that our success dependssignificant extent upon the efforts,
experience, diligence, skill and network of bustesntacts of the officers and key personnel ofdanager. The officers and key personnel
of our Manager evaluate, negotiate, close and mioailr investments; therefore, our success depamdseir continued service. The
departure of any of the officers or key personti@uw Manager could have a material adverse effeciur business.

Our Manager is not obligated to dedicatg specific personnel exclusively to us. None of officers are obligated to dedicate any
specific portion of their time to our business. Ea€ them has significant responsibilities for athrerestment vehicles managed by affiliates
of Ares Management. As a result, these individuady not always be able to devote sufficient timtheomanagement of our business.
Further, when there are turbulent conditions inrted estate markets or distress in the credit etarkhe attention of our Manager's personnel
and our executive officers and the resources o§ Management will also be required by other investinvehicles managed by affiliates of
Ares Management.

In addition, we offer no assurance thatManager will remain our investment manager or thatwvill continue to have access to our
Manager's officers and key personnel. The inigaint of our Management Agreement with our Manageires on May 1, 2015, and will be
automatically renewed for one-year terms thereaferthermore, our Manager may decline to renewMhaagement Agreement with
180 days' written notice prior to the expiratiortlod renewal term. If the Management Agreemerdrisinated and no suitable replacement is
found to manage us, we may not be able to executeeestment strategy.

We also depend on access to, and the diegeskill and network of business contacts ofitvestment professionals of other groups
within Ares Management and the information and deal generated by Ares Management's investmerfepsionals in the course of their
investment and portfolio management activities. dibparture of any of these individuals, or of aagigant number of the investment
professionals or partners of Ares Management, coaleé a material adverse effect
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on our business, financial condition or resultgpérations. We cannot assure you that we will coetito have access to Ares Management's
investment professionals or its information and flesv.

Our growth depends on the ability of our Manager tomake investments on favorable terms that satisfyur investment strategy and
otherwise generate attractive risk-adjusted returngnitially and consistently from time to time.

Our ability to achieve our investment olijges depends on our ability to grow, which depemisurn, on the management and
investment teams of our Manager and their abiditidentify and to make investments on favorablmgein our target investments as well as
on our access to financing on acceptable termsd&éh®nds on the time of the professional staffunfManager will increase as our portfolio
grows, and we cannot assure you that our Manadkbevable to hire, train, supervise, manage atalnmaew officers and employees to
manage future growth effectively, and any suctufailcould have a material adverse effect on ounbss.

There are various conflicts of interest in our reléionship with our Manager and Ares Management thatcould result in decisions that
are not in the best interests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interessiag out of our relationship with our Manager amgé®\Management. In the future, we may enter
into additional transactions with Ares Managemaeritaffiliates. In particular, we may invest agquire, sell assets to or provide financir
investment vehicles managed by Ares Managemers affiliates and their portfolio companies or owgst with, purchase assets from, sell
assets to, or arrange financing from any such inveist vehicles and their portfolio companies. Angtstransactions will require approval
a majority of our independent directors. There lbamo assurance that any procedural protectiomdavsufficient to ensure that these
transactions will be made on terms that will b&east as favorable to us as those that would hega bbtained in an arm's-length transaction.

Our Manager and Ares Management have aghe¢dor so long as our Manager is managing ughereAres Management nor any of its
affiliates will sponsor or manage any other U.Sljmly traded REIT that invests primarily in thensa asset classes as us. Ares Management
and its affiliates may sponsor or manage anoth8r publicly traded REIT that invests generallyeéalrestate assets but not primarily in our
target investments. However, affiliates of our Mggramanage other investment vehicles whose coesiment strategies focus on one or
more of our target asset classes. To the extehtexisting vehicles or other Ares Management veBithat may be organized in the future
seek to acquire the same target assets as our @gngudoject to Ares Management's allocation padiegcribed below, the scope of
opportunities otherwise available to us may be exblg affected and/or reduced.

Ares Management has an investment allocggadicy in place that is intended to enable ushtare equitably with any other investment
vehicles that are managed by Ares Management.rargk investment opportunities are allocated gkio consideration various factors,
including, among others, the relevant investmehiales' available capital, their investment objeesi or strategies, their risk profiles and t
existing or prior positions in an issuer/securéty,well as potential conflicts of interest, theunatof the opportunity and market conditions.
The investment allocation policy may be amendedunyManager and Ares Management at any time withautonsent.
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The ability of our Manager and its officers and empoyees to engage in other business activities magduce the time our Manager
spends managing our business and may result in caib conflicts of interest.

Certain of our officers and directors, dine officers and other personnel of our Managen akrve or may serve as officers, directors or
partners of Ares Management, as well as Ares Managesponsored investment vehicles, including nigliated potential pooled
investment vehicles or managed accounts not yabkstied, whether managed or sponsored by Ares gdanent's affiliates or our Manager.
Accordingly, the ability of our Manager and itsioffrs and employees to engage in other busineis#tiastmay reduce the time our Manager
spends managing our business. These activitiesl t@uViewed as creating a conflict of interest fasas the time and effort of the
professional staff of our Manager and its officansl employees will not be devoted exclusively mhhsiness of the Company; instead it will
be allocated between the business of the Compahth@rmanagement of these other investment vehicles

In the course of our investing activitie® will pay base management fees to our Managemndhteimburse our Manager for certain
expenses it incurs. As a result, investors in amnmon stock will invest on a "gross" basis and ikexdistributions on a "net" basis after
expenses, resulting in, among other things, a loaterof return than one might achieve throughalimevestments. As a result of this
arrangement, our Manager's interests may be legsed|with our interests.

The Management Agreement with our Manager was notegotiated on an arm's-length basis and may not besdavorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third pary.

We rely completely on our Manager to previgs with investment advisory services. Our exgeutfficers also serve as officers of our
Manager. Our Management Agreement with our Managernegotiated between related parties and itsstentluding fees payable, may |
be as favorable to us as if it had been negotiatddan unaffiliated third party.

We will pay our Manager substantial baseagement fees regardless of the performance giatfolio. Our Manager's entitlement t
base management fee, which is not based upon penfie metrics or goals, might reduce its incertbvdevote its time and effort to seeking
investments that provide attractive risk-adjustetdms for our portfolio. This in turn could huith our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders and the market price of our commocksto

The initial term of our Management Agreeimeith our Manager expires on May 1, 2015. Theerathe Management Agreement
automatically renews for one year terms unlessitexted upon 180 days' written notice prior to thpiation of the then current term in
accordance with its terms. If the Management Agesdris terminated and no suitable replacementisddo manage us, we may not be able
to execute our investment strategy.

Terminating the Management Agreement for unsatisfamry performance of the Manager or electing not taenew the Management
Agreement may be difficult and terminating the agrement in certain circumstances requires payment & substantial termination fee.

Termination of the Management Agreemenhwitr Manager without cause is difficult and costyr independent directors will review
our Manager's performance and the management feesidy and, upon 180 days' written notice priothte expiration of any renewal term,
the Management Agreement may be terminated upoaftinemative vote of at least twthirds of our independent directors based uponoe
Manager's unsatisfactory performance that is nadtgidetrimental to us; or (b) a determination tthet management fees payable to our
Manager are not fair, subject to our Manager'stitigiprevent termination based on unfair fees lmepting a reduction of management fees
agreed to by at least two-thirds of our independénetctors. Additionally, upon any such terminatitiee Management Agreement provides
that we will pay our Manager a termination fee
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equal to three times the sum of the average arasal management fee and incentive fee receivedylanager during the 24ronth perio
before such termination, calculated as of the drileomost recently completed fiscal quarter. Thisvision increases the cost to us of
terminating the Management Agreement and adveegidgts our ability to terminate our Manager withoause.

During the initial three-year term of theavagement Agreement, we may not terminate the Mameagt Agreement except for cause.

The incentive fee payable to our Manager under th¥lanagement Agreement may cause our Manager to seténvestments in riskier
assets to increase its incentive compensation.

Our Manager is entitled to receive incemttompensation based upon our achievement of ¢éak¢gtels of Core Earnings. "Core
Earnings" is defined in our Management Agreemeneserally accepted accounting principles ("GAARE) income (loss) computed in
accordance with GAAP, excluding non-cash equity gensation expense, the incentive fee, depreciatidramortization (to the extent that
any of our target investments are structured asatebwe foreclose on any properties underlyindhglebt), any unrealized gains, losses or
other noneash items recorded in net income (loss) for thgderegardless of whether such items are includexdher comprehensive incoi
or loss, or in net income (loss), and one-time &vparsuant to changes in GAAP and certain non-chalges after discussions between our
Manager and our independent directors and afteloappby a majority of our independent directorsr purposes of calculating the incentive
fee prior to the completion of a 12-month, Corertiags is calculated on the basis of the numbeiagédhat our Management Agreement has
been in effect on an annualized basis. No incelfities were earned for the years ended Decemb@034, 2013 and 2012. In evaluating
investments and other management strategies, fi@topity to earn incentive compensation based are Earnings may lead our Manage
place undue emphasis on the maximization of Coraifigs at the expense of other criteria, such asgwvation of capital, in order to achieve
higher incentive compensation. Investments witthbigyield potential are generally riskier or mopeaulative. This could result in increased
risk to the value of our investment portfolio.

Our Manager manages our portfolio in accordance wh very broad investment guidelines and our board oflirectors does not approve
each investment and financing decision made by olanager, which may result in our making riskier investments than those
currently comprising our investment portfolio.

While our directors periodically review davestment portfolio, they do not review all ofrqaroposed investments. In addition, in
conducting periodic reviews, our directors may m@iynarily on information provided to them by ourakger. Our investment guidelines
may be changed from time to time. Furthermore Manager may use complex strategies and transaairsed into by our Manager that
may be difficult or impossible to unwind by the &rthey are reviewed by our directors. Our Managsrdreat latitude in determining the
types of assets that are proper investments farhish could result in investment returns thatsubstantially below expectations or that
result in losses, which would materially and adebraffect our business operations and resultadtiition, our Manager is not subject to any
limits or proportions with respect to the mix ofgat investments that we originate or acquire othan as necessary to maintain our
qualification as a REIT and our exemption from sé@ition under the 1940 Act. Decisions made anddtmaents entered into by our Manager
may not fully reflect your best interests.

Our Manager may change its investment process, otext not to follow it, without stockholder consentat any time, which may
adversely affect our investments.

Our Manager may change its investment m®eéthout stockholder consent at any time. In il there can be no assurance that our
Manager will follow its investment process in reatto
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the identification and underwriting of prospectimgestments. Changes in our Manager's investmeeps may result in inferior, among
other things, due diligence and underwriting stadslavhich may adversely affect the performanceusfportfolio.

We do not have a policy that expressly prohibits audirectors, officers, stockholders or affiliates fom engaging for their own account
in business activities of the types conducted by us

We do not have a policy that expressly fimthour directors, officers, stockholders or lédfies from engaging for their own account in
business activities of the types conducted by asvéVer, our code of business conduct and ethictizana conflicts of interest policy that
prohibits our directors, officers and employeesrfrengaging in any transaction that involves anaaanflict of interest with us without the
approval of the audit committee of our board oédiors. In addition, our Management Agreement withManager does not prevent our
Manager and its affiliates from engaging in addiibmanagement or investment opportunities, sonvehath could compete with us, and ¢
code of business conduct and ethics acknowledg¢stich activities shall not be deemed a conffichterest.

Our Manager is subject to extensive regulation asrainvestment adviser, which could adversely affedts ability to manage our
business.

Our Manager is subject to regulation agaastment adviser by various regulatory authasitieat are charged with protecting the
interests of its clients, including us. Instancesrominal activity and fraud by participants iretinvestment management industry and
disclosures of trading and other abuses by paatitipin the financial services industry have ledthS. government and regulators to
consider increasing the rules and regulations gungr and oversight of, the U.S. financial systd@ims activity is expected to result in
changes to the laws and regulations governingnyestment management industry and more aggressigecement of the existing laws and
regulations. Our Manager could be subject to dizdility, criminal liability, or sanction, includig revocation of its registration as an
investment adviser, revocation of the licensessoémployees, censures, fines, or temporary sugpeospermanent bar from conducting
business, if it is found to have violated any afgh laws or regulations. Any such liability or gt could adversely affect our Manager's
ability to manage our business. Our Manager mustirmeally address conflicts between its interesid those of its clients, including us. In
addition, the SEC and other regulators have inegk#seir scrutiny of potential conflicts of intere®ur Manager has procedures and controls
that are reasonably designed to address thesa issowever, appropriately dealing with conflictsimtierest is complex and difficult and if
our Manager fails, or appears to fail, to deal appately with conflicts of interest, it could fatidgation or regulatory proceedings or
penalties, any of which could adversely affectltdity to manage our business.

We may not replicate Ares Management's historical prformance.

We cannot assure you that we will replicates Management's historical performance, andawti@n you that our investment returns
could be substantially lower than the returns ackdeby other entities managed by Ares Managemeitd affiliates. Although such funds
share our general objective of targeting investsénsenior secured debt, each of them is or has fezused on making senior debt
investments secured primarily by the corporatetagsfgheir borrowers and none of them target itmesits in senior or any other loans
secured by CRE, which is our specific investmenéctive.
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We do not own the Ares name, but we may use the napursuant to a license agreement with Ares Managesnt. Use of the name by
other parties or the termination of our license ageement may harm our business.

We have entered into a license agreemehtAves Management pursuant to which it has gransea non-exclusive, royalty-free license
to use the name "Ares." Under this agreement, we haight to use this name for so long as Ares @ersial Real Estate Management LLC
serves as our Manager pursuant to the ManagemeaeAgnt. Ares Management retains the right to noatusing the "Ares" name. We
cannot preclude Ares Management from licensinganstferring the ownership of the "Ares" name todliparties, some of whom may
compete with us. Consequently, we would be unabf@dévent any damage to goodwill that may occua eessult of the activities of Ares
Management or others. Furthermore, in the eventliedicense agreement is terminated, we willdguired to change our name and cease
using the name. Any of these events could disruptecognition in the market place, damage any gibdie may have generated and
otherwise harm our business. The license agreemayte terminated by either party without penafipru180 days written notice to the
other prior to the expiration of the initial thrgear term or any renewal term.

Our Manager's and Ares Management's liability is Imited under the Management Agreement, and we havegeeed to indemnify our
Manager against certain liabilities. As a result, v could experience poor performance or losses fothich our Manager would not be
liable.

Pursuant to the Management Agreement, anadgder does not assume any responsibility otharttheender the services called for
thereunder and will not be responsible for anyasctif our board of directors in following or dedéfig to follow its advice or
recommendations. Under the terms of the Managemgmeement, our Manager, its officers, members, marsg directors, personnel, any
person controlling or controlled by our Managecliring Ares Management, and any person providamgises to our Manager will not be
liable to us, any subsidiary of ours, our stockkaddor partners or any subsidiary's stockholdepaaners for acts or omissions performed in
accordance with and pursuant to the Managementeftgeat, except by reason of acts constituting biélal, faillful misconduct, gross
negligence, or reckless disregard of their dutieden the Management Agreement. In addition, we laaveed to indemnify our Manager, its
officers, stockholders, members, managers, direcpmrsonnel, any person controlling or controigdur Manager and any person provic
services to our Manager with respect to all expgrssses, damages, liabilities, demands, chargkslaims arising from acts of our Mana
not constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, gonegligence, or reckless disregard of dutie$ppeed in good faith in accordance with and
pursuant to the Management Agreement.

Our Manager and its affiliates, including Ares Management, have limited experience managing a portfaiof assets in the manner
necessary to maintain our exemption under the 194Act.

In order to maintain our exemption fromisé@tion under the 1940 Act, the assets in outfglw are subject to certain restrictions that
limit our operations meaningfully. Our Manager atscaffiliates, including Ares Management, haveited experience managing a portfolic
the manner necessary to maintain our exemption fegistration under the 1940 Act.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANY GENERALLY

We have limited operating history and may not be ale to operate our business successfully or generaefficient revenue to make or
sustain distributions to our stockholders.

We were organized on September 1, 2011ptsted our IPO on May 1, 2012 and have limited apeg history. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to operate our business ssfaliyg or implement our operating policies and &ges as described in this annual report.
The results of our
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operations depend on several factors, includingtfaélability of opportunities for the originati@r acquisition of target investments, the ¢
and volatility of interest rates, the availabildfadequate short and long-term financing, condgim the financial markets and economic
conditions.

Our board of directors may change our investment sategy or guidelines, financing strategy or leverag policies without stockholder
consent.

Our board of directors may change our itmesit strategy or guidelines, financing strateglewverage policies with respect to
investments, originations, acquisitions, growther@pions, indebtedness, capitalization and digidbg at any time without the consent of our
stockholders, which could result in an investmentfplio with a different risk profile than that olur current investment portfolio or of a
portfolio comprised of our target investments. Alge in our investment strategy may increase quosxe to interest rate risk, default risk
and real estate market fluctuations. Furthermoohaage in our asset allocation could result inmaking investments in asset categories
different from those described in this annual réepbnese changes could adversely affect our firsdmeindition, results of operations, the
market price of our common stock and our abilityrtake distributions to our stockholders.

Changes in laws or regulations governing our opera&ns, changes in the interpretation thereof or newl enacted laws or regulations
and any failure by us to comply with these laws oregulations, could require changes to certain of aubusiness practices, negatively
impact our operations, cash flow or financial condion, impose additional costs on us or otherwise aérsely affect our business.

We are subject to regulation by laws amlif&tions at the local, state and federal levelleesE laws and regulations, as well as their
interpretation, may change from time to time, aad taws and regulations may be enacted. Accordjragly change in these laws or
regulations, changes in their interpretation, awlgeenacted laws or regulations and any failuraibyo comply with current or new laws or
regulations or such changes thereto, could reghia@ges to certain of our business practices, ivefjaimpact our operations, cash flow or
financial condition, impose additional costs oroustherwise adversely affect our business. Funtbee, if requlatory capital requirements
imposed on our private lenders change, they magdpgired to limit, or increase the cost of, finargcthey provide to us. In general, this cc
potentially increase our financing costs and reduadiquidity or require us to sell assets atr@wpportune time or price.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signedi@w the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ConsuRrotection Act (the "Dodd-Frank
Act"”). Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Awve had extended implementation periods and deélaffective dates and have required
extensive rulemaking by regulatory authorities. \WWImany of the rules required to be written haverbgromulgated, some have not yet been
implemented. Although the full impact of the Dodidkfk Act on us may not be known for an extendeégenf time, the Dodd-Frank Act,
including the rules implementing its provisions dhe interpretation of those rules, along with otlegislative and regulatory proposals
directed at the financial services industry or etffeg taxation that are proposed or pending inute. Congress, may negatively impact our
operations, cash flows or financial condition, irmp@dditional costs on us, intensify the regulasayervision of us or otherwise adversely
affect our business.

Over the last several years, there alsdkas an increase in regulatory attention to thension of credit outside of the traditional
banking sector, raising the possibility that sorogipn of the non-bank financial sector will be gdi to new regulation. While it cannot be
known at this time whether any regulation will bgpiemented or what form it will take, increasedulation of non-bank credit extension
could negatively impact our operations, cash flawBnancial condition, impose additional costsum) intensify the regulatory supervision of
us or otherwise adversely affect our business.
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If we do not obtain and maintain the appropriate shte licenses, we will not be allowed to originater gervice real estate loans in some
states, which could materially and adversely affeats.

State mortgage loan finance licensing laary considerably. Many states and the DistricCofumbia impose a licensing obligation to
originate or purchase real estate loans. Manyeddhmortgage loan licensing laws also impose adiog obligation to service real estate
loans. If we are unable to obtain the approprittedicenses or do not qualify for an exemptios,asuld be materially and adversely
affected.

If these licenses are obtained, state atgrd impose additional ongoing obligations onrgees, such as maintaining certain minimum
net worth or line of credit requirements. The minimnet worth requirements vary from state to sfatether, in limited instances, the net
worth calculation may not include recourse on amytingent liabilities. If we do not meet these minim net worth or line of credit
requirements or satisfy other criteria, regulatoes/ revoke or suspend our licenses and prevembosdontinuing to originate or service real
estate loans, which would materially and adveraéfigct us.

Uncertainty about the financial stability of the United States and of several countries in the Europ@aJnion (EU) could have a
significant adverse effect on our business, finarali condition and results of operations.

Due to federal budget deficit concerns, Sfngraded the federal government's credit rdtimgp AAA to AA+ for the first time in
history on August 5, 2011. Further, Moody's andlirtiad warned that they may downgrade the federargment's credit rating. Further
downgrades or warnings by S&P or other rating agsnand the United States government's credidafidit concerns in general, could
cause interest rates and borrowing costs to risehamay negatively impact both the perceptionrefiit risk associated with our debt
portfolio and our ability to access the debt maglat favorable terms. In addition, a decreased gb%ernment credit rating could create
broader financial turmoil and uncertainty, whichynweeigh heavily on our financial performance ane ¥alue of our common stock.

In 2010, a financial crisis emerged in Bagotriggered by high budget deficits and risingcli and contingent sovereign debt in Greece,
Ireland, ltaly, Portugal and Spain, which createdogrns about the ability of these nations to cmtito service their sovereign debt
obligations. While the financial stability of sucbuntries has improved significantly, risks restirom any future debt crisis in Europe or
any similar crisis could have a detrimental impatthe global economic recovery, sovereign andsavereign debt in these countries and
the financial condition of European financial ihstions. Market and economic disruptions have agcand may in the future affect,
consumer confidence levels and spending, pers@mrbptcy rates, levels of incurrence and defauit@nsumer debt and home prices,
among other factors. We cannot assure you thatehdréruptions in Europe, including the increasest of funding for certain governments
and financial institutions, will not impact the gl economy, and we cannot assure you that assisgatkages will be available, or if
available, be sufficient to stabilize countries amarkets in Europe or elsewhere affected by a €ii@uarisis. To the extent uncertainty
regarding any economic recovery in Europe negativepacts consumer confidence and consumer cractivffs, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be sigaiftly and adversely affected.

In October 2014, the Federal Reserve argealithat it was concluding its bond-buying programguantitative easing, which was
designed to stimulate the economy and expand ter&eReserve's holdings of long-term securitieggssting that key economic indicators,
such as the unemployment rate, had showed signgppobvement since the inception of the prograns ltnclear what effect, if any, the
conclusion of the Federal Reserve's bond-buyingnara will have on the value of our investments. ldwar, it is possible that, without
guantitative easing by the Federal Reserve, these
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developments, along with the United States goventsieredit and deficit concerns and the Europeaprgign debt crisis, could cause
interest rates and borrowing costs to rise, whialy megatively impact our ability to access the debikets on favorable terms. Additionally,
in January 2015, the Federal Reserve reaffirmedets that the current target range for the fednatls rate was appropriate based on cu
economic conditions. However, if key economic iadiies, such as the unemployment rate or inflatiomot progress at a rate consistent
the Federal Reserve's objectives, the target riomgke federal funds rate may increase and causeest rates and borrowing costs to rise,
which may negatively impact our ability to accdss debt markets on favorable terms.

We are highly dependent on information systems anslystems failures could significantly disrupt our bsiness, which may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of our common stck and our ability to pay dividends.

Our business is highly dependent on comoatinins and information systems of Ares Managenfemy.failure or interruption of Ares
Management's systems could cause delays or otbieleprs in our business, which could have a matadakrse effect on our operating
results and negatively affect the market pricewosfapmmon stock and our ability to pay dividendsto stockholders.

Cybersecurity risks and cyber incidents may adverdg affect our business by causing a disruption towr operations, a compromise or
corruption of our confidential information and/or d amage to our business relationships, all of whichoald negatively impact our
business, financial condition and operating results

A cyber incident is considered to be anyesisle event that threatens the confidentialityggrity or availability of our information
resources. These incidents may be an intentiotadkabr an unintentional event and could involvimige unauthorized access to our
information systems for purposes of misappropréptinsets, stealing confidential information, cotingpdata or causing operational
disruption. The result of these incidents may ideldisrupted operations, misstated or unreliabkenitial data, liability for stolen assets or
information, increased cybersecurity protection erstirance costs, litigation and damage to oumumssi relationships. As our reliance on
technology has increased, so have the risks posedrtinformation systems, both internal and thossrided by Ares Management and third-
party service providers. Ares Management has imefded processes, procedures and internal contrblkslp mitigate cybersecurity risks ¢
cyber intrusions, but these measures, as well amorgased awareness of the nature and extentisi af a cyber incident, do not guarantee
that a cyber incident will not occur and/or that Goancial results, operations or confidentialbimhation will not be negatively impacted by
such an incident.

If we fail to comply with laws, regulations and maket standards regarding the privacy, use and secusi of customer information, we
may be subject to legal and regulatory actions andur reputation would be harmed, which would materidly adversely affect us.

We receive, maintain and store the nonipuyd@rsonal information of our loan applicants. Téehnology and other controls and
processes designed to secure our customer infanmartid to prevent, detect and remedy any unautitbdzcess to that information were
designed to obtain reasonable, not absolute, assithat such information is secure and that aayiorized access is identified and
addressed appropriately. Accordingly, such conirdy not have detected, and may in the futuredagirevent or detect, unauthorized access
to our borrower information. If this informationiisappropriately accessed and used by a third paran employee for illegal purposes, such
as identity theft, we may be responsible to theciéfd applicant or borrower for any losses he enshy have incurred as a result of
misappropriation. In such an instance, we maydi#dito a governmental authority for fines or pgealassociated with a lapse in the
integrity and security of our customers' informatiavhich could materially adversely affect us.
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RISKS RELATED TO SOURCES OF FINANCING AND HEDGING

We may incur significant debt, which may subject ugo increased risk of loss and may reduce cash alatle for distributions to our
stockholders.

We borrow funds under the Financing FaesitAs of December 31, 2014, we had approxima&iéf6.0 million of outstanding
borrowings under the Financing Facilities. Subjeanharket conditions and availability, we may insignificant debt through bank credit
facilities (including term loans and revolving fé@s), repurchase agreements, warehouse fasitiel structured financing arrangements,
public and private debt issuances and derivatisgliments, in addition to transaction or assetifipdanding arrangements. The percentage
of leverage we employ will vary depending on ouaikable capital, our ability to obtain and acceearicing arrangements with lenders, debt
restrictions contained in those financing arrangemand the lenders' and rating agencies' estiofidbe stability of our investment portfolic
cash flow. We may significantly increase the amafrieverage we utilize at any time without appioseour board of directors. In addition,
we may leverage individual assets at substantiadjizer levels. Incurring substantial debt couldjeabus to many risks that, if realized,
would materially and adversely affect us, includihg risk that:

. our cash flow from operations may be insufficientitake required payments of principal of and irdeom the debt or we may
fail to comply with all of the other covenants cained in the debt, which is likely to result in é@celeration of such debt (and
any other debt containing a cross-default or ceas®leration provision) that we may be unable payerom internal funds or
to refinance on favorable terms, or at all, (b) imability to borrow unused amounts under our fiting arrangements, even if
we are current in payments on borrowings underafaosangements, and/or (c) the loss of some of allir assets to
foreclosure or sale;

. our debt may increase our vulnerability to advesenomic and industry conditions with no assurahateinvestment yields
will increase with higher financing costs;

. we may be required to dedicate a substantial podfeur cash flow from operations to payments ondebt, thereby reducit
funds available for operations, future businessoapipities, stockholder distributions or other pases; and

. we are not able to refinance debt that matures pithe investment it was used to finance on fablte terms, or at all.
There can be no assurance that our levegagiategy will be successful.
Our Financing Facilities impose, and any additionalending facilities will impose, restrictive covenats.

We borrow funds under the Financing Fdesit The documents that govern the Financing Fasilcontain, and any additional lending
facilities would be expected to contain, customeggative covenants and other financial and operatwvenants, that among other things,
may affect our ability to incur additional debt, keacertain investments or acquisitions, reduceditybelow certain levels, make
distributions to our stockholders, redeem debtouity securities and impact our flexibility to deténe our operating policies and investment
strategies. For example, such loan documents conggjative covenants that limit, among other thiogs ability to repurchase our common
stock, distribute more than a certain amount ofrmirincome or funds from operations to our stottkis, employ leverage beyond certain
amounts, sell assets, engage in mergers or coasofid, grant liens, and enter into transactionh waffiliates (including amending the
Management Agreement with our Manager in a matesigdect). Certain of the restrictive covenants déipaly to the Financing Facilities are
further described in Note 6 to our consolidatedficial statements included in this annual repoff@m 10-K. If we fail to meet or satisfy
any of these covenants, we would be in default utitesse agreements, and our lenders could elegdiare outstanding amounts due and
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payable, terminate their commitments, require t&tipg of additional collateral and enforce thaterests against existing collateral. We are
also subject to cross-default and acceleratiortsighd, with respect to collateralized debt, thetipg of additional collateral and foreclosure
rights upon default. Further, these restrictionsld¢@lso make it difficult for us to satisfy thealification requirements necessary to maintain
our status as a REIT.

Interest rate fluctuations could increase our finaring costs and reduce our ability to generate incoenon our investments, each of
which could lead to a significant decrease in ourasults of operations, cash flows and the market wa of our investments.

We are affected by the fiscal and monepaticies of the U.S. government and its agencieduding the policies of the Federal Rese
which regulates the supply of money and credihWnited States. The Federal Reserve's policiestahterest rates, which have a
significant impact on the demand for CRE loans.r@es in fiscal and monetary policies are beyondcoutrol, are difficult to predict and
could materially adversely affect us. Our primarierest rate exposures will relate to the yieldoninvestments and the financing cost of
debt. Changes in interest rates will affect ourinirest margin, which is the difference betwdsnihterest income we earn on our interest-
earning investments and the interest expense we indinancing these investments. In addition, fiievalue of ACRE Capital's MSRs are
subject to changes in interest rates. For exarad@ basis point increase or decrease in the vesigtverage discount rate would decrea:
increase, respectively, the fair value of ACRE @ajsi MSRs outstanding as of December 31, 2014pyoximately $1.8 million. Interest
rate fluctuations resulting in our interest expeaseeeding interest income would result in opegplasses for us. Changes in the level of
interest rates also may affect our ability to invasnvestments, the value of our investments @mdability to realize gains from the
disposition of assets. Changes in interest ratgsaisa affect borrower default rates.

To the extent that our financing costs wéldetermined by reference to floating rates, sischIBOR or a Treasury index, plus a margin,
the amount of such costs will depend on a variéfactors, including, without limitation, (a) footlateralized debt, the value and liquidity of
the collateral, and for non-collateralized debt, anedit, (b) the level and movement of interestsaand (c) general market conditions and
liquidity. In a period of rising interest rates,ronterest expense on floating rate debt woulddase, while any additional interest income we
earn on our floating rate investments may be stibjecaps and may not compensate for such incieasterest expense. At the same time,
the interest income we earn on our fixed rate itnaests would not change, the duration and weigatedage life of our fixed rate
investments would increase and the market valuiofixed rate investments would decrease. Simyilamnl a period of declining interest rat
our interest income on floating rate investmentsiidaecrease, while any decrease in the interestreveharged on our floating rate debt |
be subject to floors and not compensate for suchedse in interest income. Additionally, the ins¢n@e are charged on our fixed rate debt
would not change. Any such scenario could matgratid adversely affect us.

Our operating results will depend, in part,differences between the income earned on @esiments, net of credit losses, and our
financing costs. For any period during which oweistments are not match-funded, the income eameadch investments may respond more
slowly to interest rate fluctuations than the aafsbur borrowings. Consequently, changes in inteaes, particularly shoterm interest rate
may immediately and significantly decrease ourltesaf operations and cash flows and the marketevaf our investments.

ACRE Capital also is significantly affectied the fiscal and monetary policies of the U.Srzegament and its agencies. ACRE Capital is
particularly affected by the policies of the Fed&aserve, which regulates the supply of moneyamadit in the United States. The Federal
Reserve's policies affect interest rates, whicketamsignificant impact on the demand for CRE lo&ignificant fluctuations in interest rates
as well as protracted periods of increases or deeeein interest rates
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could adversely affect the operation and incomewaitifamily and other commercial real estate prdipsr as well as the demand from
investors for commercial real estate debt in tlosdary market. In particular, higher interestsatnd to decrease the number of loans
originated. An increase in interest rates couldseaefinancing of existing loans to become lesaetive and qualifying for a loan to become
more difficult. Changes in fiscal and monetary piel are beyond our control, are difficult to paedind could materially adversely affect us.

The Financing Facilities and any bank credit faciliies and repurchase agreements that we may use imetfuture to finance our assets,
may require us to provide additional collateral orpay down debt.

We borrow funds under the Financing FdesitWe anticipate that we will also utilize addiital bank credit facilities or repurchase
agreements (including term loans and revolvingitas) to finance our assets if they become abtgl@n acceptable terms. Such financing
arrangements would involve the risk that the vaifighe loans or securities pledged or sold by ukégorovider of the bank credit facility or
repurchase agreement counterparty may declinelire viem which case the lender may require us teigmadditional collateral or to repay all
or a portion of the funds advanced. With respecettain facilities, subject to certain conditionay lenders retain the sole discretion over the
market value of loans or securities that serveotlateral for the borrowings under such facilitfes purposes of determining whether we are
required to pay margin to such lenders. We mayhawe the funds available to repay our debt atttivet, which would likely result in
defaults unless we are able to raise the funds &ibennative sources, which we may not be ableliexe on favorable terms or at all. Pos
additional collateral would reduce our liquiditydalimit our ability to leverage our assets. If wvanoot meet these requirements, the lender
could accelerate our indebtedness, increase theesitrate on advanced funds and terminate odtyaioilborrow funds from it, which could
materially and adversely affect our financial cdiwdi and ability to implement our investment stggteln addition, if the lender files for
bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, our loans may faecsubject to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedittyss depriving us, at least
temporarily, of the benefit of these assets. Sucbveent could restrict our access to bank crediliias and increase our cost of capital. The
providers of bank credit facilities and repurchageeement financing may also require us to mairgaiartain amount of cash or set aside
assets sufficient to maintain a specified liquigligsition that would allow us to satisfy our cofliat! obligations. As a result, we may not be
able to leverage our assets as fully as we wouwdsd, which could reduce our return on assetse lame unable to meet these collateral
obligations, our financial condition and prospemisid deteriorate rapidly.

In addition, if a counterparty to our reghaise transactions defaults on its obligation $elféhe underlying security back to us at the end
of the transaction term, or if the value of the emying security has declined as of the end of thah, or if we default on our obligations
under the repurchase agreement, we will likely irecloss on our repurchase transactions.

There can be no assurance that we wilbibeta obtain additional bank credit facilitiesrepurchase agreements on favorable terms
all.

Our access to sources of financing may be limitechd thus our ability to grow our business and to maimize our returns may be
adversely affected.

We borrow funds under various financingaagements and our business requires a significaouiat of funding capacity on an interim
basis. Subject to market conditions and availabilite may incur significant additional debt throuzgmk credit facilities (including term
loans and revolving facilities), repurchase agregsjevarehouse facilities and structured finaneimgngements, public and private debt
issuances and derivative instruments, in additiamnansaction or asset specific funding arrangesiéfie may also issue additional debt or
equity securities to fund our growth.
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Our access to sources of financing willete@bupon a number of factors, over which we hatle br no control, including:

. general economic or market conditions;

. the market's view of the quality of our assets;

. the market's perception of our growth potential;

. our current and potential future earnings and disthibutions; and
. the market price of the shares of our common stock.

From time to time, capital markets may eigrece periods of disruption and instability. Feample, between 2008 and 2009, the global
capital markets were unstable as evidenced by gierdisruptions in liquidity in the debt capital rRats, significant write-offs in the financial
services sector, the re-pricing of credit risklie broadly syndicated credit market and the faibinmajor financial institutions. Despite
actions of the U.S. federal government and forgigvernments, these events contributed to worsegengral economic conditions that
materially and adversely impacted the broader firrand credit markets and reduced the availghilitdebt and equity capital for the mai
as a whole and financial services firms in paracuWhile market conditions have experienced netagtability in recent years, there have
been continuing periods of volatility and there &&@mno assurance that adverse market conditiohgetitepeat themselves or worsen in the
future.

We will need to periodically access theitzdpnarkets to raise cash to fund new investmanéxcess of our repayments. A prolonged
decline in the price of our shares of common stmokpared to book value could negatively affectamaess to these markets. We have
elected and qualified for taxation as a REIT. Amotiter things, in order to maintain our REIT status are generally required to annually
distribute to our stockholders an amount equat teast 90% of our REIT taxable income, and, assalt, such distributions will not be
available to fund investment originations. We nmaettinue to borrow from financial institutions aisdue additional securities to fund the
growth of our investments and to ensure that wencaet ongoing maturities of our outstanding detaitiding our 2015 Convertible Notes.
Unfavorable economic or capital market conditiors/rimcrease our funding costs, limit our accegbéacapital markets or could result in a
decision by our potential lenders not to extendlitré\n inability to successfully access the cdpitarkets could limit our ability to grow our
business and fully execute our business stratedycauld decrease our earnings, if any. In additieeakness in the capital and credit markets
could adversely affect one or more private lendais could cause one or more of our private lenielo® unwilling or unable to provide us
with financing or to increase the costs of thaafining. In addition, if regulatory capital requiremts imposed on our private lenders change,
they may be required to limit, or increase the ofstinancing they provide to us. In general, thisilld potentially increase our financing ce
and reduce our liquidity or require us to sell &ss¢ an inopportune time or price. No assuranaebeagiven that we will be able to obtain i
such financing (including any replacement finandimgour current financing arrangements) on favieabrms or at all.

Any warehouse facilities that we may obtain in théuture may limit our ability to originate or acquir e assets, and we may incur losses
if the collateral is liquidated.

We may utilize, if available, warehouseilfies pursuant to which we would accumulate magg loans in anticipation of a
securitization financing, which assets would belgkdl as collateral for such facilities until thewstization transaction is consummated. In
order to borrow funds to originate or acquire ass@der any future warehouse facilities, we expgetour lenders thereunder would have
right to review the potential assets for which we seeking financing. We may be unable to obtagnctinsent of a lender to originate or
acquire assets that we believe would be benefiziat and we may be unable to obtain alternatedimg for such assets. In addition, no
assurance can be given that
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a securitization structure would be consummatet wespect to the assets being warehoused. If thgiszation is not consummated, the
lender could demand repayment of the facility, enthe event that we were unable to timely repayla liquidate the warehoused collateral
and we would then have to pay any amount by whietotiginal purchase price of the collateral assrtgeds its sale price, subject to
negotiated caps, if any, on our exposure. In aglditiegardless of whether the securitization issaarmated, if any of the warehoused
collateral is sold before the completion, we wduddie to bear any resulting loss on the sale.

We have utilized and may continue to utilize in théuture non-recourse long-term securitizations. Sut structures may expose us to
risks which could result in losses.

We have utilized and, if available, we maijize in the future non-recourse long-term seiizations of our investments in mortgage
loans, especially loan originations, if and whegytbecome available. Prior to any such financingmay seek to finance these investments
with relatively short-term facilities until a sutfent portfolio is accumulated. As a result, we lgdae subject to the risk that we would not be
able to originate or acquire, during the period thay short-term facilities are available, suffitieligible assets to maximize the efficiency of
a securitization. We also would bear the risk thatwould not be able to obtain new short-term faed or would not be able to renew any
short-term facilities after they expire should ve=d more time to seek and originate or acquirecserfit eligible assets for a securitization. In
addition, conditions in the capital markets, indhgpvolatility and disruption in the capital andedit markets, may not permit a non-recourse
securitization at any particular time or may mdkeissuance of any such securitization less aitteatti us even when we do have sufficient
eligible assets. While we would intend to retaie timrated equity component of securitizations #metefore, still have exposure to any
investments included in such securitizations, oability to enter into such securitizations wouldrease our overall exposure to risks
associated with direct ownership of such investsiantluding the risk of default. Our inability tefinance any short-term facilities would
also increase our risk because borrowings therewndeld likely be recourse to us as an entity. ¢ are unable to obtain and renew short-
term facilities or to consummate securitizationfirance our investments on a long-term basis, \ag be required to seek other forms of
potentially less attractive financing or to liquidassets at an inopportune time or price.

The securitization process is subject to an evolvinregulatory environment that may affect certain apects of our current business.

The pools of commercial loans that we miagioate, securitize or acquire as asset-backedrisies and for which we act as special
servicer are structures commonly referred to asriemations. As a result of the dislocation of tredit markets, and in anticipation of more
extensive regulation, including regulations pronatiégl pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, the secutitinendustry has crafted and continues
to craft changes to securitization practices, idiclg changes to representations and warrantiescurigization transaction documents, new
underwriting guidelines and disclosure guidelif@stsuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, various federahaggs, including the SEC (collectively,
"the agencies") have promulgated regulations végipect to issues that affect securitizations. Igusti 2014, the SEC adopted amendmer
Regulation AB and other rules that impose signiftcadditional disclosure, review and reporting liegments on issuers in connection with
registered offerings of asset-backed securitiees&ules will take effect over the next year orendhe SEC has indicated that similar
disclosure requirements for private offerings cfeabacked securities remain under consideration. tolags 2014, the agencies adopted 1
that require securitizers in both public and pvsgcuritization transactions to retain not leas t5% of the risk associated with the securi
subject to certain exceptions. Compliance withrtlles with respect to commercial mortgage-backedries and other asset-backed
securities is required beginning in late 2016. Bhegulations, and other proposed regulations tfiigsecuritization, could alter the
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structure of securitizations in the future, posditahal risks to our participation in future seitizations or reduce or eliminate the economic
incentives for participating in future securitizats, increase the costs associated with our otigmasecuritization or acquisition activities,
otherwise increase the risks or costs of our dbimgjness. In addition, the GSEs and other investmuid change underwriting criteria as a
result of such regulations, which could affect ybume and value of loans that ACRE Capital oritgsa

We may enter into hedging transactions that could>g@ose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaaREIT, part of our investment strategy will invelentering into hedging transactions that
could require us to fund cash payments in ceratumstances (such as the early termination oh#dlging instrument caused by an event of
default or other early termination event, or theisien by a counterparty to request margin se@sitiis contractually owed under the terms
of the hedging instrument). The amount due woulédpgal to the unrealized loss of the open swagipnosiwith the respective counterparty
and could also include other fees and charges.eTéasnomic losses will be reflected in our resofitsperations, and our ability to fund these
obligations will depend on the liquidity of our ats and access to capital at the time, and the todfedd these obligations could adversely
impact our financial condition.

Hedging against interest rate or currency exposurenay adversely affect our earnings, which could redee our cash available for
distribution to our stockholders.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, we may pursue various hedging strategiegek to reduce our exposure to adverse
changes in interest rates or currencies. This Ingdagtivity may vary in scope based on the levelaniatility of interest rates, the type of
assets held and other changing market conditiotsrdst rate hedging may fail to protect or couldesisely affect us because, among other
things:

. interest rate hedging can be expensive, pastilyutiuring periods of rising and volatile interestes;

. available interest rate hedges may not corredplinectly with the interest rate risk for whichopection is sought;

. due to a credit loss, the duration of the hedge nmynatch the duration of the related liability;

. the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hegltransactions (other than hedging transactibasdatisfy certain

requirements of the Code or that are done throubR®) to offset interest rate losses is limited_b$. federal income tax
provisions governing REITS;

. the credit quality of the hedging counterpantyirgg money on the hedge may be downgraded to suextant that it impairs
our ability to sell or assign our side of the hedgiransaction; and

. the hedging counterparty owing money in the hedgriagsaction may default on its obligation to pay.

In addition, we may fail to recalculatead@ist and execute hedges in an efficient manngy.hedging activity in which we engage may
materially and adversely affect our business. Theeewhile we may enter into such transactiongisgeto reduce interest rate risks,
unanticipated changes in interest rates may raspthorer overall investment performance than ifhad not engaged in any such hedging
transactions. In addition, the degree of corretalietween price movements of the instruments usachiedging strategy and price movem
in the portfolio positions or liabilities being hged may vary materially. Moreover, for a varietyrefisons, we may not seek to establish a
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perfect correlation between such hedging instrumant the portfolio positions or liabilities beingdged. Any such imperfect correlation
may prevent us from achieving the intended hedgeeapose us to risk of loss.

Hedging instruments often are not traded on regulad exchanges or guaranteed by an exchange or iteating house, and involve risk
and costs that could result in material losses.

The cost of using hedging instruments iases as the period covered by the instrument iseseand during periods of rising and vole
interest rates, we may increase our hedging agtivitl thus increase our hedging costs. In additiedging instruments involve risk since
they often are not traded on regulated exchanggeamanteed by an exchange or its clearing houseségjuently, there are no requirements
with respect to record keeping, financial respaiisitor segregation of customer funds and posgidrurthermore, the enforceability of
agreements underlying hedging transactions mayndkpe compliance with applicable statutory and camity and other regulatory
requirements and, depending on the identity otthenterparty, applicable international requiremente business failure of a hedging
counterparty with whom we enter into a hedginggeation will most likely result in its default. Daflt by a party with whom we enter into a
hedging transaction may result in the loss of uired profits and force us to cover our commitmeiitany, at the then current market price.
Although generally we will seek to reserve the tigghterminate our hedging positions, it may netajls be possible to dispose of or close out
a hedging position without the consent of the heglgiounterparty and we may not be able to enterantoffsetting contract in order to cover
our risk. We cannot assure you that a liquid seapntharket will exist for hedging instruments puasid or sold, and we may be required to
maintain a position until exercise or expiratiorieh could result in significant losses.

Changes to derivatives regulation imposed by the @idl-Frank Act could increase our costs of enteringnito derivative transactions,
which could adversely impact our results of operatins, financial condition and business.

Through its comprehensive new regulatogime for derivatives, the Dodd-Frank Act currenthposes, or will impose, mandatory
clearing, exchange-trading and margin requirememtsiany derivatives transactions (including formenregulated over-the-counter
derivatives) in which we may engage. The Dodd-Frackalso creates new categories of regulated nadsicipants, such as "swap
dealers," "security-based swap dealers," "majopspaaticipants,” and "major security-based swapigpants" that are and will be subject to
significant new capital, margin, registration, fray recordkeeping, reporting, disclosure, busimessluct and other regulatory requirements.
Certain of these requirements remain to be clarifigough rulemaking or interpretations by the LC8mmaodity Futures Trading
Commission, or the "CFTC," the SEC, the FederakResand other regulators in a regulatory implesgon process that may take over the
next year or more (and, in some cases, substgntiate time than that) to complete.

Nonetheless, based on information availablef the date of this annual report, a possitiéeeof the Dodd-Frank Act may be to
increase our overall costs of entering into derest transactions. In particular, new margin regmients, position limits and capital charges,
even if not directly applicable to us, may causénanease in the pricing of derivatives transadisald by market participants to whom such
requirements apply. Administrative costs, due W negquirements such as registration, recordkeepapprting and compliance, even if not
directly applicable to us, may also be reflectedigher pricing of derivatives. New exchange-tradimd trade reporting requirements may
lead to reductions in the liquidity of derivativansactions, causing higher pricing or reduced aliity of derivatives.

In addition, it is possible that we maydstermined by a governmental authority to be a ssesgber, major swap participant, security-
based swap dealer, major security-based swap iparttoor
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otherwise become subject to new entity or trangadével regulation as a result of the Dodd-Fragk Ahis additional regulation could lead
to significant new costs which could materially asely affect our business.

We may fail to qualify for hedge accounting treatmat.

We intend to record derivative and heddmgsactions in accordance with Financial Accounstandards Board ("FASB") Accounting
Standard Codification ("ASC") ASC 81Bgrivatives and HedginfASC 815"). Under these standards, we may fagjualify for hedge
accounting treatment for a number of reasons, detuif we use instruments that do not meet the BASC 815 definition of a derivative
(such as short sales), we fail to satisfy FASB AS6 hedge documentation and hedge effectivenesssasent requirements or our
instruments are not highly effective. If we failqaalify for hedge accounting treatment, our opegatesults may suffer because losses on the
derivatives that we enter into may not be offsealghange in the fair value of the related hedgaustction or item.

We may enter into derivative contracts that could gpose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaaREIT, we may enter into derivative contracts tmld require us to fund cash payments in
the future under certain circumstancesd., the early termination of the derivative agreenmentsed by an event of default or other early
termination event, or the decision by a counteyp@rrequest margin securities it is contractuallyed under the terms of the derivative
contract). The amount due would be equal to thealimed loss of the open swap positions with tlspeetive counterparty and could also
include other fees and charges. These economiedasay materially and adversely affect our business

We are currently exempt from being regulated as aammodity pool operator in part because we comply h certain restrictions
regarding our use of certain derivative instruments and failure to comply with such restrictions coudl subject us to additional
regulation and compliance requirements which coulanaterially adversely affect our business and finarial condition.

Recently adopted rules under the Dodd-Frsatkestablish a comprehensive new regulatory fraomk for derivative contracts
commonly referred to as "swaps." Under these récadbpted rules, any investment fund that tradesaniaps may be considered a
"commaodity pool,” which would cause its directaose regulated as "commodity pool operators,” d?08." Unless an exemption is
available, a CPO must register with the CFTC arabiye a member of the National Futures Associatiothe "NFA," which requires
compliance with NFA's rules, and renders such CHgjest to regulation by the CFTC, including witlspect to disclosure, reporting,
recordkeeping and business conduct.

We do not currently invest in any instrunisetiiat meet the definition of "swap" under the maeles, and we do not currently expect to
engage in any speculative derivatives activitiestber non-hedging transactions using swaps, fatoreptions on futures. However, we may
use hedging instruments in conjunction with ouestment portfolio and related borrowings to redoiceitigate risks associated with
changes in interest rates, mortgage spreads, gele shapes, currency fluctuations and marketiiblaThese hedging instruments could
include interest rate swaps, interest rate futaresoptions on interest rate futures, each of wisicdonsidered a "swap" under CFTC rules.
We have submitted a claim for relief from any régiSon requirements pursuant to a no-action lestared by the CFTC for mortgage REITs.
In order to qualify for relief from registration,esare restricted to using swaps within certain iSjggzarameters, including a limitation that «
annual income derived from commodity interest tngdie less than 5% of our gross annual incomelatdhe initial margin and premiums
required to establish commodity interest positibasio more than 5% of the fair market value oftotal assets. If we fail to comply with the
applicable restrictions, our directors may be cdiegdo register as CPOs, or we may be requiresték other hedging instruments or
techniques at increased cost to us, or that mapeas effective as the use of swaps.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR INVESTMENTS
We will allocate our available capital without input from our stockholders.

You will not be able to evaluate the maninerhich our available capital is invested or #ox®nomic merit of our expected investments.
As a result, we may use our available capital te#t in investments with which you may not agreédifionally, our investments will be
selected by our Manager and our stockholders wtlhave input into such investment decisions. Bdtthese factors will increase the
uncertainty, and thus the risk, of investing in securities. The failure of our Manager to appig tapital effectively or find investments that
meet our investment criteria in sufficient timeoor acceptable terms could result in unfavorablernst could cause a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, liquiditysués of operations and ability to make distriboido our stockholders, and could cause the
value of our common stock to decline.

Until appropriate investments can be id&dj our Manager may invest our available capitahterest-bearing short-term investments,
including money market accounts or funds, commens@atgage backed securities, or "CMBS," or corpoiaonds, which are consistent with
our intention to qualify as a REIT. These investiaare expected to provide a lower net return thaseek to achieve from investments in
our target investments. Our Manager intends to eondue diligence with respect to each investmedtsaitable investment opportunities
may not be immediately available. Even if opportiesiare available, there can be no assurancednafianager's due diligence processes
will uncover all relevant facts or that any investmwill be successful.

We cannot assure you that we will be ablertter into definitive agreements to invest in aaw investments that meet our investment
objective; that we will be successful in consummgtny investment opportunities we identify; ortthae or more investments we may make
will yield attractive risk-adjusted returns. Ouability to do any of the foregoing likely would neaitally and adversely affect our business and
our ability to make distributions to our stockhatsle

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

The illiquidity of our target investmentaynmake it difficult for us to sell such investmeiftthe need or desire arises. Certain target
investments such as Betes, transitional and mezzanine loans, prefegtpdty and other investments are also particuldityid investments
due to their short life, their potential unsuitéiifor securitization and the greater difficultj recovery in the event of a borrower's default. In
addition, many of the loans and securities we inirewill not be registered under the relevant sii@s laws, resulting in a prohibition agai
their transfer, sale, pledge or disposition exdejgt transaction that is exempt from the registratequirements of, or otherwise in accorde
with, those laws. As a result, we expect many afiovestments will be illiquid, and if we are rerpd to liquidate all or a portion of our
portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly e¢han the value at which we have previously restidvestments. Further, we may face
other restrictions on our ability to liquidate awéstment in a business entity to the extent tlabmour Manager has or could be attributed as
having material, non-public information regardingls business entity. As a result, our ability toyvaur portfolio in response to changes in
economic and other conditions may be relativelytioh which could adversely affect our results pé@ations and financial condition.

Our portfolio is concentrated in a limited number o loans, which subjects us to a risk of significantoss if any of these loans default.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we werested in 46 and 33 (and one additional loan fugldale) loans, respectively, in our
principal lending business. The number of loansveeinvested in may be higher or lower dependintheramount of our assets under
management at any given time, market conditionstia@extent to which we employ leverage, and W#lly fluctuate over time. A
consequence of this limited number of investmenthat the aggregate returns we realize may be
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significantly adversely affected if a small numbéinvestments perform poorly, if we need to wdt@vn the value of any one investment or
if an investment is repaid prior to maturity and ave not able to promptly redeploy the proceedsdd/aeot have fixed guidelines for
diversification, and our investments could be cotigeed in relatively few loans.

While we intend to continue to diversifyrquortfolio of investments in the manner describedur filings with the SEC, we do not have
fixed guidelines for diversification. As a resudyr investments could be concentrated in relatif@ly loans and/or relatively few property
types. If our portfolio of target investments isicentrated in certain property types that are stibpehigher risk of foreclosure, or secured by
properties concentrated in a limited number of gaplyic locations, downturns relating generallyuotsregion or type of asset may result in
defaults on a number of our investments within@rtstime period, which may reduce our net incomeé e value of our common stock and
accordingly reduce our ability to pay dividend®to stockholders.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or severecession or further declines in real estate valuemuld impair our investments
and ACRE Capital's MSRs and harm our operations.

We believe the risks associated with owirtess will be more severe during periods of ecaa@wdown or recession if these periods
are accompanied by declining real estate valugse¥ample, the severe economic downturn that oedudrom 2008 through 2009 limited t
availability of debt financing in the overall matgkce and generally made leveraged acquisitiodg@financing more difficult.
Consequently, our investment model may be adveefédgted by prolonged economic downturns or raoassvhere declining real estate
values would likely reduce the level of new mortgamd other real estate-related loan originatisinge borrowers often use appreciation in
the value of their existing properties to suppbet purchase or investment in additional properBesrowers may also be less able to pay
principal and interest on our loans if the valueesl estate weakens. In addition, the number obl@rs who become delinquent, become
subject to bankruptcy laws or default on their ®aould increase, resulting in a decrease in theevaf ACRE Capital's MSRs and servicer
advances and higher levels of loss on ACRE Capfahnie Mae loans for which it shares risk of I6ssther, declining real estate values
significantly increase the likelihood that we wiiltur losses on our loans in the event of defaetflnse the value of our collateral may be
insufficient to cover our cost on the loan. Anytsirsed period of increased payment delinquencieecfosures or losses could adversely
affect our manager's ability to invest in, sell aeduritize loans, which would materially and adedy affect our results of operations,
financial condition, liquidity and business and ability to pay dividends to stockholders.

Our real estate investments are subject to risks pcular to real property. These risks may result n a reduction or elimination of, or
return from, a loan secured by a particular property.

We may own CRE directly in the future a®sult of a default of mortgage or other real estatated loans. Real estate investments are
subject to various risks, including:

. acts of God, including earthquakes, floods atheéwonatural disasters, which may result in unieduosses;

. acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafaerrorist attacks;

. adverse changes in national and local economigraaréiet conditions;

. changes in governmental laws and regulations (gietutheir interpretations), fiscal policies andirg ordinances and the

related costs of compliance with laws and regufatidiscal policies and ordinances;

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold;
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. the potential for uninsured or under-insured proplersses.

If any of these or similar events occursnpay reduce our return from an affected propertyneestment and services and reduce or
eliminate our ability to pay dividends to our stholders.

The senior CRE loans we originate and the mortgageans underlying any CMBS investments that we may ake will be subject to the
ability of the commercial property owner to generae net income from operating the property, as wellsithe risks of delinquency and
foreclosure.

Our senior CRE loans are secured by comailgnoperty and are subject to risks of delinquead foreclosure, and risks of loss that
may be greater than similar risks associated wiiin$ made on the security of single-family residéproperty. The ability of a borrower to
repay a loan secured by an income-producing prgpgptcally is dependent primarily upon the suctelssperation of such property rather
than upon the existence of independent incomesataef the borrower. If the net operating incorhtne property is reduced, the borrower's
ability to repay the loan may be impaired. Net aiag income of an income-producing property cadeersely affected by, among other
things,

. tenant mix;

. success of tenant businesses;

. property management decisions;

. property location, condition and design;

. competition from comparable types of properties;

. changes in laws that increase operating expendanit rents that may be charged;

. changes in national, regional or local econoroicditions and/or specific industry segments, idicig the credit and

securitization markets;

. declines in regional or local real estate values;

. declines in regional or local rental or occuparetgs;

. increases in interest rates, real estate tax asg®ther operating expenses;

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions;

. the potential for uninsured or underinsured proplasses;

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, dietufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and enwvinental legislation and

the related costs of compliance; and

. acts of God, terrorist attacks, social unrest @imil disturbances.

In the event of any default under a morgglagin held directly by us, we will bear a riskdags of principal to the extent of any deficiel
between the value of the collateral and the pradcmd accrued interest of the mortgage loan, wbichd have a material adverse effect on
our cash flow from operations and limit amountsilabde for distribution to our stockholders. In teeent of the bankruptcy of a mortgage
loan borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrowi#e deemed to be secured only to the exteni@fvialue of the underlying collateral at
the time of bankruptcy (as determined by the bgpticsucourt), and the lien securing the mortgage ledl be subject to the avoidance
powers of the bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-pesisa to the extent the lien is unenforceable ustige law. Foreclosure of a mortgage loan
can be an expensive and lengthy process, whichl d@ye a substantial negative effect on our aratiegbreturn on the foreclosed mortgage
loan.
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We operate in a competitive market for investment pportunities and loan originations and competitionmay limit our ability to
originate or acquire desirable investments in ourarget investments and could also affect the pricingf these securities.

A number of entities compete with us to m#he types of investments that we seek to make#dgihate the types of loans that we seek
to originate. Our profitability depends, in largarp on our ability to originate or acquire ourgelrinvestments on attractive terms. In
originating or acquiring our target investments,s@enpete with a variety of institutional investargluding other REITS, specialty finance
companies, public and private funds (including ofaeds managed by Ares Management), commercialrargstment banks, commercial
real estate service providers, commercial finamzkiasurance companies and other financial ingitst Several other REITs have raised, or
are expected to raise, significant amounts of a@nhd may have investment objectives that ovesi#ip ours, which may create additional
competition for investment opportunities. Many of @anticipated competitors are significantly largean we are and have considerably
greater financial, technical, marketing and otlesources than we do. Some competitors may haweea st of funds and access to funding
sources that are not available to us, such as fBe@®bvernment. In addition, future changes in |aegulations and Fannie Mae or HUD
program requirements could lead to the entry ofercmmpetitors. Many of our competitors are not aecibjo the operating constraints
associated with REIT tax compliance or maintenaf@n exemption from the 1940 Act. In addition, oaf our competitors may have
higher risk tolerances or different risk assessmemhich could allow them to consider a wider vigrigf investments, deploy more aggress
pricing and establish more relationships than usthermore, competition for originations of andéstments in our target investments may
lead to the price of such assets increasing, winiai further limit our ability to generate desiredurns. We cannot assure you that the
competitive pressures we face will not have a neltadverse effect on our business, financial dioliand results of operations. Also, as a
result of this competition, desirable investmentsiir target investments may be limited in therfeitand we may not be able to take
advantage of attractive investment opportunitiemiftime to time, as we can provide no assurandeadavill be able to identify and make
investments that are consistent with our investrobjectives.

If our Manager overestimates the yields or incorretly prices the risks of our investments, we may exgrience losses.

Our Manager values our potential investméatsed on yields and risks, taking into accouithaged future losses on the mortgage Ic
and the collateral underlying our mortgage loarssianluded in securitization pools, and the estedampact of these losses on expected
future cash flows and returns. Our Manager's Istimates may not prove accurate, as actual rasalysvary from estimates. If our Manager
underestimates the asset-level losses relativgetprice we pay for a particular investment, we mgyerience losses with respect to such
investment.

Loans on properties in transition will involve a greater risk of loss than traditional investment-grasg mortgage loans with fully insured
borrowers.

We may originate transitional loans secungdirst lien mortgages on a property to borroweh® are typically seeking shadfm capite
to be used in an acquisition or rehabilitation pireperty. The typical borrower under a transitidnan has usually identified an undervalued
asset that has been under-managed and/or is |dosae@covering market. If the market in which #eset is located fails to improve
according to the borrower's projections, or if oerower fails to improve the quality of the assetanagement and/or the value of the asset,
the borrower may not receive a sufficient returrtfenasset to satisfy the transitional loan, andess the risk that we may not recover some
or all of our investment.
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In addition, borrowers usually use the pems of a conventional mortgage to repay a transitiloan. Transitional loans therefore are
subject to risks of a borrower's inability to obtgermanent financing to repay the transitionahldaansitional loans are also subject to risks
of borrower defaults, bankruptcies, fraud, losses special hazard losses that are not coveredabglatd hazard insurance. In the event o
default under transitional loans that may be hgld$y we bear the risk of loss of principal and-payment of interest and fees to the extent
of any deficiency between the value of the mortgagateral and the principal amount and unpaidrigdt of the transitional loan. To the
extent we suffer such losses with respect to thrasasitional loans, the value of the Company ardpttice of our shares of common stock |
be adversely affected.

Risks of cost overruns and noncompletion of renovatn of the properties underlying short term seniorloans on properties in transitior
may result in significant losses.

The renovation, refurbishment or expans&igma borrower under a mortgaged property invoNgssrof cost overruns and noncomplet
Estimates of the costs of improvements to bringaquired property up to standards establishechfontarket position intended for that
property may prove inaccurate. Other risks mayuidelrehabilitation costs exceeding original estasapossibly making a project
uneconomical, environmental risks and rehabilitaad subsequent leasing of the property not beongpleted on schedule. If such
renovation is not completed in a timely manneiif drcosts more than expected, the borrower magyeernce a prolonged impairment of net
operating income and may not be able to make patmoenour investment, which could result in sigrafit losses.

Investments in non-investment grade rated commercliaeal estate loans or securities involve increaseadsk of loss.

Many of our investments will not be ratadall be rated as non-investment grade by theagatigencies. The non-investment grade
ratings for these assets typically result fromdterall leverage of the loans, the lack of a stropgrating history for the properties underly
the loans, the borrowers' credit history, the ulyiley properties' cash flow or other factors. Ageault, these investments should be expected
to have a higher risk of default and loss than stment grade rated assets. Any loss we incur maygbéicant and may reduce distributions
to our stockholders and adversely affect the marétkete of our common stock. There are no limitsl@percentage of unrated or non-
investment grade rated assets we may hold in @estment portfolio.

The B-Notes that we have originated or may originat or acquire in the future may be subject to additnal risks related to the
privately negotiated structure and terms of the transaction, which may result in losses to us.

We have originated and may continue toioaitg or acquire B-Notes. A B-Note is a mortgagmltypically (a) secured by a first
mortgage on a single large commercial propertyroug of related properties and (b) subordinateahté\-Note secured by the same first
mortgage on the same collateral. As a resultpibmower defaults, there may not be sufficient singmaining for B-Note holders after
payment to the A-Note holders. Because each tréinads privately negotiated, B-Notes can varyhnit structural characteristics and risks.
For example, the rights of holders of B-Notes totoal the process following a borrower default nvayy from transaction to transaction.
Further, B-Notes typically are secured by a simgtgperty and accordingly reflect the risks asseciatith significant concentration.
Significant losses related to our B-Notes wouldilteis operating losses for us and may limit ouitighto make distributions to our
stockholders.
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Our mezzanine loan assets involve greater risks tdss than senior loans secured by income-producingoperties.

We have originated and may continue toioaitg or acquire mezzanine loans, which take tha fof subordinated loans secured by
second mortgages on the underlying property ordeacured by a pledge of the ownership interest#ttudr the entity owning the property or
a pledge of the ownership interests of the enlif bwns the interest in the entity owning the prop These types of assets involve a higher
degree of risk than longgrm senior mortgage lending secured by incomeuymiod real property, because the loan may becorsecuined as
result of foreclosure by the senior lender. Ingkient of a bankruptcy of the entity providing thedge of its ownership interests as security,
we may not have full recourse to the assets of satly, or the assets of the entity may not béigaht to satisfy our mezzanine loan. If a
borrower defaults on our mezzanine loan or debibséo our loan, or in the event of a borrower bagitcy, our mezzanine loan will be
satisfied only after the senior debt. As a resudt,may not recover some or all of our initial exgiéure. In addition, mezzanine loans may
have higher loan-to-value ratios than conventionaftgage loans, resulting in less equity in thepprty and increasing the risk of loss of
principal. Significant losses related to our memzartoans would result in operating losses forn may limit our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

Investments in preferred equity involve a greater isk of loss than traditional debt financing.

We invest in and may continue to invegteial estate preferred equity, which involves a &igtegree of risk than first mortgage loans
due to a variety of factors, including the risktftemilar to mezzanine loans, such investmentsaberdinate to first mortgage loans and are
not collateralized by property underlying the inwesnt. Unlike mezzanine loans, preferred equitgstments generally do not have a pledge
of the ownership interests of the entity that othesinterest in the entity owning the property.hdligh as a holder of preferred equity we
enhance our position with covenants that limitdbgvities of the entity in which we hold an intsrand protect our equity by obtaining an
exclusive right to control the underlying propeafyer an event of default, should such a defawdioon our investment, we would only be
able to proceed against the entity in which we lasldnterest, and not the property owned by sutityeand underlying our investment. As a
result, we may not recover some or all of our itwest.

Any credit ratings assigned to our investments wilbe subject to ongoing evaluations and revisions drwe cannot assure you that thos
ratings will not be downgraded.

Some of our investments may be rated bggatgencies such as Moody's Investors Serviceh Ratings, Standard & Poor's,
DBRS, Inc. or Realpoint LLC. Any credit ratings our investments are subject to ongoing evaluatijoarbdit rating agencies, and we car
assure you that any such ratings will not be chdrgevithdrawn by a rating agency in the futurerifits judgment, circumstances warrant. If
rating agencies assign a lower-than-expected ratimgduce or withdraw, or indicate that they maguce or withdraw, their ratings of our
investments in the future, the value of our invesita could significantly decline, which would adsely affect the value of our investment
portfolio and could result in losses upon dispositdr the failure of borrowers to satisfy their tisbrvice obligations to us.

We may experience a decline in the fair value of owassets.

A decline in the fair market value of ogsats may require us to recognize an "other-thaupdeary” impairment against such assets
under GAAP, if we were to determine that, with sto any assets in unrealized loss positiongjaveot have the ability and intent to hold
such assets to maturity or for a period of timdicight to allow for recovery to the original acgition cost of such assets. If such a
determination were to be made, we will record éowadnce to reduce the carrying
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value of the loan to the present value of expefitede cash flows discounted at the loan's conteaffective rate or the fair value of the
collateral, if repayment is expected solely frora tollateral. Such impairment charges reflect nashdosses at the time of recognition;
subsequent disposition or sale of such assets faleer affect our future losses or gains, as reybased on the difference between the sale
price received and adjusted amortized cost of sgsbts at the time of sale. If we experience drdeirl the fair value of our assets, our
results of operations, financial condition and ahility to make distributions to our stockholdewsiltl be materially and adversely affected.

Some of our portfolio investments may be recordedtdair value and, as a result, there will be uncedinty as to the value of these
investments.

Some of our portfolio investments may béhia form of positions or securities that are ndiljzly traded. The fair value of securities
other investments that are not publicly traded matybe readily determinable. Currently, the finahaistruments recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis in the Company's consolidated firdrstatements are MSRs, loan commitments andadiahwale commitments. The Comp
has not elected the fair value option for the rerimngj financial instruments, including loans held ifovestment, Secured Funding Agreeme
Warehouse Lines of Credit, convertible notes amdrsization debt. Such financial instruments aaeried at cost. For loans held for
investment that are evaluated for impairment atlgaarterly, we estimate the fair value of thérimmaent, which may include unobservable
inputs. Because such valuations are subjectivdfathgalue of certain of our assets may fluctuater short periods of time and our
determinations of fair value may differ materiditgm the values that would have been used if ayreaarket for these securities existed. The
value of our common stock could be adversely afigdtour determinations regarding the fair valfithese investments were materially
higher than the values that we ultimately realigerutheir disposal.

Additionally, the Company's results of agdams for a given period could be adversely aéfddt its determinations regarding the fair
value of these investments were materially highantthe values that the Company ultimately realiges their disposal.

If we invest in CMBS, such investments would posedditional risks, including the risks of the securitzation process and the risk that
the special servicer may take actions that could agrsely affect our interests.

We may acquire CMBS. In general, lossea amortgaged property securing a mortgage loandeclun a securitization will be borne
first by the equity holder of the property, thenégash reserve fund or letter of credit, if ahgrnt by the holder of a mezzanine loan or B-
Note, if any, then by the "first loss" subordinagtdckholder and then by the holder of a hi-rated security. In the event of default and the
exhaustion of any equity support, reserve fundeideif credit, mezzanine loans or B-Notes, and@dagses of securities junior to those in
which we invest, we will not be able to recoverdailbur investment in the securities we purchaseddition, if the underlying mortgage
portfolio has been overvalued by the originatorif the values subsequently decline and, as atrdest collateral value is available to satisfy
interest and principal payments due on the relatedgage-backed securities. The prices of lowetitrpiality securities are generally less
sensitive to interest rate changes than more highéd investments, but more sensitive to adversea@nic downturns or individual issuer
developments.

With respect to the CMBS in which we mayast, overall control over the special servicinghaf related underlying mortgage loans
be held by a "directing certificateholder" or afitwlling class representative,” which is appointgdhe holders of the most subordinated
class of CMBS in such series. Because we may aeglasses of existing series of CMBS, we will ne¢dnthe right to appoint the directing
certificateholder. In connection with the servicioithe specially serviced mortgage loans,
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the related special servicer may, at the direatiotme directing certificateholder, take actionshaiespect to the specially serviced mortgage
loans that could adversely affect our interests.

Insurance on mortgage loans and real estate secues collateral may not cover all losses.

There are certain types of losses, genyeoélh catastrophic nature, such as earthquakwesjd| hurricanes, terrorism or acts of war,
which may be uninsurable or not economically inbleainflation, changes in building codes and aadices, environmental considerations
and other factors, including terrorism or acts afvalso might result in insurance proceeds incieffit to repair or replace a property if it is
damaged or destroyed. Under these circumstaneegghrance proceeds received with respect togepsorelating one of our investments
might not be adequate to restore our economicipositith respect to our investment. Any uninsuresslcould result in the loss of cash flow
from, and the asset value of, the affected propamty/the value of our investment related to suopgnty.

Liability relating to environmental matters may impact the value of properties that we may acquire upoforeclosure of the properties
underlying our investments.

To the extent we foreclose on propertie wespect to which we have extended mortgage Joemsnay be subject to environmental
liabilities arising from such foreclosed propertielmder various U.S. federal, state and local lamspwner or operator of real property may
become liable for the costs of removal of certamdrdous substances released on its property. Thes@ften impose liability without
regard to whether the owner or operator knew ofyas responsible for, the release of such hazarsldustances.

The presence of hazardous substances maysatl affect an owner's ability to sell real &star borrow using real estate as collateral.
To the extent that an owner of a property undegyine of our debt investments becomes liable fooral costs, the ability of the owner to
make payments to us may be reduced, which in t@ayadversely affect the value of the relevant nagégasset held by us and our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders.

If we foreclose on any properties undedyiur investments, the presence of hazardous sudest@n a property may adversely affect
ability to sell the property and we may incur sabsial remediation costs, thus harming our findnoiadition. The discovery of material
environmental liabilities attached to such progsritould have a material adverse effect on outtsestioperations and financial condition
and our ability to make distributions to our stockters.

Construction loans involve an increased risk of las

We invest in and may continue to investanstruction loans. If we fail to fund our entienemitment on a construction loan or if a
borrower otherwise fails to complete the constarctf a project, there could be adverse conseqsaassociated with the loan, including, but
not limited to: a loss of the value of the propestguring the loan, especially if the borrowernahle to raise funds to complete it from other
sources; a borrower claim against us for failurpgdform under the loan documents; increased toste borrower that the borrower is
unable to pay; a bankruptcy filing by the borrowammgd abandonment by the borrower of the collaferahe loan.

Our investments may be concentrated and could be bject to risk of default.

We are not required to observe specifiediication criteria, except as may be set fontthie investment guidelines adopted by our
board of directors. Therefore, our investmentsuntarget assets may at times be concentratedtairc@roperty types that are subject to
higher risk of foreclosure, or secured by propsrtiencentrated in a limited number of geographsations. To the extent that our investment
portfolio is concentrated in any one region or tgpasset, downturns
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relating generally to such region or type of assay result in defaults on a number of our investis@rithin a short time period, which may
reduce our net income and the value of our comnarksand accordingly reduce our ability to pay dends to our stockholders.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR MORTGAGE BANKING BUSINESS

The loss of or changes to ACRE Capital's relationshs with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and HUD and instititional investors would
adversely affect its ability to originate CRE loanghrough Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and HUD programsyhich would materially
adversely affect us.

Currently, ACRE Capital originates and $e#s its loans for sale through Fannie Mae, Freltie or HUD programs. ACRE Capital is
approved as a Fannie Mae DUS lender, Freddie Magr&m Plus® Seller/Servicer, Ginnie Mae issuerfdé (including MAP and LEAN)
lender. ACRE Capital's status as an approved Feeddic Program Plus® Seller/Servicer and issuer nthgse programs affords ACRE
Capital a number of advantages and may be terndiratéhe applicable agency at any time. The losioh status would, or changes in
ACRE Capital's relationships could, prevent ACRBpiGd from being able to originate and service AB&ns for sale through Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac or HUD, which would materially adveysaffect us. It could also result in ACRE Capitéd'ss of similar approvals from other
agencies.

ACRE Capital may not be able to hire and retain qudéified loan originators, and if it is unable to doso, its ability to implement its
business and growth strategies could be limited.

ACRE Capital depends on its loan originatorgenerate borrower clients by, among othegtyideveloping relationships with
commercial property owners, real estate agentdbeoicers, developers and others, which ACRE Capihéves leads to repeat and referral
business. Accordingly, ACRE Capital must be ablattmact, motivate and retain skilled loan origorat As of December 31, 2014, ACRE
Capital employed approximately 15 loan originathreughout its 9 offices. The market for loan amggors is highly competitive and may
lead to increased costs to hire and retain thenRBCapital cannot guarantee that it will be ablatteact or retain qualified loan originators.
If it cannot attract, motivate or retain a suffitiemumber of skilled loan originators, or everti€an motivate or retain them but at higher c
we could be materially adversely affected.

ACRE Capital is subject to risk of loss in connectin with defaults on loans sold under the Fannie MaBUS program that could
materially adversely affect our results of operatios and liquidity.

Under the Fannie Mae DUS program, ACRE @apriginates and services multifamily loans fanRie Mae without having to obtain
Fannie Mae's prior approval for certain loans oag las the loans meet the underwriting guidelie¢$osth by Fannie Mae. In return for the
delegated authority to make loans and the committegourchase loans by Fannie Mae, ACRE Capitalt masntain minimum collateral at
is generally required to share the risk of losso@ams sold through Fannie Mae. Under plagi passurisk-sharing formula, ACRE Capital is
required to share the loss with Fannie Mae, withriiximum loss capped at one-third of the origmadcipal balance of a loan. ACRE
Capital's risk-sharing obligations have been medifind reduced on some Fannie Mae DUS loans. itiagd-annie Mae can significantly
increase ACRE Capital's risk-sharing obligationthé loan does not meet specific underwriting gater if the loan defaults within
12 months of its sale to Fannie Mae or if FannieMatermines that there was fraud, material miesgmtation or gross negligence by AC
Capital in its underwriting, closing, delivery arsicing of the loan. As of December 31, 2014, ACR4pital had pledged securities and cash
of $14.4 million as collateral against future lcssa $3.2 billion of loans outstanding that arejecixto risk-sharing obligations, of which
$1.1 billion represents ACRE Capital's "at riskavede."
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ACRE Capital's DUS lender contract with Ri@nViae gives Fannie Mae the ability to increageaimounts required to be held in reserve
as operational liquidity or restricted reservesdarumber of reasons in order to protect its istsren this regard, Fannie Mae had previously
required ACRE Capital to bolster its operational asstricted liquidity positions by increasingtitéal acceptable operational liquidity by
$6.0 million and also increasing its restrictecerge liquidity by $2.5 million. In August of 201Eannie Mae agreed to allow ACRE Capital
to use the $6.0 million of additional operationguldity to make advances on defaulted Fannie Maad and/or to meet future loss sharing
obligations on Fannie Mae loans. Upon the consutomaff our acquisition of ACRE Capital, Fannie Magreed to lift the requirement that
ACRE Capital maintain the additional restrictederge of $2.5 million and the $6.0 million of additial operational liquidity. If Fannie Mae
deems it necessary and appropriate, it may raesetbollateral requirements again in the futurechvivould limit ACRE Capital's ability to
utilize those funds. As of December 31, 2014, ACRpital's allowance for risk-sharing as a percentzghe at-risk balance was 1.07%, or
$12.3 million, and reflects ACRE Capital's currestimate of its future payouts under its risk-stobligations. We cannot assure you that
ACRE Capital's estimate will be sufficient to cofeture write offs.

While ACRE Capital originates loans thatetnne underwriting guidelines defined by FannieeMa addition to its own internal
underwriting guidelines, underwriting criteria magt always protect against loan defaults. In addijtrecent periods of financial uncertainty
have coincided with declines in commercial reahstvalues, in some cases to levels below the mustdgstanding principal balance of the
loan. Also, underwriting standards, including Idanvalue ratios, have become stricter. These factarate a risk that some older loans may
not be able to be refinanced at maturity and thag experience maturity defaults. Other factors mlag affect a borrower's decision to
default on a loan, such as property cash flow, panay, maintenance needs, and other financingatiigs. As of December 31, 2014, there
were no assets in ACRE Capital's 60+ days delinqeste segment. If loan defaults increase, actsialsharing obligation payments under
the Fannie Mae DUS program may increase, and sefelults and payments could have a material adegfset on our results of operations
and liquidity. In addition, any failure by ACRE Qg to pay its share of losses under the Fannie BIdS program could result in the
revocation of its license from Fannie Mae and tker@se of various remedies available to Fannie Meder the Fannie Mae DUS program.

If ACRE Capital fails to act proactively with delinquent borrowers in an effort to avoid a default, is number of delinquent loans could
increase, which could have a material adverse effeon us.

As a loan servicer, ACRE Capital maintahnes primary contact with the borrower throughow life of the loan and is responsible,
pursuant to its servicing agreements with Fannie Naeddie Mac, HUD and institutional investors,deset management. ACRE Capital is
also responsible, together with Fannie Mae, Frebltdie, HUD and institutional investors, for takingtians to mitigate losses. We believe
ACRE Capital has developed an extensive asset rearag process for tracking each loan that it sesvielowever, ACRE Capital may be
unsuccessful in identifying loans that are in dargdeinderperforming or defaulting or in taking appriate action once those loans are
identified. While ACRE Capital can recommend a logsgation strategy for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mad &tD, decisions regarding loss
mitigation are within the control of Fannie Maee#idie Mac and HUD. Recent turmoil in the real estatedit and capital markets have made
this process even more difficult and unpredicta@en loans become delinquent, ACRE Capital inadditional expenses in servicing and
asset managing the loan, it is typically requieddvance principal and interest payments andrteirssurance escrow amounts, it could be
subject to a loss of its contractual servicingdad it could suffer losses of up to 33.33% (or nfordoans that do not meet specific
underwriting criteria or default within 12 monthftbeir sale to Fannie Mae) of the original priradipalance of a Fannie Mae DUS loan with
Level | pari passuisk-sharing, as well as potential losses on Fakldae DUS loans with modified risk-sharing. Thesens could have a
negative impact on its
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cash flows and a negative effect on the net cagryalue of the MSRs on its balance sheet and amsidt in a charge to its earnings. As a
result of the foregoing, a continuing rise in ACREpital's delinquencies could have a material agveffect on us.

A reduction in the prices paid for ACRE Capital's loans and services or an increase in loan or secuyiinterest rates by investors could
materially adversely affect our results of operatios and liquidity.

Our results of operations and liquidity kcbbne materially adversely affected if Fannie Maesddie Mac, HUD and institutional invest:
lower the price they are willing to pay to ACRE @apfor ACRE Capital's loans or services or adegrehange the material terms of their
loan purchases or service arrangements with ACRE&aA number of factors determine the price ACRé&pital receives for its loans. W
respect to Fannie Mae-related originations, ACRRi@bs loans are generally sold as Fannie Maer@usgecurities to third-party investors.
With respect to HUD-related originations, ACRE Qalé loans are generally sold as Ginnie Mae sgesittio third-party investors. In both
cases, the price paid to ACRE Capital reflectgart, the competitive market bidding process festhsecurities.

ACRE Capital sells loans directly to Frezitiac. Freddie Mac may choose to hold, sell or lsg¢euritize such loans. ACRE Capital
believes terms set by Freddie Mac are influencesitjlar market factors as those that impact theepof Fannie Mae-insured or Ginnie Mae
securities, although the pricing process differs.

Loan servicing fees are based, in partherrisk-sharing obligations associated with ttenland the market pricing of credit risk. The
credit risk premium offered by Fannie Mae for n@ars can change periodically, but remains fixededRCRE Capital enters into a
commitment to sell the loan. Over the past sevwarals, Fannie Mae loan servicing fees have bedrehiue to the market pricing of credit
risk. There can be no assurance that such feesamitinue to remain at such levels or that suchltewill be sufficient if delinquencies occur.

Servicing fees for loans placed with ingtdnal investors are negotiated with each instihél investor pursuant to agreements that
ACRE Capital has with them. In addition, ACRE Capihay service loans on behalf of ACRE and thirdypaccounts pursuant to
agreements that are entered into by ACRE Capiteds@& fees for new loans may vary over time andlmeayaterially adversely affected by a
number of factors, including competitors that maywilling to provide similar services at betterest

Over the past few years, ACRE Capital has originate multifamily real estate loans that are eligible ér sale through Fannie Mae
programs. In 2013, ACRE Capital was approved to oginate loans that are eligible to be insured by FHAand securitized through
Ginnie Mae. In 2014, ACRE Capital was approved angranted a license by Freddie Mac as a Program Plus®eller/Servicer for

multifamily loans. This focus may expose ACRE Capil to greater risk if the CMBS market continues itsrecovery or alternative

sources of liquidity become more readily availabléo the commercial real estate finance market.

ACRE Capital originates multifamily reaka&t® loans that are eligible for sale through Failiae and Freddie Mac programs or are
eligible to be insured by FHA and securitized tlglo@innie Mae. Over the past few years, the nurabarultifamily loans financed by
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and HUD programs has repted a significantly greater percentage of ovenailltifamily loan origination volum
than in prior years. ACRE Capital believes thas thcrease is the result, in part, of market desion and illiquidity in the secondary markets
for non-GSE or HUD loans. The CMBS market contintgeshow signs of a recovery over the past fewsjegnowing in each of 2012, 2013
and 2014. To the extent the CMBS market contintsasecovery or liquidity in the commercial realastfinance market significantly
increases, there may be less demand for loanatdadigible for sale through Fannie Mae or Freddige programs or eligible to be insured
by FHA and securitized
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through Ginnie Mae, and ACRE Capital's loan origoravolume may be adversely impacted, which conéderially adversely affect us.

A significant portion of ACRE Capital's revenue isderived from loan servicing fees, and declines inrderminations of servicing
engagements or breaches of servicing agreements;liuding as a result of non-performance by third paties that ACRE Capital
engages for back-office loan servicing functions ahloan origination, could have a material adverseféect on us.

We expect that loan servicing fees will thowme to constitute a significant portion of ACREltal's revenues for the foreseeable future.
Nearly all of these fees are derived from loans #€RE Capital originates and sells through Famhée, Freddie Mac or HUD programs
places with institutional investors. A decline retnumber or value of loans that ACRE Capital oatgs for these investors or termination
its servicing engagements will decrease these F8dB. has the right to terminate ACRE Capital's eatrservicing engagements for cause. In
addition to termination for cause, Fannie Mae aratifiie Mac may terminate ACRE Capital's servicirgregement without cause. ACRE
Capital is also subject to losses that may ariserasult of servicing errors, such as errors éntitmeliness or accuracy of reporting, a failure
to maintain insurance, pay taxes or provide notiteaddition, ACRE Capital contracts with a thparty to perform certain routine back-
office aspects of loan servicing. If ACRE Capitathis third party fails to perform, or ACRE Capitmeaches or the third-party causes ACRE
Capital to breach its servicing obligations to Harlae, Freddie Mac or HUD, ACRE Capital's seryicengagements may be terminated.
Declines or terminations of servicing engagementsreaches of such obligations could materiallyeaglely affect us.

Mortgage loan servicing is an increasingly regulat business.

The mortgage loan servicing activities @RE Capital are subject to a still evolving setegfulations, including regulations being
promulgated under the Dodd-Frank Act. In additicarjous governmental authorities have recentlydased their investigative focus on the
activities of mortgage loan servicers. As a resué,may have to spend additional resources andel@dudlitional management time to add
any regulatory concerns, which may reduce the resswavailable to grow our business. In additibAGRE Capital fails its servicing
activities in compliance with existing and futussgyulations, our business, reputation, financiabdton or results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

ACRE Capital is subject to the risk of loans failirg to close after entering into a commitment agreenmé to make a loan with a
borrower.

We recognize certain income and expensasitghen ACRE Capital enters into a commitment agesd to make a loan with a borrow
Loans could fail to close after a commitment duthtoborrower choosing not to close the loan @ilare of performance by either the
borrower or by ACRE Capital. Any failure to clossignificant loan commitment could have a mateathlerse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

ACRE Capital is subject to the risk of failed loandeliveries.

ACRE Capital bears the risk that the inoestill choose not to purchase the loan (“failedrnaelivery"), including because a
catastrophic change in the condition of a propeciurs after ACRE Capital funds the loan and podhe investor purchase date. ACRE
Capital also has the risk that serious errors@mldocumentation may prevent timely delivery ofltsen prior to the investor purchase date. A
failure to deliver a loan could be a default unither warehouse line used to finance the loan. Ttemebe no assurance that ACRE Capital
not experience failed loan deliveries or that amgsés in connection therewith will not be matesialill be mitigated through property
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insurance or payment protections, if applicabley Aignificant failed loan deliveries could have atarial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

ACRE Capital may be required to repurchase a loan oto indemnify the investor if it breaches a represntation or warranty made by
it in connection with the sale of the loan throughannie Mae, Freddie Mac or HUD/Ginnie Mae programsany of which could have a
material adverse effect on ACRE Capital.

ACRE Capital must make certain represemiiatiwarranties and certifications concerning éeah originated by it for Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac or HUD/Ginnie Mae programs. The represens and warranties relate to ACRE Capitabgtices in the origination and
servicing of the loans and the accuracy of therindion being provided by it. For example, ACRE Eaps generally required to provide
following representations and warranties, amongrsthit is authorized to do business and to sedissign the loan; the loan conforms to the
requirements of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, HUD amthgelaws and regulations; the underlying mortgegm@esents a valid lien on the
property and there are no other liens on the ptgptire loan documents are valid and enforceabled, assessments, insurance premiums,
rents and similar other payments have been patd@owed; the property is insured, conforms tormpitaws and remains intact; and it does
not know of any issues regarding the loan thatesisonably expected to cause the loan to be delimqu unacceptable for investment or
adversely affect its value. ACRE Capital is peredtto satisfy certain of these representationsraardanties by furnishing a title insurance

policy.

In the event of a breach of any represmmtatr warranty, investors could, among other thjrigcrease the level of risk-sharing on the
Fannie Mae DUS loan or require ACRE Capital to repase the full amount of the loan and seek ind&oation for losses from ACRE
Capital. ACRE Capital's obligation to repurchaseltran is independent of its risk-sharing obligasioFannie Mae, Freddie Mac or HUD
could require ACRE Capital to repurchase the Iéaepresentations and warranties are breached,iktlenloan is not in default. Because
accuracy of many such representations and warsagéirerally is based on ACRE Capital's actionsnadhod-party reports, such as title
reports and environmental reports, ACRE Capital matyreceive similar representations and warraffité@a other parties that would serve as
a claim against them. Even if ACRE Capital recereggesentations and warranties from third pagieshas a claim against them in the €
of a breach, its ability to recover on any suclinclenay be limited. ACRE Capital's ability to recoagjainst a borrower that breaches its
representations and warranties to it may be silypilamited. ACRE Capital's ability to recover orckaim against any party would also be
dependent, in part, upon the financial conditiod bquidity of such party. Although we believe t#ERE Capital has capable personnel at
all levels, uses qualified third parties and hdaldished controls to ensure that all loans argimaited pursuant to requirements established by
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and HUD, in addition taits internal requirements, there can be no assardrat ACRE Capital, its employees
or third parties will not make mistakes. Any sigeaint repurchase or indemnification obligations asged on ACRE Capital could have a
material adverse effect on us.

ACRE Capital expects to offer additional new loan poducts to meet evolving borrower demand, includingnew types of loans. Because
it is not as experienced with such loan productst may not be successful or profitable in offering sch products.

In August 2014, ACRE Capital was approved granted a license by Freddie Mac as a Progras®PSeller/Servicer for multifamily
loans. In the future, ACRE Capital expects to offdditional new loan products to meet evolving baver demands. ACRE Capital may
initiate new loan product and service offeringsaoquire them through acquisitions of operating fesses. Because ACRE Capital may not
be as experienced with new loan products or sesyitenay require additional time and resourceoftaring and managing such products
and services effectively or may be unsuccessfaffiering such new products and services at a profit
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For most loans that ACRE Capital services under thé&annie Mae and HUD programs, ACRE Capital is requied to advance
payments due to investors if the borrower is delingent in making such payments, which requirement cdd adversely impact our
liquidity and harm our results of operations.

For most loans ACRE Capital services uttider-annie Mae DUS program, ACRE Capital is culyaeuired to advance the principal
and interest payments and tax and insurance esorownts if the borrower is delinquent in makingnlgayments. After four continuous
months of making advances on behalf of the borrp&€IRE Capital can submit a reimbursement clairfdonie Mae, which Fannie Mae
may approve at its discretion. ACRE Capital is faimsed by Fannie Mae for these advances in the #vefoan is brought current. In the
event of a default, any advances made by ACRE @lapiaccordance with Fannie Mae requirements seé to reduce the proceeds required
to settle any loss, if not previously reimbursed.

Under the HUD program, ACRE Capital is ghtied to continue to advance principal and intgragtments and tax and insurance escrow
amounts on Ginnie Mae securities until the FHA mage insurance claim and the Ginnie Mae securitg baen fully paid. In the event of a
default on an FHA insured loan, FHA will reimbu@®% of any losses of principal, plus generally mast insurance, and interest (at the
federal debenture rate) advanced on the loanelfdan default occurred while pooled with Ginniedyithat agency will reimburse 1% of
principal and generally 85% of any interest slipphgtween the federal debenture and security chieserest.

Although ACRE Capital has funded all reqdiadvances from operating cash flow in the pastgtcan be no assurance that it will be
able to do so in the future. If ACRE Capital doesmave sufficient operating cash flows to fundrsadvances, it would need to finance such
amounts. Such financing could be costly and cotd¢gnt us from pursuing our business and growttegjies.

A change to the conservatorship of Fannie Mae or leddie Mac and related actions, along with any chamg in laws and regulations
affecting the relationship between Fannie Mae or Feddie Mac and the U.S. federal government, could nterially adversely affect
ACRE Capital's business.

There continues to be substantial uncestaggarding the future of each of Fannie Mae arediéfie Mac, including the length of time -
which they may continue to exist and in what fohmyt may operate during that period. Fannie Maeraaddie Mac are presently under
federal conservatorship as the U.S. Governmenirageg to evaluate the future of these entitiesveimat role the U.S. Government should
continue to play in the housing markets. Although t).S. government has described some specifis #t@pit intends to take as part of the
conservatorship process, efforts to stabilize tleegities may not be successful and the outcomeénapdct of these events remain highly
uncertain. Under the statute providing the framdwior the conservatorship, each of Fannie Mae aeddite Mac could also be placed into
receivership under certain circumstances. On Mar&@013, the Federal Housing Finance Agency ("FHFAleased its 2013 Conservator
Scorecard for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. As gaheoscorecard, the FHFA directed that the GSEDtdract their presence in the
marketplace while simplifying and shrinking certaiperations by lines of business. Specifically, Fh#=A directed each GSE to reduce the
unpaid principal balance amount of new multifantilysiness relative to 2012 by at least ten percgtightening underwriting, adjusting
pricing, and limiting product offerings, while nioicreasing the proportion of their retained risk Kday 13, 2014, the FHFA released a
strategic plan relating to the conservatorshipSasfhie Mae and Freddie Mac. The 2014 plan no lomyetves specific steps to contract the
market presence of the GSEs, but retains a goaséaton ways to bring additional private capitéd ithe system in order to reduce taxpayer
risk. Reductions to the GSEs' volumes for new rfauttily originations, or additional restrictions tme GSEs' multifamily business imposed
by the FHFA could adversely impact the volume afile that ACRE Capital originates with Fannie Mag Breddie Mac. These restrictions
or reductions could have a material impact on marifcial results in future periods. In additiongothe past few years, various draft bills and
other plans have been
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proposed by U.S. legislators to wind down or repleannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Currently, it remaimdear whether these or any other
proposals will become law and how these or othepgsals to reform Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac womnjghct housing finance and our
business. ACRE Capital originates a substantiabritgjof its loans for sale through Fannie Mae &neddie Mac programs. Furthermore, a
substantial majority of its servicing rights areided from loans ACRE Capital sells through Farviee and Freddie Mac programs. Changes
in the business charter, structure or existendéeanhie Mae or Freddie Mac could eliminate or sutiity reduce the number of loans ACRE
Capital originates, which would have a materialeade effect on us.

If ACRE Capital fails to comply with the numerous government regulations and program requirements of Bnnie Mae, Freddie Mac
or HUD, it may lose its approved lender status anékil to gain additional approvals or licenses forts business. ACRE Capital is also
subject to changes in laws, regulations and existinFannie Mae, Freddie Mac and HUD program requiremats, including potential
increases in reserve and risk retention requiremestthat could increase its costs and affect the wayconducts its business, which
could materially adversely affect ACRE Capital.

ACRE Capital's operations are subject tpulation by federal, state and local governmenauities, various laws and judicial and
administrative decisions, and regulations and pdiof Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and HUD. These laggylations, rules and policies
impose, among other things, minimum net worth, apenal liquidity and collateral requirements. Figniae requires ACRE Capital to
maintain operational liquidity based on a formiiattconsiders the balance of the loan and the herkedit loss exposure (“level of risk-
sharing"). Fannie Mae requires Fannie Mae DUS lenttemaintain collateral, which may include pledgecurities, for ACRE Capital's risk-
sharing obligations. The amount of collateral reegiiunder the Fannie Mae DUS program is calculatéke loan level and is based on the
balance of the loan, the level of risk-sharing,gbasoning of the loans and the rating of the leaktaie DUS lender.

Regulatory authorities also require ACRBiGd to submit financial reports and to maintaiquality control plan for the underwriting,
origination and servicing of loans. Numerous lawd eegulations also impose qualification and lideg®bligations on ACRE Capital and
impose requirements and restrictions affecting, rgrather things: ACRE Capital's loan originatiomsximum interest rates, finance charges
and other fees that ACRE Capital may charge; dsscks to consumers; the terms of secured transagtiollection, repossession and claims
handling procedures; personnel qualifications; atiher trade practices. ACRE Capital is also sulijgaispection by Fannie Mae, Freddie
Mac, HUD and regulatory authorities and lender digation and monitoring by HUD. ACRE Capital's lfaie to comply with these
requirements could lead to, among other thingslas® of a license as an approved Fannie Mae, ferédiac or HUD lender, the inability to
gain additional approvals or licenses, the ternmmadf contractual rights without compensation, denfs for indemnification or loan
repurchases, class action lawsuits and adminigtratiforcement actions.

Regulatory and legal requirements are stitjechange. For example, in March of 2013, FaiMae notified all DUS lenders that
collateral requirements on certain existing moregkgns were increasing. As of December 31, 20CRE Capital had 915 loans, with a
collective unpaid principal balance of $3.3 billjon its portfolio that were affected by the annoea collateral changes and we do not expect
it will have a material impact on ACRE Capital'sute operations; however, Fannie Mae periodicabssesses the DUS Capital Standards
and may make changes to these standards in the futhich may adversely impact us.
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ACRE Capital is dependent upon the success of theuitifamily real estate sector and conditions that egatively impact the multifamily
sector may reduce demand for ACRE Capital's product and services and materially adversely affect us.

ACRE Capital provides commercial real estatancial products and services primarily to depers and owners of multifamily
properties. Accordingly, the success of its businelosely tied to the overall success of thetifamhily real estate market. Various changes
in real estate conditions may impact the multifgnsiétctor. Any negative trends in such real estatelitions may reduce demand for ACRE
Capital's products and services and, as a resiviersely affect our results of operations. Thesalitmns include:

. oversupply of, or a reduction in demand for, tifarnily housing;

. a favorable interest rate environment that maylr@sa significant number of potential residentsraultifamily properties
deciding to purchase homes instead of renting;

. rent control or stabilization laws, or other lawgulating multifamily housing, which could affebtt profitability of
multifamily developments;

. the inability of residents and tenants to pay;re

. increased competition in the multifamily sedbaised on considerations such as the attractiveloeasion, rental rates,
amenities and safety record of various propertes,

. increased operating costs, including increasedpreglerty taxes, maintenance, insurance and esilitdsts.

Moreover, other factors may adversely dffee multifamily sector, including changes in goweent regulations and other laws, rules
and regulations governing real estate, zoning>@sachanges in interest rate levels, the potdidlality under environmental and other laws
and other unforeseen events. Any or all of thestfa could negatively impact the multifamily seciad, as a result, reduce the demand for
ACRE Capital's products and services. Any suchctaln could materially adversely affect us.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK
The market price of our common stock may fluctuatesignificantly.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE urie trading symbol "ACRE." Recently, the globapital and credit markets have been in
an extended period of volatility and disruptioneTharket price and liquidity of the market for sf®of our common stock may be
significantly affected by numerous factors, somabich are beyond our control and may not be diyeetated to our operating performan

Some of the factors that could negativéfigch the market price of our common stock include:

. our actual or projected operating results, findnmadition, cash flows and liquidity, or changasusiness strategy or
prospects;

. actual or perceived conflicts of interest witlr danager or Ares Management and individuals uidiclg our executives;

. equity issuances by us, or share resales bgtookholders, or the perception that such issuamicessales may occur;

. loss of a major funding source;

. actual or anticipated accounting problems;

. publication of research reports about us ord¢ia estate industry;

. changes in market valuations of similar companies;
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. adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the future;

. additions to or departures of our Manager's or Masagement's key personnel;

. speculation in the press or investment community;

. increases in market interest rates, which may ileagktors to demand a higher distribution yielddar common stock and

would result in increased interest expenses ormleht;

. failure to maintain our REIT qualification oremption from the 1940 Act;

. price and volume fluctuations in the overallcktonarket from time to time;

. general market and economic conditions, andigéncluding inflationary concerns, the currentestat the credit and capital
markets;

. significant volatility in the market price and tiad volume of securities of publicly traded REITrsabher companies in our

sector, which are not necessarily related to thegaimg performance of these companies;

. changes in law, regulatory policies or tax glirdss, or interpretations thereof, particularly espect to REITS;

. changes in the value of our portfolio;

. any shortfall in revenue or net income or argréase in losses from levels expected by investosecurities analysts;

. operating performance of companies comparablsto

. short-selling pressure with respect to sharemiotcommon stock or REITs generally;

. uncertainty surrounding the strength of the U.8nemic recovery particularly in light of the receltwngrade of the U.S.

Government's credit rating; and

. concerns regarding European sovereign debt.

As noted above, market factors unrelatemlioperformance could also negatively impact tlaekat price of our common stock. One of
the factors that investors may consider in deciavhgther to buy or sell our common stock is outritigtion rate as a percentage of our stock
price relative to market interest rates. If maiikétrest rates increase, prospective investorsdeayand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendmtarest. As a result, interest rate fluctuationd eonditions in the capital markets can ai
the market value of our common stock. For instaiideterest rates rise, it is likely that the metlprice of our common stock will decrease as
market rates on interest-bearing securities inereas

Common stock eligible for future sale may have advse effects on our share price.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we hafi853915 and 28,506,977 shares of common stockamwlisig, respectively, on a fully
diluted basis. Of the shares outstanding as of Dbee 31, 2014, 28,476,001 shares of our commotk st@cfreely tradable without
restriction or limitation under the Securities Aft1933 (the "Securities Act").

We cannot predict the effect, if any, diue sales of our common stock, or the availabditghares for future sales, on the market price
of our common stock. The market price of our comrsimtk may decline significantly when the restans on resale by certain of our
stockholders lapse. Sales of substantial amourtsrafnon stock or the perception that such salelsl@mecur may adversely affect the
prevailing market price for our common stock.

We may issue additional restricted commonlksand other equity-based awards under our 2@L@FIncentive Plan. We may continue
to issue additional shares in subsequent publariofis or private placements to make new investsnantor other purposes. We are not
required to offer any

45




Table of Contents

such shares to existing stockholders on a preemptsis. Therefore, it may not be possible fortegsstockholders to participate in such
future share issuances, which may dilute the exjsttockholders' interests in us.

We have not established a minimum distribution payrent level and we may be unable to generate sufficiecash flows from our
operations to make distributions to our stockholdes at any time in the future.

We are generally required to annually diste to our stockholders at least 90% of our Rtalkable income (which does not equal net
income, as calculated in accordance with GAAPeaeined without regard to the deduction for dividempaid and excluding net capital
gains, for us to qualify as a REIT, which requirein&e currently intend to satisfy through quartetigtributions of all or substantially all of
our REIT taxable income in such year, subject ttage adjustments. We have not established a mimidistribution payment level and our
ability to pay distributions may be adversely aféetby a number of factors, including the risk éastdescribed in this annual report. All
distributions will be made at the discretion of dard of directors and will depend on our earniogs financial condition, debt covenants,
maintenance of our REIT qualification and othettda as our board of directors may deem relevam time to time. We believe that a
change in any one of the following factors couldedely affect our results of operations and impairability to pay distributions to our
stockholders:

. our ability to make profitable investments;

. margin calls or other expenses that reduce our ftash

. defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases invttee of our portfolio; and

. the fact that anticipated operating expenselsaway not prove accurate, as actual results mayfuam estimates.

As a result, no assurance can be givenatbatill be able to make distributions to our stiecklers at any time in the future or that the
level of any distributions we do make to our staakllers will achieve a market yield or increasewarebe maintained over time, any of wk
could materially and adversely affect us.

In addition, distributions that we makeotar stockholders out of current or accumulatediagmand profits (as determined for U.S.
federal income tax purposes), and not designatagstas capital gain dividends or qualified dividémebme, generally will be taxable to our
stockholders as ordinary income. However, a poribour distributions may be designated by us a#talagain dividends and generally will
be taxable to our stockholders as long-term cagaal to the extent that such distributions doexateed our actual net capital gain for the
taxable year, without regard to the period for vahice stockholder that receives such distributias teld its stock. Distributions in excess of
our current and accumulated earnings and pro8tsletermined for U.S. federal income tax purposed,not designated by us as capital gain
dividends or qualified dividend income, may conséta return of capital. A return of capital is tetable, but has the effect of reducing the
basis of a stockholder's investment in our comntocks but not below zero.

Our distributions may exceed our cash flow from ouroperations and our earnings.

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock. The regqtearterly cash distributions we pay are
expected to be principally sourced by cash flowrfraperating activities. However, there can be mu@sce that our earnings or cash flow
from operating activities will be sufficient to cavour future distributions, and we may use otlerces of funds, such as from offering
proceeds, borrowings and asset sales, to fundopsraf our future distributions. Our distributidios the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013 exceeded, and future distributions may exaaadgash flow from operating activities and eagsiprimarily because we have been in
the
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initial stages of building our investment portfoliad as a result our earnings have been highlytsen® a number of variables, including 1
pace and timing of new originations and our leemerating expenses. Such distributions reducamheunt of cash we have available for
investing and other purposes and could be dilutwveur financial results.

Investing in our common stock may involve a high dgree of risk.

The investments that we make in accordaritteour investment objectives may result in a héghount of risk when compared to
alternative investment options and volatility osdf principal. Our investments may be highly sgegtve and aggressive, and therefore an
investment in our common stock may not be suitbdrieomeone with lower risk tolerance.

Future offerings of securities may adversely affedhe market price of our common stock.

If we decide to issue securities that @mar to or convertible or exchangeable for our gwn stock, such securities may have rights,
preferences and privileges more favorable tharetlbb®ur common stock and may result in dilutiomtmers of our common stock. We and,
indirectly, our stockholders, will bear the costigguing and servicing such securities. Becauselecision to issue such securities in any
future offering will depend on market conditionglasther factors beyond our control, we cannot teali estimate the amount, timing or
nature of our future offerings. Thus holders of cammon stock will bear the risk of our future oiifgs reducing the market price of our
common stock and diluting the value of their sthokdings in us.

Our stockholders may experience dilution upon theanversion of the 2015 Convertible Notes.

Our unsecured 7.00% Convertible Senior blttat mature in 2015 (the "2015 Convertible Ngtasg& convertible into shares of our
common stock beginning on June 15, 2015 or, ungigaio circumstances, earlier. Upon conversiomef2015 Convertible Notes, we have
the choice to pay or deliver, as the case mayttmjreelection, cash, shares of our common stockarmbination of cash and shares of our
common stock. The current conversion price of thE52Convertible Notes is approximately $18.65 pers, subject to adjustment in certain
circumstances. If we elect to deliver shares ofromm stock upon a conversion at the time our tardibbk value per share exceeds the
conversion price in effect at such time, our stadtrs may incur dilution. In addition, our stockders will experience dilution in their
ownership percentage of common stock upon our eguaf common stock in connection with the conwersif the 2015 Convertible Notes
and any dividends paid on our common stock wilbdle paid on shares issued in connection with sankersion after such issuance.

We are an "emerging growth company" and we cannot b certain if the reduced disclosure requirements gpicable to emerging
growth companies will make our common stock less taactive to investors.

We are an "emerging growth company,” agédfin the JOBS Act, and we may take advantageéin exemptions from various
reporting requirements that are applicable to optuddlic companies that are not "emerging growth ganfes," including not being required
comply with the auditor attestation requirementSeéttion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002uced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports@nacty statements and exemptions from the requirésnarholding a non-binding advisory
vote on executive compensation and stockholderosapof any golden parachute payments not prewoaisproved. We cannot predict if
investors will find our common stock less attraethecause we may rely on these exemptions. If sowestors find our common stock less
attractive as a result, there may be a less atrtidéng market for our common stock and our staggepmay be more volatile.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE

The Maryland General Corporation Law, or the "MGCL, " prohibits certain business combinations, which mg make it more difficult
for us to be acquired.

Under the MGCL, "business combinationsestn a Maryland corporation and an "interestecksimider” or an affiliate of an interest
stockholder are prohibited for five years after thest recent date on which the interested stocldndddcomes an interested stockholder.
These business combinations include a merger, idason, share exchange or, in circumstances fipddn the statute, an asset transfer or
issuance or reclassification of equity securithgsinterested stockholder is defined as: (a) amggewho beneficially owns 10% or more of
the voting power of the then-outstanding votingktof the corporation; or (b) an affiliate or asste of the corporation who, at any time
within the two-year period prior to the date in gtien, was the beneficial owner of 10% or morehef voting power of the then-outstanding
stock of the corporation.

A person is not an interested stockholdeten the statute if the board of directors appramegtivance the transaction by which the
person otherwise would have become an interestetifsblder. However, in approving a transaction,libard of directors may provide that
its approval is subject to compliance, at or ahertime of approval, with any terms and conditidetermined by the board of directors.

After the expiration of the five-year peatidescribed above, any business combination bettheeMaryland corporation and an
interested stockholder must generally be recomntthgehe board of directors of the corporation apdroved by the affirmative vote of at
least:

. 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdethefthen-outstanding shares of voting stock ofctivporation; and

. two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by lkoddof voting stock of the corporation, other tishares held by the interested
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected, or heldrbgféiliate or associate of
the interested stockholder.

These supermajority vote requirements dapply if the corporation's common stockholderseiee a minimum price, as defined under
the MGCL, for their shares in the form of cash tiven consideration in the same form as previouald py the interested stockholder for its
shares. The MGCL also permits various exemptioor® fihese provisions, including business combinattbat are exempted by the board of
directors before the time that the interested dtolder becomes an interested stockholder. Pursadhé statute, our board of directors has
adopted a resolution exempting any business cormbimaith Ares Investments or any of its affiliat€onsequently, the fivgear prohibitior
and the supermajority vote requirements will ngilgpo business combinations between us and Anesstments or any of its affiliates. As a
result, Ares Investments or any of its affiliateaynibe able to enter into business combinations ustthat may not be in the best interest of
our stockholders, without compliance with the sapgority vote requirements and the other provisiofihe statute. The business
combination statute may discourage others fronmgryo acquire control of us and increase the difficof consummating any offer.

Stockholders have limited control over changes inuw policies and operations.

Our board of directors determines our mpjiicies, including with regard to financing, grbwdebt capitalization, REIT qualification
and distributions. Our board of directors may amenckvise these and other policies without a wbtihe stockholders. Under our charter
the MGCL, our stockholders generally have a rightdte only on the following matters:

. the election or removal of directors;
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. the amendment of our charter, except that our bobditectors may amend our charter without stotddoapproval to:

. change our name;

. change the name or other designation or the paeatlany class or series of stock and the aggrquatvalue of our stock;

. increase or decrease the aggregate number of sifatexk that we have the authority to issue;

. increase or decrease the number of shares of asy ot series of stock that we have the autharitysue; and

. effect certain reverse stock splits;

. our liguidation and dissolution; and

. ourhbeing a party to a merger, consolidatiote saother disposition of all or substantially aflour assets or statutory share
exchange.

All other matters are subject to the disoreof our board of directors.
Our authorized but unissued shares of common and pferred stock may prevent a change in control.

Our charter authorizes us to issue up @EE,000 shares of common stock and 50,000,00@sbé preferred stock without
stockholder approval. In addition, our board o&diors may, without stockholder approval, amendobiarter from time to time to increase or
decrease the aggregate number of shares of olir@ttiee number of shares of stock of any classedes that we have authority to issue and
classify or reclassify any unissued shares of comorgreferred stock into other classes or seffistogk and set the preferences, rights and
other terms of the classified or reclassified shafe a result, our board of directors may esthldislass or series of shares of common or
preferred stock that could delay or prevent a ntrethed-party tender offer or similar transactiona change in incumbent management that
might involve a premium price for shares of our coom stock or otherwise be in the best interesuofstockholders.

Maintenance of our exemption from registration unde the 1940 Act imposes significant limits on our oprations. Your investment
return may be reduced if we are required to registeas an investment company under the 1940 Act.

We conduct our operations so that neithenar any of our subsidiaries are required to tegis an investment company under the :
Act. Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the 1940 Act definesiamestment company as any issuer that is or htde#f iout as being engaged primarily in
the business of investing, reinvesting or tradmgecurities. Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the 1940 Adirdes an investment company as any issuer
that is engaged or proposes to engage in the mssofenvesting, reinvesting, owning, holding @ding in securities and owns or proposes to
acquire investment securities having a value exogeth% of the value of the issuer's total assetsl(sive of U.S. Government securities
and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis, A% test.”

We are organized as a holding companydbiadlucts its businesses primarily through whollyned subsidiaries. We conduct our
operations in a manner designed so that we doameavithin the definition of an investment comp&mgause less than 40% of the value of
our adjusted total assets on an unconsolidated bassist of "investment securities.” As such,gbeurities issued by our wholly owned or
majority-owned subsidiaries that are exempted filoendefinition of "investment company" based onti®ec3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) of the 1940
Act, together with any other investment securitiésmay own, may not have a value in excess of 4D#teovalue of our adjusted total assets
on an unconsolidated basis. This requirement lithiéstypes of businesses in which we may engage
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through our subsidiaries. In addition, the ass&snd our subsidiaries may originate or acquirdiauited by the provisions of the 1940 Act
and the rules and regulations promulgated undet@4€ Act, which may adversely affect our busingge.monitor our holdings to ensure
continuing and ongoing compliance with this testatidition, we believe we are not considered aastment company under Section 3(a)(1)
(A) of the 1940 Act because we do not engage piiynar hold ourselves out as being engaged primémithe business of investing,
reinvesting or trading in securities. Rather, tigtoour wholly owned subsidiaries, we are primagihgaged in the non-investment company
businesses of these subsidiaries.

If the value of securities issued by ourssdiaries that are exempted from the definitioflimfestment company" by Section 3(c)(1) or 3
(c)(7) of the 1940 Act, together with any other@stment securities we own, exceeds 40% of our tadjustal assets on an unconsolidated
basis, or if one or more of such subsidiariestéaihaintain an exemption from the 1940 Act, we dpalmong other things, be required to
(a) substantially change the manner in which wedoohour operations to avoid being required tostegias an investment company,

(b) effect sales of our assets in a manner thatt artime when, we would not otherwise chooseotedl or (c) register as an investment
company, any of which could negatively affect tladue of our common stock, the sustainability of business model, and our ability to m
distributions which could have an adverse effecbonbusiness and the market price for our sharesromon stock.

Failure to maintain an exemption would fiegus to significantly restructure our investmsinaitegy. For example, because affiliate
transactions are generally prohibited under theéd1®et, we would not be able to enter into trangadiwith any of our affiliates if we are
required to register as an investment companywanthight be required to terminate our Managememe@gent and any other agreements
with affiliates, which could have a material adweeedfect on our ability to operate our business@agddistributions. If we were required to
register as an investment company but failed teaave would be prohibited from engaging in ouritess, and criminal and civil actions
could be brought against us. In addition, our @t would be unenforceable unless a court reqeméaicement, and a court could appoint a
receiver to take control of us and liquidate ousibass.

Certain of our subsidiaries rely upon tkeraption from registration as an investment compamer the 1940 Act pursuant to Section 3
(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act, which is available fort#ies "primarily engaged" in the business of ‘ghasing or otherwise acquiring mortgages
and other liens on and interests in real estateis @&xemption generally requires that at least 85%ese subsidiaries' assets comprise
qualifying real estate assets and that at least &08ach of their portfolios must comprise qualifyireal estate assets and real estate-related
assets under the 1940 Act. Specifically, we expach of our subsidiaries relying on Section 3(€p}o invest at least 55% of its assets in
mortgage loans, certain mezzanine loans and B-Notd®ther interests in real estate that constifugdifying real estate assets in accordance
with SEC staff guidance, and approximately an aofui 25% of its assets in other types of mortgagesurities of REITs and other real
estate-related assets. We expect each of our satssdrelying on Section 3(c)(5)(C) to rely ondamnce published by the SEC staff or on our
analyses of guidance published with respect tordjfpes of assets to determine which assets aldyiog real estate assets and real estate-
related assets.

The SEC staff, according to published goaa takes the view that certain mezzanine load€BaNotes are qualifying real estate assets.
Thus, we intend to treat certain mezzanine loadsBahlotes as qualifying real estate assets. The I&sGot published guidance with respect
to the treatment of some of our other target assetisiding commercial mortgage backed securiieSCMBS," for purposes of the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. For assets for which the SBE€ ot published guidance, we intend to rely onosur analysis. For example, unless we
receive further guidance from the SEC or its stafh respect to CMBS, we intend to treat CMBS iniatihwe hold 100% of the "controlling
class" of securities as qualifying real estatetass@ad our other holdings in CMBS as real estelisted assets. We also intend to treat dek
equity securities of companies primarily engaged
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in real estate businesses as real estate-relaetsafhe SEC may in the future take a view diffetiean or contrary to our analysis with
respect to the types of assets we have deterninee qualifying real estate assets or real estddéted assets. To the extent that the SEC staff
publishes new or different guidance with respet¢h&se matters, we may be required to adjust categly accordingly. If we are required to
re- classify our assets, we may no longer be inpdiamce with the exclusion from the definition of &Ghvestment company" provided by
Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act. In addition, may be limited in our ability to make certain istents and these limitations could result
in the subsidiary holding assets we might wishelbar selling assets we might wish to hold.

Certain of our subsidiaries may rely onélemption provided by Section 3(c)(6) to the ekthat they hold mortgage assets through
majority-owned subsidiaries that rely on the exaarpprovided by Section 3(c)(5)(C). The SEC staf$ issued little interpretive guidance
with respect to Section 3(c)(6) and any guidandgiglied by the staff could require us to adjustgitategy accordingly.

We determine whether an entity is one afrogjority-owned subsidiaries. The 1940 Act defingsajority-owned subsidiary of a person
as a company 50% or more of the outstanding vataugirities of which are owned by such person, arimther company which is a
majority-owned subsidiary of such person. The 1940 Act &rrtlefines voting securities as any security prsentitling the owner or hold
thereof to vote for the election of directors afampany. We treat companies in which we own at leasajority of the outstanding voting
securities as majority-owned subsidiaries for pagsoof the 40% test. We have not requested thetGB@prove our treatment of any
company as a majority-owned subsidiary and the B&not done so. If the SEC were to disagree wittireatment of one or more
companies as majority-owned subsidiaries, we wosalkel to adjust our strategy and our assets in twd@mmtinue to pass the 40% test. Any
such adjustment in our strategy could have a nadtadverse effect on us.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a canetgmse titled "Companies Engaged in the BusioBsequiring Mortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778)ledthe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpngéive issues relating to Section 3(c)
(5)(C) of the 1940 Act, including the nature of #esets that qualify for purposes of the exempimhwhether mortgage REITs should be
regulated in a manner similar to investment comggmrand solicited public comment.

To the extent that the SEC staff provideserspecific guidance regarding any of the matteesing upon the exemptions we and our
subsidiaries rely on from the 1940 Act, we maydxguired to adjust our strategy accordingly. Anyitholdal guidance from the SEC staff
could provide additional flexibility to us, or ibald further inhibit our ability to pursue the strgies we have chosen. There can be no
assurance that the laws and regulations goverhind 940 Act status of REITs, including the SECt®staff providing more specific or
different guidance regarding these exemptions,watichange in a manner that adversely affect®perations. Although we monitor our
portfolio periodically and prior to each investmenigination or acquisition, there can be no asstgahat we will be able to maintain this
exemption from registration for these subsidiaries.

Rapid and steep declines in the values of our CREnfince-related investments may make it more difficli for us to maintain our
qualification as a REIT or exemption from the 194QAct.

If the market value or income potentiatedl estate-related investments declines as a i&dakreased interest rates or other factors, we
may need to increase our real estate investmedtsaome and/or liquidate our non-qualifying assetsrder to maintain our REIT
qualification or exemption from the 1940 Act. IEthdecline in real estate asset values and/or inammigrs quickly, this may be especially
difficult to accomplish. This difficulty may be ezarbated by the illiquid nature of any non-quatifyiassets that we may own. We may have
to make investment decisions that we otherwise dvaot make absent the REIT and 1940 Act considersti
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Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to recover on claims against our directors and officerare limited, which could reduce
our stockholders and our recovery against them ifitey negligently cause us to incur losses.

The MGCL provides that a director has adility in such capacity if he performs his dutiegood faith, in a manner he reasonably
believes to be in our best interests and with #re that an ordinarily prudent person in a likeifims would use under similar circumstances.
A director who performs his or her duties in acemck with the foregoing standards should not ledito us or any other person for failur
discharge his or her obligations as a director.

In addition, our charter provides that directors and officers will not be liable to uscur stockholders for monetary damages unles
director or officer actually received an impropenbfit or profit in money, property or servicesjoadjudged to be liable to us or our
stockholders based on a finding that his or hdoagor failure to act, was the result of activel aeliberate dishonesty and was material tc
cause of action adjudicated in the proceeding.laws require us, to the maximum extent permittgdlaryland law, to indemnify and,
without requiring a preliminary determination oéthltimate entitlement to indemnification, pay einnburse reasonable expenses in advance
of final disposition of a proceeding to any indiwa who is a present or former director or offiaed who is made or threatened to be made a
party to the proceeding by reason of his or heriselin that capacity or any individual who, whéalirector or officer and at our request,
serves or has served as a director, officer, parnestee, member or manager of another corpera®&IT, limited liability company,
partnership, joint venture, trust, employee berpéih or other enterprise and who is made or threat to be made a party to the proceeding
by reason of his or her service in that capacitithwWhe approval of our board of directors, we rpagvide such indemnification and advance
for expenses to any individual who served a prestareof the Company in any of the capacities desdrabove and any employee or age
the Company or a predecessor of the Company, imguzlir Manager and its affiliates.

We also are permitted to purchase and miaiimisurance or provide similar protection on Bebbany directors, officers, employees ¢
agents, including our Manager and its affiliatemiast any liability asserted which was incurre@my such capacity with us or arising out of
such status. This may result in us having to exéguificant funds, which will reduce the availablsh for distribution to our stockholders.

Our charter contains provisions that make removal éour directors difficult, which could make it diff icult for our stockholders to
effect changes to our management.

Our charter provides that a director maly twe removed for cause upon the affirmative vdteadders of two-thirds of the votes entitled
to be cast generally in the election of directdi@cancies may be filled only by a majority of tleemaining directors in office, even if less t
a quorum, and any director elected to fill a vaganitl hold office for the remainder of the fullnm of the class of directors in which the
vacancy occurred and until a successor is electédjaalifies. These requirements make it morediffito change our management by
removing and replacing directors and may prevesitamge in control of the Company that is in the bgerests of our stockholders. Pursuant
to our charter, our board of directors is dividetbithree classes of directors serving staggeree tyear terms. The staggered terms of our
directors may reduce the possibility of a tendéerabr an attempt at a change in control, evenghautender offer or change in control might
be in the best interest of our stockholders.
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Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which oustockholders might receive a
premium for their shares.

In order for us to maintain our qualificatias a REIT, commencing with our taxable year dridlecember 31, 2012, no more than 50%
in value of our outstanding capital stock may baegy directly or indirectly, by five or fewer indduals during the last half of each taxable
year after 2012. "Individuals" for this purposelide natural persons, private foundations, somdayap benefit plans and trusts, and sc
charitable trusts. To preserve our REIT qualificatiamong other purposes, our charter generallyilpite any person (except Ares
Investments which is subject to a 22% exceptedeandichit) from directly or indirectly owning moréén 9.8% in value of the outstanding
shares of our capital stock or more than 9.8% inevar in number of shares, whichever is more ictste, of the outstanding shares of any
class or series of our stock. This ownership litiatacould have the effect of discouraging a taleaw other transaction in which holders of
our common stock might receive a premium for tebares over the then-prevailing market price orctviiolders might believe to be
otherwise in their best interests.

U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX RISKS

Our failure to remain qualified as a REIT would subject us to U.S. federal income tax and potentiallgtate and local tax, and would
adversely affect our operations and the market prie of our common stock.

We have elected and qualified to be taxed REIT commencing with our taxable year endecebdoer 31, 2012. However, we may
terminate our REIT qualification, if our board dfettors determines that not qualifying as a RElinithe best interests of our stockholders,
or inadvertently. Our qualification as a REIT degieipon our satisfaction of certain asset, incanggnizational, distribution, stockholder
ownership and other requirements on a continuirsisb&/e have structured and intend to continuettring our activities in a manner
designed to satisfy all the requirements for gicalifon as a REIT. The REIT qualification requirerteeare extremely complex and
interpretation of the U.S. federal income tax laeserning qualification as a REIT is limited. Acdorgly, we cannot be certain that we will
be successful in operating so we can qualify oraiemualified as a REIT. Our ability to satisfy theset tests depends on our analysis of the
characterization and fair market values of ourtass®me of which are not susceptible to a pretesermination, and for which we will not
obtain independent appraisals. Our compliance th#hREIT income or quarterly asset requirements éépends on our ability to
successfully manage the composition of our incontkassets on an ongoing basis. Accordingly, ifaterdf our operations were to be
recharacterized by the Internal Revenue Serviee"(RS") such recharacterization could jeopardizeability to satisfy all the requirements
for qualification as a REIT. Furthermore, futurgifative, judicial or administrative changes te th.S. federal income tax laws could be
applied retroactively, which could result in ousglialification as a REIT.

If we fail to maintain our qualification asREIT for any taxable year, and we do not qudéfycertain statutory relief provisions, we v
be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our taxaidome at corporate rates. In addition, we wagelderally be disqualified from treatment
as a REIT for the four taxable years following ytear of losing our REIT qualification. Losing ouER qualification would reduce our net
earnings available for investment or distributiorstockholders because of the additional tax ligbiln addition, distributions to stockholders
would no longer qualify for the dividends paid detion, and we would no longer be required to maké&idutions. If this occurs, we might
be required to borrow funds or liquidate some itwesits in order to pay the applicable tax.

Furthermore, as a result of our investnie®CRC KA Investor LLC ("ACRC KA"), our joint venire with a third party institutional
investor which made a preferred equity investmerat REIT, we are treated as owning an interestsimbasidiary REIT. The subsidiary REIT
is independently
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subject to, and must comply with, the same REITiregnents that we must satisfy in order to quai$ya REIT, together with all other rules
applicable to REITs. If the subsidiary REIT faiksqualify as a REIT and certain statutory relied\ypsions do not apply, then (i) the subsidi
REIT would become subject to U.S. federal incomxe (g the subsidiary REIT will be disqualifieddm treatment as a REIT for the four
taxable years following the year during which dfigdition was lost, (iii) our investment in the sidiary REIT will cease to be a qualifying
asset for purposes of the asset tests applicalt&ds and any dividend income or gains derivedi®§rom such subsidiary REIT may cease
to be treated as income that qualifies for purpa$éise 75% gross income test, and (iv) we maydaitain of the asset tests applicable to
REITs, in which event we will fail to qualify asREIT unless we are able to avail ourselves of aestatutory relief provisions.

REITs, in certain circumstances, may incur tax lialiities that would reduce the cash available for ditribution to our stockholders.

Even if we maintain our status as a REI& may be subject to U.S. federal income taxes elatkd state and local taxes. For example,
net income from the sale of properties that aral&t® properties sold by a REIT (a "prohibited saction" under the Code) will be subject to
a 100% tax. We may not make sufficient distribusioém avoid excise taxes applicable to REITs. Siryildéf we were to fail an income test
(and did not lose our REIT status because sudhréaas due to reasonable cause and not willfubsBgve would be subject to tax on the
income that does not meet the income test requitesn@/e also may decide to retain net capital gairearn from the sale or other
disposition of our property and pay U.S. federabime tax directly on such income. In that event,sbackholders would be treated as if they
earned that income and paid the tax on it direéttywever, stockholders that are tax-exempt, sucthasties or qualified pension plans,
would have no benefit from their deemed paymemstuch tax liability unless they file U.S. federat@me tax returns and thereon seek a
refund of such tax. We also will be subject to coge tax on any undistributed REIT taxable incovile.also may be subject to state and
local taxes on our income or property, includingnthise, payroll, mortgage recording and transifegg, either directly or at the level of the
other companies through which we indirectly own assets, such as our TRSs, which are subjectltd fal federal, state, local and foreign
corporate-level income taxes. Any taxes we payctliyer indirectly will reduce our cash availabte fistribution to you.

To qualify as a REIT, we must meet annual distribuion requirements, which may force us to forgo othaxise attractive opportunities
or borrow funds during unfavorable market conditions. This could delay or hinder our ability to meet ar investment objectives and
reduce your overall return.

In order to maintain our status as a REI& must annually distribute to our stockholdereast 90% of our REIT taxable income (wh
does not equal net income, as calculated in acnoeda&ith GAAP), determined without regard to thewlgtion for dividends paid and
excluding net capital gain. We will be subject t&sUfederal income tax on our undistributed REKatde income and net capital gain and to
a 4% nondeductible excise tax on any amount by lwistributions we pay with respect to any calengsr are less than the sum of (a) 85%
of our ordinary income, (b) 95% of our capital gagt income and (c) 100% of our undistributed inednom prior years. These requirements
could cause us to distribute amounts that otherwmdld be spent on investments in real estate sagetit is possible that we might be
required to borrow funds, possibly at unfavorablies, or sell assets to fund these distributiofthofigh we intend to make distributions
sufficient to meet the annual distribution requiests and to avoid U.S. federal income and excisestan our earnings while we qualify as a
REIT, it is possible that we might not always béeab do so.
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Certain of our business activities are potentiallysubject to the prohibited transaction tax, which cald reduce the return on your
investment.

For so long as we qualify as a REIT, oulitglio dispose of property during the first fewears following acquisition may be restricted to
a substantial extent as a result of our REIT giealiion. Under applicable provisions of the Codgareling prohibited transactions by REITs,
while we qualify as a REIT, we will be subject ta@0% penalty tax on any gain recognized on the sabther disposition of any property
(other than foreclosure property) that we own,atiyeor through any subsidiary entity, but gengratkcluding TRSs, that is deemed to be
inventory or property held primarily for sale tostomers in the ordinary course of a trade or bgsiné/hether property is inventory or
otherwise held primarily for sale to customershia brdinary course of a trade or business depemtisegparticular facts and circumstances
surrounding each property. While we qualify as dTR&e will avoid the 100% prohibited transacti@x by (a) conducting activities that n
otherwise be considered prohibited transactiormutiin a TRS (but such TRS will incur corporate rat®me taxes with respect to any
income or gain recognized by it), (b) conducting operations in such a manner so that no saleher alisposition of an asset we own,
directly or through any subsidiary, will be treatesla prohibited transaction, or (c) structuringaie dispositions of our properties to comply
with a prohibited transaction safe harbor availalsider the Code for properties that, among othmrirements, have been held for at least
years. However, no assurance can be given thatamtigular property we own, directly or through awpsidiary entity, but general
excluding TRSs, will not be treated as inventorpmperty held primarily for sale to customershe trdinary course of a trade or business.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for U.S. feddrincome tax purposes.

A REIT's net income from prohibited transaas is subject to a 100% tax. In general, prabibiransactions are sales or other
dispositions of property, other than foreclosurepgrty, but including mortgage loans, held as itmgnor primarily for sale to customers in
the ordinary course of business. We might be stibjethis tax if we were to sell or securitize lgan a manner that was treated as a sale of
the loans as inventory for U.S. federal incomeparsposes. Therefore, in order to avoid the probibttansactions tax, we may choose not to
engage in certain sales of loans, other than threugRS, and we may be required to limit the stmas we use for our securitization
transactions, even though such sales or structoigis otherwise be beneficial for us.

TRSs are subject to corporate-level taxes and deatis with TRSs may be subject to 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock aBmr more TRS. Both the subsidiary and the REIBtrjaintly elect to treat the subsidiary
as a TRS. A corporation of which a TRS directlyralirectly owns more than 35% of the voting powewalue of the stock will automatical
be treated as a TRS. Overall, no more than 25%eofjtoss value of a REIT's assets may consisbok €tr securities of one or more TRSs
addition, the TRS rules limit the deductibility ioterest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parenflRElassure that the TRS is subject to an
appropriate level of corporate taxation. The ralls® impose a 100% excise tax on certain transecbetween a TRS and its parent REIT
are not conducted on an arm's-length basis.

TRS Holdings, ACRC W TRS, ACRC U TRS anldestTRSs that we may form will pay U.S. federatetand local income tax on their
taxable income, and their after-tax net income héllavailable for distribution to us but will na¢ bequired to be distributed to us, unless
necessary to maintain our REIT qualification. While will be monitoring the aggregate value of thewsities of our TRSs and intend to
conduct our affairs so that such securities wiiresent less than 25% of the
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value of our total assets, there can be no asstithat we will be able to comply with the TRS liatibn in all market conditions.

Our investments in certain debt instruments may case us to recognize income for U.S. federal incomaxtpurposes even though no
cash payments have been received on the debt ingtnents, and certain modifications of such debt by usould cause the modified debt
to not qualify as a good REIT asset, thereby jeopdizing our REIT qualification.

Our taxable income may substantially exaa@dnet income as determined based on GAAP, @erdifces in timing between the
recognition of taxable income and the actual reagfijgash may occur. For example, we may acqusetasincluding debt securities requir
us to accrue OID or recognize market discount iresditmat generate taxable income in excess of eciorinoome or in advance of the
corresponding cash flow from the assets. In addiifoa borrower with respect to a particular dielstrument encounters financial difficulty
rendering it unable to pay stated interest asweanay nonetheless be required to continue to rézeghe unpaid interest as taxable income
with the effect that we will recognize income buillwot have a corresponding amount of cash avhalér distribution to our stockholders.

As a result of the foregoing, we may geteelass cash flow than taxable income in a padicyéar and find it difficult or impossible to
meet the REIT distribution requirements in cer@mumstances. In such circumstances, we may hereghjto (a) sell assets in adverse
market conditions, (b) borrow on unfavorable ter(oy distribute amounts that would otherwise beduse future acquisitions or used to
repay debt, or (d) make a taxable distributionwfshares of common stock as part of a distributiomhich stockholders may elect to rece
shares of common stock or (subject to a limit mesas a percentage of the total distribution) casbrder to comply with the REIT
distribution requirements.

Moreover, we may acquire distressed del#stments that require subsequent modificationgogeanent with the borrower. If the
amendments to the outstanding debt are "signifigaodifications” under the applicable Treasury Retiahs, the modified debt may be
considered to have been reissued to us in a delfefat taxable exchange with the borrower. Thiswiegkreissuance may prevent the
modified debt from qualifying as a good REIT ask#te underlying security has declined in value arould cause us to recognize income to
the extent the principal amount of the modifiedtdetreeds our adjusted tax basis in the unmodifedd.

The failure of mortgage loans subject to a repurchge agreement or a mezzanine loan to qualify as aaleestate asset would adversely
affect our ability to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into repurchase agreemeades which we will nominally sell certain of owss®ts to counterparty and simultaneously
enter into an agreement to repurchase the soltsa¥ge believe that we will be treated for U.S.eied income tax purposes as the owner of
the assets that are the subject of any such agreemetwithstanding that such agreements may ans€ord ownership of the assets to the
counterparty during the term of the agreemens tassible, however, that the IRS could assertikadid not own the assets during the term
of the repurchase agreement, in which case we dailld qualify as a REIT.

In addition, in order for a loan to be teshas a qualifying real estate asset producintifging income for purposes of the REIT asset
and income tests, generally the loan must be sétyreeal property. We may originate or acquire ragme loans that are not directly
secured by real property but instead secured bipyeigterests in a partnership or limited liabilépmpany that directly or indirectly owns r
property. In Revenue Procedure 2003-65, the IRSiged a safe harbor pursuant to which a mezzaoiae that is not secured by real estate
would, if it meets each of the requirements comdiim the Revenue Procedure, be treated by the$RSqualifying real estate asset.
Although

56




Table of Contents

the Revenue Procedure provides a safe harbor arhwdmpayers may rely, it does not prescribe rafesibstantive tax law and in many ce

it may not be possible for us to meet all the regraents of the safe harbor. We cannot provide assarthat any mezzanine loan in which we
invest would be treated as a qualifying asset prinduqualifying income for REIT qualification purges. If any such loan fails either the
REIT income or asset tests, we may be disqualidied REIT.

Our qualification as a REIT and exemption from U.S.federal income tax with respect to certain assetaay be dependent on the
accuracy of legal opinions or advice rendered or gen or statements by the issuers of assets that aequire, and the inaccuracy of any
such opinions, advice or statements may adversel§fect our REIT qualification and result in significant corporate-level tax.

When purchasing securities, we may relppinions or advice of counsel for the issuer ofssecurities, or statements made in related
offering documents, for purposes of determining tiveesuch securities represent debt or equity geufor U.S. federal income tax
purposes, and also to what extent those secucitiestitute real estate assets for purposes ofsget tests and produce qualifying income for
purposes of the 75% gross income test. In additibven purchasing the equity tranche of a secutitizawe may rely on opinions or advice
of counsel regarding the qualification of the sé@ation for exemption from U.S. corporate incotag and the qualification of interests in
such securitization as debt for U.S. federal incéaxepurposes. The inaccuracy of any such opiniathgice or statements may adversely
affect our REIT qualification and result in sige#int corporate level tax.

The taxable mortgage pool, or "TMP," rules may increase the taxes that we or our stockholders may inguand may limit the manner
in which we effect future securitizations.

Our CLO securitization resulted in the ti@aof a TMP for federal income tax purposes. Feigecuritizations by us or our subsidiaries
could result in the creation of additional TMPs fh6. federal income tax purposes. As a resultcowdd have "excess inclusion income."
Certain categories of stockholders, such as non4idgkholders eligible for treaty or other bergfiitockholders with net operating losses,
and certain tax-exempt stockholders that are stutgamrelated business income tax, could be subjdocreased taxes on a portion of their
dividend income from us that is attributable to aogh excess inclusion income. In the case ofekbtdder that is a REIT, regulated
investment company ("RIC") common trust fund oresthass-through entity, our allocable share ofeswess inclusion income could be
considered excess inclusion income of such entitgddition, to the extent that our common stoctvimed by tax-exempt "disqualified
organizations," such as certain government-relatgities and charitable remainder trusts that atesmbject to tax on unrelated business
income, we may incur a corporate level tax on gi@oof any excess inclusion income. Because thigenerally would be imposed on us
of our stockholders, including stockholders that ot disqualified organizations, generally wilbb@ portion of the tax cost associated with
the classification of us or a portion of our assets TMP. A RIC, or other pass-through entity ewgrour common stock in record name will
be subject to tax at the highest U.S. federal aatpdax rate on any excess inclusion income akalct their owners that are disqualified
organizations. The manner in which excess inclusioame is calculated is not clear under current s required by IRS guidance, we
intend to make such determinations based on whateleve to be a reasonable method. However, tarde no assurance that the IRS will
not challenge our method of making any such detstiuns. If the IRS were to disagree with any steterminations made or with the
method used by us, the amount of any excess incluscome required to be taken into account byamaore stockholders, including tax-
exempt stockholders, non-U.S. stockholders andbtidders with net operating losses, could be sicgnittly increased. Moreover, we could
face limitations in selling equity interests in $kesecuritizations to outside investors, or selling debt securities issued in connection with
these securitizations that might be considereckteduity interests for tax purposes. Finally, ifwere to fail to qualify as a REIT, any TMP
securitizations would be treated as separate taxabl
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corporations for U.S. federal income tax purpokes ¢tould not be included in any consolidated fe8eral corporate income tax return.
These limitations may prevent us from using certaghniques to maximize our returns from secuftitiwaetransactions.

We may choose to make distributions in our own stdg in which case you may be required to pay incomexes in excess of the cash
dividends you receive.

In connection with our qualification as BIR, we are required to annually distribute to stackholders at least 90% of our REIT taxe
income (which does not equal net income, as catdlim accordance with GAAP), determined withowfarg to the deduction for dividends
paid and excluding net capital gain. In order tiisfathis requirement, we may make distributionattare payable in cash and/or shares a
common stock (which could account for up to 80%hefaggregate amount of such distributions) aeteetion of each stockholder. Taxable
stockholders receiving such distributions will leguired to include the full amount of such disttibas as ordinary dividend income to the
extent of our current or accumulated earnings aaofitg, as determined for U.S. federal income tasppses. As a result, U.S. stockholders
may be required to pay income taxes with respestith distributions in excess of the cash portioihe distribution received. Accordingly,
U.S. stockholders receiving a distribution of obiaies may be required to sell shares receivedcim distribution or may be required to sell
other stock or assets owned by them, at a timenthgtbe disadvantageous, in order to satisfy anjntposed on such distribution. If a U.S.
stockholder sells the stock that it receives asgfahe distribution in order to pay this tax, theles proceeds may be less than the amount it
must include in income with respect to the disthitn, depending on the market price of our stodkattime of the sale. Furthermore, with
respect to certain non-U.S. stockholders, we magdgeired to withhold U.S. tax with respect to sddtribution, including in respect of all
or a portion of such distribution that is payaliesiock, by withholding or disposing of part of gteares included in such distribution and
using the proceeds of such disposition to satlefwtithholding tax imposed. In addition, if a siggant number of our stockholders deterrr
to sell shares of our common stock in order totpags owed on dividend income, such sale may puhdard pressure on the market price
of our common stock.

Various tax aspects of such a taxable sastk distribution are uncertain and have not petrbaddressed by the IRS. No assurance can
be given that the IRS will not impose requireménthe future with respect to taxable cash/stoskritliutions, including on a retroactive
basis, or assert that the requirements for suabtexcash/stock distributions have not been met.

Dividends payable by REITs generally do not qualifyfor the reduced tax rates available for some divieinds.

Currently, the maximum tax rate applicablejualified dividend income payable to U.S. stamklers that are individuals, trusts and
estates is 20%. Dividends payable by REITs, howeanerally are not eligible for this reduced rdtthough this does not adversely affect
the taxation of REITs or dividends payable by REEkRe more favorable rates applicable to regulgp@ate qualified dividends could cause
investors who are individuals, trusts and estatgmtceive investments in REITs to be relativesslattractive than investments in the stocks
of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends, whicluld adversely affect the value of the sharesHIflR, including our common stock. Tax
rates could be changed in future legislation.

If we were considered to actually or constructivelypay a "preferential dividend" to certain of our stockholders, our status as a REIT
could be adversely affected.

In order to maintain our qualification aREIT, we must annually distribute to our stockleridat least 90% of our REIT taxable income
(which does not equal net income, as calculatestaordance with GAAP), determined without regarthededuction for dividends paid and
excluding
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net capital gain. In order for distributions todmunted as satisfying the annual distribution resmaents for REITs, and to provide us with a
REIT-level tax deduction, the distributions must he "preferential dividends." A dividend is nopreferential dividend if the distribution is
pro rata among all outstanding shares of stockimalparticular class, and in accordance with tieéepences among different classes of s
as set forth in our organizational documents. Gulyethere is uncertainty as to the IRS's positiegarding whether certain arrangements
REITs have with their stockholders could give tis¢he inadvertent payment of a preferential diwiti€ée.g., the pricing methodology for
stock purchased under a distribution reinvestmesgnam inadvertently causing a greater than 5%odiston the price of such stock
purchased). While we believe that our operationg tieeen structured in such a manner that we wilbedreated as inadvertently paying
preferential dividends, there is no de minimis gtica with respect to preferential dividends. Tliere, if the IRS were to take the position
that we inadvertently paid a preferential dividewe, may be deemed either to (a) have distributesitlean 100% of our REIT taxable income
and be subject to tax on the undistributed portoor{p) have distributed less than 90% of our R&iable income and our status as a REIT
could be terminated for the year in which such mheiigation is made if we were unable to cure sudhria

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge our liabilities effectively and may case us to incur tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code may limit @bility to hedge our liabilities. Any income froa hedging transaction we enter into to
manage risk of interest rate changes, price chamgesrrency fluctuations with respect to borroveingade or to be made to acquire or carry
real estate assets, if properly identified undgliapble Treasury Regulations, does not constltgitess income" for purposes of the 75% or
95% gross income tests. To the extent that we émnteother types of hedging transactions, the imedrom those transactions will likely be
treated as non-qualifying income for purposes dffilod the gross income tests. As a result of thekss, we may need to limit our use of
advantageous hedging techniques or implement tihedges through a TRS. This could increase theofastr hedging activities because our
TRSs are subject to tax on gains and may expotegreater risks associated with changes in inteadss than we would otherwise want to
bear. In addition, losses in a TRS generally woll provide any tax benefit, except for being catfierward against future taxable income of
such TRS.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to fago and/or liquidate otherwise attractive investmem opportunities.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, mest ensure that we meet the REIT gross inconte aesually and that at the end of each
calendar quarter, at least 75% of the value ofagsets consists of cash, cash items, governmanitsecand qualified REIT real estate
assets, including certain mortgage loans and oektads of mortgage-related securities. The remexind our investment in securities (other
than government securities and qualified real estasets) generally cannot include more than 108teodutstanding voting securities of any
one issuer or more than 10% of the total valudefdutstanding securities of any one issuer. litiaddin general, no more than 5% of the
value of our assets (other than government seesiidtind qualified real estate assets) can condiseafecurities of any one issuer, and no |
than 25% of the value of our total assets can pesented by securities of one or more TRSs. lfavéo comply with these requirements at
the end of any calendar quarter, we must correctaiture within 30 days after the end of the cdblamquarter or qualify for certain statutory
relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT qualdition and suffering adverse tax consequences.résut, we may be required to liquidate
assets from our portfolio or not make otherwiseaative investments in order to maintain our quedifion as a REIT. These actions could
have the effect of reducing our income and amoaw&ilable for distribution to our stockholders.
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We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could increase our tax liabity, reduce our operating flexibility
and reduce the price of our common stock.

In recent years, numerous legislative,giadiand administrative changes have been madeiprovisions of U.S. federal income tax
laws applicable to investments similar to an inwesit in shares of our common stock. Additional cjesnto the tax laws are likely to
continue to occur, and we cannot assure you thasach changes will not adversely affect the taxatf a stockholder. Any such changes
could have an adverse effect on an investmentrisiaares or on the market value or the resale paterfi our assets. You are urged to cor
with your tax advisor with respect to the impactadtent legislation on your investment in our shaned the status of legislative, regulator
administrative developments and proposals and plmeéntial effect on an investment in our sharesu ¥lso should note that our counsel's
opinion is based upon existing law, applicablefat® date of its opinion, all of which will be gabt to change, either prospectively or
retroactively.

Although REITs generally receive better ti@atment than entities taxed as regular corpmratiit is possible that future legislation
would result in a REIT having fewer tax advantages] it could become more advantageous for a coyniha invests in real estate to elect

under certain circumstances, to revoke or otherteisainate our REIT election and cause us to bedas a regular corporation, without the

vote of our stockholders. Our board of directors fiduciary duties to us and our stockholders amddonly cause such changes in our tax
treatment if it determines in good faith that sgblanges are in the best interest of our stockhalder

Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business taxalincome to tax-exempt investors.

If (&) we are a "pension-held REIT," (@pa-exempt stockholder has incurred (or is deeradwve incurred) debt to purchase or hold
our common stock or (c) a holder of common stock ¢ertain type of tax-exempt stockholder, divideod, and gains recognized on the sale
of, common stock by such tax-exempt stockholder begubject to U.S. federal income tax as unrelatesihess taxable income under the
Code.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other jghyproperties materially important to our opawatiOur principal executive offices are
located at One North Wacker Drive, 48th Floor, @iz, IL 60606. Our principal executive and certziour other offices are leased by our
Manager or one of its affiliates from third partasd pursuant to the terms of our Management Ageeémwe reimburse our Manager (or its
affiliate, as applicable) for our pro rata portioisuch offices' rent. Additionally, we currentlyamtain operating leases for offices related to
our subsidiary, ACRE Capital.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, we maguiigect to various legal proceedings from timért®. Furthermore, third parties may try to
seek to impose liability on us in connection witlr dbans. As of December 31, 2014, we were notesiltdp any material pending legal
proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases CEquity Securities

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Our common stock is listed for trading ba NYSE under the symbol "ACRE." On March 2, 2ah8, closing price of our common
stock, as reported on the NYSE, was $12.14 peeshiae following table sets forth, for the peridadicated, the high and low closing sales
prices per share for our common stock, and thaldids paid with respect to such shares for eacal fimiarter for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Cash Dividends Declarec
Per Share of Common

High Low Stock
Year Ended December 31, 201
First quartel $ 138¢ $ 13.07 $ 0.25(1)
Second quarte $ 13.2¢ $ 122¢ $ 0.25(2)
Third quartel $ 12.7¢ $ 116¢ $ 0.25(3)
Fourth quarte $ 1221 $ 1148 $ 0.25(4)

Cash Dividends Declarec
Per Share of Common

High Low Stock
Year Ended December 31, 2013
First quartel $ 1747 $ 1662 $ 0.25(5)
Second quarte $ 16.9¢ $ 1271 $ 0.25(6)
Third quartel $ 1328 $ 12.1¢ $ 0.25(7)
Fourth quarte $ 1367 $ 12.3C $ 0.25(8)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

On March 17, 2014, we declared a cash dividenddd%per common share of our common stock, payable
April 16, 2014 to our common stockholders of recondMarch 31, 2014.

On May 7, 2014, we declared a cash dividen®0o25 per share of our common stock, payable tynlB) 2014
to common stockholders as of June 30, 2014.

On August 6, 2014, we declared a cash dividgr®D.25 per share of common stock, payable oolict15,
2014 to common stockholders of record as of Septeid®, 2014.

On November 10, 2014, we declared a cash dividéf0.85 per share of common stock, payable on Jgria
2015 to our common stockholders of record on Deegrth, 2014.

On March 14, 2013, we declared a cash divid#rD.25 per common share of our common stockalpiayon
April 18, 2013 to our common stockholders of recondApril 08, 2013.

On May 15, 2013, we declared a cash dividdBD®5 per share of our common stock, payableubn1B, 2013
to common stockholders as of June 28, 2013.

On August 7, 2013, we declared a cash dividendd3per share of common stock, payable on Octbber
2013 to common stockholders of record as of Septei®®, 2013.

On November 13, 2013, we declared a casheliddf $0.25 per share of common stock, payabliaonary 22,
2014 to our common stockholders of record on Deegrh, 2013
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HOLDERS

As of March 2, 2015, there were 25 hold#gnecord of our common stock. This number doesmmtide beneficial owners who hold
shares of our common stock in nominee name. Sdomiation was obtained through our registrar andgfer agent, based on the results
broker search.

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock (includinddeos of our restricted common stock).
U.S. federal income tax law generally requires thREIT annually distribute at least 90% of its REdxable income, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andudiolg net capital gains, and to the extent thdisitributes less than 100% of its net taxable
income in any taxable year, that it pay tax at l@gcorporate rates on that undistributed portitie.intend to make regular quarterly
distributions to our stockholders in an amount étar greater than our net taxable income, if tamthe extent authorized by our board of
directors.

We cannot assure our stockholders, howdvat the current level of distributions will bessained, as any distributions that we pay ir
future will depend upon our actual results of ofiers, economic conditions and other factors tlbald materially alter our expectations.
Before we make any distributions, whether for UeBleral income tax purposes or otherwise, we nitsgtrheet both our operating
requirements and debt service on Financing Fasléind other debt payable. If our cash availabldiftribution is less than our net taxable
income, we could be required to sell assets omoofunds to make cash distributions or we may nagertion of the required distribution in
the form of a taxable stock distribution or distitilon of debt securities.

Any distributions we make to our stockhafdeill be at the discretion of our board of distand will depend upon our earnings,
financial condition, liquidity, debt covenants, fling or margin requirements under securitizatiovegehouse facilities or other secured and
unsecured borrowing agreements, maintenance dRBUF qualification, applicable provisions of the MEnd General Corporation Law, a
such other factors as our board of directors deefesant. The Financing Facilities provide thaaimevent of default, we may make
distributions only to the extent necessary to nambur status as a REIT. Our earnings, finan@abiion and liquidity will be affected by
various factors, including the net interest andeothcome from our portfolio, our operating expenaad any other expenditures. See "Risk
Factors" included in this annual report on FornmK10-

Distributions that stockholders receivet(@esignated as capital gain dividends or qualifiz@tdend income) will be taxed as ordinary
income to the extent they are paid from our easatd profits (as determined for U.S. federal inedax purposes). However, distributions
that we designate as capital gain dividends gelyesdll be taxable as long-term capital gain to stwckholders to the extent that they do not
exceed our actual net capital gain for the taxgble. Some portion of these distributions may mosibject to tax in the year in which they
are received because depreciation expense rechecasibunt of taxable income, but does not redusle aaailable for distribution. The
portion of our stockholders distribution that i designated as a capital gain dividend and ixéae®s of our current and accumulated
earnings and profits is considered a return oftaafor U.S. federal income tax purposes and eiiuce the adjusted tax basis of their
investment, but not below zero, deferring suchiporof their tax until their investment is soldaur company is liquidated, at which time
they will be taxed at capital gain rates (subjeatdrtain exceptions for corporate stockholders)the extent such portion of our stockholders
distribution exceeds the adjusted tax basis of iheestment, such excess will be treated as dagaia if they hold their shares of common
stock as a capital asset for U.S. federal incom@taposes. Depending on the level of taxable ircearned in a tax year, we may choose to
carry forward taxable income for distribution iretfollowing year, and pay any applicable excise Y&e will furnish annually to each of our
stockholders a statement setting
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forth distributions paid during the preceding yaad their characterization as ordinary income,rretd capital, qualified dividend income or

capital gain. Please note that each stockholdet'sdnsiderations are different, therefore, oucldtolders should consult with their own tax
advisor and financial planners prior to making mrestment in our shares.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED EQUITY SECURITIES

None.
STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
Total Return Performance
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SOURCE: SNL Financial LC and Standard & Poor's InstitutioBarvices
NOTES: Assumes $100 invested on April 26, 2012 (the A&&E's shares began trading in connection witHB@) in ACRE, the
S&P 500 Index and the SNL US Finance REIT. Assuatledividends are reinvested on the respectivedéivd payment dates

without commissions
4/26/12  12/31/12  12/31/13  12/31/14

ACRE 100.0( 91.8¢ 78.51 74.41
S&P 500 Inde) 100.0¢ 103.5¢ 137.07  155.8:
SNL US Finance REI 100.0C 106.8¢ 103.2¢ 118.2:
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The graph and other information furnisheder this Part Il Item 5(d) of this Form X0shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material
to be "filed" with the SEC or subject to RegulatidA or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18thé Exchange Act, as amended.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COM PENSATION PLANS

On April 23, 2012, we adopted, and our ldbadders approved, our 2012 Equity Incentive PRursuant to our 2012 Equity Incentive
Plan, we may grant awards consisting of restristeates of our common stock, restricted stock @mt§or other equity-based awards to our
outside directors, our Manager and its personmelaginer eligible awardees under the plan, subjeantaggregate limitation of 690,000
shares of common stock (7.5% of the issued andamdig shares of our common stock immediately afténg effect to the issuance of the
shares sold in the IPO). As of December 31, 2084% of the shares reserved under our 2012 Equisgritive Plan, or a total of 197,090
restricted shares of our common stock, had beentagtaand 71.4% of the shares reserved, or 492f¢res remained available for future
issuance under our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. &&idm our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, we have tieocompensation plans or
arrangements under which our securities may bedguhether or not approved by our stockholdems) flrther discussion of our 2012
Equity Incentive Plan, see Note 11 to the constdidiinancial statements included in this annupbreon Form 10-K.

The following table presents certain infatian about our equity compensation plans as oebber 31, 2014:

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance
under equity

Weighted- compensation
Number of average exercise plans
securities to be price of (excluding
issued upon exercise outstanding securities
of outstanding options, reflected in the
options, warrants warrants and first column of
Plan Category and rights rights this table)(1)
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders — 3 — 492,91(
Equity compensation plans not approved
stockholder: — — —
Total — $ — 492,91

(1)  The securities shown in this column may be issgestricted stock, restricted stock units andtbeoequity-based
awards to eligible awardees under our 2012 Equitgrtive Plan
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial and otdata for the years ended December 31, 2014, 201 2@t? is derived from our consolidated
financial statements and related notes, which bhaes audited by Ernst & Young, LLP, an independegistered public accounting firm
whose report thereon is included elsewhere inghisial report. The data should be read in conjanetith our consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto and "Management's€3isti and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaf Operations” included in this
annual report on Form 10-K.

ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the year ended December 3.
2014 2013 2012

Operating Data:
Net interest margin, excluding non-controlling

interests held by third parti $ 36,55, $ 22,627 $ 6,72(
Mortgage banking revent 27,60¢ 8,07( —
Gain on sale of loar 68C 1,33¢ —
Total revenue 65,14 32,03( 6,72(
Total expense 41,57( 24,26: 5,76:
Net income 24,61¢ 13,76¢ 86(
Net income attributable to common stockholc 24,39 13,76¢ 18¢
Basic weighted average shares of common st

outstanding 28,459,30 18,989,50 6,532,70i
Diluted weighted average shares of common ¢

outstanding 28,585,02 19,038,15 6,567,30'
Net income per common sha

Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.8¢ $ 0.7z $ 0.0z

Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.8t $ 0.7z $ 0.0:

Dividends declared per share of commons $ 1.0C $ 1.0C $ 0.67(1)

Balance Sheet Data
Loans held for investmel 1,462,58. 958,49! 353,50(
Mortgage servicing rights, at fair val 58,88 59,64( —
Total asset 1,867,65. 1,176,91! 387,85¢
Total financing facilities 745,96 264,41¢ 144,25t
Total unsecured de 68,39¢ 67,81t 67,28¢
Total securitizations del 527,74¢ 395,02 —
Total liabilities 1,386,76 770,69¢ 222,42:
Total stockholders' equit 402,95: 406,21t 165,43t
Total equity 480,88t 406,21t 165,43

Q) Included is a dividend of $450 ($0.30 per shardjictvwas based on 1,500,000 shares outstandinighdaroh 31, 201z
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Item 7. Management's Discussion And Analysis (Financial Condition And Results Of Operations

We are a specialty finance company thataipe both as a principal lender and a mortgagkdsgwith respect to loans collateralized by
multifamily and seniotiving properties). We are externally managed byREDBA, a subsidiary of Ares Management, a publichgéd, leadin
global alternative asset manager, pursuant tcetimest of the Management Agreement. From the commeeraieof our operations in late 20
we have been primarily focused on our principatileg business, where we directly originate, maraggservice a diversified portfolio of
CRE debt-related investments for our own account.

We are also engaged in the mortgage barkismess through our wholly owned subsidiary, AGEIpital, which we believe is
complementary to our principal lending businesshls business segment, we primarily originatd,a®d service multifamily and other
senior-living related loans under programs offdrsgd-annie Mae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae and HUD. AQFapital is approved as a Fannie
Mae DUS lender, a Freddie Mac Program Plus® S8lévicer, a MAP and Section 232 LEAN lender for Hnd a Ginnie Mae issuer.
While we earn little interest income from these\atits as we generally only hold loans for shatipds, we receive origination fees when
close loans and sale premiums when we sell loaesaMé retain the rights to service the loans, vhie known as MSRs, and receive fees
for providing such servicing during the life of tlimns, which generally last ten years or more.

We were formed and commenced operatiofetén2011. We are a Maryland corporation and cotedleur IPO in May 2012. We have
elected and qualified to be taxed as a REIT for. fe&eral income tax purposes under the Code, caroimg with our taxable year ended
December 31, 2012. We generally will not be subjedt.S. federal income taxes on our REIT taxahd®ime, determined without regard to
the deduction for dividends paid and excludingaagtital gains, to the extent that we annually itiste all of our REIT taxable income to
stockholders and comply with various other requiata as a REIT. We also operate our business ianaen that will permit us to maintain
our exemption from registration under the 1940 Act.

We are an "emerging growth company," agédfin the JOBS Act, and we are eligible to tatteamtage of certain exemptions from
various reporting requirements that are applicéblether public companies that are not "emergirmyviin companies.” In addition,
Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides thateanerging growth company" can take advantage oéxtended transition period provided
in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1938 amended, for complying with new or revisedaating standards. However, we chose
to "opt out" of such extended transition period] as a result, we will comply with new or reviset@unting standards on the relevant dates
on which adoption of such standards is requirechfor-emerging growth companies. Section 107 o@BS Act provides that our decision
to opt out of the extended transition period fompdying with new or revised accounting standardsré/ocable.

We could remain an "emerging growth comfidayup to five years, or until the earliest of tthe last day of the first fiscal year in wh
our annual gross revenues exceed $1.0 billionth@)date that we become a "large accelerated éifedefined in Rule 12b-2 under the
Exchange Act, which would occur if the market vatdi@ur common stock that is held by non-affiliateseeds $700 million as of the last
business day of our most recently completed sefiscal quarter, or (iii) the date on which we hassued more than $1.0 billion in non-
convertible debt during the preceding three yeaiofde

Factors Impacting Our Operating Results

The results of our operations are affetied number of factors and primarily depend on, @gnather things, the level of our net interest
income, the market value of our assets and thelyoppand demand for, commercial mortgage loarRE@ebt and other financial assets in
the marketplace. Our
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net interest income, which reflects the amortizatb origination fees and direct costs, is recogdibased on the contractual rate and the
outstanding principal balance of the loans we o&tg. Interest rates will vary according to theetgb investment, conditions in the financial
markets, credit worthiness of our borrowers, coitipatand other factors, none of which can be preedi with any certainty. Our operating
results may also be impacted by credit losses ée®xof initial anticipations or unanticipated érestents experienced by borrowers.

Changes in Fair Value of Our Assetsln our principal lending business, we generhtd our target investments as long-term
investments. We evaluate our investments for inmpaint on at least a quarterly basis and impairmeititbe recognized when it is probable
that we will not be able to collect all amounts @dweording to the contractual terms of the loam. Ifan is considered to be impaired, we will
record an allowance to reduce the carrying valub®lioan to the present value of expected futash ¢lows discounted at the loan's
contractual effective rate, or if repayment is estpd solely from the collateral, the fair valuetiod collateral.

Loans are collateralized by real estateand result, the extent and impact of any crestéribration associated with the performance
and/or value of the underlying collateral propegy,well as the financial and operating capabdftthe borrower, are regularly evaluated. We
monitor performance of our investment portfolio anthe following methodology: (1) borrower reviemhich analyzes the borrower's ability
to execute on its original business plan, revigw/éimancial condition, assesses pending litigatind considers its general level of
responsiveness and cooperation; (2) economic reviéch considers underlying collateral (i.e., iaggperformance, unit sales and cash 1
of the collateral and its ability to cover debtsee as well as the residual loan balance at ntgju(B) property review, which considers
current environmental risks, changes in insuraeséscor coverage, current site visibility, cap@penditures and market perception; and
(4) market review, which analyzes the collaterairfra supply and demand perspective of similar ptgpgpes, as well as from a capital
markets perspective. Such impairment analysesaamgleted and reviewed by asset management anctérmarsonnel who utilize various
data sources, including periodic financial datehsag property occupancy, tenant profile, rent@sabperating expenses, and the borrower's
exit plan, among other factors. As of December2814 and 2013, all loans were paying in accordanttetheir contractual terms. There
were no impairments during the years ended DeceBhe2014, 2013 and 2012.

Although we generally hold our target inwvesnts as long-term investments within our principading business, we may occasionally
classify some of our investments as available-&be;sprovided that such classification would nafgardize our ability to maintain our
gualification as a REIT. Investments classifiecheailable-for-sale will be carried at their faidwe, with changes in fair value recorded
through accumulated other comprehensive incomepgonent of stockholders' equity, rather than thhoeiarnings. Additionally, ACRE
Capital originates multifamily mortgage loans, whare recorded at fair value. The holding periadiiese loans held for sale is
approximately 30 days. At this time, we do not estge hold any of our investments for trading plegs

Changes in Market Interest RatesWith respect to our business operations, irs@gén interest rates, in general, may over tinusea

. the interest expense associated with our borrowtmgscrease, subject to any applicable ceilings;

. the value of our mortgage loans to decline;

. coupons on our mortgage loans to reset to higherdst rates; and

. to the extent we enter into interest rate swgpements as part of our hedging strategy wherngaydixed and receive floating

interest rates, the value of these agreementgitease.
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Conversely, decreases in interest rategeireral, may over time cause:

. the interest expense associated with our borrowtimgecrease, subject to any applicable floors;

. the value of our mortgage loan portfolio to incesdsr such mortgages with applicable floors;

. coupons on our floating rate mortgage loans totteslewer interest rates; and

. to the extent we enter into interest rate swapeageats as part of our hedging strategy where wdiypag and receive floating

interest rates, the value of these agreementscreatse.

Credit Risk. We are subject to varying degrees of creditinsconnection with our target investments. Oumisiger seeks to mitigate
this risk by seeking to originate or acquire innestts of higher quality at appropriate prices giaaticipated and unanticipated losses, by
employing a comprehensive review and selectiongg®and by proactively monitoring originated oruad investments. Nevertheless,
unanticipated credit losses could occur that cadleersely impact our operating results and stodédrs| equity.

Market Conditions. We believe that our target investments curyemtésent attractive risdjusted return profiles, given the underly
property fundamentals and the competitive landséaipne type of capital we provide. Following adratic decline in CRE lending in 2008
and 2009, debt capital has become more readilyadlaifor select stabilized, high quality assetsertain locations such as gateway cities,
but less available for many other types of propsrteither because of the markets in which theyoaeted or because the property is
undergoing some form of transition. More particlyjamany traditional financing products tend to eowmith limited flexibility, especially
with respect to prepayment. Consequently, we gogtieia high demand for the type of customized filedhcing we provide from borrowers
or sponsors who are looking to refinance indebtssitieat is maturing in the next two to five yearsu@ seeking shorter-term debt solutions
as they reposition their properties. We also eonishat demand for financing will be strong foustions in which a property is being
acquired with plans to improve the net operatirgpime through capital improvements, leasing, coshga or other key initiatives and real
the improved value through a subsequent sale imarefing. We have recently witnessed the emergehnew debt providers and legacy d
providers expanding their risk tolerances for titmsal lending opportunities. This expanded tote@ has resulted in increased competition
for our target assets and increased refinancingitgoivhich we believe has led to higher prepaymeatés on our mortgage loans. We believe
market conditions continue to be favorable for igiiced and scaled direct lending with broad ardifbile product offerings.

Performance of Multifamily and Other Commal Real Estate Related Markets.Our business is dependent on the general defoand
and value of, commercial real estate and relatedcss, which are sensitive to economic conditid@smand for multifamily and other
commercial real estate generally increases dummigpgs of stronger economic conditions, resultmgicreased property values, transaction
volumes and loan origination volumes. During pesioflweaker economic conditions, multifamily andestcommercial real estate may
experience higher property vacancies, lower denaaddreduced values. These conditions can resldtier property transaction volumes i
loan originations, as well as an increased levekoficer advances and losses from ACRE Capitatisie Mae DUS allowance for loss
sharing.

The Level of Losses from Fannie Mae Allamedor Loss Sharing. Loans originated and sold by ACRE Capital tarita Mae under
the Fannie Mae DUS program are subject to the tamdsconditions of a Master Loss Sharing Agreemehich was amended and restated
during 2012. Under the Master Loss Sharing Agreep#DRE Capital is responsible for absorbing certasses incurred by Fannie Mae
with respect to loans originated under the DUS oy as described below in more detail.
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The losses incurred with respect to indieidoans are allocated between ACRE Capital amhiEaviae based on the loss level
designation ("Loss Level") for the particular lo&wans are designated as Loss Level |, Loss Léwllloss Level lll. All loans are
designated Loss Level | unless Fannie Mae and ACRital agree upon a different Loss Level for dipalar loan at the time of the loan
commitment, or if Fannie Mae determines that tlealevas not underwritten, processed or servicedrditipto Fannie Mae guidelines.

Losses on Loss Level | loans are shared338.by ACRE Capital and 66.67% by Fannie Mae. Thgimum amount of ACRE Capital's
risk-sharing obligation with respect to any Losséld loan is 33.33% of the original principal anmbwf the loan. Losses incurred in
connection with Loss Level Il and Loss Level llalts are allocated disproportionately to ACRE Capitéil ACRE Capital has absorbed the
maximum level of its risk-sharing obligation witbspect to the particular loan. The maximum losscalble to ACRE Capital for Loss
Level Il loans is 30% of the original principal aomd of the loan, and for Loss Level Il loans i940f the original principal amount of the
loan.

The Price of Loans in the Secondary Marke©ur profitability is determined in part by thace we are paid for the loans we originate.
A component of our origination fees is the premiwmrecognize on the sale of a loan. Stronger iovemand typically results in larger
premiums while weaker demand results in little dgonemium.

Market for Servicing Commercial Real Estabans. Service fee rates for new loans are set dinteewe enter into a loan commitm
based on origination volumes, competition and pyepent rates. Changes in future service fee ratpadtthe value of our future MSRs and
future servicing revenues, which could impact awfipmargins and operating results over time.

Investment Portfolio

As of December 31, 2014, we have originatedo-originated 46 CRE middle market loans heldrivestment, excluding 11 loans that
were repaid since inception. The aggregate origghabmmitment under these loans at closing wasappately $1.6 billion and outstandi
principal was $1.5 billion as of December 31, 20dring the year ended December 31, 2014, we fuagedoximately $717.4 million of
outstanding principal and received repayments @DE2million of outstanding principal. Such investms are referred to herein as our
investment portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, 88.4f our loans have LIBOR floors, with a weighteeage floor of 0.29%, calculated
based on loans with LIBOR floors. References to@RBor "L" are to 30-day LIBOR (unless otherwisedfieally stated).
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Our loans held for investment are accouftedt amortized cost. The following table sumreesi our loans held for investment as of
December 31, 2014:

December 31, 201

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Carrying Outstanding Average Unleveraged Remaining
$ in thousands Amount(1) Principal(1) Interest Rate Effective Yield(2) Life (Years)
Senior mortgage loar $ 1,156,47 $ 1,164,05! 4.5% 5.C% 2.1
Subordinated debt anc
preferred equity
investments 228,49 231,22¢ 10.2% 10.7% 6.1
Total investment
portfolio
(excluding non-
controlling
interests held by
third parties) $ 1,384,997 $ 1,395,28 5.5% 6.C% 2.8

(1) The difference between the Carrying Amount tredOutstanding Principal face amount of the Idaaid for investment
consists of unamortized purchase discount, defdoaetfees and loan origination costs.

(2 Unleveraged Effective Yield is the compounded dffecrate of return that would be earned over ifeedf the
investment based on the contractual interest ealjpigted for any deferred loan fees, costs, prensiudiscount) and
assumes no dispositions, early prepayments or idefdine Total Weighted Average Unleveraged EffeciYield is
calculated based on the average of UnleveragedtivieYield of all loans held by us as of DecemBgr 2014 as
weighted by the Outstanding Principal balance chdaan.

Non-Controlling Interests

The non-controlling interests held by thiatties in our consolidated financial statemeapsesent the equity interests in ACRC KA that
are not owned by us. See Note 17 to our consotidaiancial statements included in this annual repo Form 10-K for more information

about ACRC KA.

A reconciliation of our investment portfmliexcluding non-controlling interests, compareduo loans held for investment as included
within our consolidated balance sheets is as falow

As of
December 31, 201
$ in thousands Carrying Amount
Loans held for investmel $ 1,462,58.
Non-controlling interest investment held by third pes (77,609
Total investment portfolio (excluding hon-controti
interests held by third partie $ 1,384,97

For more information about our investmenttiolio, see Note 3 to our consolidated finanstattements included in this annual report on
Form 10-K.
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A reconciliation of our interest incomerftdoans held for investment, excluding non-coningllinterests, to our interest income from
loans held for investment as included within ounsmidated statements of operations is as follows:

For the year ended

$ in thousands December 31, 2014
Interest income from loans held for investm $ 70,49¢
Interest income from non-controlling interest inwesnt held
by third parties (309)
Interest income from loans held for investment | ecing
nor-controlling interest: $ 70,18¢

Restructuring Activities

The Company began restructuring and rellogatertain ACRE Capital support services durirgttivee months ended March 31, 2014.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, we recorf@® thousand of costs associated with restructuratigities, which consisted primarily
of employee termination costs. These costs wekded in general and administrative expenses witlenPACRE Capital operating segment.

Asset Acquisition

On August 5, 2014, ACRE Capital was appdoaed granted a license by Freddie Mac as a ProBtas® Seller/Servicer for
multifamily loans under which ACRE Capital is autized to sell and service Freddie Mac loans sechyeaultifamily properties located in
New York and Princeton, New Jersey. ACRE Capital @lgo sell and service Freddie Mac loans secuyeduitifamily properties locate
outside of its approved geographic area if it atsta waiver from Freddie Mac. As a Program Plusi&B88ervicer, ACRE Capital is
approved to originate and sell to Freddie Mac rfartily loans that satisfy Freddie Mac's underwgtand other eligibility requirements.
Under the program, ACRE Capital submits its congaldoan underwriting package to Freddie Mac andiobtFreddie Mac's commitment to
purchase the loan at a specified price after apdittimately, Freddie Mac performs its own undeting of loans that ACRE Capital sells to
it. Freddie Mac may choose to hold, sell, or Ia&xuritize such loans. ACRE Capital does not hayengaterial risk-sharing arrangements on
loans it sells to Freddie Mac under Program Plus®.

On August 25, 2014, ACRE Capital enterad amMSR purchase agreement (the "Purchase Agré®meth a third party which has
been accounted for as an asset acquisition und8BFXSC Topic 805Business CombinatioffSASC 805"). Under the Purchase Agreement,
ACRE Capital agreed to purchase the rights to seraiportfolio of 46 Freddie Mac multifamily morggaloans with a total unpaid principal
balance of approximately $370.6 million. On Septenit6, 2014, ACRE Capital completed the acquisitibthe servicing portfolio and legal
ownership of the MSRs was transferred to ACRE @apit

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements Heeen prepared in accordance with GAAP, which requianagement to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts. The attsrand assumptions are based on historical exgerand other factors management
believes to be reasonable. Actual results mayrdiftan those estimates and assumptions. We beli@séollowing critical accounting polici
represent the areas where more significant judgsreerd estimates are used in the preparation afangolidated financial statements.
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Mortgage Servicing Rights. MSRs are recorded at fair value at the timddha is sold and qualifies as a transfer of arfoial asset.
The fair value is based on estimates of expectedash flows associated with the servicing rigassyell as borrower prepayment penalties,
interest earnings on escrows and interim cash bagmlong with ancillary fees that are discourated rate that reflects the credit and
liquidity risk of the MSR over the estimated lifetbe underlying loan. The changes in the MSR¥alue are included within change in fair
value of mortgage servicing rights in the Compangissolidated statements of operations for theoden which the change occurs. We
engage a third party specialist to assist in val#i€RE Capital's MSRs on a quarterly basis. As e€&nber 31, 2014, the discount rate used
was between 8 - 14% and varied based on the Iqen The life of the underlying loan is estimatedg consideration to the prepayment
provisions in the loan agreement.

Allowance for Loss Sharing. When a loan is sold under the Fannie Mae DWgnam, ACRE Capital undertakes an obligation to
partially guarantee the performance of the loare date ACRE Capital commits to make a loan to adweer, a liability for the fair value of
the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarastyecognized. Subsequent to the initial commitndes#, we monitor the performance of €
loan for events or circumstances that may sigtiabdity to be recognized if there is a probablelastimable loss. The initial fair value of
guarantee is estimated by examining historical $tege experienced in the ACRE Capital Fannie Md§ portfolio since inception. The
initial fair value of the guarantee is includediiit the provision for loss sharing in our consdi@thstatements of operations. These historical
loss shares serve as a basis to derive a lossrsit@nghich is then applied to the current ACREIG&PUS portfolio (net of specifically
identified impaired loans that are subject to aasgfe loss share reserve analysis).

Impairment Loans Held for InvestmentWe originate CRE debt and related instrumeatsegally to be held for investment. Loans that
are held for investment are carried at cost, neinaimortized loan fees and origination costs, srtles loans are deemed impaired.
Impairment occurs when it is deemed probable tleatwil not be able to collect all amounts due adowy to the contractual terms of the Ic
If a loan is considered to be impaired, we willogtan allowance to reduce the carrying value efltlan to the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan's contieaffective rate. Significant judgment is reqdighen evaluating loans for impairment,
therefore, actual results over time could be maltgrdifferent.

Each loan classified as held for investnigetvaluated for impairment on a periodic bas@aris are collateralized by real estate. The
extent of any credit deterioration associated withperformance and/or value of the underlyingatetal property and the financial and
operating capability of the borrower could impda expected amounts received. We monitor performahour investment portfolio under
the following methodology: (1) borrower review, whianalyzes the borrower's ability to execute smitginal business plan, reviews its
financial condition, assesses pending litigatiod eonsiders its general level of responsivenessaageration; (2) economic review, which
considers underlying collateral, (i.e. leasing parfance, unit sales and cash flow of the collat@nal its ability to cover debt service, as well
as the residual loan balance at maturity); (3) prigpreview, which considers current environmentls, changes in insurance costs or
coverage, current site visibility, capital expend#s and market perception; and (4) market rewdvich analyzes the collateral from a sup
and demand perspective of similar property typesyell as from a capital markets perspective. Suqdairment analyses are completed and
reviewed by asset management and finance persaoelitilize various data sources, including peditiancial data such as property
occupancy, tenant profile, rental rates, operatixgenses, and the borrower's exit plan, among fdbtors.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 in the Notes to the consolidéitethcial statements included in this annual reparForm 10-K, which describes recent
accounting pronouncements adopted by us for thegreted December 31, 2014 and the expected impactounting pronouncements
recently issued but not yet required to be adopted.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Effective January 1, 2015, we originate®fd.6 million transitional first mortgage loan oslalled nursing facility located in New York.
At closing, the outstanding principal balance wagraximately $41.6 million. The loan has an intérase of LIBOR + 5.0% (plus originatic
and exit fees) subject to a 0.25% LIBOR floor artdran of two years.

Effective January 1, 2015, our Managerdfamed primary servicing of our investments to ACRapital. Our Manager will specially
service, as needed, certain of our investments.

On January 20, 2015, and January 28, 28é&%ransferred $3.9 million and $1.8 million, resipeely, of the $170.0 million preferred
equity investment to third party institutional irsters. As of March 5, 2015, our controlling finaaddnterest in ACRC KA is 51.0% and the
third party institutional investors own the remami49.0%.

On February 27, 2015, the agreement gongrifie BAML Line of Credit was amended to, amongeothings, increase the aggregate
commitment to $135.0 million and extend the mayudéte to June 30, 2016.

As of March 2, 2015, we expect to have apipnately $64 million in capital, either in cashinrapproved but undrawn capacity under
our Financing Facilities. After holding in resei$&0 million in liquidity requirements, we expecthiave approximately $54 million in capital
available to fund additional loans, outstanding natments on our existing loans and for other wogkiapital purposes. Assuming that we
use such amount as capital to make new investraaditeverage such amount under our facilitiesdeld-to-equity ratio in the range of 2:1
to 3:1, we have the capacity to fund $160 millior$215 million of additional senior loan investrment

As of March 2, 2015, the total unfunded ogitments for our existing loans held for investmeste approximately $150 million. In
addition, borrowings under our financing facilitiere approximately $515 million (excluding Warebkelines of Credit in connection with
our Mortgage Banking segment), debt issued indin@ fof commercial mortgage-backed securities wasagmately $182 million, debt
issued in the form of CLOs was approximately $25[fian and debt issued in the form of convertibém®r notes was approximately
$69 million.

On March 5, 2015, we declared a cash dinddef $0.25 per common share for the first quart&2015. The first quarter 2015 dividenc
payable on April 15, 2015 to common stockholderseobrd as of March 31, 2015.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth consolidatedults of operations for the years ended Dece®ibe?2014, 2013 and 2012 ($ in thousands):

For the year ended
December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net interest margin:
Interest income from loans held for investm $ 70,49t $ 37,60( $ 9,27¢
Interest expens (33,637) (14,979 (2,55¢)
Net interest margi 36,85¢ 22,62’ 6,72(
Mortgage banking revenue:
Servicing fees, ne 16,39¢ 5,75¢ —
Gains from mortgage banking activiti 17,49: 5,01¢ —
Provision for loss sharin 1,36¢ (6) —
Change in fair value of mortgage servicing ric (7,650 (2,697) —
Mortgage banking revent 27,60¢ 8,07( —
Gain on sale of loar 68C 1,33: —
Total revenue 65,14 32,03( 6,72(
Expenses:
Management fees to affilia 5,91¢ 4,241 1,66t
Professional fee 3,73: 2,92/ 1,194
Compensation and benef 18,64¢ 5,45¢ —
Acquisition and investment pursuit co 20 4,07¢ —
General and administrative expen 9,252 3,95¢ 1,28¢
General and administrative expenses reimbursefliliata 4,00( 3,61( 1,61¢
Total expense 41,57( 24,26" 5,76:
Changes in fair value of derivativ — 1,73¢ (97)
Income from operations before gain on acquisition rad
income taxes 23,57 9,50¢ 86C
Gain on acquisitiol — 4,43¢ —
Income before income taxe 23,57 13,94. 86C
Income tax expense (bene! (1,049 17¢€ —
Net income 24,61¢ 13,76¢ 86(
Less loss attributable to Series A Convertible &refl Stock
Preferred dividend — — (102)
Accretion of redemption premiu — — (572)
Net income attributable to ACRE 24,61¢ 13,76¢ 18¢€
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: (220) — —
Net income attributable to common stockholder: $ 24,39¢ $ 13,766 $  18€
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2014 to 2013
Net Interest Margin

For the years ended December 31, 2014 @h8, 2ve earned approximately $36.9 million and 62Rillion in net interest margin,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 20d42013, interest income from loans held for gtweent of $70.5 million and
$37.6 million, respectively, was generated by wiidhaverage earning assets of $1.2 billion and $6%ilion, respectively, offset by
$33.6 million and $15.0 million, respectively, otérest expense, unused fees and amortizatiorferireld loan costs. The weighted average
borrowings under our Secured Funding Agreementsirgzation debt and convertible notes were $888il8on and $315.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respgcfived increase in net interest margin for the ysated December 31, 2014 compare
the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily rekatéise increase in the number of loans held foestment from 33 loans to 46 loans as of
December 31, 2014.

Mortgage Banking Revenue

For the years ended December 31, 2014 @b8, 2ve earned approximately $16.4 million and $bilon in net servicing fees.
Servicing fees include fees earned for all acteitielated to servicing ACRE Capital's loans, thtefees earned on borrower prepayment
penalties and interest earned on borrowers' espagwents and interim cash balances, along withr atheillary fees and reduced by write-
offs of MSRs for loans that are prepaid, changeherfair value of the servicing fee payable andrigst expense related to escrow accounts.
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2018amed approximately $17.5 million and $5.0 milliomet gains from mortgage bank
activities, respectively. Gains from mortgage bagkactivities includes the initial fair value of RS, loan origination fees, gain on the sal
loans, interest income on loans held for sale, gesuo the fair value of derivative financial instrents, including loan commitments and
forward sale commitments and reduced by the expeataied to the initial fair value of the servicifeg payable and interest expense related
to our Warehouse Lines of Credit. The increaseantgage banking revenue for the year ended DeceBihe&?014 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013 primarily relates to omly fnonths of operations for ACRE Capital beinduded in the consolidated statements
of operations for the year ended December 31, 20f$ared to one year of operations for the yeae@itbcember 31, 2014. In addition,
ACRE Capital rate-locked 36 loans totaling $496iion in commitments for the year ended DecemtrZ014 compared to 20 loans
totaling $131.3 million in commitments for the yearded December 31, 2013, which resulted in inextasortgage banking revenue for the
year ended December 31, 20

Operating Expenses

For the years ended December 31, 2014 @8, 2ve incurred operating expenses of $41.6 millind $24.3 million, respectively. The
increase in operating expenses for the year eneéedrbber 31, 2014 compared to the year ended Dec&hp2013 primarily relates to only
four months of operations for ACRE Capital beingluded in the consolidated statements of operafnthe year ended December 31, 2
compared to one year of operations for the yeae@mxecember 31, 2014.

Related Party Expenses

Related party expenses for the year ende@ibber 31, 2014 included $5.9 million in managerfess due to our Manager and
$4.0 million for our share of allocable general addninistrative expenses for which we were requicetimburse our Manager pursuant to
the Management Agreement. Related party expensélsefgear ended December 31, 2013 included $4lBmin management fees due to
our Manager and $3.6 million for our share of alole general and administrative expenses. Thedserm related party expenses for the
ended
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December 31, 2014 compared to year ended Deceribh20383 primarily relates to increased stockholdegaity and an increase in
acquisition activities. Effective as of Septembey 3013, and through the period ended Decembe2®Y, our Manager agreed not to seek
reimbursement of our share of personnel and ovdreepenses in excess of $1.0 million per quarteerd is no assurance that our Manager
will agree to similar limits in future periods.

Other Expenses

Changes in fair value of derivatives fae frear ended December 31, 2013 was $1.7 milliaigelto the 2015 Convertible Notes. No
changes in fair value of derivatives were incuii@dhe year ended December 31, 2014. Professferalfor the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 were $3.7 million and $2.9 milli@spectively. The increase in professional feeshiferyear ended December 31, 2014
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 piymalates to only four months of operations fa€ERE Capital being included in the
consolidated statements of operations for the geded December 31, 2013 compared to one year cdtapes for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Acquisition and investment pticssts related to the acquisition of ACRE Capiitalthe years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 were $20 thousand and $4.1 millespectively. The decrease in acquisition and imvest pursuit costs for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended Dexe3h2013 primarily relates to the closing of #@RE Capital acquisition on
August 30, 2013. General and administrative expefmehe years ended December 31, 2014 and 20688%@e3 million and $4.0 million,
respectively. The increase in general and admétiga expenses for the year ended December 31, @iybgared to the year ended
December 31, 2013 primarily relates to only foumtins of operations for ACRE Capital being includethe consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended December 31, 201®ared to one year of operations for the year efsmber 31, 2014.

Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits for the yeare@mkecember 31, 2014 and 2013 was $18.6 million&s million, respectively, all of
which related to ACRE Capital. The increase in cengation and benefits for the year ended Decenthet(3 4 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013 primarily relates to only foumting of operations for ACRE Capital being includethe consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended December 31, 201®amed to one year of operations for the year e mber 31, 2014.

2013 t0 2012
Net Interest Margin

For the years ended December 31, 2013 @h@, 2ve earned approximately $22.6 million and $6illion in net interest margin,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 28d2012, interest income from loans held for stweent of $37.6 million and
$9.3 million, respectively, was generated by wesgraverage earning assets of $555.0 million an@.81@&illion, respectively, offset by
$15.0 million and $2.6 million, respectively, oténest expense, unused fees and amortization efrdefloan costs. The weighted average
borrowings under our Secured Funding Agreementsirigization debt and convertible notes were $318illlon and $44.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgcfired increase in net interest margin for the yeated December 31, 2013 compare
the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily relatdise increase in the number of loans held foeatment from 15 loans to 33 loans as of
December 31, 2013.
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Mortgage Banking Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2013, weedapproximately $5.8 million in net servicing$e Servicing fees include fees earned for
all activities related to servicing ACRE Capitddians, the net fees earned on borrower prepaynegatiies and interest earned on borrowers'
escrow payments and interim cash balances, alatigothier ancillary fees and reduced by write-off8I&Rs for loans that are prepaid,
changes in the fair value of the servicing fee pdyyand interest expense related to escrow accdemtshe year ended December 31, 2013,
we earned approximately $5.0 million in net gaimstf mortgage banking activities. Gains from morgghgnking activities includes the
initial fair value of MSRs, loan origination feeggin on the sale of loans, interest income on |betd for sale, changes to the fair value of
derivative financial instruments, including loamumitments and forward sale commitments and redbygadterest expense related to our
Warehouse Lines of Credit. As the acquisition offfCCapital closed on August 30, 2013, we did nat eay servicing fees or have gains
from mortgage banking activities for the year enBedember 31, 2012 relating to ACRE Capital.

Operating Expenses

For the years ended December 31, 2013 @bg, 2ve incurred operating expenses of $24.3 millind $5.8 million, respectively. As the
acquisition of ACRE Capital closed on August 30120we did not incur any operating expenses foyta ended December 31, 2012
relating to ACRE Capital.

Related Party Expenses

Related party expenses for the year ende@ibber 31, 2013 included $4.2 million in managerfess due to our Manager and
$3.6 million for our share of allocable general adninistrative expenses for which we are requioe@imburse our Manager pursuant to the
Management Agreement. Related party expensesdaoreghr ended December 31, 2012 included $1.7 milionanagement fees due to our
Manager and $1.6 million for our share of allocai@@eral and administrative expenses. The incieastated party expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2013 compared to year endedribecd1, 2012 primarily relates to increased stolddrs' equity and an increase in
capital markets and acquisition activities.

Other Expenses

Changes in fair value of derivatives fag tfears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $lionrand $97 thousand, respectively,
related to the 2015 Convertible Notes. Professitaed for the years ended December 31, 2013 ar2l\@8de $2.9 million and $1.2 million,
respectively. Acquisition and investment pursuitsaelated to the acquisition of ACRE Capitaltfue year ended December 31, 2013 were
$4.1 million. General and administrative expensegtie years ended December 31, 2013 and 20128&bamillion and $1.3 million,
respectively. As the acquisition of ACRE Capitals#d on August 30, 2013, we did not incur any o#x@enses for the year ended
December 31, 2012 relating to ACRE Capital.

Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits for the year @fdkrember 31, 2013 was $5.5 million. As the adtoisof ACRE Capital closed on
August 30, 2013, we did not incur any compensadiath benefits for the year ended December 31, 28afimg to ACRE Capital.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to etg@otential cash requirements, including ongoimmmmitments to repay borrowings, fund and
maintain our assets and operations, make distoibsitio
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our stockholders and other general business n@églsise significant cash to purchase our targesinvents, make principal and interest
payments on our borrowings, make distributionsuostockholders and fund our operations. Our prynsaurces of cash generally consist of
unused borrowing capacity under the Financing Figs) the net proceeds of future offerings, paytsei principal and interest we receive
our portfolio of assets and cash generated fronoparating results. However, principal repaymergmifmortgage loans in the CMBS and
CLO are applied sequentially, first going to payvdahe senior CMBS and CLO notes, and accordinglymil not receive any proceeds fr
repayment of loans in the CMBS or CLO until all semotes are repaid in full. Subject to maintaghour qualification as a REIT and our
exemption from the 1940 Act, we expect that oumparry sources of financing will be, to the exteraitable to us, through (a) credit, secured
funding and other lending facilities, (b) secuatibns, (c) other sources of private financingluding warehouse and repurchase facilities,
and (d) public or private offerings of our equitydebt securities. See "Recent Developments" irdud this annual report on Form 10-K for
information on our available capital as of Marct2@15. We may seek to sell certain of our investsi@norder to manage liquidity needs,
interest rate risk, meet other operating objectams$ adapt to market conditions.

Equity Offerings

There were no shares issued in public oifsrof our equity securities for the year endedddeber 31, 2014. The following table
summarizes the total shares of common stock issndgroceeds we received, net of offering costghimyear ended December 31, 2013 ($
in millions, except per share data):

Gross offering Proceeds net o
Shares issue( price per share offering costs
June 2013 public offerin 18.C 13.t 234.¢
July 2013 public offering 0.€ 13.5(1) 7.7
Total for the year ended
December 31, 201 18.¢ 242

(1) 601,590 of these shares of our common stock wetedson July 9, 2013 pursuant to the underwripengial
exercise of the option to purchase additional sharee gross offering price per share of the 601 dtares was
reduced by the $0.25 dividend per share in therskqoarter of 201

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth changesasttand cash equivalents for the years ended Dece8tth2014, 2013 and 2012 ($ in
thousands):

For the year ended December 3!

2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 2461¢ $ 13,76¢ $ 86C
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea

by (used in) operating activitie (247,53() 11,67¢ 1,092
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi (222,919 25,44 1,952
Net cash used in investing activiti (433,08)  (745,69) (348,15
Net cash provided by financing activiti 652,44! 716,96: 368,35:
Change in cash and cash equival $ (B549 $ (3,290 $ 22,15(
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2014 to 2013

Cash and cash equivalents decreased byn#Bicdn and $3.3 million, respectively, during tiears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activittealed $(222.9) million and $25.4 million, respeely, during the years end:
December 31, 2014 and 2013. This change in netmasfided by (used in) operating activities wasnanily related to the cash used to
originate and fund mortgage loans held for sale. th®year ended December 31, 2014, adjustmemtsttimcome related to operating
activities primarily included originations of moége loans held for sale of $497.3 million, salenoftgage loans held for sale to third parties
of $302.9 million, change in the fair value of MS&s$7.7 million, change in mortgage banking atiég of $8.0 million, change in restricted
cash of $43.8 million and change in other asse®l6f9 million. For the year ended December 31 32@adjustments to net income related to
operating activities primarily included originat®nf mortgage loans held for sale of $84.2 millisale of mortgage loans held for sale to
parties of $102.4 million, gain on acquisition @.4 million, change in the fair value of MSRs of Bnillion, and change in other assets of
$4.4 million.

Net cash used in investing activities far years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 toté8Rimillion and $745.7 million,
respectively, and related primarily to the origioatof new loans held for investment partially effby a sale of a mortgage loan held for sale
and principal repayments on loans held for investrfier the year ended December 31, 2014.

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $6B#idn and related primarily to proceeds
from our Secured Funding Agreements of $1.1 billjgroceeds from issuance of debt of consolidatedie interest entities ("VIES") of
$308.7 million, and proceeds from our Warehouses.iof Credit of $544.0 million partially offset logpayments of our Secured Funding
Agreements of $855.0 million, repayments of debtarisolidated VIEs of $176.0 million, and repaynsesftour Warehouse Lines of Credit
of $350.8 million. Net cash provided by financirgiaities for the year ended December 31, 2013e¢dt&717.0 million and related primarily
to proceeds from our Secured Funding Agreemer$§@8.2 million, proceeds from issuance of debtafsplidated VIEs of $395.0 million
and proceeds from the sale of common stock of $25lion partially offset by repayments of our Seed Funding Agreements of
$583.0 million and repayments of our Warehouse 4 wfeCredit of $112.1 million.

2013 to 2012

Cash and cash equivalents decreased byn#liéh and increased by $22.2 million, respedigyeluring the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012. Net cash provided by operating iiesvtotaled $25.4 million and $2.0 million, respieely, during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012. This change in netmasfided by operating activities was primarilyateld to the increase in net interest
margin due to an increase in loans held for investiri-or the year ended December 31, 2013, adjussnte net income related to operating
activities primarily included originations of moege loans held for sale of $84.2 million, sale oftgage loans held for sale to third partie
$102.4 million, gain on acquisition of $4.4 milliochanges in the fair value of MSRs of $2.7 milliand change in other assets of
$4.4 million. For the year ended December 31, 2@tiftjstments to net income related to operatingities primarily included stock-based
compensation of $338 thousand, accretion of defdo@n origination fees and costs of $400 thousandrtization of deferred financing
costs of $698 thousand and $97 thousand of charfgdr ivalue of derivatives.

Net cash used in investing activities far years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 totaEd Bmillion and $348.2 million,
respectively. This change related primarily to ¢higination of new loans held for investment, anifion of a loan held for sale, and cash |
to acquire ACRE Capital.

Net cash provided by financing activities year ended December 31, 2013 totaled $717.¢om#ind related primarily to proceeds from
our Secured Funding Agreements of $703.2 millioocpeds
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from issuance of debt of consolidated VIEs of $898illion, and proceeds from the sale of commoglstaf $250.7 million, partially offset
by repayments of our Secured Funding Agreemer$$88.0 million and repayments of our Warehouse ¢ wfeCredit of $112.1 million. Net
cash provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2012 totaled $368.4 millionrateted primarily to proceeds from our
IPO, proceeds from the offering of the 2015 CornbkrtNotes, and proceeds from our Secured Fundiorgéments.

Summary of Financing Facilities

The sources of financing under our Finagéiacilities that are used to fund our target ibwesits are described in the following table:

As of December 31

2014 2013
Outstanding Outstanding
Total Interest Maturity Total Interest Maturity
$ in thousand: Commitment Balance Rate Date Commitment Balance Rate Date
Secured
funding
agreements
Wells Fargo$ 225,000 $ 120,76t LIBOR+2.00 December 1:(1)$ 225,000 $ 166,93« LIBOR+2.00 December 1 (1)
Facility to 2.50% 2015 to 2.50% 2014
December — — —% — 125,00( 97,48' LIBOR+2.25 Earlier of (2)
2011 t0 2.75%  July 2, 2018
Citibank or
Facility
December 250,00( 93,43. LIBOR+2.00 December 8 (3) — — —% —
2014 to 2.50% 2016
Citibank
Facility
Capital One 100,00( — LIBOR+2.00 — (2 100,00( — LIBOR+2.00 — 2
Facility to 3.50% to 3.50%
March 2014 50,00( 42,00( LIBOR+3.00% March 11, (4) — — —% —
CNB 2016
Facility
July 2014 75,00( 75,00( LIBOR+3.00% July 31, 201! (4) — — —% —
CNB
Facility
MetLife 180,00( 144,67 LIBOR+2.35% August 12, (1) — — —% —
Facility 2017
April 2014 140,00( 19,68! LIBOR+1.88% April 7, 2017 (5) — — —% —
UBS
Facility
December 57,24 57,24 LIBOR+2.74% January 6, — — —% —
2014 UBS 2016
Facility
Total $ 1,077,24. $ 552,79¢ $ 450,000 $ 264,41¢
Warehouse
lines of
credit:
ASAP Line $ 80,00((6)$ 58,46¢ LIBOR+1.40 No expiratior $  105,00((6)$ — LIBOR+1.40 No expiratior
of Credit t0 1.75% t0 1.75%
BAML Line 180,00(7) 134,69(LIBOR+1.60%  April 15, 80,00( — LIBOR+1.60% May 1, 2014
of Credit 2015
Total $ 260,000 $ 193,16! $ 185,000 $ =
(@h) These facilities are subject to two 12-month extersat our option, provided that certain condisiame met and applicable extension fees are ph&l\Wells
Fargo Facility was subject to three 12-month exterssas of December 31, 2013.
2) The maturity date of each individual loan is thmeas the maturity date of the underlying loan sieatrres such individual loan.
(3) The December 2014 Citibank Facility is subjecti@é 12-month extensions at our option, providedl ¢ertain conditions are met and applicable extens

fees are paid.

(4) The CNB Facilities are subject to one 12-month rsiten at our option, provided that certain condisi@re met and applicable extension fees are Paél.
July 2014 CNB Facility's interest rate of LIBOR 03% is comprised of LIBOR + 1.50% and a creditmmrpfee of 1.50% payable to Ares Management.

(5) The April 2014 UBS Facility is subject to annuath®nth extensions at the discretion of the lenpiavided that certain conditions are met and applie
extension fees are paid.

(6) The commitment amount is subject to change atiamy at Fannie Mae's discretion. To the extent tBAR Line of Credit remains active through utilipatj
there is no expiration date.
()] The BAML Line of Credit's commitment size increase$180.0 million for the period November 25, 2@itbugh January 26, 2015.

See Note 6 included in this annual reporEorm 10-K for more information on our FinancinacHities.
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Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities and Collaterd@&ed Loan Obligations

We may seek to enhance the returns onemioiscommercial mortgage loan investments thraegturitizations, if available. To the
extent available, we intend to securitize the sepdotion of some of our loans, while retaining thdbordinate securities in our investment
portfolio. The securitization of this senior portiwill be accounted for as either a "sale" andidla@s will be removed from our balance sheet
or as a "financing" and will be classified as "ledreld for investment" on our consolidated balastwets, depending upon the structure of the
securitization.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $528 mmilbd securitized debt, comprised of $219 millionGWIBS debt and $309 million of CLO
debt, held through consolidated VIEs, compared3@b$million of CMBS debt as of December 31, 201&e Slote 17 included in this annual
report on Form 10-K for additional terms and dstail our securitizations.

Capital Markets

We may periodically raise additional cajpiteough public offerings of debt and equity séibess to fund new investments. On May 9,
2013, we filed a registration statement on Form %i8 the SEC in order to permit us to offer, fréime to time, in one or more offerings or
series of offerings up to $1.5 billion of our commstock, preferred stock, debt securities, subSoripights to purchase shares of our
common stock, warrants representing rights to mselshares of our common stock, preferred stodklatrsecurities, or units. On June 17,
2013, the registration statement was declaredtaféeby the SEC.

Other Sources of Financing

In addition to the sources of liquidity debed above, in the future, we may also use aharces of financing to fund the origination or
acquisition of our target investments or to refceexpiring financing facilities, including othenedit facilities, warehouse facilities,
repurchase facilities, non-convertible or convéetidbebt, securitized financings and other publid private forms of borrowing. These
financings may be issued by us or our subsidiabesollateralized or non-collateralized, accrueriest at either fixed or floating rates and
may involve one or more lenders.

Leverage Policies

We intend to use prudent amounts of leve@tagncrease potential returns to our stockholdesghat end, subject to maintaining our
qualification as a REIT and our exemption from ségition under the 1940 Act, we intend to contitauase borrowings to fund the
origination or acquisition of our target investrreeriven current market conditions and our focu§irshor senior mortgages, we currently
expect that such leverage would not exceed, obatdesquity basis, a 4-to-1 ratio. Our charter Bghws do not restrict the amount of
leverage that we may use. The amount of leverageilivdeploy for particular investments in our tatgnvestments will depend upon our
Manager's assessment of a variety of factors, whia} include, among others, the anticipated liquidnd price volatility of the assets in our
investment portfolio, the potential for losses amtension risk in our portfolio, the gap betwees dluration of our assets and liabilities,
including hedges, the availability and cost of fineg the assets, our opinion of the creditwortbénef our financing counterparties, the he
of the U.S. economy generally or in specific gepbia regions and commercial mortgage markets, atloak for the level and volatility of
interest rates, the slope of the yield curve, tieelit quality of our assets, the collateral undedyour assets, and our outlook for asset spreads
relative to the LIBOR curve.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

Our contractual obligations as of Decen#r2014 are described in the following table:

Less than More than
$ in thousands Total 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years
Wells Fargo Facility $ 120,76t $ 120,76t $ — $ — 3 —
December 2014 Citibank

Facility 93,43: — 93,43: — —
Capital One Facility — — — — —
March 2014 CNB Facility 42,00( — 42,00( — —
July 2014 CNB Facility 75,00( 75,00( — — —
MetLife Facility 144,67 — 144,67: — —
April 2014 UBS Facility 19,68t — 19,68¢ — —
December 2014 UBS Facili 57,24: — 57,24 — —
2015 Convertible Note 69,00( 69,00( — —
ASAP Line of Credi 58,46¢ 58,46¢ — — —
BAML Line of Credit 134,69¢ 134,69¢ — — —
Operating Lease 5,51¢ 56¢ 1,62¢ 1,60¢ 1,71¢
Future Loan Funding

Commitments 220,94! 22,52 134,42: 38,75¢ 25,24;
Future Commitments to Sell

Loans 249,80: 213,07¢ 36,72¢ — —

Total $ 1,291,221 $ 694,090 $ 529,80 $ 40,360 $ 26,96(

We may enter into certain contracts thay g@ntain a variety of indemnification obligatioqsincipally with underwriters and
counterparties to repurchase agreements. The maxjpotential future payment amount we could be megito pay under these
indemnification obligations may be unlimited.

Management Agreement

We are also required to pay our Managease lmanagement fee of 1.5% of our stockholderisyeger year, an incentive fee and
expense reimbursements pursuant to our Managenggaefent. The table above does not include the arm@ayable to our Manager un
our Management Agreement as they are not fixeddatetminable. See Note 15 included in this anrefadnt on Form 10-K for additional
terms and details of the fees payable under ouralglament Agreement.

DIVIDENDS

We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock. U.S. federedme tax law generally requires that a
REIT annually distribute at least 90% of its RE#ikadble income, determined without regard to theudgan for dividends paid and excludi
net capital gains, and to the extent that it anpustributes less than 100% of its net taxabt®me in any taxable year, that it pay tax at
regular corporate rates on that undistributed portiWe intend to make regular quarterly distribagi¢o our stockholders in an amount equal
to or greater than our net taxable income (whioksdwot equal net income, as calculated in accoedaitbh GAAP), if and to the extent
authorized by our board of directors. As a resulth distributions will not be available to fundé@stments. Before we make any distributi
whether for U.S. federal income tax purposes oemtrse, we must first meet both our operating negménts and debt service on our
Financing Facilities and other debt payable. If cagh available for distribution is less than oeirtaxable income, we could be required to
sell assets or borrow funds to make cash distobstor we may make a portion of the required digtion in the form of a taxable stock
distribution or distribution of debt securities.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has commitments to fund vargitetch senior and transitional senior mortgagado as well as subordinated, mezzanine
debt and preferred equity investments in its pidf@xtend credit and sell loans. Commitmentsxieied credit by ACRE Capital are
generally agreements to lend to a customer asderbere is no violation of any condition estatdisin the contract. Commitments generally
have fixed expiration dates or other terminati@usks and may require payment of a fee.

Other than as set forth in this annual repo Form 10-K, we do not have any relationshifith wnconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred girastured investment vehicles, special purposiiesor VIEs, established to facilitate off-
balance sheet arrangements or other contractualipw or limited purposes. Further, we have norauized any obligations of
unconsolidated entities or entered into any commithor intend to provide additional funding to @ugh entities.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As part of our risk management strategy,Manager closely monitors our portfolio and adiv@anages the credit, interest rate, ma
prepayment, real estate and inflation risks assediaith holding a portfolio of our target investni® We manage our portfolio through an
interactive process with our Manager and Ares Meanant and service our target investments througgmneination of ACRE Capital's
servicer and our Manager's servicer, which is ad&ted & Poor's-rated commercial primary servical eammercial special servicer that is
included on Standard & Poor's Select Servicer Osi: Manager has an Investment Committee that eeersompliance with our investment
strategy and guidelines, investment portfolio hodi and financing strategy. We seek to manageiskg rrelated to the credit quality of our
assets, interest rates, liquidity, prepayment spaed market value while, at the same time, sedkipgovide an opportunity to stockholders
to realize attractive risk-adjusted returns throagimership of our capital stock. While we do natls®o avoid risk completely, we believe the
risks can be quantified from historical experienod seek to actively manage those risks, to edfigisnt compensation to justify taking
those risks and to maintain capital levels conststéth the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to varying degrees of cnéshtin connection with holding our target invesims. We have exposure to credit risk on our
CRE loans and other target investments in our @dending business. Our Manager seeks to maciagkt risk by performing our due
diligence process prior to origination or acquasitiand through the use of non-recourse financimgniand where available and appropriate.
Credit risk is also addressed through our Manageg®ing review of our investment portfolio. In &@ttwh, with respect to any particular
principal lending target investment, our Managewgstment team evaluates, among other thinggjvelaaluation, comparable analysis,
supply and demand trends, shape of yield curvédisigdeency and default rates, recovery of varioug@s and vintage of collateral.

In addition, we are exposed to credit ilskur mortgage banking business where, under tastéd Loss Sharing Agreement, ACRE
Capital is responsible for absorbing certain lossesrred by Fannie Mae with respect to loans aetgd under the DUS program. See Note 7
to our consolidated financial statements includethis annual report on Form 10-K for further dission of the Master Loss Sharing
Agreement with Fannie Mae. ACRE Capital uses séveots to manage its risk-sharing obligation, irdihg maintenance of disciplined
underwriting and approval processes and procedangsperiodic review and evaluation of underwritongeria based on underlying
multifamily housing
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market data and limitation of exposure to particgleographic markets and submarkets and to indiidorrowers.
I nterest Rate Risk

Interest rates are highly sensitive to mi@eyors, including fiscal and monetary policiesl @omestic and international economic and
political considerations, as well as other factmegond our control. We are subject to interest rigtein connection with our assets and our
related financing obligations, including our borings under the Financing Facilities. We primaritigmate or acquire floating rate mortgage
assets and finance those assets with index-mafldatihg rate liabilities. As a result, we signéiatly reduce our exposure to changes in
portfolio value and cash flow variability relatemldhanges in interest rates. However, we regutadgsure our exposure to interest rate risk
and assess interest rate risk and manage ourdhtate exposure on an ongoing basis by compatingnterest rate sensitive assets to our
interest rate sensitive liabilities. Based on tleaiew, we determine whether or not we should einterhedging transactions and derivative
financial instruments, such as forward sale committs and interest rate floors in order to mitigaie exposure to changes in interest rates.

While hedging activities may mitigate oupesure to adverse fluctuations in interest ratedain hedging transactions that we may ¢
into in the future, such as interest rate swapegests, may also limit our ability to participatetihe benefits of lower interest rates with
respect to our investments. In addition, therelmno assurance that we will be able to effectihelgige our interest rate risk.

In addition to the risks related to fludioas in asset values and cash flows associatédmdivements in interest rates, there is also the
risk of non-performance on floating rate assetshéncase of a significant increase in interegts;ahe additional debt service payments due
from our borrowers may strain the operating castdl of the real estate assets underlying our mgetgand, potentially, contribute to non-
performance or, in severe cases, default.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Margin

Our operating results depend in large pardifferences between the income earned on oetsaaad our cost of borrowing. The cost of
our borrowings generally is based on prevailingketinterest rates. During a period of rising iegtrates, our borrowing costs generally
increase while the yields earned on our leveragedifrate mortgage assets remain static, whichdoasdult in a decline in our net interest
spread and net interest margin.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 dllenfing fluctuations in the average 30-day LIBORwd have had the following impact on
our net interest margin on our loans held for itwvesnt ($ in millions).

Change in Average 3-Day LIBOR (basis points) Increase in Net Interest Margin

Up 300 basis point $ 7.2
Up 200 basis point $ 4.3
Up 100 basis poaint $ iL&
0 basis point: $ 0.c

The severity of any such decline dependswrasset/liability composition at the time aslvaslthe magnitude and duration of the
interest rate increase and any applicable floodscaps. Further, an increase in short-term inteedes could also have a negative impact on
the market value of our target investments. If ahthese events happen, we could experience aatere net income or
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incur a net loss during these periods, which cadlbeersely affect our liquidity and results of opiienas.
I nterest Rate Cap and Floor Risk

We primarily originate or acquire floatingte mortgage assets. These are assets in whichatttgages may be subject to periodic and
lifetime interest rate caps and floors, which lithié amount by which the asset's interest yielshgbaluring any given period. However, our
borrowing costs pursuant to our financing agreemsaimetimes are not subject to similar restrictmmisave different floors and caps. As a
result, in a period of increasing interest rateterest rate costs on our borrowings could increageut limitation by caps, while the interest
rate yields on our floating rate mortgage assettddoe limited if we do not implement effective safn addition, floating rate mortgage
assets may be subject to periodic payment capsdbalt in some portion of the interest being defgéland added to the principal outstanding.
This could result in our receipt of less cash inean such assets than we would need to pay thesttsost on our related borrowings. In
addition, in a period of decreasing interest rates nterest rate yields on our floating rate mage assets could decrease, while the interest
rate costs on certain of our borrowings could kediat a higher floor. These factors could lowermat interest income or cause a net loss
during periods of decreasing interest rates, whichld harm our financial condition, cash flows amdults of operations.

Market Risk

The estimated fair values of our investradhictuate primarily due to changes in interettgand other factors. Generally, in a rising
interest rate environment, the estimated fair valuihe fixedrate securities would be expected to decreasegeesaly, in a decreasing intel
rate environment, the estimated fair value of tked-rate securities would be expected to increAsanarket volatility increases or liquidity
decreases, the fair value of our investments maadiersely impacted.

The fair value of our MSRs is subject torkedirisk. A 100 basis point increase or decreaghe weighted average discount rate would
decrease or increase, respectively, the fair vaflweir MSRs by approximately $1.8 million as of Betber 31, 2014 and 2013.

Prepayment Risk

Our net income and earnings may be affelayggrepayment rates on our existing mortgage loafien we originate our mortgage loe
we anticipate that we will generate an expectelily@hen borrowers prepay their mortgage loansfasian we expect, we may be unable to
replace these mortgage loans with new mortgages Itreat will generate yields which are as high aspitepaid mortgage loans. Additionally,
principal repayment proceeds from mortgage loankérCMBS and CLO are applied sequentially, figinhg to pay down the senior CMBS
and CLO notes. We will not receive any proceedmfrepayment of loans in the CMBS or CLO until &h®r notes are repaid in full.

Real Estate Risk

Commercial mortgage assets are subjeatltdility and may be affected adversely by a nundfdactors, including, but not limited to,
national, regional and local economic conditionkifli may be adversely affected by industry slowdewand other factors); local real estate
conditions; changes or continued weakness in dpéedustry segments; construction quality, age @esign; demographic factors; and
retroactive changes to building or similar codesadidition, decreases in property values reducgahe of the collateral and the potential
proceeds available to a borrower to repay the
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underlying loan or loans, as the case may be, wtocitd also cause us to suffer losses. We seelat@ge these risks through our
underwriting and asset management processes.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilitiase sensitive to interest rates. As a resultrésterates and other factors influence our perfoge
far more so than does inflation. Changes in inteass do not necessarily correlate with inflatiates or changes in inflation rates. In each
case, in general, our activities and balance sireaineasured with reference to historical costarfdir market value without considering
inflation.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia
See the Index to consolidated financidksteents included in this annual report on Form 10-K
Item 9. Changes In And Disagreements With Accoudants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls And Procedures

Disclosure Controls and ProceduresThe Company's management, with the participatithe Company's Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated theatifeness of the Company's disclosure controlspaindedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based wgpmh evaluation, the Company's Chief Executived®ffand Chief Financial Officer
concluded that its disclosure controls and procesluwrere effective, as of December 31, 2014, toigeo&ssurance that information that is
required to be disclosed by the Company in thertsgbat it files or submits under the Exchange i8eecorded, processed, summarized, and
reported, within the time periods specified by 8tC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls andqmtoes include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure ttaniattion required to be disclosed by the Compartiigérreports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and commigida the Company's management, including its f@hiecutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, or persons performing similanétions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioggarding required disclosure.

Management Report on Internal Control Ograncial Reporting. The Company's management is responsible fabkstting and
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 154f) of the Exchange Act). The
Company's internal control over financial reportia@ process designed under the supervision dEtimepany's principal executive and
principal financial officers to provide reasonabbsurance regarding the reliability of financigdading and the preparation of the Company's
financial statements for external reporting purgdseaccordance with GAAP.

The Company's internal control over finahceporting includes policies and procedures pleatain to the maintenance of records the
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflemhsactions and dispositions of assets; providenadde assurances that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofidiahstatements in accordance with GAAP, andrtbeipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorizations ofGloepany's management and directors; and provid®naale assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the Company's as#®it could have a material effect on its
financial statements.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company's gament conducted an assessment of the effectiveh#ss Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on the framework
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established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework (201&sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, the Compaaypagement has concluded that its internal coatret financial reporting as of
December 31, 2014 is effective.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrols over financial reporting may not pretvendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the poligeprocedures may deteriorate.

Changes to Internal Control Over Finandreporting. There have been no changes in the Compangtnaitcontrol over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15¢f) of the Exchange Act) during its most recemitynpleted fiscal year, that have materi
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, the Company's internal control over financédorting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this item vl contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eéStegnt for its 2015 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2014, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item vkt contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eétegnt for its 2015 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2014, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information required by this item vl contained in the Company's definitive Proxy etegnt for its 2015 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2014, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this item vk contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eéStegnt for its 2015 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2014, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item vk contained in the Company's definitive Proxy eStegnt for its 2015 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2014, and is incorporated hdrgireference.
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Iltem 15.

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes

The following documents are filed as pdirthis annual report:

1.

2.

Financial Statements—See the Index to Consolidaiteghcial Statements on Page F-1.

Financial Statement Schedules—None. We have onfittadcial statement schedules because they aneqoired or are not
applicable, or the required information is shownhia consolidated financial statements or notéed¢aonsolidated financial

statements.

Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.€

10.1(

10.11

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Ma30148, by and among Alliant, Inc.,
The Alliant Company, LLC and Ares Commercial Residfe Corporation.(i

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Ares ConsiakReal Estate Corporation.

1)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ares Commercial Rste Corporation.(:

Indenture dated as of December 19, 2012, betwees @ommercial Real Estate
Corporation and U.S. Bank National AssociationTasstee.(2,

Form of 7.000% Convertible Senior Note Due 2018l(ided as part of Exhibit 4.1).(

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 25, 2dd&ween Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation and Ares Investments Holding€ I(B)

Management Agreement, dated April 25, 2012, betwges Commercial Real Estate
Management LLC and Ares Commercial Real Estate @atjpn.(13)

First Amendment to Management Agreement, dated Semtember 30, 2013, by and
between Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporationfaad Commercial Real Estate
Management LLC.(13

Second Amendment to Management Agreement datedmimee?7, 2014 by and
between Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporationfaad Commercial Real Estate
Management LLC.(2€

Trademark License Agreement, dated April 25, 2@E2ween Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation and Ares Management LLC

2012 Equity Incentive Plan.(
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement.
Form of Indemnification Agreement with directorslarertain officers.(3

Form of Indemnification Agreement with memberstaf tnvestment Committee and/or
Underwriting Committee of Ares Commercial Real Esfslanagement LLC.(Z

Master Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, datedyM8, 2012, among ACRC Lenc
One LLC, as borrower, Ares Commercial Real Estatg@ration, as guarantor, and
Capital One, National Association, as lender

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2012, les Zommercial Real Estate
Corporation, as guarantor, for the benefit of Gdpiitne, National Association, as



lender.(5)
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.1%

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

10.2:

10.2¢

First Amendment to Master Revolving Line of Ctddian Agreement, dated
September 27, 2012, between and among ACRC LendetOC, as borrower, Ares
Commercial Real Estate Corporation, as guarantor Gapital One, National
Association, as lender.(

Second Amendment to Master Revolving Line of Crégjteement, dated July 26,
2013, among ACRC Lender One LLC, as borrower, Atesymercial Real Estate
Corporation, as guarantor, and Capital One, Natidasociation, as lender.(:

Letter Agreement re: Closing Statement Referende,Riated as of August 30, 2013,
among Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporation,Allignt Company, LLC, a Florid
limited liability company, and Alliant Inc., a Flidia corporation.(9

Letter Agreement re: "Greenleaf at Broadway" Reirshble Loss Loan, dated as of
August 30, 2013, among Ares Commercial Real E€atporation, The Alliant
Company, LLC, a Florida limited liability compargnd Alliant Inc., a Florida
corporation.(9

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of AugQs2813, among Ares Commercial
Real Estate Corporation, Alliant Inc. and The Alti€ompany, LLC.(10

Fifth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated MagiyWarehousing and Security
Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2013, by and amb&g@\ Funding, L.L.C. (now
known as ACRE Capital LLC), as borrower, Bank of é&ina, N.A., as credit agent,
and the lenders party thereto.(:

Sixth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Mag&gWarehousing and Security
Agreement, dated as of September 5, 2013, by and@ACRE Capital LLC, Bank of
America, N.A., as Credit Agent, and the Lendersypthrereto.(11

Pooling and Servicing Agreement, dated as of Nowmb2013, among ACRC 2013-
FL1 Depositor LLC, as depositor, Wells Fargo Bax&tional Association, as master
servicer, Ares Commercial Real Estate Servicer LdCspecial servicer, U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee, certificate adstiator, paying agent and custodi
and Trimont Real Estate Advisors, Inc., as trusisad.(12)

Trust Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Noweh®h@013, between ACRC
Lender LLC, as seller, and ACRC 2(-FL1 Depositor LLC, as purchaser.(?

Amendment No. 3 to Master Repurchase and Secu@itesract, dated as of
November 8, 2013, between ACRC Lender W LLC, aeiand Wells Fargo Ban
National Association, as buyer and custodian.

Amended and Restated Master Repurchase and Ses@iintract, dated as of
December 20, 2013, among ACRC Lender W LLC and ACRder W TRS LLC, as
sellers, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associgtambuyer.(13

Amended and Restated Custodial Agreement, datetidscember 20, 2013, among
ACRC Lender W LLC and ACRC Lender W TRS LLC, adess| and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as buyer and custo¢il&)

Amended and Restated Controlled Account Agreem#até¢rfall Account), dated as of
December 20, 2013, among ACRC Lender W LLC and ACRder W TRS LLC, as
debtors, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associataansecured party and depository
bank.(13)
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2%

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(

10.31

10.3Z

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3i

10.3¢

Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreenet] as of December 20, 20
by ACRC Lender LLC, as pledgor, in favor of Wellar§o Bank, National Association,
as secured party.(1

Amended and Restated Guarantee Agreement, datfdesember 20, 2013, by Ares
Commercial Real Estate Corporation, as guaramrtdgvor of Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as bank.(1

Seventh Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restatedgdge Warehousing and
Security Agreement, dated as of January 31, 204d4nd among ACRE Capital LLC,
as borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as credit agant the Lenders party thereto.(.

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 12, 2014, ldyaanong ACRC Lender LLC, as
borrower, City National Bank, a national banking@agation, as arranger and
administrative agent, and the lenders party the{figd

General Continuing Guaranty, dated as of Marct2024, by Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation, as guarantor, in favor of Giational Bank, a national banking
association, as arranger and administrative agén

Security Agreement, dated as of March 12, 2014AGRC Lender LLC, as borrower,
in favor of City National Bank, a national bankiagsociation, as arranger and
administrative agent.(1!

Intercompany Subordination Agreement, dated asafci12, 2014, by and among
ACRC Lender LLC, as borrower, and Ares CommercizghlREstate Corporation, as
guarantor, in favor of City National Bank, a naabbanking association, as arranger
and administrative agent.(1

Eighth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Yysmé Warehousing and Secu
Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2014, by and amM@&RE Capital LLC, as
borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as Credit Agemiddhe lenders party thereto.(?

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Apri0®42among ACRC Lender U LLC
and ACRC Lender U TRS LLC, as sellers, ACRC Lendéfezz LLC, as mezzanine
subsidiary, Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatsrguarantor, and UBS Real
Estate Securities Inc., as buyer.(

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2014, bgs®Commercial Real Estate
Corporation in favor of UBS Real Estate Securities(17)

Sixth Amended and Restated Mortgage WarehousinditCred Security Agreement,
dated as of May 1, 2014, by and among ACRE Cabit&l, Bank of America, N.A., as
agent and lender and the other lenders party thé€t8)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated MasterrRlease and Securities Contr
dated as of May 29, 2014, among ACRC Lender W Lh@ ACRC Lender W
TRS LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatibf)

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Guarargesefnent dated as of May 29,
2014, by Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatisrguarantor, in favor of Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as buyer.|

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2014, byaandng ACRC Lender LLC, as

borrower, City National Bank, a national banking@sation, as arranger and
administrative agent, and the lenders party the@Zap
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.3¢

10.4(

10.41

10.4:

10.4:

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.43

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.5C

21.1
23.1

31.1°

General Continuing Guaranty, dated as of July28Q4, by Ares Commercial Real
Estate Corporation, as guarantor, in favor of Giational Bank, a national banking
association, as arranger and administrative agén

Intercompany Subordination Agreement, dated asilgf30, 2014, by and among
ACRC Lender LLC, as borrower, and Ares CommercighlREstate Corporation, as
guarantor, in favor of City National Bank, a natbbanking association, as arranger
and administrative agent.(2

Credit Support Fee Agreement, dated as of Julg@D4, by and among Ares
Commercial Real Estate Corporation, ACRC Holding€| ACRC Lender LLC and
Ares Management LLC.(2:

Amendment Number One to Credit Agreement and Candated as of July 30, 2014,
by and among ACRC Lender LLC, as borrower, Cityidizl Bank, a national banking
association, as arranger and administrative agedtthe lenders party thereto.(:

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Augug0lz3l, between ACRC Lender
ML LLC, as seller, and Metropolitan Life Insuran€empany, as buyer.(2

Guaranty, dated as of August 13, 2014, by Ares Ceruial Real Estate Corporation in
favor of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company.(:

Indenture dated as of August 15, 2014 among ACRfE@ercial Mortgage 2014-
FL2 Ltd, as issuer, ACRE Commercial Mortgage 2012-ELC as co-issuer,
Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustééglls Fargo Bank, National
Association, as note administrator, paying agealtutation agent, transfer agent,
authentication agent and custodian, and Wells FBegk, National Association, as
advancing agent.(2:

Mortgage Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of Augu2014 between ACRC
Lender LLC, as seller and ACRE Commercial Mortgag&4-FL2 Ltd., as issuer, and
agreed and acknowledged by the Company.

Amendment No. 1 to Sixth Amended and Restated MgdgNarehousing Credit and
Security Agreement, dated as of November 24 20t 4nld among ACRE Capital LL!
as borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as agent andée and the other lenders party
thereto.(23

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of DecemBéd8, by and between ACRC
Lender C LLC, as seller, and Citibank, N.A., asdn§24)

Omnibus Amendment To Other Transaction DocumerdsRaaffirmation of Guaranty,
dated as of December 8, 2014, by and among ACR@dred LLC, ACRC
Lender LLC, Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatiod Citibank, N.A.(24

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated MasterrRlease and Securities Contr
dated as of December 12, 2014, among ACRC Lendet®@/and ACRC Lender W
TRS LLC, as sellers, and Wells Fargo Bank, Natigxsdociation, as buyer.(2

Subsidiaries of Ares Commercial Real Estate Cottjmoi
Consent of Ernst & Young LL

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a),
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuattt Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a),
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1° Certification of Chief Executive Officers and Chkgéhancial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seefi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

101.INS* XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docunir

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

1)

(2)
3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Filed herewith

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 80d,, as applicable, to the Company's Form S-& (fd. 333181077),
filed on May 1, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 te @ompany's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), filed@cember 19, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.13120.4 and 10.5, as applicable, to the Compdrs 8-K (File No. 001-
35517), filed on May 4, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to therPany's Registration Statement on Amendment No.Ftm S11/A
(File No. 333-176841), filed on April 12, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and ,18s2applicable to the Company's Form 8-K (File 081-35517),
filed on May 24, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He €ompany's Form 10-Q for the period ending SeipéerB0, 2012 (File
No. 001-35517), filed on November 7, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the @any's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), filed on Mk, 2013.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), filed onyJ80, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and ,18s2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 0@i-35517),
filed on August 30, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.The Company's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35517), fiedNovember 13,
2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.6 and 1®fhe Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517gdion
September 6, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and ,18s2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 0@i-35517),
filed on November 25, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1@,11, 10.12, 10.13, 10.14, 10.15, 10.17 and 1@18& Company's
Form 1(-K (File No. 00:-35517), filed on March 17, 201
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(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

(26)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), filed on Jany 31, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1, 10®3%knd 10.4, as applicable, to the Company's Bkh(File No. 001-
35517), filed on March 14, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), fitedApril 2, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.d &46.2, as applicable, to the Company's Form 8ilk€ (fo. 001-35517),
filed on April 15, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), filed on M&y2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and ,1&sZapplicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 0Q1-35517),
filed on June 3, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1, 10®3,110.4 and 10.6, as applicable, to the Compdioyis 8-K (File
No. 001-35517), filed on July 31, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.d 46.2, as applicable, to the Company's Form 8il¢ (fo. 001-35517),
filed on August 18, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and ,1&sZapplicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 0Q1-35517),
filed on August 19, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 001-35517), filed on Bexber 1, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and ,1&sZapplicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 0@1-35517),
filed on December 12, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 085517), filed on December 18, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to tleen@any's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-35517), filed covsmber 10,
2014.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ACesnmercial Real Estate Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Ares Commercial Real Estatgo@aion as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, and the related consolidated stateménfseoations, stockholders' equity, and cash fllawgach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014. These financial stateraemthe responsibility of the Company's managen@ut responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dmdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. We were not engaged tfiope an audit of the Company's internal contratiofiancial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control overfiitial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Companyésnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the acaayptinciples used and significant estimates mgd@&nagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the consolidated financial
position of Ares Commercial Real Estate CorporatibBecember 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consdidaseilts of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the pegioded December 31, 2014, in conformity with gé&herally accepted accounting
principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 5, 2015
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ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

As of December 31

2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ($47 related to consetiddEs as of
December 31, 201« $ 16,55 $  20,10(
Restricted cas 66,12: 16,95
Loans held for investment ($848,224 and $493,7&8ae to
consolidated VIEs, respectivel 1,462,58. 958,49!
Loans held for sale, at fair val 203,00t 89,23:
Mortgage servicing rights, at fair val 58,88 59,64(
Other assets ($3,438 and $2,552 of interest relokeivalated to
consolidated VIEs, respectively; $18,352 of otlemeivables
related to consolidated VIEs as of December 314p 60,50: 32,49
Total asset $ 1,867,65 $ 1,176,91
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Secured funding agreemel 552,79¢ 264,41¢
Warehouse lines of crec 193,16! —
Convertible note 68,39! 67,81!
Commercial mortgage-backed securitization debtgobdated
VIE) 219,04: 395,02
Collateralized loan obligation securitization détsinsolidated VIE 308,70 —
Allowance for loss sharin 12,34¢ 16,48(
Due to affiliate 2,73¢ 2,79¢
Dividends payabli 7,147 7,125
Other liabilities ($498 and $384 of interest pagatalated to
consolidated VIEs, respectivel 22,43. 17,03t
Total liabilities 1,386,76 770,69!
Commitments and contingencies (Note
EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 450,00Gb8res
authorized at December 31, 2014 and December 3B, 20
28,586,915 and 28,506,977 shares issued and oditsgaat
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplsc 284 284
Additional paic¢-in capital 420,34« 419,40!
Accumulated defici (17,679) (13,477
Total stockholders' equit 402,95 406,21t
Non-controlling interests in consolidated VI 77,93: —
Total equity 480,88t 406,21t
Total liabilities and equit $ 1,867,65 $ 1,176,911

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the year ended December 3.

2014 2013 2012
Net interest margin:
Interest income from loans held for investm $ 7049 $ 3760( $§ 9,27¢
Interest expens (33,637 (14,977 (2,55%)
Net interest margi 36,85¢ 22,62’ 6,72(
Mortgage banking revenue:
Servicing fees, ne 16,39¢ 5,75¢ —
Gains from mortgage banking activiti 17,49: 5,01¢ —
Provision for loss sharin 1,36¢ (6) —
Change in fair value of mortgage servicing ric (7,650 (2,697) —
Mortgage banking revent 27,60¢ 8,07( —
Gain on sale of loar 68C 1,33: —
Total revenue 65,14 32,03( 6,72(
Expenses:
Management fees to affilia 5,91¢ 4,247 1,66t
Professional fee 3,73 2,92¢ 1,194
Compensation and benef 18,64¢ 5,45¢ —
Acquisition and investment pursuit co 20 4,07¢ —
General and administrative expen 9,252 3,95¢ 1,28¢
General and administrative expenses reimbursed
affiliate 4,00( 3,61( 1,61¢
Total expense 41,57( 24,26¢ 5,76:
Changes in fair value of derivativ — 1,73¢ (97)
Income from operations before gain on acquisition
and income taxes 23,57 9,50¢ 86C
Gain on acquisitiol — 4,43¢ —
Income before income taxe 23,57 13,94: 86C
Income tax expense (bene (1,04%) 17¢€ —
Net income 24,61¢ 13,76¢ 86(
Less loss attributable to Series A Convertible &refl
Stock:
Preferred dividend — — (102
Accretion of redemption premiu — — (572)
Net income attributable to ACRE 24,61¢ 13,76¢ 18€
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: (220) — —
Net income attributable to common stockholder: $ 2439% $§ 13,76t $ 18€
Net income per common share
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.8¢ $ 0.7 $ 0.0:
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.8t $ 0.7z $ 0.0¢
Weighted average number of common share
outstanding:
Basic weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding 28,459,30 18,989,50 6,532,70!
Diluted weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding 28,585,02 19,038,15 6,567,300

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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Balance at
December :
2011

Authorized
increase in
common
stock

Private
issuance of
common
stock

Sale of
common
stock

Stock-based
compensati

Offering costt

Net income

Dividends
declarec

Balance at
December :
2012

Sale of
common
stock

Issuance of
common
stock-
acquisition
of ACRE
Capital

Offering costt

Stock-based
compensati

Net income

2015
Convertible
Notes

Dividends
declarec

Balance at
December :
2013

Stock-based
compensati
Net income
Dividends
declarec
Contributions
from non-
controlling

ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Additional Total Non-

Common Stock Paliclfir:1a Accumulated Stock%c?lders' Cont?cg}ling Total

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity Interests Equity
—$ — $ 6,603 (163) $ 6,437 $ — $ 6,431
330,00 3 ) — — — —
1,170,00! 12 23,38¢ — 23,40( — 23,40(
7,700,001 77 142,37 — 142,45( — 142,45(
67,16: — 33¢ — 33¢ — 33€
— — (3,496 — (3,496) — (3,496
— — — 18€ 18¢€ — 18¢€
— — — (3,87%) (3,877) —  (3,87))
9,267,16;: $ 92 $169,20( $§ (3,859 $ 165,43 $ — $165,43t
18,601,59 18¢ 250,50: — 250,68 — 250,68
588,23! 6 7,50€ — 7,512 — 7,512
— —  (841) — (8,412) —  (8,41)
49,99( — 524 — 524 — 524
— — — 13,76¢ 13,76¢ — 13,76¢
— — 86 — 86 — 86
— — — (23,38 (23,38%) — (23,38
28,506,97 $ 284 $419,40! $ (13,479) $ 406,21¢ $ — $406,21¢
79,93¢ — 93¢ — 93¢ — 93¢
— — — 24,39¢ 24,39¢ 22C  24,61¢
— — — (28,59 (28,59 —  (28,59)
— — — — — 77,71 77,712

interests

Balance at




December 31
2014 28,586,91 $ 284 $420,34: $ (17,679 $ 402,95 $ 77,93. $480,88¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the year ended December 3!

2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net income $ 2461¢ $ 13,76t $ 86(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by (used in) operating activitie
Amortization of deferred financing cos 8,19¢ 1,92 69¢
Change in mortgage banking activit (7,955 (3,110 —
Change in fair value of mortgage servicing ric 7,65( 2,691 —
Accretion of deferred loan origination fees andts (3,66) (2,36€) (400)
Provision for loss sharin (1,369 6 —
Cash paid to settle loss sharing obligati (2,587) (2,040 —
Originations of mortgage loans held for s (497,25)) (84,15() —
Sale of mortgage loans held for sale to third pa 302,88t 102,36: —
Stock-based compensatic 93¢ 524 33¢
Changes in fair value of derivativ — (1,739 97
Amortization of convertible notes issuance ct 941 82€ —
Accretion of convertible note 58( 52€ —
Gain on acquisitiol — (4,43%) —
Depreciation expens 16( 38 —
Deferred tax expense (bene 93 61 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas (43,81) 1,64¢ —
Other asset (10,897) (4,414 (2,50¢)
Due to affiliate (62) 1,47¢ 1,08¢
Other liabilities (1,39) 1,84¢ 1,77¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi (222,91.) 25,44+ 1,952
Investing activities
Issuance of and fundings on loans held for investi (711,13() (675,60) (351,87
Principal repayment of loans held for investnr 193,86 66,92( 18C
Issuance of a mortgage loan held for — (84,769 —
Proceeds from sale of a mortgage loan held for 80,19° — —
Receipt of origination fee 7,082 6,05¢ 3,54(
Acquisition of ACRE Capital, net of cash acqui — (58,25%) —
Purchases of property and equipm (823) (41) —
Payments for acquisition of intangible ass (2,00¢) — —
Payments for acquisition of mortgage servicing ts (1,259 — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (433,08() (745,69) (348,15Y)
Financing activities
Proceeds from secured funding agreem 1,143,34. 703,15 278,35:.
Repayments of secured funding agreem (854,96:) (582,99) (134,09)
Secured funding cos (10,847) (7,037) (2,327)
Proceeds from issuance of debt of consolidated 308,70: 395,02 —
Repayments of debt of consolidated V (175,98 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common si — 250,68 165,85
Payment of offering cos (119) (8,839 (3,44%)
Proceeds from warehouse lines of cr 544,01 97,67¢ —
Repayments of warehouse lines of cr (350,84f) (112,149 —
Proceeds from convertible de — — 69,00(
Convertible notes issuance cc — — (2,74%)
Dividends paic (28,577) (18,57%) (2,560
Proceeds from issuance of Series A convertibleepred stocl — — 5,723
Redemption of Series A convertible preferred st — — (6,29%)
Series A preferred divider — — (102)
Contributions from nc-controlling interest: 77,71 — —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 652,44! 716,96. 368,35.
Change in cash and cash equivali (3,549 (3,290 22,15(
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 20,10( 23,39( 1,24(
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 16,55 $ 20,10 $ 23,39(
Supplemental Informatior
Interest paid during the peric $ 2387( $ 11317 $ 1,25¢
Income taxes paid during the peri $ 43C % — $ —
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing amahfiing activities
Dividends payabl $ 7147 $ 7,127 $  2,31¢
Deferred financing and offering cos $ — % 174 $ 244
Notes receivable related to consolidated Vv $ 16,11t $ — $ =
Issuance of common stock for acquisition of ACRPpiGa $ — $ 7512 $ —
Fair value of assets acquired from ACRE Capital ofieash acquire $ — $112,60¢ $ —
Fair value of liabilities assumed from ACRE Cap $ — $ 4840: $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDI ARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2014
(in thousands, except share and per share data, pmmtages and as otherwise indicated)

1. ORGANIZATION

Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporatiogdtber with its consolidated subsidiaries, the "@any" or "ACRE") is a specialty finance
company that operates both as a principal lendg&aanortgage banker (with respect to loans colditerd by multifamily and senior-living
properties). Through Ares Commercial Real Estatedgament LLC ("ACREM" or the Company's "Managea'securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") registered investment adviser asubsidiary of Ares Management L.P. (NYSE: ARE8)es Management"), a
publicly traded, leading global alternative assahager, it has investment professionals stratdgilealated across the United States and
Europe who directly source new loan opportunit@gstifie Company with owners, operators and sportdarsmmercial real estate ("CRE")
properties. The Company was formed and commencectipns in late 2011. The Company is a Marylampaa@tion and completed its
initial public offering (the "IPO") in May 2012. EhCompany is externally managed by its Managesyant to the terms of a management
agreement (the "Management Agreement").

In the Company's principal lending businéss primarily focused on directly originatinghanaging and servicing a diversified portfolio
of CRE debt-related investments for the Companyis account. The Company's target investments ipriteipal lending business include
senior loans, bridge loans, subordinated debtepred equity and other CRE-related investmentssé& lirevestments, which are referred to as
the Company's "principal lending target investmgrage generally held for investment and are setdigectly or indirectly, by office,
multifamily, retail, industrial, lodging, seniorving and other commercial real estate propertiebyamwnership interests therein.

The Company is also engaged in the mortgagking business through its wholly owned subsjdiACRE Capital LLC ("ACRE
Capital"), which the Company believes is compleragnto its principal lending business. In this Imesis segment, the Company primarily
originates, sells and services multifamily and eetiving related loans under programs offered byernment and government-sponsored
enterprises ("GSEs"), such as the Federal Natidioaigage Association ("Fannie Mae"), the Federatrdd oan Mortgage Corporation
("Freddie Mac"), the Government National Mortgagesdciation ("Ginnie Mae") and the Federal Housimninistration, a division of the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmemgsther with Ginnie Mae, "HUD"). ACRE Capital ispapved as a Fannie Mae
Delegated Underwriting and Servicing ("DUS") lendeFreddie Mac Program Plus® Seller/Servicer, &ifdmily Accelerated Processing
("MAP") and Section 232 LEAN lender for HUD, andsinnie Mae issuer. While the Company earns lititeriest income from these
activities as it generally only holds loans for ghgeriods, the Company receives origination feemit closes loans and sale premiums v
it sells loans. The Company also retains the rightervice the loans, which are known as mortgageicing rights ("MSRs") and receives
fees for such servicing during the life of the Isawhich generally last ten years or more.

The Company has elected and qualified ttaked as a real estate investment trust ("REIG)£.S. federal income tax purposes under
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, eowing with its taxable year ended December 31220ke Company generally will n
be subject to U.S. federal income taxes on its REX&ble income, determined without regard to the@udtion for dividends paid and
excluding net capital gains, to the extent thanitually distributes all of its REIT taxable incotoestockholders and complies with various
other requirements as a REIT.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents have been prepared on the accrual baatxofinting in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and incltide accounts of the Company, the consolidatedbkriinterest entities ("VIEs") that t
Company controls and of which the Company is tl@ary beneficiary, and the Company's wholly ownelsidiaries. The consolidated
financial statements reflect all adjustments amthssifications that, in the opinion of managemarg,necessary for the fair presentation of
the Company's results of operations and finanaatlition as of and for the periods presented. iBlicompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated.

Variable I nterest Entities

The Company evaluates all of its inter@sté|Es for consolidation. When the Company's ietts are determined to be variable inter
the Company assesses whether it is deemed to Ipeith@ry beneficiary of the VIE. The primary bermddiry of a VIE is required to
consolidate the VIE. Financial Accounting Standd@dard ("FASB") Accounting Standards CodificatidA$C") Topic 810,Consolidation
("ASC 810"), defines the primary beneficiary as plagty that has both (i) the power to direct thivites of the VIE that most significantly
impact its economic performance, and (ii) the ddtiign to absorb losses and the right to receivefitsrfrom the VIE which could be
potentially significant. The Company considersvisiable interests, as well as any variable intsrekits related parties in making this
determination. Where both of these factors aregmteshe Company is deemed to be the primary baagfiand it consolidates the VIE.
Where either one of these factors is not preskatCompany is not the primary beneficiary and &glnot consolidate the VIE.

To assess whether the Company has the govdinect the activities of a VIE that most sigegitly impact the VIE's economic
performance, the Company considers all facts amedimistances, including its role in establishing\hié and its ongoing rights and
responsibilities. This assessment includes fidenfifying the activities that most significanttppact the VIE's economic performance; and
second, identifying which party, if any, has poweer those activities. In general, the parties thake the most significant decisions affec
the VIE or have the right to unilaterally removedk decision makers are deemed to have the powléetd the activities of a VIE.

To assess whether the Company has theabbligto absorb losses of the VIE or the rightdoeive benefits from the VIE that could
potentially be significant to the VIE, the Comparonsiders all of its economic interests, includitedpt and equity investments, servicing fi
and other arrangements deemed to be variable $tdarethe VIE. This assessment requires that ttragany applies judgment in determin
whether these interests, in the aggregate, aredmyad potentially significant to the VIE. Fact@ansidered in assessing significance include:
the design of the VIE, including its capitalizatistnucture; subordination of interests; paymerntnsi; relative share of interests held across
various classes within the VIE's capital structaeg the reasons why the interests are held bg tinepany.

For VIEs of which the Company is determinedbe the primary beneficiary, all of the undeaityiassets, liabilities, equity, revenue and
expenses of the structures are consolidated ist€tmpany's consolidated financial statements.

The Company performs an ongoing reassegfigil) whether any entities previously evaluateder the majority voting interest
framework have become VIES, based on certain eventstherefore are subject to the VIE consolisetiamework, and (2) whether changes
in the facts and circumstances regarding its irMolent with a VIE causes the Company's consolid&imoelusion
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regarding the VIE to change. See Note 17 includetiése financial statements for further discusefaihe Company's VIEs.

Segment Reporting

The Company has two reportable businessisets: principal lending and mortgage banking. iSete 19 included in these consolidated
financial statements for further discussion of @mmpany's reportable business segments.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have beerassified to conform to the current period presématiccounts payable and accrued expe
have been reclassified into other liabilities ia ttonsolidated statements of cash flows. Gainidataible to fair value of future servicing
rights, change in fair value of loan commitmentd ahange in fair value of forward sale commitmdrase been reclassified into change in
mortgage banking activities in the consolidatetestents of cash flows. Other interest expenseertl@t the 2015 Convertible Notes (defined
below) has been reclassified into interest expestbey interest expense related to the Warehousesladf Credit (as defined in Note 6
included in these consolidated financial statem)drds been reclassified into gains from mortgageking activities and other interest expe
related to escrow accounts has been reclassified@rvicing fees, net in the consolidated statéseinoperations. As of December 31, 2014,
the Company no longer presents other interest esepienits consolidated statements of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include fundeposit with financial institutions, including denthdeposits with financial institutions. Cash
and short-term investments with an original magyuoitthree months or less when acquired are coresiideash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated balance sheets arairstats of cash flows.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes escrow depositiaf®s, insurance, leasing outlays, capital exipered, tenant security deposits and payments
required under certain loan agreements. Thesews@posits are held on behalf of the respectivedbmrs and are offset by escrow
liabilities included in other liabilities in the neolidated balance sheets. In connection with aggage banking business, the Company held
restricted cash, which consisted of reserves tieah aequirement of the Fannie Mae DUS programbemcbwer deposits, which represent
funds that were collected for the processing ofithieowers loan applications and loan commitments.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to concentrations of credit righkstst primarily of cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash, loans held for investment, M$dans held for sale, interest receivable anivalire financial instruments. The Compe
places its cash and cash equivalents with finamussitutions and, at times, cash held may exched=DIC-insured limit. The Company has
exposure to credit risk on its loans held for inwent and through its subsidiary ACRE Capital, @leenpany has exposure on credit risk on
loans held for sale and the servicing portfolio vefiay ACRE Capital shares in the risk of loss (se&N included in these consolidated
financial statements). The Company and the Compaighager seek to manage credit risk by perforrdirgdiligence prior to origination
acquisition and through the use of non-recoursanfimg, when and where available and appropriate.
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Loans Held for I nvestment

The Company originates CRE debt and reletsgttuments generally to be held for investmenfarts that are held for investment are
carried at cost, net of unamortized loan fees aigination costs, unless the loans are deemed neghaimpairment occurs when it is deemed
probable that the Company will not be able to @bl amounts due according to the contractuahsenf the loan. If a loan is considered to
be impaired, the Company will record an allowarestuce the carrying value of the loan to thegmesalue of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan's contractual effective. rate

Each loan classified as held for investnigetvaluated for impairment on a periodic bastans are collateralized by real estate. The
extent of any credit deterioration associated Withperformance and/or value of the underlyingatetial property and the financial and
operating capability of the borrower could impduat expected amounts received. The Company momigzfsrmance of its investment
portfolio under the following methodology: (1) bower review, which analyzes the borrower's abtlitegxecute on its original business plan,
reviews its financial condition, assesses pendtigation and considers its general level of regdegness and cooperation; (2) economic
review, which considers underlying collateral,.(leasing performance, unit sales and cash floth@tollateral and its ability to cover debt
service, as well as the residual loan balance ainityg; (3) property review, which considers currenvironmental risks, changes in
insurance costs or coverage, current site vigibitipital expenditures and market perception;(@hdnarket review, which analyzes the
collateral from a supply and demand perspectiv@roflar property types, as well as from a capitarkets perspective. Such impairment
analyses are completed and reviewed by asset maeagend finance personnel who utilize various dataces, including periodic financial
data such as property occupancy, tenant profiteareates, operating expenses, and the borroedt'plan, among other factors.

In addition, the Company evaluates theremqortfolio to determine whether the portfolio Iy impairment that requires a valuation
allowance on the remainder of the loan portfolis.ok December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, with regpdabe Company's loans held for
investment, no impairment charges have been rezedni

Preferred equity investments, which areosdiibate to any loans but senior to common eqaity,accounted for as loans held for
investment and are carried at cost, net of unamemttioan fees and origination costs, unless theslage deemed impaired, and are included
within loans held for investment in the Companyasolidated balance sheets. The Company accretesatizes any discounts or premiu
over the life of the related loan receivable uitilizthe effective interest method.

LoansHeld for Sale

Through its subsidiaries, including ACREpEal, ACRC Lender W TRS LLC ("ACRC W TRS") and ACR.ender U TRS LLC
("ACRC U TRS"), the Company originates mortgagenkheld for sale, which are recorded at fair valne accounted for under FASB ASC
Topic 860,Transfers and ServicingThe holding period for loans originated by ACREp&al is approximately 30 days. The carrying vaii
the mortgage loans sold is reduced by the valoeatid to the associated retained MSRs basedativeelair value at the time of the sale.
Gains or losses on sales of mortgage loans argmexam based on the difference between the sedliing and the adjusted value of the rel
mortgage loans sold.

Although the Company generally holds itg¢d investments as lortgrm investments within its principal lending buess, the Compar
may occasionally classify some of its investmestheald for sale. Investments held for sale wilcbeaied at fair value within loans held for
sale, at fair value in the Company's consolidatgdrice sheets, with changes in fair value recotid@digh earnings. The fees
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received are deferred and recognized as part afatmeor loss on sale. As of December 31, 2014Cthmpany did not have any loans held
sale in its principal lending business. As of DebenB1, 2013, the Company had one loan held ferigats principal lending business of
$84.8 million, net of deferred fees, included ir 89.2 million of loans held for sale in the cditaied balance sheets.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

When a mortgage loan is sold, ACRE Capétins the right to service the loan and recognilze MSR at fair value. The initial fair
value represents expected net cash flows fromaegyias well as interest earnings on escrows aedim cash balances, borrower
prepayment penalties, delinquency rates, late elsaatpng with ancillary fees that are discountea ratte that reflects the credit and liquidity
risk of the MSR over the estimated life of the utylag loan. After initial recognition, changestime MSR fair value are included within
change in fair value of mortgage servicing rightshe Company's consolidated statements of opesatay the period in which the change
occurs.

I ntangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of ACRE Capitaenses permitting it to participate in prograoffered by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and
HUD (including Ginnie Mae). These licenses arengthle assets with indefinite lives. The Compangleates identified intangibles for
impairment annually or if other events or circumsts indicate that the carrying value may be ingghir

Debt | ssuance Costs

Debt issuance costs under the Companyé&biedness are capitalized and amortized over thestef the respective debt instrument.
Debt issuance costs related to debt securitizaiomsapitalized and amortized over the term ofithaerlying loans using the effective
interest method. When an underlying loan is prepaadebt securitization, the related unamortideblt issuance costs are charged to ex;
based on a pro-rata share of the debt issuance lmeisty allocated to the specific loans that weepaid. Amortization of debt issuance costs
is included within interest expense in the Companghnsolidated statements of operations while tienortized balance is included within
other assets in the Company's consolidated bakiresds.

Derivative Financial | nstruments

The Company does not hold or issue dexigdtistruments for trading purposes. The Compaocggeizes derivatives on its consolidated
balance sheets, measures them at their estimatedlize and recognizes changes in their estimi@iedalue in the Company's consolidated
statements of operations for the period in whighdhange occurs.

Through its subsidiary, ACRE Capital, then@pany enters into loan commitments with borrovegréoan originations whereby the
interest rate on the prospective loan is determpras to funding. In general, ACRE Capital simuk@usly enters into forward sale
commitments with investors in order to hedge irderate exposure on loan commitments. The forwalel @ommitment with the investor
locks in an interest rate and price for the salthefloan. The terms of the loan commitment with llorrower and the forward sale
commitment with the investor are matched with thgeative of hedging interest rate risk. Loan conmaihts and forward sale commitments
are considered undesignated derivative instrum@tsordingly, such commitments, along with any retbfees received from potential
borrowers, are recorded at fair value, with changéair value recorded in earnings.

On December 19, 2012, the Company issusdaumed 7.00% Convertible Senior Notes that mat2@15 (the "2015 Convertible
Notes"). The conversion features of the 2015 CdiblerNotes were deemed to be an embedded dervatider FASB ASC Topic 81
Derivatives and Hedgin("ASC 815"). In accordance with ASC 815, the Compasas required to bifurcate the embedded
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derivative related to the conversion features ef2815 Convertible Notes. Prior to June 26, 2018 Gompany recognized the embedded
derivative as a liability on its balance sheet, sogad at its estimated fair value and recognizeahgés in its estimated fair value within
changes in fair value of derivatives in the Compsagnsolidated statements of operations for thegé which the change occurs. See
Note 9 included in these consolidated financiaiesteents for information on the derivative liabiligclassification

Fair Value Measurements

GAAP establishes market-based or obseniaplgs as the preferred source of values, follobesaluation models using management
assumptions in the absence of market inputs. Traméial instruments recorded at fair value on anr@rg basis in the Company's
consolidated financial statements are derivatinarftial instruments, MSRs and loans held for §ale. Company has not elected the fair
value option for certain other financial instrumrgenncluding loans held for investment, securedifug agreements and other debt
instruments. Such financial instruments are camiecbst. Fair value is separately disclosed (s&e I4 included in these consolidated
financial statements).

Allowance for Loss Sharing

When a loan is sold under the Fannie Ma&Ptbgram, ACRE Capital undertakes an obligatiopaidially guarantee the performance
of the loan. The date ACRE Capital commits to makean to a borrower, a liability for the fair valof the obligation undertaken in issuing
the guaranty is recognized. Subsequent to thalimdimmitment date, the Company monitors the perémce of each loan for events or
circumstances which may signal a liability to beagnized if there is a probable and estimable [Blss.initial fair value of the guarantee is
estimated by examining historical loss share egpegd in the ACRE Capital Fannie Mae DUS portfeiie inception. The initial fair value
of the guarantee is included within the provisionlbss sharing in the Company's consolidated isités of operations. These historical loss
shares serve as a basis to derive a loss shanghite is then applied to the current ACRE CafiiblS portfolio (net of specifically identifie
impaired loans that are subject to a separateslum® reserve analysis).

Servicing Fee Payable

ACRE Capital provides additional paymentsértain personnel by providing them with a petage of the servicing fee revenue that is
earned by ACRE Capital, which is initially recordesia liability when ACRE Capital commits to maklean to a borrower. The initial fair
value of the liability represents the expectedaash payments over the life of the related mortdage that are discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit and liquidity risk of the reddtMSR. ACRE Capital incurs an expense over tieedlifeach loan as long as the related loan is
performing. If a particular loan is not performirtge recipient will not receive the additional canpation on that loan, and if a loss sharing
event is triggered, the recipient will not receasportion of the additional compensation on otbank. The servicing fee payable is included
within other liabilities in the consolidated balangheets. The initial fair value of the relatedemge is included within gains from mortgage
banking activities and the changes in the fair @atithe servicing fee payable over the life of thlated mortgage loan is included within
servicing fee revenue on a net basis in the cattestelil statements of operations in the period irchvttie change occurs.

Revenue Recognition

Interest income from loans held for investniersiccrued based on the outstanding principal atremuhthe contractual terms of each
loan. For loans held for investment, originatioasdecontractual exit fees and direct loan origoratiosts are also recognized in interest
income from loans held for investment over theahiban term as a yield adjustment using the éffednterest method.
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A reconciliation of the Company's interestome from loans held for investment, excludingtontrolling interests, to the Company's
interest income from loans held for investmentnatuiided within its consolidated statements of ojj@na is as follows:

For the year ended

$ in thousands December 31, 2014
Interest income from loans held for investm $ 70,49¢
Interest income from non-controlling interest inwesnt held
by third parties (309)
Interest income from loans held for investment | ecing
nor-controlling interest: $ 70,18¢

Servicing feeare earned for servicing mortgage loans, includihgctivities related to servicing the loans, ane recognized as
services are provided over the life of the relatedtgage loan. Also included in servicing feestheenet fees earned on borrower prepayment
penalties and interest earned on borrowers' esgagmwents and interim cash balances, along withr atheillary fees and reduced by write-
offs of MSRs for loans that are prepaid, changdhérfair value of the servicing fee payable aridriest expense related to escrow accounts.

Gains from mortgage banking activitieeludes the initial fair value of MSRs, loan origtion fees, gain on the sale of loans originated,
interest income and fees earned on loans heldafer shanges to the fair value of derivative finahmstruments attributable to the loan
commitments and forward sale commitments and ratlbgehe expense related to the initial fair vadfi¢he servicing fee payable and the
interest expense related to the Warehouse Lin€setfit (as defined in Note 6 included in these otidated financial statements). The initial
fair value of MSRs, loan origination fees, gaintba sale of loans originated, certain direct loggination costs for loans held for sale anc
expenses related to the initial fair value of taevieing fee payable are recognized when ACRE @hpdmmits to make a loan to a borrower.
When the Company settles a sale agreement andetrautise mortgage loan to the buyer, the Compacggrizes a MSR asset equal to the
present value of the expected net cash flows asaicwith the servicing of loans sold.

Net Interest Margin and | nterest Expense

Net interest margin within the consolidas¢éatements of operations is a measure that isfispecthe Company's principal lending
business and serves to measure the performanhe pfitcipal lending segment's loans held for itwest as compared to its use of debt
leverage. The Company includes interest income ftetoans held for investment and interest expeakaed to its secured funding
agreements, securitizations debt and the 2015 CuoileeNotes in net interest margin. As of Decem®®r2014, 2013 and 2012, interest
expense is comprised of the following:

As of December 31

2014 2013 2012
Secured funding agreements and securitizai
debt $ 27,29¢ $ 8,774/ $ 2,34:
Convertible note 6,33¢ 6,19¢ 21€
Interest expens $ 33,637 $ 14,97¢ $ 2,65¢

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes the cost of stodeth@ompensation, which is included within compgasand benefits for ACRE Capital
and general and administrative expenses for ACRRertonsolidated statements of operations. Thevédie of the time vested restricted
stock or
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restricted stock units granted is recorded to esp@m a straight-line basis over the vesting pdoothe award, with an offsetting increase in
stockholders' equity. For grants to directors,ceffs and employees, the fair value is determineddapon the market price of the stock on
the grant date.

Certain ACRE Capital employees were granéstricted stock that vest in proportion to vasidimancial performance targets being met
over a specified period of time. The fair valudtd performance based restricted stock grantest@ded to expense on an accelerated basis
using the accelerated attribution method, oveptréormance period for the award, with an offsetiimcrease in stockholders' equity. For
performance based measures, compensation expehsé astimated forfeitures, is recorded basecherompany's estimate of the probable
achievement of such measures.

Underwriting Commissions and Offering Costs

Underwriting commissions and offering castaurred in connection with common stock offerirage reflected as a reduction of
additional paid-in capital. Costs incurred that moédirectly associated with the completion obanenon stock offering are expensed when
incurred. Underwriting commissions that are theoesibility of and paid by a related party, suchireesCompany's Manager, are reflected as
a contribution of additional paid-in capital fronsponsor in the consolidated financial statements.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected and qualifiedeigation as a REIT commencing with its taxable ysated December 31, 2012. As a result of
the Company's REIT qualification and its distrilbatipolicy, the Company does not generally pay t&&eral corporate level income taxes.
Many of the REIT requirements, however, are highlhnical and complex. To continue to qualify &ET, the Company must meet a
number of organizational and operational requirasiencluding a requirement that the Company diste annually at least 90% of the
Company's REIT taxable income to the Company'kktuders. If the Company fails to continue to gfyadis a REIT in any taxable year and
does not qualify for certain statutory relief pmions, the Company will be subject to U.S. fedaral state income taxes at regular corporate
rates (including any applicable alternative minimiax) beginning with the year in which it failsqoalify and may be precluded from being
able to elect to be treated as a REIT for the Cayipdour subsequent taxable years. Even thoug@dmepany currently qualifies for
taxation as a REIT, the Company may be subjectttain U.S. federal, state, local and foreign taxethe Company's income and property
and to U.S. federal income and excise taxes o@tmpany's undistributed REIT taxable income.

In connection with the acquisition of ACRHpital, the Company created a wholly owned suasidiACRE Capital Holdings LLC
("TRS Holdings"), to hold the common units of ACR&pital. The Company formed a wholly owned subsjdia December 2013, ACRC'
TRS and in March 2014, ACRC U TRS in order to isand hold certain loans intended for sale. The Gomgurrently owns 100% of the
equity of TRS Holdings, ACRC U TRS and ACRC W THEstity classification elections to be taxed as @omation and taxable REIT
subsidiary ("TRS") elections were made with respediRS Holdings, ACRC W TRS and ACRC U TRS. A TR&n entity taxed as a
corporation other than a REIT in which a REIT dilgor indirectly holds equity, and that has madsiat election with such REIT to be
treated as a TRS. Other than some activities ngjdti lodging and health care facilities, a TRSegalty may engage in any business,
including investing in assets and engaging in &@iv/that could not be held or conducted direbththe Company without jeopardizing its
qualification as a REIT. A TRS is subject to apptite U.S. federal, state, local and foreign incdéaxeon its taxable income. In addition, as a
REIT, the Company also may be subject to a 100%sexax on certain transactions between it an@RS that are not conducted on an arm's-
length basis.

F-14




Table of Contents

For financial reporting purposes, a prawisior current and deferred taxes has been edtellifor the portion of the Company's GAAP
consolidated earnings recognized by TRS Holding3R& U TRS and ACRC W TRS.

FASB ASC Topic 740ncome Taxe6'ASC 740"), prescribes a recognition threshold areghsurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a taxigosaken or expected to be taken in a tax retd8C 740 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and peaaljtaccounting in interim periods, disclosure aaddition. The Company has analyzed its
various federal and state filing positions andéads that its income tax filing positions and deibuns are well documented and supported
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, based on the Cortgoavgluation, there is no reserve for any unaeit@ome tax positions. TRS Holding
ACRC U TRS and ACRC W TRS recognize interest amfties, if any, related to unrecognized tax basafithin income tax expense in
consolidated statements of operations. Accrueddsteand penalties, if any, are included withineotliabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Comprehensive | ncome

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d2012, comprehensive income equaled net incthraesfore, a separate consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is not includdgtie accompanying consolidated financial statement

Earnings per Share

The Company calculates basic earnings)(fmssshare by dividing net income (loss) allocableommon stockholders for the period by
the weighted-average shares of common stock odiisigufor that period after consideration of thendags (loss) allocated to the Company's
restricted stock, which are participating secusiis defined in GAAP. Diluted earnings (loss) frerrs takes into effect any dilutive
instruments, such as restricted stock and conVedibbt, except when doing so would be anti-dikutiwith respect to the 2015 Convertible
Notes, theCompany has the ability and intention to settleghiscipal in cash and to settle any amount abarampshares of the Company's
common stock if the conversion options were exectig\s such, the Company is applying the treasiogksmethod when determining the
dilutive impact on earnings per share.

Use of Estimatesin the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with GAAP requires management to makeretes and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actallteecould differ from those estimates.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for business comloinatiising the acquisition method of accountingeumdhich the purchase price of the
acquisition is allocated to the assets acquirediabdities assumed using the fair values detesdiby management as of the acquisition ¢
The Company recognizes identifiable assets acqainddiabilities (both specific and contingent)wsgd at their fair values at the acquisit
date. Furthermore, acquisition-related costs, sisotiue diligence, legal and accounting fees, areapitalized or applied in determining the
fair value of the acquired assets. The excesseohislsets acquired and liabilities assumed oveputehase price is recognized as a gain on
acquisition. During the measurement period, the @amy records adjustments to the assets acquirelisdildies assumed with
corresponding adjustments to the gain on acquisiifter the measurement period, which could béoupne year after the transaction date,
subsequent adjustments are recorded through earning
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Asset Acquisitions

The Company accounts for acquired assetassumed liabilities that do not meet the definitof a business as an asset acquisition,
under which the cost of the acquisition is allodatethe assets acquired and liabilities assumealrefative fair value basis. Acquisition-
related costs, such as due diligence, legal anobationg fees, are capitalized as a component ofdseof the assets acquired.

Costs Associated with Restructuring Activities

The Company began restructuring and rellogatertain ACRE Capital support services durirg ttivee months ended March 31, 2014.
The Company incurred costs related to these rdating activities, including employee terminatiomsts and office relocation costs. The
employee termination costs are associated witls¢lrerance of certain employees, retention bonuskgw@aranteed bonuses to certain key
employees, insurance and outplacement, which wilkdcounted for on a straight-line basis over #réod from notification through each
employee's termination date. If employees are redub render service (beyond a minimum retentieniopl) in order to receive the
termination benefits, a liability for employee ténation costs is measured initially at the commatian date based on its fair value, as of the
termination date, and recognized ratably over theré service period. Office relocation costs idelwosts that will be incurred in the phys
move of offices and incremental rent costs, whidhlve expensed when space is vacated. The cagtsréd to date are included within
general and administrative expenses in the Companyisolidated statements of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Staras Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standardsat@d'ASU") No. 2014-09, "Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)." Thedguice in this ASU supersedes the revenue recogmépuirements in Topic 605,
"Revenue Recognition." Under the new guidance,ndityeshould recognize revenue to depict the transf promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consider& which the entity expects to be entitled xcleange for those goods or services. The
amendments in ASU No. 2014-09 are effective fouahneporting periods beginning after December208,6, including interim periods
within that reporting period. Early applicationnist permitted. The Company is currently evaluathmgimpact of adopting this ASU on its
consolidated financial statements.

In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU Ni14216, "Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815)." The ahije of this ASU is to elimina
the use of different methods in practice and thereduce existing diversity under GAAP in the aaating for hybrid financial instruments
issued in the form of a share. The amendmentsiclaow current GAAP should be interpreted in evéhmthe economic characteristics and
risks of a host contract in a hybrid financial mstent that is issued in the form of a share. Whitazh, the amendments in this ASU clarify
that, in evaluating the nature of a host contractentity should assess the substance of the relerans and features when considering how
to weight those terms and features. The amendnreASU No. 2014-16 are effective for public entitiior fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning after Decenmigr2015. Early adoption is permitted; howevee, @ompany does not plan to early adopt
this ASU. The Company is currently evaluating tmpact of adopting this ASU on its consolidated fiicial statements.
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3. LOANS HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As of December 31, 2014, the Company hafirated or cosriginated 46 CRE middle market loans, excludindakhs that were repa
since inception. The aggregate originated commitraader these loans at closing was approximatel§ Billion and outstanding principal
was $1.5 billion as of December 31, 2014. Durirggytbar ended December 31, 2014, the Company fueqgmdximately $717.4 million of
outstanding principal and received repayments @DE2million of outstanding principal as descrilbednore detail in the tables below. Such
investments are referred to herein as the Compagstment portfolio. As of December 31, 2014,788.0f the Company's loans have
LIBOR floors, with a weighted average floor of 0%29calculated based on loans with LIBOR floors.drefices to LIBOR or "L" are to 30-
day LIBOR (unless otherwise specifically stated).

The Company's investments in mortgagedaeants held for investment are accounted for at simeat cost. The following tables
summarize the Company's loans held for investmeof ®ecember 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31, 201

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Carrying Outstanding Average Unleveraged Remaining
$ in thousands Amount(1) Principal(1) Interest Rate Effective Yield(2) Life (Years)
Senior mortgage loar $ 1,156,47¢ $ 1,164,05! 4.5% 5.C% 2.1
Subordinated debt anc
preferred equity
investmentt 228,49! 231,22t 10.5% 10.7% 6.1
Total investment
portfolio
(excluding non-
controlling
interests held by
third parties) $ 1,384,997 $ 1,395,28 5.5% 6.C% 2.8
December 31, 201
Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Carrying Outstanding Average Unleveraged Remaining
$ in thousands Amount(1) Principal(1) Interest Rate Effective Yield(2) Life (Years)
Senior mortgage loar $ 867,57¢ $ 873,78: 5.1% 5.6% 2.4

Subordinated debt and
preferred equity
investment: 90,917 91,65 9.8% 10.2% 3.€
Total investment
portfolio (excluding
non-controlling
interests held by
third parties) $ 958,49! $ 965,43! 5.5% 6.C% 2.5

(1) The difference between the Carrying Amount tredOutstanding Principal face amount of the Idzaid for investment
consists of unamortized purchase discount, deféo@ufees and loan origination costs.

(2) Unleveraged Effective Yield is the compounééféctive rate of return that would be earned dkerlife of the
investment based on the contractual interest ealjigted for any deferred loan fees, costs, prensiudiscount) and
assumes no dispositions, early prepayments or idefdine Total Weighted Average Unleveraged Effeciield is
calculated based on the average of UnleveragedtiwieYield of all loans held by the Company aPefcember 31,
2014 and 2013 as weighted by the Outstanding Pahbialance of each loa
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A reconciliation of the Company's investingartfolio excluding non-controlling interests cpared to the Company's loans held for
investment as included within its consolidated be¢asheets is as follows:

As of December 31

2014
Carrying
$in thousands _Amount
Loans held for investmel $ 1,462,58.
Non-controlling interest investment held by third pes (77,609
Total investment portfolio (excluding non-controti
interests held by third partie $ 1,384,97!

A more detailed listing of the Company'sdstment portfolio, based on information availaddeof December 31, 2014 is as follows:
(amountsin millions, except percentages)

Unleveraged

Outstanding Carrying Effective Maturity Payment
Loan Type Location Principal(1) Amount(1) Interest Rate Yield(2) Date(3) Terms(4)
Transitional
Senior
Mortgage
Loans:
Office CA $ 75.C $ 74.% L+3.75% 4.2%  Aug 201 l[e]
Retail IL 70.C 69.5 L+4.25% 4.%  Aug 201} /0
Office TX 61.7 60.¢ L+5.00% 6.1% Jan 201 /10
Multifamily GA 45.¢ 45.¢ L+4.95%(5) 5.7%  Apr 201¢ /0
Mixed-use IL 45.1 442 L+3.60% 4.2% Oct 201¢ /10
Multifamily X 447 44.€ L+3.75% 4.5%  July 201¢ /0
Multifamily GA 38.4 38.4 L+4.95%(5) 5.7%  Apr 201¢ 1/0
Industrial MO/KS 38.C 37.7 L+4.30% 5.1% Jan 201 /0
Multifamily NY 37.¢ 37.5 L+5.00% 6.1% Oct 201" /10
Multifamily X 35.4 35.2 L+4.70% 5.6%  Apr 201¢ /0
Multifamily FL 35.2 35.C L+3.75% 4.7%  Mar 201} /10
Multifamily X 34.¢ 34.¢ L+3.75% 4.5%  July 201¢ /0
Office FL 32.¢ 32.€ L+3.65% 4.C% Oct 201" /10
Office OH 30.C 29.¢ L+5.35%: 6.C%  Nov 201 /10
L+5.00%(6)
Retail IL 29.C 28.7 L+3.25% 3.% Sep 201 /10
Office CA 27.7 27.5 L+4.50% 5.2%  Apr 201 /0
Office OR 27.4 27.1 L+3.75% 4.4% Oct 201¢ /10
Multifamily NY 27.C 26.7 L+3.75% 4.4% Oct 201° /0
Multifamily TX 27.2 27.1 L+3.65% 4.0% Jan 201 /10
Office KS 25.F 25.4 L+5.00% 5.8% Mar 201¢ /0
Mixed-use NY 26.C 25.¢ L+4.25% 4.8%  Aug 201} /10
Multifamily TX 24.¢ 24.7 L+3.65% 4.4% Jan 201 /0
Multifamily GA 23.t 23.t L+4.95%(5) 57%  Apr 201¢ /10
Multifamily AZ 21.¢ 21.¢ L+4.25% 5.5% Sep 201 /10
Multifamily GA 21.€ 214 L+3.85% 4.8% May 201, 1/0
Industrial CA 19.¢ 19.7 L+5.25% 6.1% May 201 l[e]
Industrial VA 19.C 18.¢ L+5.25% 6.4%  Dec 201! /10
Office coO 16.€ 16.€ L+3.95% 4.€%  Dec 201 /0
Office CA 15.€ 15.5 L+3.75% 4.5%  July 201¢ /10
Office CA 14.¢ 149 L+4.50% 5.3%  July 201¢ /0
Multifamily NC 14.¢ 14.¢ L+4.00% 4.8%  Apr201i l[e]
Multifamily NY 13.7 13.€ L+3.85% 4.4%  Nov 201% l[e]
Multifamily FL 13.7 13.€ L+3.80% 4.€% Feb 201 [l[e]
Mixed-use NY 12.€ 12.4 L+3.95% 4.7% Sep 201 1/0
Multifamily FL 11.2 11.1 L+3.75% 46%  Apr201i l[e]
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Unleveraged

Outstanding Carrying Effective Maturity Payment

Loan Type Location Principal(1) Amount(1) Interest Rate Yield(2) Date(3) Terms(4)
Multifamily FL 10.¢ 10.¢ L+3.80% 4.6%  Feb 201 /0
Stretch

Senior

Mortgage

Loans:
Office FL 47.2 47.% L+5.25%(7) 5.4%  Apr 201¢ 110
Industrial OH 32.7 32.4 L+4.20% 4.7% May 201¢ 1/0
Office CA 14.5 14.¢ L+4.75% 5.7%  Feb 201 110
Subordinated

Debt and

Preferred

Equity

I nvestment:
Office IL 37.C 36.¢ 8.75% 9.1%  Aug 201¢ 110
Multifamily NY 33.2 33.1 L+8.07%8) 8.5% Jan 201 1/0
Multifamily GA and FL 34.¢ 34.2 L+11.85%(9) 12.%% June 202 110
Office GA 14.2 14.2 9.5%(10) 9.5%  Aug 201: 1/0
Mixed-use NY 14.€ 14.5 11.50%(11) 11.€%  Nov 201¢ 110
Multifamily TX 4.¢ 4.¢ L+11.00%(12) 11.6€%  Oct 201t 1/0
Various Diversified(13) 92.4 90.¢ 10.95% 11.4%  Dec 202 110
Total/Averag: $ 1,395.. $ 1,385.( 6.C%
1) The difference between the Carrying Amount andQhéstanding Principal amount of the loans heldrfigestment consists of unamortized purchase digcoun

@

©)

4)

©)

(6)
@)
®)

deferred loan fees and loan origination costs.

Unleveraged Effective Yield is the compounded dffecrate of return that would be earned over ifeedf the investment based on the contractuatésterate
(adjusted for any deferred loan fees, costs, prentiudiscount) and assumes no dispositions, eaglygyments or defaults. Unleveraged Effective Yield
each loan is calculated based on LIBOR as of Deeeiib, 2014 or the LIBOR floor, as applicable. Tieighted Average Unleveraged Effective Yield is
calculated based on the average of Unleveragedti#eYield of all loans held by the Company aPecember 31, 2014 as weighted by the Outstanding
Principal balance of each loan.

Certain loans are subject to contractual extenspiions that vary between one and two 12-monthnsikb@s and may be subject to performance basether o
conditions as stipulated in the loan agreementu@anaturities may differ from contractual matwdtistated herein as certain borrowers may hawvegtfiteto
prepay with or without paying a prepayment pendltye Company may also extend contractual matuiitiesnnection with loan modifications.

1/0 = interest only. Amortization begins on thensaional senior Missouri/Kansas loan with an autsling principal of $38.0 million in January 20I&lan
the transitional senior New York loan with an oatsting principal of $37.8 million in October 2016spectively, as of December 31, 2014. Amortization
begins on the stretch senior Ohio loan with antantiing principal as of December 31, 2014 of $32illon in May 2017. The remainder of the loanglie
Company's principal lending portfolio are non-arizimg through their primary terms.

These loans were originally structured as an A/ moa cross collateralized loan pool with the @amy holding the B-note. In connection with the
commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS")ditiag on November 19, 2013, the Company purchdsedote and modified and split the combined
loan into individual senior whole loans.

The initial interest rate for this loan of L+5.35%eps down based on performance hurdles to L+5.00%.
In March 2014, the Company entered into a loan fiadion that extended the loan for a term of tveans and lowered the interest rate to L+5.25%.

In March 2014, the $85.2 million (outstanding pipat) senior loan held for sale by the Company reasructured whereby the principal balance wasaedu
from $85.2 million to $80.4 million and total commient was decreased from $93.8 million to $88.4ionil The senior loan was subsequently sold talthir
party purchasers. The transaction qualified foe sacounting under FASB ASC Topic 880ansfers and ServicingThe origination and exit fees associated
with the senior loan were not restructured andbmpany retained the right to a portion of theioagion and the exit fees. Upon the sale of théosdoan,
the Company recorded a $680 thousand (net of egpegain on sale of loans in its consolidated states of operations. The $28.4 million (outstanding
principal) mezzanine loan retained by the Compaay also restructured whereby the principal balarazincreased from $28.4 million to $33.3 milliarda
total commitment was increased from $31.3 millioi$86.6 million. In connection with the restruchgiof the mezzanine loan, the interest rate deedefasm
L+9.90% with a LIBOR floor of 0.17% to L+7.46% withLIBOR floor of 0.17%. The principal balance grgst rate and unleveraged effective yield of the
mezzanine loan may change further based on certag-level
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performance hurdles being met. Due to asset-legdbpnance hurdles being met, the interest ratéhisrloan increased to L+8.07% on December 224201

9) The preferred return is L+11.85% with 2.00% as paytin-kind ("PIK"), to the extent cash flow is rentailable. There is no capped dollar amount onuact
PIK.

(10) The interest rate for this loan decreased to 9.68%ecember 15, 2014.
(11) The interest rate is 11.50% with a 9.00% curregtgral up to a capped dollar amount as PIK basaHeohorrower's election.
(12) The preferred return is L+11.00% with an L+ 9.00%rent pay and up to a capped dollar amount as PIK.

(13) The preferred equity investment is in an entity sdassets are comprised of multifamily, studensimay medical office and self-storage properties.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 @h8, Zhe activity in the Company's loan portfoliasaas follows ($ in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 353,50(
Initial funding 640,38:
Receipt of origination fee, net of co (6,05¢)
Additional funding 35,22
Amortizing payment: (150)
Loan payoffs (66,77()
Origination fee accretio 2,36¢

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 958,49
Initial funding 637,22.
Receipt of origination fee, net of co: (7,026
Additional funding 80,21"
Loan payoffs (209,98
Origination fee accretio 3,661

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 1,462,58.

No impairment charges have been recogrdeeitig the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h2l
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4, MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

MSRs represent servicing rights retained\BRE Capital for loans it originates and sellseHervicing fees are collected from the
monthly payments made by the borrowers. ACRE Chgéaerally receives other remuneration includiights to various loan fees such as
late charges, collateral re-conveyance charges,dogpayment penalties, and other ancillary feeaddition, ACRE Capital is also generally
entitled to retain the interest earned on fundd pehding remittance related to its collectionaar principal and escrow balances. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value ®RMwas approximately $58.9 million and $59.6 wnil/irespectively. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, ACRE Capital had aciegwportfolio consisting of 976 and 1,000 loarespectively, with an unpaid princig
balance of $4.1 billion and $3.7 billion, respeetix

Activity related to MSRs for the years edd®ecember 31, 2014 and 2013 was as follows (Baogands):

MSRs acquired in the ACRE Capital acquisition (Sete 18) $ 61,23¢
Additions, following sale of loa 2,38t
Changes in fair valu (2,697)
Prepayments and wr-offs (1,289

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 59,64(

MSRs acquired in asset acquisition (See Note 1,25¢
Additions, following sale of loa 7,85
Changes in fair valu (7,650
Prepayments and wr-offs (2,219

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 58,88¢

As discussed in Note 2 included in thesesobdated financial statements, the Company détesrthe fair values of the MSRs based on
discounted cash flow models that calculate thegmteglue of estimated future net servicing incomfee fair values of ACRE Capital's MS
are subject to changes in discount rates. For ebearmad.00 basis point increase or decrease in #ighted average discount rate would
decrease or increase, respectively, the fair vel WeCRE Capital's MSRs outstanding as of Decemiie2814 and 2013 by approximately
$1.8 million.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the aagryalues of the Company's intangible assetseasribed in Note 2, were $6.0 million and
$5.0 million, respectively, which are included viitlother assets in the Company's consolidated balsheets. On August 5, 2014, ACRE
Capital was approved and granted a license by kréddc as a Program Plus® Seller/Servicer for rfauttily loans under which ACRE
Capital is authorized to sell and service FreddaeNbans secured by multifamily properties locateNew York and Princeton, New Jersey.
ACRE Capital can also sell and service Freddie Mans secured by multifamily properties locatedsimlé of its approved geographic area if
it obtains a waiver from Freddie Mac. As a ProgRlns® Seller/Servicer, ACRE Capital is approvedtiginate and sell to Freddie Mac
multifamily loans that satisfy Freddie Mac's undeting and other eligibility requirements. Undeetprogram, ACRE Capital submits its
completed loan underwriting package to Freddie &tat obtains Freddie Mac's commitment to purchaséotim at a specified price after
closing. Ultimately, Freddie Mac performs its owmderwriting of loans that ACRE Capital sells toFteddie Mac may choose to hold, sell,
or later securitize such loans. ACRE Capital dagshave any material risk-sharing arrangement®and it sells to Freddie Mac under
Program Plus®.
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As of December 31, 2014, the carrying valfithhe Company's intangible assets of $6.0 millrmtudes the Freddie Mac Program Plus®
Seller/Servicer license with a carrying value oftbillion. The identified intangible assets handéfinite lives and are not subject to
amortization. The Company performs an annual assa#sof impairment of its intangible assets infierth quarter of each year or whene
events or circumstances make it more likely thartimat impairment may have occurred. For the yeaded December 31, 2014 and 201:
impairment charges have been recognized.

6. DEBT
Financing Facilities

The Company borrows funds under the ASARelaf Credit and the BAML Line of Credit (the "Whmuse Lines of Credit"), and the
Wells Fargo Facility, the Citibank Facilities, tBapital One Facility, the CNB Facilities, the Mdt.FFacility and the UBS Facilities
(individually defined below and collectively, th8&cured Funding Agreements"). The Company refetsetdVarehouse Lines of Credit and
the Secured Funding Agreements as the "Financinijties"). As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, théstanding balances and total
commitments under the Financing Facilities condistiethe following:

As of December 31

2014 2013
Outstanding Total Outstanding Total

$ in thousands Balance Commitment Balance Commitment
Wells Fargo Facility $ 120,76¢ $ 225,000 $ 166,93: $ 225,00!
December 2011 Citibank Facili — 97,48¢ 125,00(
December 2014 Citibank Facili 93,43: 250,00( — —
Capital One Facility — 100,00( — 100,00(
March 2014 CNB Facility 42,00( 50,00( — —
July 2014 CNB Facility 75,00( 75,00( — —
MetLife Facility 144,67: 180,00( — —
April 2014 UBS Facility 19,68¢ 140,00( — —
December 2014 UBS Facili 57,24: 57,24: — —
ASAP Line of Credi 58,46¢ 80,00((1) — 105,00(
BAML Line of Credit 134,69¢ 180,00((2) — 80,00(

Total $ 74596: $ 1,337,224 $ 264,41¢ $ 635,00(

(1) The commitment amount is subject to change atiamy &t Fannie Mae's discretion.

(2)  The BAML Line of Credit's commitment size increased®180.0 million for the period November 25, 2Qfidbugh
January 26, 201!

Some of the Company's Financing Faciliéiescollateralized by i) assignments of specifan®or a pool of loans held for investment or
loans held for sale owned by us, ii) interesthmdubordinated portion of our securitized debtiiinterests in wholly owned entity
subsidiaries that hold our loans held for investm&he Financing Facilities (excluding the Waret®umes of Credit) are guaranteed by the
Company. Generally, the Company partially offseteriest rate risk by matching the interest indeboahs held for investment with the
Financing Facilities used to fund them.

Wells Fargo Facility

The Company is party to a master repurchasding facility arranged by Wells Fargo Bank, iatl Association (as amended and
restated, the "Wells Fargo Facility"), which allothe Company to borrow up to $225.0 million. In Beter 2014, the Company amended
and restated the Wells
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Fargo Facility to, among other things, extend tlaurity date from December 14, 2014 to Decembe@45 and waive the non-utilization
fee from December 14, 2014 through April 14, 2Mmvided that certain conditions are met and appleextension fees are paid, the
maturity date is subject to two 12-month extengiptions. Under the Wells Fargo Facility, we arenpited to sell, and later repurchase,
certain qualifying senior commercial mortgage lgakdotes, pari passu participations in commengialtgage loans and mezzanine loans
under certain circumstances, subject to availabllateral. Advances under the Wells Fargo Facditgrue interest at a per annum rate equal
to the sum of (i) 30 day LIBOR plus (ii) a pricingargin range of 2.00%-2.50%. Subject to the wadetiforth above, the Company incurs a
non-utilization fee of 25 basis points on the dailwilable balance of the Wells Fargo Facilityhe extent less than 75% of the Wells Fargo
Facility is utilized. For the years ended Decenfer2014 and 2013, the Company incurred a noreatibn fee of $213 thousand and

$218 thousand, respectively. As of December 31420 2013, the outstanding balance on the WetlgaHaacility was $120.8 million and
$166.9 million, respectively.

The Wells Fargo Facility contains varioffgrmative and negative covenants applicable toGoenpany and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries, including the following: (a) limitatis on the incurrence of additional indebtednedi®ios, (b) limitations on how borrowed
funds may be used, (c) limitations on certain dhstions and dividend payments in excess of tharmim amount necessary to continue to
qualify as a REIT and avoid the payment of income @xcise taxes, (d) maintenance of adequate tagitdimitations on change of control,
() maintaining a ratio of total debt to tangibletrvorth of not more than 4.00 to 1.00, (g) mainitag a ratio of recourse debt to tangible net
worth of not more than 3.00 to 1.00, (h) maintagninfixed charge coverage ratio (expressed asatleaf EBITDA (net income before net
interest expense, income tax expense, depreciatidramortization), as defined, to fixed chargesjtie immediately preceding 12-month
period ending on the last date of the applicalpp@nting period to be at least 1.25 to 1.00, (i)m&ining a tangible net worth of at least the
sum of (1) approximately $135.5 million, plus (2)%8 of the net proceeds raised in all future eqigtyances by the Company and (j) if
certain specific debt yield, loan to value or otbexdit based tests are not met with respect wisss the Wells Fargo Facility, the Company
may be required to repay certain amounts undeWtbiis Fargo Facility. As of December 31, 2014, @@mmpany was in compliance in all
material respects with the terms of the Wells Fafgoaility.

Citibank Facilities
December 2011 Citibank Facility

The Company was party to a secured revglftinding facility with Citibank, N.A. (as amendedtie "December 2011 Citibank Facility
which allowed the Company to borrow up to $250.0iom. The Company was permitted to borrow funddemthe December 2011 Citibank
Facility to finance qualifying senior commercial rtgage loans and A-Notes, subject to availableatetél. Under the December 2011
Citibank Facility, the Company borrowed funds oreeolving basis in the form of individual loans.dBaindividual loan was secured by an
underlying loan originated by the Company. Amouwnitstanding under each individual loan accruedésteat a per annum rate equal to
30 day LIBOR plus a pricing margin of 2.25% to 2& ¥subject to a 0.50% LIBOR floor for one mortgagen pledged on the December
2011 Citibank Facility), based on the debt yieldraf assets securing the December 2011 Citibanktizathe final repayment date on whi
a payment of principal was contractually obligat@the made in respect of each mortgage loan pledgéer the December 2011 Citibank
Facility was the earlier of the latest date on \whacpayment of principal was contractually obligitie be made in respect of each mortgage
loan pledged under the Citibank Facility or Decenthe2018. As of December 31, 2013, the outstandaignce on the December 2011
Citibank Facility was $97.5 million.
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The December 2011 Citibank Facility wadaegd in its entirety by the December 2014 Citibakility (defined below).
December 2014 Citibank Facility

In December 2014, the Company enteredar#@50.0 million master repurchase facility (theetBmber 2014 Citibank Facility" and
together with the December 2011 Citibank Facility "Citibank Facilities") with Citibank, N.A. Und¢he December 2014 Citibank Facility,
the Company has sold, and must later repurchasdifyguig senior commercial mortgage loans and Ad$aapproved by Citibank, N.A. in its
sole discretion. Advances under the December 2@1lda@k Facility accrue interest at a per annure eual to 30 day LIBOR plus a pricing
margin of 2.00% to 2.50%, subject to certain exoggt Under the December 2014 Citibank Facilitg, tmaturity date is December 8, 2016,
subject to three 12-month extensions assuming istirgx defaults under the December 2014 Citibandilffaand the payment of an
extension fee. As of December 31, 2014, the oufstgrbalance on the December 2014 Citibank Faaieg $93.4 million. The Company
incurred a non-utilization fee of 25 basis pointstioe daily available balance of the Citibank Ftes. For the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, the Company incurred a non-utitirafiee of $316 thousand and $164 thousand, respBcti

The Citibank Facilities contain variousi@affative and negative covenants applicable to the@any and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries, including the following: (a) maintaig tangible net worth of at least the sum of (0)8Bof the Company's tangible net worth as
of September 30, 2013, plus (2) 80% of the totakapital raised in all future equity issuanceshs Company, (b) maintaining liquidity in
amount not less than the greater of (1) $5.0 milbo (2) 5% of the Company's recourse indebtedmeggp exceed $10.0 million (provided
that in the event the Company's total liquidity &gwr exceeds $5.0 million, the Company may satief difference between the minimum
total liquidity requirement and the Company's tdialidity with available borrowing capacity), (o)aintaining a fixed charge coverage ratio
(expressed as the ratio of EBITDA (net income befuet interest expense, income tax expense, dapioecand amortization), as defined, to
fixed charges) for the immediately preceding 12-th@eriod ending on the last date of the applicaéyb®rting period to be at least 1.25 to
1.00, (d) maintaining a ratio of total debt to tdobg net worth of not more than 4.00 to 1.00, (&@imtaining a ratio of recourse debt to tang
net worth of not more than 3.00 to 1.00 and (Beftain specific debt yield and loan to value tesésnot met with respect to assets on the
Citibank Facilities, the Company may be requiredefmay certain amounts under the Citibank Fadlitiehe Citibank Facilities also prohibit
the Company from amending the management agreesithnts Manager in a material respect without piner consent of the lender. As of
December 31, 2014, the Company was in complianedl material respects with the terms of the Decen@®14 Citibank Facility.

Capital One Facility

The Company is party to a secured revol@imgling facility with Capital One, National Assation (as amended, the "Capital One
Facility"), which allows the Company to borrow up$100.0 million. The Company is permitted to barfonds under the Capital One
Facility to finance qualifying senior commercial rigage loans, subject to available collateral. Wrikde Capital One Facility, the Company
borrows funds on a revolving basis in the formmafividual notes evidenced by individual loans. Eaxhividual loan is secured by an
underlying loan originated by the Company. Amouwnitstanding under each individual loan accrue @sieat a per annum rate equal to the
sum of (i) 30 day LIBOR, plus (ii) a pricing margifi 2.00% to 3.50%. The Company may request indafidbans under the Capital One
Facility through and including May 18, 2015, subjecsuccessive 12-month extension options atahedr's discretion. The maturity date of
each individual loan is the same as the maturitg dathe underlying loan that secures such indigidoan. As of
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December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, ther@mavaatstanding balance on the Capital One Faciling Company does not incur a non-
utilization fee under the terms of the Capital Giaeility.

The Capital One Facility contains varioffgmative and negative covenants applicable toGloenpany and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries, including the following for so longthere is any outstanding balance on the Capital Eacility: (a) maintaining a ratio of debt
to tangible net worth of not more than 3.00 to 1(®) maintaining a tangible net worth of at leligt sum of (1) 80% of the Company's
tangible net worth as of May 1, 2012, plus (2) 88Rthe net proceeds received from all future eqisispiances by the Company, and
(c) maintaining a fixed charge coverage ratio (esped as the ratio of EBITDA (net income beforemerest expense, income tax expense,
depreciation and amortization), as defined, todigbarges) for the immediately preceding 12-momtfigol ending on the last date of the
applicable reporting period to be at least 1.25.6®. As of December 31, 2014, the Company wasiimptiance in all material respects with
the terms of the Capital One Facility.

City National Bank Facilities
March 2014 CNB Facility

The Company is party to a $50.0 millionwed revolving funding facility with City Nation&ank (the "March 2014 CNB Facility").
The Company is permitted to borrow funds undemtiaech 2014 CNB Facility to finance new investmesmsl for other working capital and
general corporate needs. Advances under the M&th @NB Facility accrue interest at a per annur egjual to the sum of, at the
Company's option, either (a) LIBOR for a one, tthwee, six or, if available to all lenders, 12-ntomtterest period plus 3.00% or (b) a base
rate (which is the highest of a prime rate, theefatifunds rate plus 0.50%, or one month LIBOR dl@%) plus 1.25%; provided that in no
event shall the interest rate be less than 3.008edd at least 75% of the March 2014 CNB Facifitysed on average, unused commitments
under the March 2014 CNB Facility accrue unusee fees at the rate of 0.375% per annum. For thegreed December 31, 2014, the
Company incurred a non-utilization fee of $82 ttemdas The initial maturity date is March 11, 201#hject to one 12-month extension at the
Company's option provided that certain conditiorsraet. As of December 31, 2014, the outstanditanioca on the March 2014 CNB
Facility was $42.0 million.

The agreements governing the March 2014 E#idlity contain various representations and waiea, and impose certain covenants on
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, asola@r under the March 2014 CNB Facility, includithg following: (a) limitations on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness or liens]itbitations on how borrowed funds may be used]ifatations on certain distributions and
dividend payments following a default or event efalilt, (d) limitations on dispositions of asséty,maintenance of minimum total asset
value by the borrower under the March 2014 CNB Ikaand its subsidiaries, and (f) prohibitionsagfrtain change of control events. The
agreements governing the March 2014 CNB Facilgp &npose certain covenants on the Company, inwdutiie following: (i) maintaining a
ratio of total debt to tangible net worth of notmashan 4.00 to 1.00, (ii) maintaining a ratio efourse debt to tangible net worth of not more
than 3.00 to 1.00, (iii) maintaining a tangible meftrth of at least 80% of the Company's net wostlofaSeptember 30, 2013, plus 80% of the
net cash proceeds raised in equity issuances b@dhgany after March 12, 2014, (iv) maintaining@d charge coverage ratio (expresse
the ratio of EBITDA (net income before net interespense, income tax expense, depreciation andiaatan), as defined, to fixed charges)
for the immediately preceding 12-month period egdin the last date of the applicable reportingquedf at least 1.25 to 1.00, (v) limitations
on mergers, consolidations, transfers of assetsiamthr transactions, and (vi) maintaining itststaas a REIT. As of December 31, 2014, the
Company was in compliance in all material respedtis the terms of the March 2014 CNB Facility.
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July 2014 CNB Facility

In July 2014, the Company and certain ®sitbsidiaries entered into a $75.0 million revadviunding facility (the "July 2014 CNB
Facility" and together with the March 2014 CNB Hi#i the "CNB Facilities") with City National Bankrhe Company is permitted to borr
funds under the July 2014 CNB Facility to finanesvrinvestments and for other working capital andegal corporate needs. Advances ul
the July 2014 CNB Facility accrue interest at agerum rate equal, at the Company's option, tee({th LIBOR for a one, two, three, six or,
if available to all lenders, 1&honth interest period plus 1.50% or (b) a base(mltéch is the highest of a prime rate, the fed&ratls rate plu
0.50%, or one month LIBOR plus 1.00%) plus 0.25%yjaled that in no event shall the interest ratéelss than 1.50%. Unless at least 75%
of the July 2014 CNB Facility is used on averagajsed commitments under the July 2014 CNB Fadlityrue unused line fees at the rate of
0.125% per annum. For the year ended Decembei032, he Company incurred a non-utilization fe&bb thousand. The initial maturity
date is July 31, 2015, subject to onem@nth extension option, provided that certain cbods are met and applicable extension fees ark
As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding balandd@duly 2014 CNB Facility was $75.0 million.

The agreements governing the July 2014 Eldlity contain various representations and wdieanand impose certain covenants on
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, asola@r under the July 2014 CNB Facility, includitng tfollowing: (a) limitations on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness or liens]itbitations on how borrowed funds may be used]ifatations on certain distributions and
dividend payments following a default or event efalilt, (d) limitations on dispositions of ass€&y, maintenance of minimum total asset
value by the borrower under the July 2014 CNB Hgaiind its subsidiaries and (f) prohibitions ofteén change of control events. The
agreements governing the July 2014 CNB Facilitg &algpose certain covenants on the Company, inciuttia following: (i) maintaining a
ratio of total debt to tangible net worth of notmaehan 4.00 to 1.00, (ii) maintaining a ratio efourse debt to tangible net worth of not more
than 3.00 to 1.00, (iii) maintaining a tangible natrth of at least 80% of the Company's net wostlofaSeptember 30, 2013, plus 80% of the
net cash proceeds raised in equity issuances b@dhgany after July 30, 2014, (iv) maintainingxaefl charge coverage ratio (expressed as
the ratio of EBITDA (net income before net interegpense, income tax expense, depreciation andiaatam), as defined, to fixed charges)
for the immediately preceding 12-month period egdin the last date of the applicable reportingquedf at least 1.25 to 1.00, (v) limitations
on mergers, consolidations, transfers of assetsiamthr transactions and (vi) maintaining its stahs a REIT. As of December 31, 2014, the
Company was in compliance in all material respedtis the terms of the July 2014 CNB Facility.

See Note 15 included in these consolidfteshcial statements for more information on a @r&dpport Fee Agreement between Ares
Management and the Company.

MetLife Facility

On August 13, 2014, the Company and cedhits subsidiaries entered into a $180.0 milliemolving master repurchase facility (the
"MetLife Facility") with Metropolitan Life Insuraree Company ("MetLife"), pursuant to which the Compamay sell, and later repurchase,
commercial mortgage loans meeting defined eligibdriteria which are approved by MetLife in itdesdliscretion ("Eligible Assets"). The
initial purchase price paid by MetLife for any Ebte Asset is based on a specified percentageeofdfevant value under the MetLife Facil
Advances under the MetLife Facility accrue inteish per annum rate of 30 day LIBOR plus 2.35% Thmpany will pay MetLife, if
applicable, an annual make-whole fee equal to tin@uat by which the aggregate price differentiabparer the term of the MetLife Facility
is less than the defined minimum price differentiailess certain conditions are met. The initiaturity date of the MetLife Facility is
August 12, 2017, subject to two annual extensioiseaCompany's option, provided that certain ctms are met, including

F-26




Table of Contents
payment of an extension fee. As of December 314 2be outstanding balance on the MetLife Facikigs $144.7 million.

The agreements governing the MetLife Fcidbntain various representations and warrardied,impose certain covenants on the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries, as borrawder the MetLife Facility, including the follong: (a) limitations on the incurrence of
additional indebtedness or liens, (b) limitatiomshmw borrowed funds may be used, (c) limitationgertain distributions and dividend
payments following a default or event of defautigl &d) limitations on dispositions of assets. Theeaments governing the MetLife Facility
also impose certain covenants on the Company,dirgjuthe following: (i) maintaining a ratio of tdtdebt to tangible net worth of not more
than 4.00 to 1.00, (ii) maintaining a ratio of racse debt to tangible net worth of not more th&@® 3o 1.00, (iii) maintaining a tangible net
worth of at least 80% of the Company's net wortbfa8eptember 30, 2013, plus 80% of the net casbeeds raised in equity issuances b
Company after August 13, 2014, (iv) maintainingxad charge coverage ratio (expressed as thedbEBITDA (net income before net
interest expense, income tax expense, depreciatidramortization), as defined, to fixed chargesj}tie immediately preceding 12-month
period ending on the last date of the applicalpentng period of at least 1.25 to 1.00, and (\Qdftain specific debt yield, loan to value or
other credit based tests are not met with respezs$dets on the MetLife Facility, the Company maydgjuired to repay certain amounts ur
the MetLife Facility. As of December 31, 2014, thempany was in compliance in all material respaitis the terms of the MetLife Facility.

UBSFacilities
April 2014 UBS Facility

In December 2014, in connection with theaxion of the December 2014 UBS Facility (defibetbw), the Company amended the
revolving master repurchase facility (the "AprillZ20UBS Facility") with UBS Real Estate Securities.I("UBS") to, among other things,
decrease the size of the facility from $195.0 willto $140.0 million. The Company may sell, anddaepurchase, commercial mortgage
loans and, under certain circumstances, commerahkstate mezzanine loans and other assets gdefined eligibility criteria that are
approved by UBS in its sole discretion. The inipafchase price paid by UBS for assets financeeuitig: April 2014 UBS Facility is based
on a specified percentage of the relevant valuewutig April 2014 UBS Facility. The price differ@it(or interest rate) on the April 2014
UBS Facility is one-month LIBOR plus 1.88%, exclugliamortization of commitment and exit fees. Upgnmination of the April 2014 UBS
Facility, the Company will pay UBS, if applicabtbe amount by which the aggregate price differéptgd over the term of the April 2014
UBS Facility is less than the defined minimum puiierential and an exit fee, in each case, untestain conditions are met. The initial
maturity date of the April 2014 UBS Facility is Alpr, 2017, subject to annual extensions in UB& siéscretion. As of December 31, 2014,
the outstanding balance on the April 2014 UBS Rgaitas $19.7 million.

The April 2014 UBS Facility contains margiall provisions that provide UBS with certain riglif the applicable percentage of the
aggregate asset value of the purchased assetsthed&pril 2014 UBS Facility is less than the aggte purchase price for such assets. The
April 2014 UBS Facility is fully guaranteed by ti®mpany and requires the Company to maintain cefitzancial and other covenants
including the following: (a) maintaining a ratio @f recourse debt to tangible net worth of not entivan 3.00 to 1.00 and (ii) total debt to
tangible net worth of not more than 4.00 to 1.@),njaintaining a tangible net worth of at least 8@0the Company's net worth as of
September 30, 2013, plus 80% of net cash proceeds/ed from all subsequent equity issuances bZtrmpany, and (c) maintaining a fix
charge coverage ratio (expressed as the ratioja$tad-EBITDA (net income before net interest exggerincome tax expense, depreciation
and amortization) to fixed charges) for the immealiapreceding 12-month period ending on the lastaf the applicable reporting period of
at least 1.25 to 1.00. In addition, the April 201BS Facility contains certain
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affirmative and negative covenants and provisi@garding events of default that are customaryifoilar repurchase facilities. As of
December 31, 2014, the Company was in complianedl material respects with the terms of the ApfiL4 UBS Facility.

December 2014 UBS Facility

The Company is party to a global masteurepase agreement (the "December 2014 UBS Fagilitigh UBS AG ("UBS AG"), pursua
to which the Company will sell, and later repur@hasertain retained subordinate notes in the Cogip@MBS securitization (the "Purcha:
Securities") for an aggregate purchase price equeb7.2 million. The scheduled repurchase date@Purchased Securities under the
December 2014 UBS Facility is January 6, 2016 (Repurchase Date"). The transaction fee (or intests), which is payable monthly on
the December 2014 UBS Facility, is equal to onem&tBOR plus 2.74% per annum on the outstandinguam If the outstanding amount
of the Purchased Securities subject to the Decelit UBS Facility is reduced or repaid prior te fepurchase Date, UBS AG shall be
entitled to a termination fee. As of December 3114 the outstanding balance on the December 2®&S} Eacility was $57.2 million.

The December 2014 UBS Facility also corgamargin call provisions that provide UBS AG witirtain rights if the applicable
percentage of the aggregate asset value of thé&sed Securities is less than the aggregate perghiase for such Purchased Securities. The
December 2014 UBS Facility is fully guaranteed iy Company and requires the Company to maintataiodinancial and other covenants
including the following: (a) maintaining a ratio @f recourse debt to tangible net worth of not entivan 3.00 to 1.00 and (ii) total debt to
tangible net worth of not more than 4.00 to 1.@),njaintaining a tangible net worth of at least 8@0the Company's net worth as of
September 30, 2013, plus 80% of net cash proceedsved from all subsequent equity issuances bgtmpany, and (c) maintaining a fix
charge coverage ratio (expressed as the ratioja$tad-EBITDA (net income before net interest exggerincome tax expense, depreciation
and amortization) to fixed charges) for the immaaliapreceding 12-month period ending on the lastaf the applicable reporting period of
at least 1.25 to 1.00. In addition, the Decembdd20BS Facility contains certain affirmative andyagve covenants and provisions regar
events of default that are customary for similgaurehase facilities. As of December 31, 2014, tben@any was in compliance in all material
respects with the terms of the December 2014 URSifya

Warehouse Lines of Credit
ASAP Line of Credit

ACRE Capital is party to a multifamily asos as pooled ("ASAP") sale agreement with Fanrée Kthe "ASAP Line of Credit") to
finance installments received from Fannie Mae.Redxtent the ASAP Line of Credit remains activetigh utilization, there is no expirati
date. The commitment amount is subject to changeytime at Fannie Mae's discretion. Fannie Magacks payment to ACRE Capital in
two separate installments according to the ternseaforth in the ASAP sale agreement. The firstaltment is considered an advance to
ACRE Capital from Fannie Mae and not a sale uhéldecond advance and settlement is made. As ehiker 31, 2014, the outstanding
balance under the ASAP Line of Credit was $58.%ionil As of December 31, 2013, there was no outhtenbalance under the ASAP Line
of Credit.

BAML Line of Credit

In November 2014, ACRE Capital amendeditteeof credit with Bank of America, N.A. (as amedand restated, the "BAML Line of
Credit") to, among other things, increase the sfztae commitment from $80.0 million to $180.0 naili for the period November 25, 2014
through January 26, 2015 to accommodate produgtbhmme during this time. The stated interest ratehe
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BAML Line of Credit is LIBOR Daily Floating Rate p$ 1.60%. The maturity date of the BAML Line of @itas April 15, 2015. For the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Conpzunyed a no-utilization fee of $84 thousand and $26 thousaeskpectively. As of
December 31, 2014, the outstanding balance undeBAML Line of Credit was $134.7 million. As of Dember 31, 2013, there was no
outstanding balance under the BAML Line of Cre8&e Note 22 included in these consolidated findsta@ements for information on a
subsequent event relating to the BAML Line of Ctedi

The BAML Line of Credit is collateralized la first lien on ACRE Capital's interest in thenigage loans that it originates. Advances
from the BAML Line of Credit cannot exceed 100%loé principal amounts of the mortgage loans origiddy ACRE Capital and must be
repaid at the earlier of the sale or other dispmsivf the mortgage loans or at the expiration détthe BAML Line of Credit. The terms of t
BAML Line of Credit require ACRE Capital to complith various covenants, including a minimum tangibkt worth requirement. As of
December 31, 2014, ACRE Capital was in compliancalimaterial respects with the terms of the BAMhe of Credit.

2015 Convertible Notes

On December 19, 2012, the Company issu8d)$6illion aggregate principal amount of the 2@dnvertible Notes. Of this aggregate
principal amount, $60.5 million aggregate principaiount of the 2015 Convertible Notes was soldhéoinitial purchasers (including
$9.0 million pursuant to the initial purchaserstxse in full of their overallotment option) an8l.$ million aggregate principal amount of the
2015 Convertible Notes was sold directly to certdinectors, officers and affiliates of the Compamy private placement. The 2015
Convertible Notes were issued pursuant to an Inatlentiated December 19, 2012 (the "Indenture"yyden the Company and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee. The sale of E52ZConvertible Notes generated net proceeds abappately $66.2 million. Aggrega
estimated offering expenses in connection withtthesaction, including the initial purchasers' digtt of approximately $2.1 million, were
approximately $2.8 million. As of December 31, 2@h#l 2013, the carrying value of the 2015 Convierfpotes was $68.4 million and
$67.8 million, respectively.

The 2015 Convertible Notes bear interesti@te of 7.00% per year, payable semiannualyriears on June 15 and December 15 of
year, beginning on June 15, 2013. The estimatedtt®fE interest rate of the 2015 Convertible Notdsch is equal to the stated rate of 7.(
plus the accretion of the original issue discoumtt associated costs, was 9.4% for the years endeerniber 31, 2014 and 2013. For the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the intereshegprcurred on this indebtedness was $6.3 midiwh $6.2 million, respectively. The
2015 Convertible Notes will mature on December2l8,5 (the "Maturity Date"), unless previously corted or repurchased in accordance
with their terms. The 2015 Convertible Notes ae@ompany's senior unsecured obligations and ramkisin right of payment to the
Company's existing and future indebtedness thatpsessly subordinated in right of payment to th&3Convertible Notes; equal in right of
payment to the Company's existing and future urreelcindebtedness that is not so subordinated;tefé#g junior in right of payment to any
of the Company's secured indebtedness (includiragieg unsecured indebtedness that the Companydateires) to the extent of the value
the assets securing such indebtedness; and stilgjunior to all existing and future indebtednéssluding trade payables) incurred by the
Company's subsidiaries, financing vehicles or sinfacilities.

Prior to the close of business on the lssirday immediately preceding June 15, 2015, holday convert their 2015 Convertible Nc
only under certain circumstances as set forthénidenture. On or after June 15, 2015 until tselof business on the scheduled trading
immediately preceding the Maturity Date, holdersyroanvert their 2015 Convertible Notes at any tikdpon conversion, the Company will
pay or deliver, as the case may be, at its electiash,
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shares of its common stock or a combination of eashshares of its common stock. The conversiaisatitially 53.6107 shares of
common stock per $1,000 principal amount of 2015vedible Notes (equivalent to an initial conversjwice of approximately $18.65 per
share of common stock). The conversion rate wikligiect to adjustment in some events, includimgdgular quarterly dividends in excess
of $0.35 per share, but will not be adjusted for aocrued and unpaid interest. In addition, if@@rcorporate events occur prior to the
Maturity Date, the conversion rate will be increhbeit will in no event exceed 61.6523 shares ofrnomstock per $1,000 principal amount
of 2015 Convertible Notes.

Prior to June 26, 2013, the Company cooldetect to issue shares of common stock upon esioreof the 2015 Convertible Notes to
the extent such election would result in the issaasf 20% or more of the common stock outstandimgpédiately prior to the issuance of the
2015 Convertible Notes until the Company receivedkholder approval for issuances above this tlaiestuntil such stockholder approval
was obtained, the Company could not share-setléuthconversion option. As a result, the embeddamlversion option did not qualify for
equity classification and instead was separatdiyechand accounted for as a derivative liabilitheTinitial value allocated to the derivative
liability was $1.7 million, which represented aatisnt to the debt cost to be amortized throughrésteexpense using the effective interest
method through the maturity of the 2015 Convertidtgtes. The effective interest rate used to ammittie debt discount on the 2015
Convertible Notes was 9.4%. During each reportiagaal, the derivative liability was marked to faalue through earnings.

On June 26, 2013, stockholder approval etgined for the issuance of shares in excess%f&the Company's common stock
outstanding to satisfy any conversions of the 20tBvertible Notes. As a result, the Company hasHilgy to fully settle in shares the
conversion option and the embedded conversionmjioo longer required to be separately valuedaaecdunted for as a derivative liability
on a prospective basis. As of June 26, 2013, theagsion option's cumulative value of $86 thousanad reclassified to additional paid-in
capital and will no longer be markedtearket through earnings. The remaining debt discofiil.5 million as of June 26, 2013, which ar
at the date of debt issuance from the originalrbétion, will continue to be amortized through net&t expense.

The Company does not have the right toeadihe 2015 Convertible Notes prior to the Matubite, except to the extent necessary to
preserve its qualification as a REIT. No sinkingdus provided for the 2015 Convertible Notes. ddiion, if the Company undergoes cert
corporate events that constitute a "fundamentai@bd the holders of the 2015 Convertible Notes neayire the Company to repurchase for
cash all or part of their 2015 Convertible Notea a¢purchase price equal to 100% of the prin@pabunt of the 2015 Convertible Notes t
repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interestit@xXeluding, the fundamental change repurchase dat

At December 31, 2014, approximate principaturities of the Company's Financing Facilitied ¢he 2015 Convertible Notes are as
follows ($ in thousands):

Decembe| Decembel
Capital March  July April 2015
Wells 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 Convertible ASAP BAML
Fargo Citbank One CNB CNB MetLife UBS UBS Line of Line of
Facility Facility Facility Facility Facility Facility Facility Facility Notes Credit  Credit Total
2015 $120,76( $ —3% —5 — $75,00( $ —$ —$ —$ 69,00( $58,46¢ $134,69t $457,93:
2016 — 93,43: — 42,00( — — — 57,24 — — — 192,67
2017 — — — — — 144,67 19,68t — — — — 164,35¢
2018 — — — — — — — — — — — —
2019 — — — — — — — — — — — —
Thereafte — — — — — — — — — — — —
$120,76($ 93,43:$ — $42,000$75,000$144,67.$19,68:F 57,24: % 69,00( $58,46¢ $134,69¢ $814,96:
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7. ALLOWANCE FOR LOSS SHARING

Loans originated and sold by ACRE CapiaFannie Mae under the Fannie Mae DUS programudnjec to the terms and conditions of
a Master Loss Sharing Agreement by ACRE Capitalciwvivas amended and restated during 2012. Undévi#ister Loss Sharing
Agreement, ACRE Capital is responsible for absaylmertain losses incurred by Fannie Mae with resigeloans originated under the DUS
program, as described below in more detail. Thepmreation for this risk of loss is a componentasf/eing fees on the loan.

The losses incurred with respect to indieidoans are allocated between ACRE Capital amhieaMae based on the loss level
designation ("Loss Level") for the particular lo&wans are designated as Loss Level |, Loss Léwllloss Level lll. All loans are
designated Loss Level | unless Fannie Mae and ACRital agree upon a different Loss Level for dipalar loan at the time of the loan
commitment, or if Fannie Mae determines that tleleas not underwritten, processed or servicedrditpto Fannie Mae guidelines.

Losses on Loss Level | loans are shared338.by ACRE Capital and 66.67% by Fannie Mae. Thgimum amount of ACRE Capital's
risk-sharing obligation with respect to any Losséld loan is 33.33% of the original principal anmbwf the loan. Losses incurred in
connection with Loss Level Il and Loss Level llalts are allocated disproportionately to ACRE Céapittil ACRE Capital has absorbed the
maximum level of its risk-sharing obligation witbspect to the particular loan. The maximum losscalble to ACRE Capital for Loss
Level Il loans is 30% of the original principal aomd of the loan, and for Loss Level Il loans i940f the original principal amount of the
loan.

According to the Master Loss Sharing AgreetnFannie Mae may unilaterally increase the amofithe risk-sharing obligation of
ACRE Capital with respect to individual loans wittht@egard to a particular Loss Level if (i) theriodoes not meet specific underwriting
criteria, (ii) the loan is defaulted within twely®2) months after it is purchased by Fannie MagiiipiFannie Mae determines that there was
fraud, material misrepresentation or gross negtigdsy ACRE Capital in its underwriting, closinglidery or servicing of the loan. Under
certain limited circumstances, Fannie Mae may megdCRE Capital to absorb 100% of the losses imclion a loan by requiring ACRE
Capital to repurchase the loan.

The amount of loss incurred on a particldan is determined at the time the loss is inayrfer example, at the time a property is
foreclosed by Fannie Mae (whether acquired by Fahf@e or a third party) or at the time a loan igdified in connection with a default.
Losses may be determined by reference to the paitkby a third party at a foreclosure sale ordfgnence to an appraisal obtained by Fa
Mae in connection with the default on the loan.

In connection with the Company's acquisitid ACRE Capital, Alliant, Inc., a Florida corptian, and The Alliant Company, LLC, a
Florida limited liability company (the "Sellers'gre jointly and severally obligated to fund dirgdif permitted) or to reimburse ACRE
Capital for amounts due and owing after the closiate to Fannie Mae pursuant to ACRE Capital'ssalitce for loss sharing with respect to
settlement of certain DUS program mortgage loaiggrated and serviced by ACRE Capital, subjecteidain limitations. In addition, the
Sellers are jointly and severally obligated to imtéfy ACRE Capital for, among other things, certlmisses arising from Sellers' failure to
fulfill the funding or reimbursement obligationssdeibed above. As of December 31, 2014 and 20&Rthliminary estimate of the portior
such contributions towards such losses relatingeallowance for loss sharing of ACRE Capital494 thousand and $1.9 million,
respectively, and is included within other assethée consolidated balance sheets. Additionallyt waspect to the settlement of certain non-
designated DUS program mortgage loans originatedsarviced by ACRE Capital, the Sellers are joiathygl severally obligated to fund
directly (if permitted) or to reimburse ACRE Capitaeach of the three 12 month periods followihg tlosing date for
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eighty percent (80%) of amounts due and owing dlfterclosing date to Fannie Mae pursuant to ACRRit&ls allowance for loss sharing in
excess of $2.0 million during such 12 month perfmyided that in no event shall Sellers obligadiemceed in the aggregate $3.0 million for
the entire three year period.

ACRE Capital uses several tools to mantggesk-sharing obligation, including maintenanéelisciplined underwriting and approval
processes and procedures, and periodic review\aldagion of underwriting criteria based on undexgymultifamily housing market data
and limitation of exposure to particular geographirkets and submarkets and to individual borrowarsituations where payment under
guaranty is probable and estimable on a specidin,lthe Company records an additional liabilitytigh a charge to the provision for loss
sharing in the consolidated statements of opersitibhe amount of the provision reflects the Com{sagsessment of the likelihood of
payment by the borrower, the estimated dispositadoe of the underlying collateral and the levetisk-sharing. Historically, among other
factors, the loss recognition occurs at or befbeeldan becoming 60 days delinquent.

A summary of the Company's allowance feslsharing for the years ended December 31, 201 2@18 is as follows ($ in thousands):

Allowance for loss sharing assumed in the ACRE @apcquisition

(See Note 18 $ 18,38¢
Current period provision for loss shari 6
Settlements/Writeoff (1,919
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 16,48(
Current period provision for loss shari (1,369
Settlements/Writeoff (2,769
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 12,34¢

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the maximuantifiable allowance for loss sharing assediatith the Company's guarantees
under the Fannie Mae DUS agreement was $1.1 b#iih$1.3 billion, respectively, from a total recsriat risk pool of $3.2 billion and
$3.7 hillion, respectively. Additionally, as of Deober 31, 2014 and 2013, the non-at risk pool a3 fiillion and $5.2 million,
respectively. The at risk pool is subject to FarMae's Master Loss Sharing Agreement and the naiskapool is not subject to such
agreement. The maximum quantifiable allowancedss Isharing is not representative of the actualtles Company would incur. The
Company would be liable for this amount only ifafithe loans it services for Fannie Mae, for whith Company retains some risk of loss,
were to default and all of the collateral underythese loans was determined to be without valtieeatime of settlement.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Caypad the following commitments to fund variougth senior mortgage loans,
transitional senior mortgage loans, subordinatetimezzanine debt investments, as well as prefeigady investments accounted for as
loans held for investment:

As of December 31

$ in thousands 2014 2013

Total commitment: $ 156511 $ 1,191,21
Less: funded commitmen (1,395,28) (1,050,67)
Total unfunded commitmen $ 169,83t $ 140,53¢
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Commitments to extend credit by ACRE Cdpaita generally agreements to lend to a customlemasas there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitmeetserally have fixed expiration dates or other teation clauses and may require payn
of a fee. Occasionally, the commitments may exgithout being drawn upon; therefore, the total catrmant amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. As of Dece®be2014 and 2013, ACRE Capital had the followinghmitments to sell and fund loans:

As of December 31

$ in thousands 2014 2013
Commitments to sell loar $ 249,80: $ 56,11¢
Commitments to fund loar 51,10¢ 51,79

Lease Commitments

ACRE Capital is obligated under a numbeopérating leases for office spaces with termsiranfyom less than one year to more than
five years. Rent expense for the years ended Dezedih 2014 and 2013 was $983 thousand and $288ahd, respectively.

The following table shows future minimuryp@ents under the Company's operating leases foreieended December 31, 2014 ($ in
thousands):

For the year ended December 31, 20:

2015 $ 56F
2016 79C
2017 83¢
2018 83¢
2019 76E
Thereaftel 1,71¢

Total $ 5,51¢

The Company from time to time may be péatiitigation relating to claims arising in the maal course of business. As of December 31,
2014, the Company is not aware of any legal cldaimascould materially impact its business, finahc@ndition or results of operations.

9. DERIVATIVES
Non-designated Hedges

Derivatives not designated as hedges areadi®es that do not meet the criteria for hedgeoanting under GAAP or for which the
Company has not elected to designate as hedgesg€&ha the fair value of derivatives related ® litlan commitments and forward sale
commitments are recorded directly in gains fromutgege banking activities in the consolidated stateis of operations.

Loan commitments and forward sale commitm

Through its subsidiary, ACRE Capital, then@pany enters into loan commitments with borrovegrdéoan originations whereby the
interest rate on the prospective loan is determpran to funding. In general, ACRE Capital simuk@usly enters into forward sale
commitments with investors in order to hedge addhesinterest rate exposure on loan commitmerts.f@rward sale commitment with the
investor locks in an interest rate and price ferghle of the loan. The terms of the loan commitméth the borrower and the forward sale
commitment with the investor are matched with thgctive of hedging interest rate risk. Loan conmn@nts and forward sale commitments
are
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considered undesignated derivative instrumentsodiiagly, such commitments, along with any reldsgs received from potential
borrowers, are recorded at fair value, with changéair value recorded in earnings. For the yeatesl December 31, 2014, the Company
entered into 36 loan commitments and 36 forward saimmitments. For the year ended December 31, 20a £ompany entered into 20
loan commitments and 20 forward sale commitments.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company hadloan commitment with a total notional amount 818 million and ten forward sale
commitments with a total notional amount of $24@i8ion, with maturities ranging from nine days28 months that were not designated as
hedges in qualifying hedging relationships. As ecBmber 31, 2013, the Company had two loan commismeith a total notional amount
$51.8 million and five forward sale commitmentsiwt total notional amount of $56.1 million, with twdties ranging from 24 to 60 days tl
were not designated as hedges in qualifying hedgilagionships.

Right to acquire MSR

In connection with the acquisition of ACRI&pital, the Company assumed the right to acqbeesérvicing for certain HUD loans at a
future date. This right was contingent upon satiéfa of certain conditions, which were all satsfiin the fourth quarter of 2013.
Accordingly, the Company assumed servicing of thears as of January 1, 2014. Pursuant to the sitignimethod of accounting, a gain on
acquisition related to these MSRs was recognizedggectively as of August 30, 2013, the acquisitiate of Alliant Capital. The derivative
asset associated with the right to service thesmeslin 2014 is included within other assets incihresolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2013.

Embedded conversion opti

In connection with the issuance of the 2Cbhivertible Notes, the Company could not eleis$ae shares of common stock upon
conversion of the 2015 Convertible Notes to themxsuch election would result in the issuance08b 2r more of the common stock
outstanding immediately prior to the issuance ef2615 Convertible Notes until the Company recestedkholder approval for issuances
above this threshold. As a result, the embeddedarsion option did not qualify for equity classdion and instead was separately valued
and accounted for as a derivative liability. Onel@6, 2013, stockholder approval was obtainedhfeligssuance of shares in excess of 20% of
the Company's common stock outstanding to satisfycanversions of the 2015 Convertible Notes. Assalt, the Company had the ability
fully settle in shares the conversion option arelémbedded conversion option was no longer reqtiréeé separately valued and accounted
for as a derivative liability on a prospective Isagis of December 31, 2014 and 2013, there wasriealive liability. For the year ended
December 31, 2013, changes in the fair value oéthbedded conversion option are included withimgka in fair value of derivatives in the
consolidated statements of operations.
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The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments a#f as their classification within the
Company's consolidated balance sheets as of Dec&hp2014 and 2013 ($ in thousands):

As of December 31

2014 2013
Balance Shee Balance Shee
Location Fair Value Location Fair Value

Derivatives not designated a

hedging instruments
Loan commitment Otherasset $ 3,08. Otherasset $ 2,03¢
Forward sale commitmen Other asset 11€  Other asset 272
Right to acquire MSR Other asset —  Other asset 1,715
Forward sale commitmen Other liabilities (1,52¢) Other liabilities (500
Total derivatives not designated a:

hedging instruments $  1,67( $ 3,521

10. SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On February 8, 2012, the Company's boadirettors adopted resolutions classifying andglesting 600 shares of authorized preferred
stock as shares of Series A Convertible PrefertedkSpar value $0.01 per share ("Series A PrefeBteck"). Holders of shares of Series A
Preferred Stock were entitled to receive, whenamduthorized by the Company's board of directotdsdeclared by us out of funds legally
available for that purpose, dividends at the PiangaDividend Rate, compounded quarterly. The "Rifvg Dividend Rate" means
(a) beginning on the issue date through and incty@iecember 31, 2012, 10% per annum, (b) beginminganuary 1, 2013 through and
including December 31, 2013, 11% per annum, (c)nmégg on January 1, 2014 through and includingddelger 31, 2014, 12% per annum,
and (d) beginning on January 1, 2015 and theredf88% per annum; provided, however, that the PliegaDividend Rate may decrease by
certain specified amounts if the Company achievesrtain coverage ratio.

Shares of Series A Preferred Stock wereaedble by the Company at any time, in whole gairt, beginning on September 30, 2012,
at the applicable redemption price. Additionallyases of Series A Preferred Stock were redeemaltiie aption of the holder upon an IPC
the applicable redemption price. Holders of shafdhe Series A Preferred Stock exercised thismgadion in connection with the IPO and no
shares of Series A Preferred Stock were outstarairgf December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 20B2Citmpany issued 114.4578 shares of Series A RrdfStock for an aggregate subscrip
price of approximately $5.7 million, paid a cashidénd of $102 thousand, and recognized the accrefi $572 thousand for the redemption
premium for a total balance of approximately $6iBiom. The redemption price for redeemed shareSeafes A Preferred Stock was equal to
(i) the sum of (a) the subscription price, (b) a@inidends per share added thereto pursuant tethestof the Series A Preferred Stock and
(c) any accrued and unpaid dividends per share(j)um amount equal to a percentage of the sijtgmn price of the Series A Preferred
Stock and 10%.
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11. EQUITY

The following table summarizes the totarals issued and proceeds received in public offeriri the Company's common stock net of
offering costs for the years ended December 313 20 2012 (in millions, except per share data):

Offering Price Proceeds net o
Shares Issuec per share offering costs
2013
July 2013 601,59((1) $ 13.5( 7.7
June 201: 18,000,00 $ 13.5( 234.¢
Total for the year ended December 31, 2 18,601,59 242
2012
May 2012 7,700,000 $ 18.5( 139.(
Total for the year ended December 31, 2 7,700,001 139.(

(1) The Company granted the underwriters an ogtiggurchase up to an additional 2.7 million shafesommon stock.
This amount represents the partial exercise obgtion to purchase additional shares by the undiemsr

The net proceeds were used to invest getanvestments, repay indebtedness, fund futurdifigg commitments on existing loans and
for other general corporate purposes. There weshates issued in public or private offerings far year ended December 31, 2014.

See Note 18 included in these consolidfiteshcial statements for information regarding sisasf the Company's common stock issued
in a private placement.

Equity I ncentive Plan

On April 23, 2012, the Company adopted guitg incentive plan (the "2012 Equity IncentiveaPl). Pursuant to the 2012 Equity
Incentive Plan, the Company may grant awards ctingisf restricted shares of the Company's commacks restricted stock units and/or
other equitybased awards to the Company's outside directongogees, officers, ACREM and other eligible awadaader the plan, subje
to an aggregate limitation of 690,000 shares ofreomstock (7.5% of the issued and outstanding sharthe Company's common stock
immediately after giving effect to the issuancehef shares sold in the IPO). Any restricted shafélse Company's common stock and
restricted stock units will be accounted for undASB ASC Topic 718Compensation—Stock CompensaffthSC 718"), resulting in share-
based compensation expense equal to the grantaiiat@lue of the underlying restricted sharesa@hmon stock or restricted stock units.

Restricted stock grants generally vestlgtaver a one to four year period from the vesstayt date. The grantee receives additional
compensation for each outstanding restricted sgoait, classified as dividends paid, equal to #reghare dividends received by common
stockholders.

During the year ended December 31, 201AGRE Capital employee was granted restricted stibakvests in proportion to certain
financial performance targets being met over aifipderiod of time. The fair value of the perfante based restricted stock granted is
recorded to expense on an accelerated basis bsragtelerated attribution method over the perfageaeriod for the award, with an
offsetting increase in stockholders' equity.

F-36




Table of Contents

The following table details the restricedck grants awarded as of December 31, 2014.

Grant Date Vesting Start Date Shares Granted
May 1, 201z July 1, 201z 35,13¢
June 18, 201 July 1, 201z 7,027
July 9, 201z October 1, 201, 25,00(
June 26, 201 July 1, 201z 22,52¢
November 25, 201 November 25, 201 30,38:
January 31, 201 March 15, 201¢ 48,27:
February 26, 201 February 26, 201 12,03(
February 27, 201 August 27, 201- 22,35«
June 24, 201 June 24, 201 17,65¢
Total 220,38t

The following tables summarize the non-edsthares of restricted stock and the vesting stbed shares of restricted stock for the
Company's directors and officers and employeesG@RE Capital as of December 31, 2014.

Schedule of Non-Vested Share and Share Equivalents

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Grants—Directors Grants—Officer Grants—Employees Total
Balance as of December 31,

2013 25,42( 17,18¢ 30,38: 72,98
Grantec 29,68¢ — 70,627 100,31!
Vested (31,290 (6,250 (4,477 (42,01)
Forfeited (2,499 — (17,887 (20,377
Balance as of December 31,

2014 21,32¢ 10,93¢ 78,65¢ 110,91

Future Anticipated Vesting Schedule
Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Grants—Directors Grants—Officer Grants—Employees(1 Total
2015 16,32( 6,25( — 22,57(
2016 4,17( 4,68¢ 30,38, 39,237
2017 834 — — 834
2018 — — — —
2019 — — — —

Total 21,32 10,93¢ 30,38 62,64:

(1) Future anticipated vesting related to empley&eACRE Capital that were granted restrictedlstbat vests in

proportion to certain financial performance tardesg met over a specified period of time areinciuded due to

uncertainty in actual vesting da

The following table summarizes the resticstock compensation expense included in genedshdministrative expenses for ACRE |
compensation and benefits for ACRE Capital, thaltiatir value of shares vested and the weightedageegrant date fair value of the
restricted stock granted to
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the Company's directors and officers and emplogé@sCRE Capital for the years ended December 3142ihd 2013 ($ in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
Restricted Stock Grants Restricted Stock Grants
Directors Officer Employees Total Directors Officer Employees Total
Compensatic
expense $ 445 $ 10€ $ 386 $ 93¢ $§ 40¢€ $ 10€ $ 10 $ 524
Total fair
value of
shares
vested (1 39¢ 79 56 534 36€ 92 — 45¢
Weighted
average
grant date
fair value 38t — 944 28¢ — 39¢

Q) Based on the closing price of the Company's comstmeck on the NYSE on each vesting d

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the tmaipensation cost related to non-vested awardgataecognized totaled $1.1 million and
$967 thousand, respectively, and the weighted-geepariod over which the non-vested awards arectageo be recognized is 2.60 years
and 2.17 years, respectively.

Non-Controlling I nterests

The non-controlling interests held by thia@tties in the Company's consolidated balancetshegresent the equity interests in a limited
liability company, ACRC KA Investor LLC ("ACRC KA")hat are not owned by the Company. A portion ofRECKA's consolidated equity
and statement of operations are allocated to thesecontrolling interests held by third partiesdzhen their pro-rata ownership of ACRC
KA. As of December 31, 2014, ACRC KA's total equitgis $170.7 million, of which $92.8 million was oechby the Company and
$77.9 million was allocated to non-controlling irgsts held by third parties. See Note 17 includetthése consolidated financial statements
for more information on ACRC KA.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following information sets forth thensputations of basic and diluted earnings per comsiame for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012:

For the year ended December 3!

$ in thousands (except share and per share dat 2014 2013 2012
Net income attributable to comm:
stockholders $ 24,39¢ $ 13,76¢ $ 18€
Divided by:
Basic weighted average shares of
common stock outstandin 28,459,30 18,989,50 6,532,701
Non-vested restricted stoc 125,71. 48,65: 34,60:
Diluted weighted average shares of
common stock outstandin 28,585,02 19,038,15 6,567,30!
Basic earnings per common she $ 0.8¢ $ 0.72 $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per common shz $ 0.8t $ 0.7z $ 0.0¢

The Company has considered the impacteo@15 Convertible Notes and the restricted sharadiluted earnings per common share.
The number of shares of common stock that the Zidrrertible Notes are convertible into were notuded in the computation of diluted
net income per
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common share because the inclusion of those sthanglgl have been anti-dilutive for the years endedddnber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
13. INCOME TAX

As discussed in Note 1 included in thesesobdated financial statements, the Company astadd a TRS, TRS Holdings, in connection
with the acquisition of ACRE Capital. In additian,December 2013 and March 2014, the Company forA@dC W TRS and ACRC U
TRS, respectively, in order to issue and hold cetzans intended for sale. The TRS' income taxigion consisted of the following for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 ($ in thdak

For the year
ended

December 31
2014 2013
Current $ 32¢ $ 11t
Deferred (1,372) 61
Total income tax expense (bene $ (1,049 $ 17¢

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagy@mounts of the assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts usethome tax purposes. Deferred tax assets abititlies are presented net by tax
jurisdiction and are included within other assetd ather liabilities in the consolidated balanceedh, respectively. As of December 31, 2
and 2013, the TRS' U.S. tax jurisdiction was ireadeferred tax liability position. The TRS' ard norrently subject to tax in any foreign tax
jurisdictions.

As of December 31, 2014, TRS Holdings haéteoperating loss carryforward of $4.0 milliorhigh may be carried back to 2013 and
forward 20 years. The following table presentsWh®. tax jurisdiction and the tax effects of tenggrdifferences on the TRS' respective net
deferred tax assets and liabilities ($ in thousands

As of December 31

2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Mortgage servicing right $ 284 $  74¢C
Net operating loss carryforwa 1,465 —
Other temporary differenct 1,05¢ 12t
Sut-total-deferred tax asse 5,36¢ 874
Deferred tax liabilities
Basis difference in assets from acquisition of ACRE
Capital (2,659 (2,810
Components of gains from mortgage banking acts (4,046 (893)
Amortization of intangible asse (170) (49)
Sut-tota-deferred tax liabilitie: (6,870 (3,752
Net deferred tax liability $ (1,506 $ (2,879

Based on the TRS' assessment, it is mkeby lthan not that the deferred tax assets willdadized through future taxable income. The
TRS' recognize interest and penalties related teaagnized tax benefits within income tax expensthé consolidated statements of
operations. Accrued interest and penalties, if ang included within other liabilities in the cotidated balance sheets.
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The following table is a reconciliationtbe TRS' effective tax rate to the TRS' statutorg.Uederal income tax rate for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

For the year ended
December 31,

2014 2013
Federal statutory ra 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxe 2.4% 5.7%
Federal benefit of state tax deduct (0.8% (2.00%
Effective tax rate 36.€% 38.7%

As of December 31, 2014, tax years 201dutiin 2014 remain subject to examination by taximerities. The Company does not have
any unrecognized tax benefits and the Company dloesxpect that to change in the next twelve months

I ntercompany Note

In connection with the acquisition of ACRR&pital, the Company partially capitalized TRS Hiods with a $44.0 million note. In
October 2014, the Company entered into a $8.0anillevolving promissory note with TRS Holdings (eotively, the two intercompany
notes described above are referred to as, the Notks of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the outatgnarincipal balance of the Notes was
$50.9 million and $44.0 million, respectively. Tineome statement effects of the Notes are elimthateonsolidation for financial reporting
purposes, but the interest income and expensetfrerNotes will affect the taxable income of the @amy and TRS Holdings.

14. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company follows FASB ASC Topic 820-E@jr Value MeasuremerftASC 820-10"), which expands the application of falue
accounting. ASC 829 defines fair value, establishes a frameworkrieasuring fair value in accordance with GAAP angagexis disclosul
requirements for fair value measurements. ASC B2@determines fair value to be the price that wdngdeceived for a financial instrumen
a current sale, which assumes an orderly transabgbween market participants on the measuremésit Tae financial instruments recorded
at fair value on a recurring basis in the Compaogtssolidated financial statements are derivatigtriments, MSRs and loans held for sale.
ASC 820-10 specifies a hierarchy of valuation téghes based on the inputs used in measuring faieva

In accordance with ASC 820-10, the inpwisclito measure fair value are summarized in tlee throad levels listed below:
Level —Quoted prices in active marketsiftentical assets or liabilities.

Level [I—Prices are determined using otignificant observable inputs. Observable inpugsiaputs that other market
participants would use in pricing a security. Thesgy include quoted prices for similar securitiaggrest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk and others.

Level lll—Prices are determined using sfigant unobservable inputs. In situations wheretgdigrices or observable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment at the endhef period), unobservable inputs may
be used.

GAAP requires disclosure of fair value imf@mtion about financial instruments, whether ormeabgnized in the financial statements, for
which it is practical to estimate the value. Inesawhere quoted market prices are not availahlteydbues are based upon the application of
discount rates to estimated future cash flows usiagket yields, or other valuation methodologiesy Ahanges to the
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valuation methodology will be reviewed by the Comya management to ensure the changes are appeofiiee methods used may produce
a fair value calculation that is not indicativenaft realizable value or reflective of future faalwes. Furthermore, while the Company
anticipates that the valuation methods are appatgeand consistent with other market participahtsuse of different methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffiagncial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date.
The Company uses inputs that are current as oh#dasurement date, which may fall within periodmafket dislocation, during which price
transparency may be reduced.

Financial I nstruments Reported at Fair Value

The Company has certain assets and liglsilihat are required to be recorded at fair vatlua recurring basis in accordance with GA
Financial instruments reported at fair value in@mmpany's consolidated financial statements ircM&Rs, right to acquire MSRs, loan
commitments, forward sale commitments and loand teglsale.

The following table summarizes the levelghe fair value hierarchy into which the Compairfiyilancial instruments were categorized as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 ($ in thousands):

Fair Value as of December 31, 201

Level | Level Level llI Total
Loans held for sal $ — $ 203,00¢ $ — $ 203,00t
Mortgage servicing right — — 58,88¢ 58,88¢
Derivative assets
Loan commitment — — 3,08: 3,08:
Forward sale commitmen — — 11¢€ 11€
Derivative liabilities:
Forward sale commitmen — — (1,52¢) (1,52¢)
Fair Value as of December 31, 201
Level | Level Il Level lll Total
Loans held for sal $ — $ 8923 % — $ 89,23
Mortgage servicing right — — 59,64( 59,64(
Derivative assets
Loan commitment — — 2,03¢ 2,03¢
Forward sale commitmen — — 272 272
Right to acquire MSR 1,715 1,715
Derivative liabilities:
Forward sale commitmen — — (500 (500

There were no transfers between the leaglsf December 31, 2014 and 2013. Transfers betlggels are recognized based on the fair
value of the financial instrument at the beginnifighe period.

Loan commitments and forward sale commitimane valued based on a discounted cash flow ntlaeincorporates changes in interest
rates during the period. The MSRs and right to aedqUSRs are valued based on discounted cash flodeis that calculate the present value
of estimated future net servicing income. The maedeksiders contractually specified servicing fgeepayment assumptions, delinquency
rates, late charges, other ancillary revenue, ¢ostervice and other economic factors. The lo&td for sale are valued based on discounted
cash flow models that incorporate quoted observpilites from market participants. The valuatiomefivative instruments are determined
using widely accepted valuation techniques, ineigdharket yield analyses and discounted cash fltalyais on the expected cash flows of
each derivative.
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The following table summarizes the sigmfit unobservable inputs the Company used to vataedial instruments categorized within
Level Ill as of December 31, 2014 ($ in thousands):

Unobservable Input
Fair Primary Weighted
Asset Category Value Valuation Technique Input Range Average

Mortgage servicing righ- $ 58,88¢ Discounted cash flon Discount rate 8- 14% 11.48%
Loan commitments and

forward sale

commitments 1,67C Discounted cash flon Discount rate 8- 8% 8.C%

The following table summarizes the sigrifitunobservable inputs the Company used to valaadial instruments categorized within
Level Ill as of December 31, 2013 ($ in thousands):

Unobservable Input
Fair Primary Weighted
Asset Category Value Valuation Technique Input Range Average

Mortgage servicing righ $ 59,64( Discounted cash flon Discount rate 8- 14% 12.(%
Loan commitments and

forward sale

commitments 1,81( Discounted cash flon Discount rate 8-12% 8.C%
Right to acquire MSR 1,717 Discounted cash floo Discount rate 8- 8% 8.C%

The table above is not intended to beralldsive, but instead is intended to capture thricant unobservable inputs relevant to the
Company's determination of fair values. Changenanket yields, discount rates or EBITDA multipleach in isolation, may have changed
the fair value of the financial instruments. Gellgran increase in market yields or discount ratedecrease in EBITDA multiples may have
resulted in a decrease in the fair value of tharfaial instruments.

The Company's management is responsiblénéo€ompany's fair value valuation policies, psses and procedures related to Level Il
financial instruments. The Company's managememtrtepo the Company's Chief Financial Officer, wias final authority over the valuati
of the Company's Level lll financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the chamgderivative assets and liabilities classified asdl Ill related to mortgage banking activities
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2018t{usands):

Derivative assets and liabilities acquired in theRE Capital

acquisition, net (See Note 1 $ 18z
Settlement: (2,099
Realized gains (losses) recorded in net incorr 1,91¢
Unrealized gains (losses) recorded in net incornr 3,52
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,62i
Settlement: (8,899
Realized gains (losses) recorded in net incorr 5,36¢
Unrealized gains (losses) recorded in net inconr 1,67C
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 1,67(

(1) Realized and unrealized gains (losses) fronvalives are included within gains from mortgagaking
activities in the consolidated statements of op@nat
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The following table summarizes the chamgthe embedded conversion option classified asIléver the year ended December 31,

2013 ($ in thousands):

As of and for the year endec
December 31, 2013

Beginning balance, as of December 31, 20 $ (1,825
Unrealized gain on the embedded conversion opti

(1) 1,73¢
Reclassification of additional p«in capital 86
Ending balance, as of December 31, 20: $ —

(1) The unrealized gain on the embedded convergition is included within changes in fair valuedefrivatives in
the consolidated statements of operations for #a& gnded December 31, 2013. The Company reckbsifi
certain prior quarter and prior year amounts inetlidiithin interest expense related to the fair @afithe
derivative to conform to the Company's presentdiborthe year ended December 31, 2(

See Note 4 included in these consolidatehtial statements for the changes in MSRs tleatlassified as Level lll.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the @agryalues and fair values of the Company's finalnessets and liabilities recorded at cost

are as follows ($ in thousands):

Financial asset:
Loans held for investmel
Financial liabilities:
Secured funding agreemel
Warehouse lines of crec
Convertible note
Commercial mortgage-
backed securitization dek
(consolidated VIE
Collateralized loan obligatio
securitization debt
(consolidated VIE

As of December 31

2014 2013

Level in

Fair Value Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Hierarchy Value Value Value Value
3 $1,46258 $ 1,472,89 $ 958,49! $ 965,43t
2 $ 552,79¢ $ 552,79¢ $ 264,41¢ $ 264,41¢
2 193,16! 193,16! — —
2 68,39¢ 69,00( 67,81 69,00(
3 219,04. 219,04. 395,02 395,02°
3 308,70: 308,70: — —

The carrying values of cash and cash etpnts restricted cash, interest receivable anduadcexpenses approximate their fair values

due to their short-term nature.

Loans held for investment are recordedat,met of unamortized loan fees and originatiostcand net of an allowance for loan losses.
The Company may record fair value adjustments norsecurring basis when it has determined thatrieicessary to record a specific reserve
against a loan and the Company measures suchispesirve using the fair value of the loan's d¢efi@. To determine the fair value of the
collateral, the Company may employ different apph&s depending on the type of collateral. The FimgnFacilities, CMBS debt,
convertible notes and collateralized loan obligaftdCLO") debt are recorded at outstanding pringipdich is the Company's best estimate

of the fair value.
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15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

The Company was party to an interim managgragreement with ACREM prior to the IPO. Pursdarihe interim management
agreement, ACREM provided investment advisory aadagement services to the Company on an interiims basl the IPO. For providing
these services, ACREM received only reimbursemeots the Company for any third party costs that AZBRincurred on behalf of the
Company.

On April 25, 2012, in connection with ther@pany's IPO, the Company entered into the ManageAgreement under which ACREM,
subject to the supervision and oversight of the @amy's board of directors, will be responsible fanong other duties, (a) performing all of
the Company's day-to-day functions, (b) determinlirgCompany's investment strategy and guidelimesmjunction with the Company's
board of directors, (c) sourcing, analyzing andcekiag investments, asset sales and financing(@ngerforming portfolio management
duties. In addition, ACREM has an Investment Cortemithat oversees compliance with the Companyésiment strategy and guidelines,
investment portfolio holdings and financing strateg

Effective May 1, 2012, in exchange forsésvices, ACREM is entitled to receive a base memagnt fee, an incentive fee, expense
reimbursements, grants of equity-based awards ant$a the Company's 2012 Equity Incentive Planat@mination fee, if applicable.

The base management fee is equal to 1.8%edfompany's stockholders' equity per annum, lwisicalculated and payable quarterly in
arrears in cash. For purposes of calculating tise b@anagement fee, stockholders' equity meanth&aum of (i) the net proceeds from all
issuances of the Company's equity securities simoeption (allocated on a pro rata daily basissiaech issuances during the fiscal quarter of
any such issuance), plus (ii) the Company's retéi@enings at the end of the most recently conglideal quarter determined in accordance
with GAAP (without taking into account any non-casjuity compensation expense incurred in curreptior periods); less (b) (x) any
amount that the Company has paid to repurchas€dh®any's common stock since inception, (y) angalimed gains and losses and other
non-cash items that have impacted stockholder#tyeasi reported in the Company's consolidated fir@rstatements prepared in accordance
with GAAP, and (z) one-time events pursuant to gearin GAAP, and certain non-cash items not ottewiescribed above, in each case
after discussions between ACREM and the Compangtpiendent directors and approval by a majorith@fCompany's independent
directors. As a result, the Company's stockholdsygity, for purposes of calculating the managerfemtcould be greater or less than the
amount of stockholders' equity shown on the Comisacgnsolidated financial statements.

The incentive fee is an amount, not leas thero, equal to the difference between: (a) thdurt of (i) 20% and (ii) the difference
between (A) the Company's Core Earnings (as defedalv) for the previous 12-month period, and (B8 product of (1) the weighted
average of the issue price per share of the Con'pangnmon stock of all of the Company's public iffgs of common stock multiplied by
the weighted average number of all shares of comstmok outstanding (including any restricted shafedte Company's common stock,
restricted stock units or any shares of the Compaigmmon stock not yet issued, but underlying rogineards granted under the Company's
2012 Equity Incentive Plan (See Note 11 includethése consolidated financial statements) in teeipus 12-month period, and (2) 8%; and
(b) the sum of any incentive fees earned by ACREM vespect to the first three fiscal quartersuftsprevious 12-month periogrovided,
however, that no incentive fee is payable with respectrtp fiscal quarter unless cumulative Core Earnfogshe 12 most recently comple!
fiscal quarters is greater than zero. "Core Easfimga non-GAAP measure and is defined as GAAReeime (loss) computed in
accordance with GAAP, excluding non-cash equity gensation expense, the incentive fee, depreciatidramortization (to the extent that
any of the Company's target investments are stredtas debt and the Company forecloses on any
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properties underlying such debt), any unrealizedsgdosses or other narash items recorded in net income (loss) for thgeregardless ¢
whether such items are included in other compraherscome or loss, or in net income (loss), and-tme events pursuant to changes in
GAAP and certain non-cash charges after discussietveeen ACREM and the Company's independent dirgeind after approval by a
majority of the Company's independent directorsiiéentive fees were earned for the years endeérbeer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

The Company reimburses ACREM at cost faraping expenses that ACREM incurs on the Compdmgfialf, including expenses
relating to legal, financial, accounting, servigidge diligence and other services. The Compaaifishursement obligation is not subject to
any dollar limitation other than as noted belowhwiéspect to the Servicing Limitation and the Retstd Cost Amendment (as defined belc

The Company will not reimburse ACREM foetkalaries and other compensation of its persoeregpt for the allocable share of the
salaries and other compensation of the CompanyGhif Financial Officer, based on the percentaigeis time spent on the Company's
affairs and (b) other corporate finance, tax, aotiog, internal audit, legal, risk management, atiens, compliance and other non-
investment professional personnel of ACREM or ffiates who spend all or a portion of their timeanaging the Company's affairs basei
the percentage of their time spent on the Compafifidg's (collectively, "Personnel Expenses"). Twmpany is also required to pay its pro
rata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offiteniture, equipment, machinery and other officdéeinal and overhead expenses of ACREM
and its affiliates that are required for the Compmoperations (collectively, "Overhead ExpenseBHE initial term of the Management
Agreement will end May 1, 2015, with automatic grear renewal terms. Except under limited circumstanupon a termination of the
Management Agreement, the Company will pay ACREtdraination fee equal to three times the averagearbase management fee and
incentive fee received by ACREM during the 24-mopéhiod immediately preceding the most recently pleted fiscal quarter prior to the
date of termination, each as described above.

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries, ghith the Company's lenders under the Wells F&aylity, the Citibank Facilities, the
MetLife Facility and the April 2014 UBS Facilitysavell as under the CMBS and CLO have enteredviatimus servicing agreements with
ACREM's subsidiary servicer, Ares Commercial ResthEe Servicer LLC ("ACRES"), a Standard & Pooated commercial primary and
special servicer that is included on Standard &Bdeelect Servicer List. Effective May 1, 2012, RES agreed that no servicing fees
pursuant to these servicing agreements would begyetido the Company or its subsidiaries for so lamghe Management Agreement rem
in effect, but that ACRES will continue to receie@mbursement for overhead related to servicingapetational activities pursuant to the
terms of the Management Agreement (the "Servicimgjtation").

Effective as of September 30, 2013, the gamy and ACREM entered into an amendment to thealglament Agreement (the
"Restricted Cost Amendment") whereby ACREM agreetto seek reimbursement of Restricted Costs (Asetkbelow), in excess of
$1.0 million per quarter for the quarterly perigbdat ended on September 30, 2013, December 31, 2r8h 31, 2014 and June 30, 2014.
Effective as of September 30, 2014, the CompanyABREM extended the Restricted Cost Amendment si@hACREM has agreed not to
seek reimbursement of Restricted Costs in exce$s.06fmillion per quarter for the quarterly perended September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2014. "Restricted Costs" are Persdpenses and Overhead Expenses incurred in tiemoycourse of the Company's
origination business and do not include any PersloBrpenses or Overhead Expenses that were incurahnection with transactions
outside our ordinary course of business, inclugiitgout limitation, transactions for the acquisitiof a portfolio of investments or for the
acquisition of another company or its assets asihbss.

F-45




Table of Contents

Summarized below are the related partysdosurred by the Company, including ACRE Capiial the years ended December 31, 2
2013 and 2012 and amounts payable to the Complsliayiager as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 ($ irstruls):

Incurred Payable
For the year ended As of
December 31, December 31,

$ in thousands 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013
Affiliate Payments

Management fee $ 591¢ $ 4,241 $ 1,665 $ 1,471 $ 1,49]
General and administrative expen 4,00( 3,61( 1,60z 1,00(¢ 1,00(¢
Direct costs 861 76¢ 643 264 29¢
Other — — 17 — —

$ 10,770 $ 8,62( $ 3,927 $ 2,73t $ 2,79¢

Ares | nvestments

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, Aresstments Holdings LLC ("Ares Investments"), a whallyned subsidiary of Ares
Management, owned $1.2 million aggregate princimadunt of the 2015 Convertible Notes.

Credit Support Fee Agreement

On July 30, 2014, the Company and certhitssubsidiaries entered into a Credit Suppog Rgreement with Ares under which the
Company agreed to pay Ares a credit support fesm iamount equal to 1.50% per annum times the agenagunt of the loans outstanding
under the July 2014 CNB Facility and to reimbursesifor its out-of-pocket costs and expenses imection with the transaction. During the
year ended December 31, 2014, the Company incaroeddit support fee of $278 thousand under the2d4 CNB Facility which i:
included within interest expense in the Compangtssolidated statements of operations. In conneetitnthe Credit Support Fee Agreem
on July 30, 2014, the Company entered into a Plédgeement pursuant to which the Company pledge¥tés its ownership interests in its
wholly owned direct subsidiary, ACRC Holdings LL{Be holding entity for the Company's principal lemgbusiness. See Note 6 included in
these consolidated financial statements for mdgrnmation on the July 2014 CNB Facility.
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16. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The following table summarizes the Compsuywidends declared during the years ended Decegih@014 and 2013 ($ in thousands,
except per share data):

Per share
Date declared Record date Payment date amount Total amount
November 10, 201 December 31, 20: January 15,201 $ 0.2t $ 7,147
August 6, 201« September 30, 20 October 15, 201 0.2t 7,151
May 7, 2014 June 30, 201 July 16, 201 0.2t 7,151
March 17, 201« March 31, 201 April 16, 201+« 0.2¢ 7,14
Total cash dividends

declared for the year

ended December 31,

2014 $ 10C $ 28,59¢
November 13, 201 December 31, 20: January 22,20 $ 0.2t $ 7,123
August 7, 201! September 30, 20 October 17, 201 0.2t 7,11¢
May 15, 201 June 28, 201 July 18, 201 0.2t 6,822
March 14, 201 April 08, 201: April 18, 201: 0.2t 2,31

Total cash dividends
declared for the year
ended December 31,
2013 $ 1.0C $ 23,38t

17. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES
Consolidated VIEs

As discussed in Note 2, the Company evafuall of its investments and other interests titiea for consolidation, including its
investments in: (a) the CMBS transaction and then@any's retained interests in the subordinatedetasf the Certificates (as defined bel
issued by the Trust (as defined below), (b) the Giladsaction and the Company's retained interegtsei subordinated notes and preferred
equity of the Issuer (as defined below) and (c)edgpred equity investment in an LLC entity (dissed below), all of which are generally
considered to be variable interests in a VIE.

CMBS Securitization

On November 19, 2013, ACRC 2013-FL1 Depodit C (the "Depositor"), a wholly owned subsidiaf/the Company, entered into a
Pooling and Servicing Agreement, dated as of Nowwrib2013, which was amended on March 28, 20hé,"@ooling and Servicing
Agreement"), with Wells Fargo Bank, National Assditin, as master servicer ("Wells Fargo"), Ares @mrtial Real Estate Servicer LLC
("Ares Servicer"), U.S. Bank National Associatias,trustee, certificate administrator, paying agek custodian, and Trimont Real Estate
Advisors, Inc., as trust advisor, in connectiorhwiirming ACRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2013-FtHe("Trust"). The Pooling and
Servicing Agreement governs the issuance of appratdly $493.8 million aggregate principal balanemmercial mortgage pass-through
certificates (the "Certificates") in a CMBS effetttey the Depositor. The Trust is treated for UeSlefral income tax purposes as a real estate
mortgage investment conduit.

In connection with the securitization, tepositor contributed to the Trust a pool of 18iatljble rate participation interests (the "Trust
Assets") in commercial mortgage loans secured bgo@Tmercial properties, which loans were originatedo-originated by the Company or
its subsidiaries. The Certificates represent, éndggregate, the entire beneficial ownership istére and the obligations of, the Trust. The
senior portions of the CMBS are rated securitisgas by the Trust; the Trust's subordinated, ntedrsecurities, are held by the Company
who acts as the Trust's directing holder.
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In connection with the securitization, thempany offered and sold the following classesesfificates: Class A, Class B, Class C and
Class D Certificates (collectively, the "Offeredr(ifecates”) to third parties pursuant to an offgyimade privately in transactions exempt fi
the registration requirements of the Securities@933 (the "Securities Act"). As of December 2014 and 2013, the aggregate principal
balance of the Offered Certificates was approxifge219.0 million and $395.0 million, respectivend the weighted average coupon of
Offered Certificates was LIBOR plus 2.41% and 1.898spectively. In addition, a wholly owned subaigliof the Company retained
approximately $98.8 million of the Certificates.eT@ompany, as the holder of the subordinated dasfstae Trust, has the obligation to
absorb losses of the Trust, since the Company Fiest doss position in the capital structure of thrust.

CLO Securitization

On August 15, 2014, ACRE Commercial Morg@@14-FL2 Ltd. (the "Issuer"”) and ACRE Commerdalrtgage 2014-FL2 LLC (the
"Co-Issuer"), both wholly owned indirect subsidésriof the Company, entered into an indenture (thaehture™) with Wells Fargo, as
advancing agent and note administrator and Wilneingtrust, National Association as trustee, whichagos the issuance of approximately
$346.1 million principal balance secured floatiagernotes (the "Notes") and $32.7 million of preddrequity in the Issuer. For U.S. federal
income tax purposes, the CLO Issuer and Co-Issedlisregarded entities.

The Notes are collateralized by interesta pool of 15 mortgage assets having a total jpahbalance of up to $378.8 million (the
"Mortgage Assets") originated by a subsidiary & @ompany. The sale of the Mortgage Assets tosthéel is governed by a Mortgage Asset
Purchase Agreement (the "Mortgage Asset PurchaseefAtent") dated as of August 15, 2014, between AC&tler LLC and the Issuer. In
connection with the securitization, the Issuer @oaelssuer offered and sold the following classeNates: Class A, Class A-S, Class B,
Class C and Class D Notes (collectively, the "QffeNotes") to third parties. A wholly owned subaigiof the Company retained
approximately $37.4 million of the most subordinkitetes and all of the preferred equity in the Isslibe Company, as the holder of the
subordinated Notes and all of the preferred ednithe Issuer, has the obligation to absorb los§#ise CLO, since the Company has a first
loss position in the capital structure of the CIAS.of December 31, 2014, the aggregate principainioa of the Offered Notes was
approximately $308.7 million and the weighted ageraoupon of the Offered Notes was LIBOR plus 1.45%

Summary of CMBS and CLO Securitizations

As the directing holder of the CMBS and @1€0, the Company has the ability to direct adggtthat could significantly impact the
Trust's and Issuer's economic performance. Howavénpse instances where an unrelated third geasythe right to unilaterally remove the
special servicer, the Company does not have theptdirect activities that most significantly iemqt the Trust's and Issuer's economic
performance. In addition, there are no substarkiiele-out rights of any party to remove the spesilvicer without cause; however, the
Company's subsidiaries, as directing holders, tiaability to remove the special servicer withcatise. Based on these factors, the
Company is determined to be the primary beneficidithese VIES; thus, the VIEs are consolidated the Company's financial statements.

Ares Servicer, a subsidiary of ACREM, isidaated as the primary and special servicer o€MBS and the CLO. Ares Servicer has
power to direct activities of the Trust and IssGerssuer during the loan workout process on d&fdwind delinquent loans, which is the
activity that most significantly impacts the economerformance of the Trust and Issuer/Co-Issuegs/Servicer waives the servicing and
special servicing fees and the Company pays itsheael costs, as with other servicing

F-48




Table of Contents

agreements. See Note 22 included in these consadidimancial statements for information on a sgoeat event relating to the primary
servicer.

The VIEs consolidated in accordance wittSBAASC Topic 810 are structured as pass througtiesnthat receive principal and interest
on the underlying collateral and distribute thoagrpents to the Certificate and Note holders, aiGgipje. The assets and other instruments
held by these securitization entities are restilieted can only be used to fulfill the obligatiorigte entities. Additionally, the obligations of
the securitization entities do not have any reatmshe general credit of any other consolidatgdies, nor to the Company as the primary
beneficiary.

The inclusion of the assets and liabilité®/IEs of which the Company is deemed the primaepeficiary has no economic effect on the
Company. The Company's exposure to the obligatbN8Es is generally limited to its investment imese entities. The Company is not
obligated to provide, nor has it provided, any ficial support for any of these consolidated stmgstuAs such, the risk associated with the
Company's involvement in these VIEs is limitedhe tarrying value of its investment in the entitg.of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company's maximum risk of loss was $168.8 milliod &98.8 million, respectively. For the years enBedember 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company incurred interest expense related to th8E€&ind CLO securitizations of $9.1 million and $¥7@usand, respectively, and is
included within interest expense in the Compangtssolidated statements of operations.

Investment in VIE

On December 19, 2014, the Company and garty institutional investors formed a limiteddiity company, ACRC KA, which
acquired $170.0 million of preferred equity in alREvhose assets are comprised of a portfolio ofri2®ifamily, student housing, medical
office and selfstorage properties managed by its sponsor. The @aypinvestment in ACRC KA is considered to bénmestment in a VIE
As of December 31, 2014, the Company owns a cdimgdinancial interest of 54.3% of the equity sésin the VIE and the third party
institutional investors own the remaining 45.7%iaority financial interest. The preferred equihases are entitled to a preferred monthly
return over the term of the investment at a fixate 0of 10.95% per annum.

ACREM is the non-member manager of the \BEsed on the terms of the ACRC KA LLC agreeme@R&M has the ability to direct
activities that could significantly impact the VéEconomic performance. There are no substantbkeddt rights held by the third party
institutional investors to remove ACREM as the meember manager without cause. As ACREM serveseam#inager of the Company, the
Company has the right to receive benefits fromuttethat could potentially be significant. As suthe Company is deemed to be the prir
beneficiary of the VIE and the party that is mdssely associated with the VIE. Thus, the VIE issolidated into the Company's financial
statements and the preferred equity interests owgele third party institutional investors areleéefed as a non-controlling interest held by
third parties within the Company's consolidatedchhaé sheets.

As of December 31, 2014, the carrying valtithe preferred equity investment, which is Mfatimamortized fees and origination costs,
was $168.4 million and is included within loanschdr investment in the consolidated balance sha@#is risk associated solely with respect
to the Company's investment in the VIE is limitedhe outstanding principal of its investment ia #ntity. As of December 31, 2014, the
Company's maximum risk of loss solely with resgedhis investment was $92.4 million. See Noterg2uded in these consolidated finan
statements for information on a subsequent eveatrding a transfer of a portion of the Companyw&atment in ACRC KA to third party
institutional investors.
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Unconsolidated VIEs

The Company also holds variable interes¥IEs structured as preferred equity investmanltere the Company does not have a
controlling financial interest. For these structyrine Company is not deemed to be the primaryfloégemy of the VIE, and the Company does
not consolidate these VIEs. These preferred eguigstments are accounted for as loans held fasitinvent and are carried at cost, net of
unamortized loan fees and origination costs, urtles$oans are deemed impaired, and are includkxhirs held for investment in the
Company's consolidated balance sheets.

The Company is not obligated to provide, mave we provided, any financial support for ahyhe Company's unconsolidated VIES. As
such, the risks associated with the Company's wevnént in these VIEs are limited to the outstangirigcipal of the Company's investment
in the entity.

The following table presents the carryimdue and the maximum exposure of unconsolidated \dd=of December 31, 2014 and 2013 ($
in thousands):

As of December 31

2014 2013
Carrying value $ 38,98. $ 4,80«
Maximum exposure to los $ 39,60t $ 4,85(

18. ACQUISITIONS
Asset Acquisition

On August 25, 2014, ACRE Capital enterad mMSR purchase agreement (the "Purchase Agré8mséth a third party which has
been accounted for as an asset acquisition und8BF¥SC Topic 805Business Combinatiorf8$ASC 805"). Under the Purchase Agreement,
ACRE Capital agreed to purchase the rights to seraiportfolio of 46 Freddie Mac multifamily morggaloans with a total unpaid principal
balance of approximately $370.6 million.

The aggregate purchase price was approgiynd2.2 million, which also included a premium fhe Freddie Mac Program Plus®
Seller/Servicer license that ACRE Capital was iddue Freddie Mac in connection with the acquisitdfrthe Freddie Mac MSR portfolio.
ACRE Capital initially recorded the acquired MSR$adr value in the amount of $1.3 million and wslibsequently account for these MSF
fair value consistent with the MSR policy in NoteThe remaining purchase price of $941 thousandalesated to the Freddie Mac Progr
Plus® Seller/Servicer license, an indefinite-livathngible asset. See Note 5 included in theseatiolaged financial statements for additional
information on this license.

On September 16, 2014, ACRE Capital coreplé¢he acquisition of the servicing portfolio ardadl ownership of the MSRs was
transferred to ACRE Capital.

Business Combination

On August 30, 2013, (the "Acquisition Datehe Company completed its acquisition of althef outstanding common units of ACRE
Capital from the Sellers. For accounting purpoesacquisition was deemed to be effective on lbsecof business September 1, 2013, or
the "Accounting Effective Date." Pursuant to thedPase and Sale Agreement, dated as of May 14, P§leénhd among the Company and the
Sellers, the Company paid approximately $53.4 armilin cash, subject to adjustment, and issued 38&RBares of its common stock in a
private placement exempt from registration undextiSe 4(2) of the Securities Act resulting in totainsideration paid of approximately
$60.9 million. The transaction was accounted foa &sisiness combination under ASC 805.
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Through ACRE Capital, the Company operdsesiortgage banking business. ACRE Capital prilpariginates, sells and services
multifamily and other senior-living related loansder programs offered by Fannie Mae, Freddie MacHdD (including Ginnie Mae).

The Company provisionally allocated theghaise price to the assets acquired and liabiisssmed based on their estimated Accou
Effective Date fair values. A change to the pravisii amounts recorded for assets acquired anditiebiassumed during the measurement
period affects the amount of the purchase pria@zated to gain on acquisition. Such changes tptinehase price allocation during the
measurement period are recorded as retrospectjustiangnts to the consolidated financial statemétsing the measurement period, the
Company identified adjustments to certain of thevgional amounts recorded that had the net effedecreasing gain on acquisition by
$747 thousand. The measurement period ended Sept&mb2014.

The following table summarizes the purcharsee allocation recorded as of the Acquisitionté)ancluding retrospective adjustments
during the measurement period ($ in thousands):

Assets acquirec

Cash $ 1,15%
Restricted cas 15,58¢
Loans held for sal 22,15¢
Mortgage servicing right 61,23¢
Intangible asset 5,00(
Derivative asset 182
Risk-sharing indemnificatiol 3,70z
Other asset 4,74¢
Total assets acquirec $ 113,76t
Liabilities assumed:
Warehouse lines of crec $ 14,47.
Allowance for loss sharin 18,38¢
Accounts payable and accrued expei 4,74¢
Other liabilities(1) 10,79¢
Total liabilities assumed $ 48,40.
Net Assets Acquired $ 65,36¢

(1)  Other liabilities include a $6 million payable imoed in connection with the close of the transart

The measurement period adjustments inclim#dte purchase price allocation above were resizhsed on information obtained
subsequent to the Acquisition Date that relatedfrmation that existed as of the Acquisition Date

The Sellers provided the Company with aiminmm working capital balance prior to the Accougtigffective Date. To the extent actual
working capital exceeded or fell below the minimeequirement, the Company would either pay or recéimds from the Sellers. There h:
been no adjustments to the gain on acquisitiomdutie year ended December 31, 2014. The gainguisaion was $4.4 million.

19. SEGMENTS

The Company's reportable segments reftecsignificant components of the Company's operatibat are evaluated separately by the
Company's chief operating decision maker, the CayipaChief Executive Officer, and have discretafficial information available. The
Company
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organizes its segments based primarily upon ther@atf the underlying products and services. Thegany's Chief Executive Officer and
management review certain financial informatior)unling segmented internal profit and loss statémevhich are presented below on that
basis. The amounts in the reportable segmentsdedlin the tables below are in conformity with GAARD the Company's significant
accounting policies as described in Note 2 includetiese consolidated financial statements.

The Company operates in two reportablertass segments:

. principal lending—includes all business actestiof the Company, excluding the ACRE Capital bessnhwhich generally
represents investments in real estate related aohsecurities that are held for investment.

. mortgage banking—includes all business activitiethe acquired ACRE Capital business.

The Company is primarily focused on twoibass segments involving CRE loans. First, in itsgipal lending business, the Company
originates, invests in, manages and services mitididket CRE loans and other CRE-related investnfeniss own account. These loans are
generally held for investment and are securedctiyrer indirectly, by office, multifamily, retaiindustrial and other commercial real estate
properties, or by ownership interests therein. 8dcm its mortgage banking business, conductezlitiit a subsidiary acquired in August

2013, ACRE Capital, the Company originates, sells @tains servicing of primarily multifamily andher senior-living related CRE loans.
These loans are generally held for sale.

Allocated costs between the segments iecindnagement fees and general and administratpensgs payable to the Company's
Manager, both of which represent shared costs. Bldmtation is measured differently based on thexiig facts and circumstances of the
costs being allocated. As the Company integrateRRCapital into its existing business, the Compaxyects future allocations to include
costs relating to services performed by one segmebehalf of other segments.

The table below presents the Company's éstets as of December 31, 2014 by business s¢@#ierthousands):

Principal Mortgage
Lending Banking Total
Cash and cash equivale $ 1504 $ 150¢ $ 16,55
Restricted cas 49,67¢ 16,44: 66,12:
Loans held for investmel 1,462,58: — 1,462,58.
Loans held for sale, at fair vali — 203,00t 203,00t
Mortgage servicing rights, at fair val — 58,88¢ 58,88¢
Other asset 45,457 15,04 60,50:
Total Assets $ 1,572,76! $ 294,88t $ 1,867,65
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The table below presents the Company's astets as of December 31, 2013 by business seéginierthousands):

Principal Mortgage
Lending Banking Total
Cash and cash equivalel $ 1444. $ 5,65¢ $ 20,10(
Restricted cas 3,03¢ 13,91¢ 16,95¢
Loans held for investmel 958,49! — 958,49!
Loans held for sale, at fair vali 84,76¢ 4,46¢ 89,23:
Mortgage servicing rights, at fair val — 59,64( 59,64(
Other asset 16,63: 15,86: 32,49:
Total Assets $ 1,077,370 $ 99,53¢ $ 1,176,91!

The table below presents the Company'sddislated net income for the year ended Decembe2@14 by business segment ($ in
thousands):

Principal Mortgage
Lending Banking Total

Net interest margin:
Interest income from loans held for

investmen $ 70,49 $ — $ 70,49
Interest expens (33,637 —(2) (33,63)

Net interest margi 36,85{(1) — 36,85¢
Mortgage banking revenue:
Servicing fees, ne — 16,39¢ 16,39¢
Gains from mortgage banking activiti — 17,49: 17,49:
Provision for loss sharin — 1,36¢ 1,364
Change in fair value of mortgage servic

rights — (7,650) (7,650

Mortgage banking revent — 27,60¢ 27,60¢
Gain on sale of loar 68C — 68C

Total revenue 37,53¢ 27,60¢ 65,14
Expenses:
Management fees to affilia 5,44( 47¢€ 5,91¢
Professional fee 2,68¢ 1,047 3,73¢
Compensation and benef — 18,64¢ 18,64¢
Acquisition and investment pursuit co 20 — 2C
General and administrative expen 3,00z 6,24¢ 9,252
General and administrative expenses

reimbursed to affiliats 3,40( 60C 4,00(

Total expense 14,54¢ 27,02: 41,57(
Income from operations before income

taxes 22,98¢ 584 23,57
Income tax expense (bene! 24C (1,289 (1,049
Net income attributable to ACRE 22,74¢ 1,86 24,61¢
Net income attributable to n-controlling

interests (220 — (220)
Net income attributable to common

stockholders $ 2252¢ $ 1861 $ 24,39¢

1) Revenues from one of the Company's borrowers iptimeipal lending segment represented approximatel
15.8% of the Company's consolidated revenues &y#ar ended December 31, 20
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(@)

Interest expense does not include interest expetsied to the intercompany note between the tvainiess
segments presented, mortgage banking (conductedghhrACRE Capital Holdings LLC) as borrower and
principal lending (conducted through the Comparsyleader, as described in Note 13. Interest expeatated to
the intercompany note is eliminated in the consatéd financial statements of the Company. If irdeexpense
related to the intercompany note were include@réast expense and net loss for the year ended ece,
2014 would have been $3.7 million and $1.8 millimspectively, for mortgage bankir

The table below presents the Company'satiolaged net income for the year ended Decembe2@1L3 by business segment ($ in

thousands):

Principal Mortgage

Lending Banking Total

Net interest margin:
Interest income from loans held for

investmen $ 37,600 $ — $ 37,60(
Interest expens (14,977 —(2) (14,979

Net interest margi 22,62°(1) — 22,62’
Mortgage banking revenue:
Servicing fees, ne — 5,75¢ 5,75¢
Gains from mortgage banking activiti — 5,01¢ 5,01¢
Provision for loss sharin — (6) (6)
Change in fair value of mortgage servic

rights — (2,697) (2,697

Mortgage banking revent — 8,07( 8,07(
Gain on sale of loar — 1,33: 1,33

Total revenu 22,621 9,40: 32,03(
Expenses:
Management fees to affilia 4,12°¢ 11€ 4,247
Professional fee 2,445 477 2,92¢
Compensation and benef — 5,45¢ 5,45¢
Acquisition and investment pursuit co 4,07¢ — 4,07¢
General and administrative expen 2,43( 1,52¢ 3,95¢
General and administrative expenses

reimbursed to affiliati 3,394 21€ 3,61(

Total expense 16,47" 7,79( 24,26:
Changes in fair value of derivativ 1,73¢ — 1,73¢
Income from operations before gain on

acquisition and income taxes 7,891 1,61: 9,504
Gain on acquisitiol 4,43¢ — 4,43¢
Income from operations before income

taxes 12,32¢ 1,61: 13,94.
Income tax expense (bene! — 17¢€ 17¢€
Net income attributable to common

stockholders $ 12,32¢ $ 1,437 $ 13,76¢
(1) Revenues from one of the Company's borrowers iptimeipal lending segment represented approximatel

(2)

13.0% of the Company's consolidated revenues toyd#lar ended December 31, 2013.

Interest expense does not include interest expetsied to the intercompany note between the tvainess
segments presented, mortgage banking (conductedghhrACRE Capital Holdings LLC) as borrower and
principal lending (conducted through the Comparsyleader, as described in Note 13. Interest expeatated to
the
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intercompany note is eliminated in the consoliddieancial statements of the Company. If interegtemse
related to the intercompany note were include@yréast expense and net income for the year endeenfiber 31,
2013 would have been $1.2 million and $244 thousesgpectively, for mortgage bankir

20. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes the Compsuayarterly financial results for each quarterhaf years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013 (amounts in thousands, except per shtag da

For the three month period ended
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31

2014:
Total revenue(1 $ 13,75¢ $ 17,411 $ 13,18 $ 20,79:
Net income $ 4,758 $ 6,63 $ 4,102 $ 9,121
Net income attributable to comm:

stockholders $ 4,758 $ 6,63t $ 4,10 % 8,901
Net income per common sh-Basic $ 017 $ 0.2¢ $ 014 $ 0.31
Net income per common sh-Diluted $ 017 $ 02¢ $ 014 % 0.31
2013:
Total revenue(1 $ 3,77¢ $ 4,70¢ $ 10,91 $  12,63!
Net income $ 327 $ 3,26t $ 6,8842)$ 3,29(
Net income attributable to comm:

stockholders $ 327 $ 3,268 $ 6,8842)$ 3,29(
Net income per common sh-Basic $ 004 $ 032 $ 0.25(2)$ 0.12
Net income per common sh-Diluted $ 004 $ 032 $ 0.25(2)$ 0.12

(1) As of December 31, 2014, the Company no lopgesents other interest expense in its consotidetttements of
operations. Total revenue has been adjusted fremprviously filed Forms 10-Q as of March 31, J@@end
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, andrtheously filed Form 10-K as of December 31, 2@d 8eflect the
reclassification of other interest expense. Othtarest expense related to the 2015 ConvertibledNoas been
reclassified into interest expense, other intezgpense related to the Warehouse Lines of Credibban reclassified
into gains from mortgage banking activities anceotinterest expense related to escrow accountsd@sreclassified
into servicing fees, net in the consolidated stataisof operations. The impact of these reclassaslecrease in total
revenue by $1.7 million, $1.8 million and $1.9 oifl, respectively, for the three month periods rgd¥iarch 31,
June 30 and September 30, 2014, respectively.ipadt of these reclasses is a decrease in tohuevby
$1.6 million, $1.5 million, $1.6 million and $1.9iltion, respectively, for the three month periodslamg March 31,
June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2013, teshecAdditionally, total revenue has been ad@astrom the
previously filed Form 10-Q as of September 30, 2@il@flect a $516 thousand reclass between geons imortgage
banking activities and compensation and benefits.

(2) Net income and net income per common share haen adjusted from the previously filed Form 18s®f
September 30, 2013 to reflect adjustments madagltine measurement period to provisional amoutsgrEzed at the
Acquisition Date

21. COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIE S

During the three months ended March 3142@1ie Company began restructuring and relocatmtaicn ACRE Capital support service:
order to centralize the ACRE Capital platform intze location, including the asset management teehtemdership. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Company has incurred réstmg costs in the mortgage banking segment oP$ABusand. As of December 31,
2014, the Company expects to incur an additiondltfidusand in restructuring costs in the mortgageing segment.
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The table below presents a reconciliatibtie liability attributable to restructuring costeurred in the mortgage banking segment as of
December 31, 2014 ($ in thousands):

Employee Termination Costs

Beginning balance, as of January 1, 2 $

Accruals 79¢
Payment: (574)
Ending balance, as of December 31, 20: $ 22¢

The employee termination costs above asedted with employee severance compensatiomtimtebonuses and guaranteed bonuses
to certain key employees, insurance and outplaceribe costs incurred above are included withinegaihand administrative expenses in the
Company's consolidated statements of operationsf Recember 31, 2014, the restructuring is conepdeid all costs have been measured;
however, the Company expects to recognize restingtaosts through the first quarter of 2015. Tiisasurement includes employee costs
for employees that are required to render seriiegdnd a minimum retention period) in order to ree¢he termination benefits; the
Company will recognize a liability ratably over thaure service period.

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company's management has evaluatedguist events through the date of issuance ofahsotidated financial statements
included herein. There have been no subsequentsetiext occurred during such period that would ieqdisclosure in this Form 10-K or
would be required to be recognized in the constdidifinancial statements as of and for the yeaeémcember 31, 2014, except as
disclosed below.

Effective January 1, 2015, the Companyipaitgd a $41.6 million transitional first mortgagean on a skilled nursing facility located in
New York. At closing, the outstanding principal &ate was approximately $41.6 million. The loan d&raterest rate of LIBOR + 5.0% (p
origination and exit fees) subject to a 0.25% LIBf#®r and a term of two years.

Effective January 1, 2015, the Company'sddeer transferred primary servicing of the Compaimyestments to ACRE Capital. The
Company's Manager will specially service, as neededain of the Company's investments.

On February 27, 2015, the agreement gongrie BAML Line of Credit was amended to, amontggothings, increase the aggregate
commitment to $135.0 million and extend the mayudite to June 30, 2016.

On January 20, 2015, and January 28, 26&5Company transferred $3.9 million and $1.8 wmiljirespectively, of the $170.0 million
preferred equity investment to third party instintl investors. As of March 5, 2015, the Companwgistrolling financial interest in ACRC
KA is 51.0% and the third party institutional int@s own the remaining 49.0%.

Subsequent to the year ended Decembei031, 2CRE Capital rate-locked $17.7 million in FenMae loan commitments.

On March 5, 2015, the Company declaredsh davidend of $0.25 per common share for the fjcstrter of 2015. The first quarter 2015
dividend is payable on April 15, 2015 to commorcktwlders of record as of March 31, 2015.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report t

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Dated: March 5, 2015

ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE
CORPORATION

By:

of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ TODD S. SCHUSTER

Todd S. Schuster

Chief Executive Officer, Director and Presidi

I/s/ TAE-SIK YOON

Tae-Sik Yoon
Chief Financial Officel

/s MICHAEL J. AROUGHETI

Michael J. Arougheti
Director

/s/ CAROLINE E. BLAKELY

Caroline E. Blakely
Director

/s/ JOHN HOPE BRYANT

John Hope Bryant
Director

/sl MICHAEL H. DIAMOND

Michael H. Diamond
Director

/s/ WILLIAM BROWNING

William Browning
Director

/sl ROBERT L. ROSEN

Robert L. Rosen
Director

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

/s/ TODD S. SCHUSTER

Todd S. Schuster
Chief Executive Officer, Director and
President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidoelow by the following persons on bel

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015

March 5, 2015
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF ARES COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CORPORA TION

Name Jurisdiction
ACRC Holdings LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender C LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender One LL( Delaware
ACRC 201:-FL1 Depositor LLC (FKA ACRC Lender Il LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender U LLC (FKA ACRC Lender Ill LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender U TRS LL( Delaware
ACRC Lender U Mezz LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender W LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender W TRS LLC( Delaware
ACRC 201:-FL1 Holder LLC Delaware
ACRC Champions Investor LL Delaware
ACRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2(-FL1 New York
ACRE Capital Holdings LLC Delaware
ACRE Capital LLC Michigan
ACRC Lender B LLC (FKA ACRC Lender IV LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender V LLC Delaware
ACRC Lender ML (FKA ACRC Lender VI LLC Delaware
ACRC CP Investor LLC Delaware
ACRC KA Investor LLC Delaware
ACRC KA JV Investor LLC Delaware
ACRC 201:-FL1B Holder LLC Delaware
ACRC 201~FL2 Holder LLC Delaware
ACRE Commercial Mortgage 20-FL2 LLC Delaware
ACRC Commercial Mortgage 20-FL2 Ltd. Cayman

ACRC Lender VIl LLC Delaware

ACRC Lender VIII LLC Delaware
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe following Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 BB8-188496) of Ares Commercial Real Estate Corpmraand

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 8R8-181077) pertaining to the Ares Commercial Festhte Corporation 2012 Equity
Incentive Plan

of our report dated March 5, 2015, with respedhtoconsolidated financial statements of Ares ComiakReal Estate Corporation included
in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year edd#ecember 31, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 5, 2015
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
of Period Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rel15d-14(a)

I, Todd S. Schuster, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporat

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltich this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§jagr(s) and | are responsible for establishing mraihtaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprargdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovealfficial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant's disclosure controls and procedures agsepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any chanyéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyinfjadr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our masinteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of malezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 5, 2015

/s/ TODD S. SCHUSTER

Todd S. Schuster
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Presidi
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and &We 15d-14(a)

I, Tae Sik Yoon, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporat

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltich this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§jagr(s) and | are responsible for establishing mraihtaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprargdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovealfficial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant's disclosure controls and procedures agsepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any chanyéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyinfjadr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our masinteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of malezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 5, 2015

/s/ TAE-SIK YOON

Tae-Sik Yoon
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
18 U.S.C Section 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkies Commercial Real Estate Corporation (the "@any") for the year ended
December 31, 2014 as filed with the SecuritiesExethange Commission on the date hereof (the "R8pdiidd S. Schuster, as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Tae Sik Yaas Chief Financial Officer of the Company, eactebg certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9¢&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the bekis knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: March 5, 2015

/s/ TODD S. SCHUSTER

Todd S. Schuster
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Presids

/s/ TAE-SIK YOON

Tae-Sik Yoon
Chief Financial Officel

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopting
the signature that appears in typed form withingleetronic version of this written statement regdiby Section 906, has been provided to
Ares Commercial Real Estate Corporation and wiltdtained by Ares Commercial Real Estate Corpanadind furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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